BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC

Form DEFA14A

August 31, 2006

SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Filed by Registrant [X] Filed by Party other than the Registrant [] Check the appropriate box: [] Preliminary Proxy Statement] Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14-6(e)(2)] Definitive Proxy Statement] Definitive Additional Materials [X] Soliciting Material Pursuant to Sec. 240.14a-12 BNP Residential Properties, Inc. Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box): [X] No fee required.] Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0 - 11.1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies: 2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies: 3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11(Set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined): 4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction: 5) Total fee paid:] Fee paid previously with preliminary materials] Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing. 1) Amount Previously Paid: 2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.: 3) Filing Party: 4) Date Filed:

BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES, INC. 301 South College Street - Suite 3850 Charlotte, North Carolina 28202

Contact: Philip S. Payne

Chairman

Tel: (704) 944-0100 Fax: (704) 944-2039

PRESS RELEASE
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES, INC. AGREES
TO BE ACOUIRED BY BABCOCK & BROWN

Charlotte, North Carolina August 31, 2006

BNP Residential Properties, Inc. (AMEX: BNP) announced today that they have entered into a definitive agreement to merge with a wholly owned subsidiary of Babcock & Brown Real Estate Investments LLC in a transaction valued at approximately \$766 million. Babcock & Brown is a publicly traded international investment and advisory firm traded on the Australian Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol BNB.

Under the terms of the agreement, Babcock & Brown will acquire all of the common stock of BNP for \$24.00 per share in cash. Holders of limited partnership units in BNP's operating partnership will have the right to elect to receive \$24.00 per unit in cash or alternatively, the holders of the limited partnership units may have the right to elect to receive units in the surviving operating partnership. The total merger consideration of approximately \$766 million includes the equity shareholder acquisition price of approximately \$316 million and the ability to either assume or refinance approximately \$450 million of existing BNP debt.

Dan Brickman, Head of Babcock & Brown US Real Estate, said "Babcock & Brown's primary interest in BNP is its high quality apartment portfolio of 8,180 apartment units in North Carolina, South Carolina and Virginia, with an average age of 14 years, which it owns and operates. The overall portfolio occupancy is currently over 95% and rental rates are experiencing strong growth from continuing improvement in market conditions."

"BNP also serves as a general partner of limited partnerships that own three properties with 713 additional units, which BNP manages. In addition to the apartment portfolio BNP owns 40 restaurant properties leased on a triple-net basis to a franchise operator under a master lease. BNP also owns several parcels of land in these regions".

1

"The BNP merger is an exciting next step for Babcock & Brown in a wider US multifamily strategy. The BNP assets geographically complement the Alliance Holdings portfolio acquired earlier this year by Babcock & Brown and a syndicate of institutional investors. Following this acquisition Babcock & Brown's multifamily portfolio will have in excess of 28,000 units in nine states in the US and will be more diversified by decreasing the concentration in Texas to 40% and strengthening our presence in the Southeast while maintaining our acquisition discipline of focusing in the high job growth Sunbelt states.

"The additional benefit of acquiring the BNP operating platform and the highly experienced BNP senior management team adds a whole new dimension to our multifamily capabilities going forward. Over time, we intend to continue to grow both the US multifamily asset base as well as our pool of global institutional co-investors."

Eric Lucas, Head of Global Real Estate at Babcock & Brown, said "This

transaction reflects the ongoing development of Babcock & Brown's real estate business model away from pure investment to the establishment and growth of asset management and investment platforms. We expect this type of investment activity to increase going forward."

Philip Payne, BNP Chairman said "the merger allows our shareholders the opportunity to fully realize the market value of BNP's assets, while providing our employees an opportunity to continue to grow the BNP franchise with the backing of a global real estate player in Babcock & Brown. We view this transaction as a win for all parties involved".

Completion of the merger is currently expected to occur during the fourth quarter of 2006 and is subject to approval by BNP's common stockholders and certain other customary closing conditions. The transaction has been approved by the BNP Board of Directors, which has also recommended that the common stockholders approve the merger.

Banc of America Securities LLC acted as financial advisor to BNP Residential Properties, Inc. and DLA Piper Rudnick Gray Cary US LLP acted as its legal counsel.

Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP served as legal counsel for Babcock and Brown.

About BNP Residential: BNP Residential Properties, Inc. is a real estate investment trust focused on owning and operating apartment communities. The Company currently owns and operates 32 apartment communities containing a total of 8,180 units, and serves as general partner of partnerships that own three communities containing 713 units. In addition to the apartment properties, the Company owns 40 properties that are leased on a triple-net basis to a restaurant operator. The Company currently operates in the states of North Carolina, South Carolina and Virginia.

2

BNP Residential Properties, Inc. is structured as an UPREIT, or umbrella partnership real estate investment trust. The Company is the sole general partner and owns a controlling interest in BNP Residential Properties Limited Partnership, the operating partnership. All of the Company's operations are conducted through the operating partnership.

For more information on BNP contact Philip Payne or Andrea Burris at (704) 944-0100 (investor.relations@bnp-residential.com) or visit our website: www.bnp-residential.com.

About Babcock & Brown: Babcock & Brown is a global investment and advisory firm with longstanding capabilities in structured finance and the creation, syndication and management of asset and cash flow-based investments. Babcock & Brown was founded in 1977 and is listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.

Babcock & Brown operates from 21 offices across Australia, the United States, Europe, Asia, United Arab Emirates and Africa and has in excess of 810 employees worldwide. Babcock & Brown has five operating divisions including real estate, infrastructure and project finance, operating leasing, structured finance and corporate finance. The company has established a funds management platform across the operating divisions that has resulted in the creation of a number of focused investment vehicles in areas including real estate, renewable energy and infrastructure.

For more information about Babcock & Brown contact Kelly Hibbins at +61 2 9229 1800 (kelly.hibbins@babcockbrown.com) or visit their website: www.babcockbrown.com.

Additional Information about the Merger and Where to Find It

In connection with the proposed merger of BNP with and into a wholly owned subsidiary of Babcock & Brown Real Estate Investments LLC, BNP intends to file relevant materials with the SEC, including a proxy statement. INVESTORS AND SECURITY HOLDERS OF BNP ARE URGED TO READ THESE MATERIALS WHEN THEY BECOME AVAILABLE BECAUSE THEY WILL CONTAIN IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT THE MERGER, BNP AND THE AFFILIATES OF BABCOCK & BROWN THAT ARE PARTIES TO THE MERGER. The proxy statement and other relevant materials (when they become available) and any other documents filed by BNP with the SEC may be obtained free of charge at the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. In addition, investors and security holders may obtain free copies of the documents filed with the SEC by BNP by contacting Andrea Burris, Director of Investor Relations at investor.relations@bnp-residential.com or (704) 944-0100 or accessing BNP's website at www.bnp-residential.com. Investors and security holders are urged to read the proxy statement and the other relevant materials when they become available before making any voting or investment decision with respect to the merger.

Proxies may be solicited on behalf of BNP by members of its Board of Directors and executive officers. Information about such persons can be found in BNP's definitive proxy statement relating to its 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which was filed

3

with the SEC on April 12, 2006, and may be obtained free of charge at the SEC's website at www.sec.gov or at BNP's website at www.bnp-residential.com.

This communication shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities, nor shall there be any sale of securities in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

4

="2">Annualized base rent is calculated using base rents as of December 31, 2012.

The following table sets forth the net rentable area, total percent leased and average base rent per leased square foot for each of the last five years for our consolidated commercial properties:

Year-End	Rentable Area (Square Feet)	Total Percent Leased	 Base Rent Per Square Foot (1)
December 31, 2012	2,696,541	92.3%	\$ 25.26
December 31, 2011	3,329,366	93.0%	25.00
December 31, 2010	3,471,161	87.8%	25.49
December 31, 2009	3,228,671	89.9%	26.88
December 31, 2008	2,270,880	96.8%	24.87

(1) Average Base Rent per Leased Square Foot excludes retail anchor tenants over 10,000 square feet. Average Base Rent per Leased Square Foot is calculated based on rental income recognized during the period, which is calculated on a straight-line basis in accordance with GAAP, and, accordingly, free rent and other concessions are factored into the calculation.

The following table sets forth the net rentable area, total percent leased and average base rent per leased square foot for each of the last five years for our unconsolidated commercial properties:

Year-End	Rentable Area (Square Feet)	Total Percent Leased	 Base Rent Per quare Foot (1)
December 31, 2012	833,237	91.8%	\$ 19.30
December 31, 2011	7,861,839	86.1%	19.08
December 31, 2010	8,918,375	89.5%	19.32
December 31, 2009	9,572,246	89.9%	19.42
December 31, 2008	21,842,150	89.5%	19.82

(1) Average Base Rent per Leased Square Foot excludes retail anchor tenants over 10,000 square feet. Average Base Rent per Leased Square Foot is calculated based on rental income recognized during the period, which is calculated on a straight-line basis in accordance with GAAP, and, accordingly, free rent and other concessions are factored into the calculation.

Undeveloped Land

We currently own various parcels of land that are held for future developments. Land adjacent to multifamily properties typically would be considered for potential development of another phase of an existing multifamily property if we determine that the particular market can absorb additional apartment units. For expansions at commercial properties, we own parcels both contiguous to the boundaries of the properties, which would accommodate additional office buildings and expansion of shopping centers, and outparcels which are suitable for restaurants, financial institutions, hotels, or free standing retailers. During 2012, as we continued to see strong market fundamentals, we completed the development of two multifamily apartment communities, adding 718 units to our portfolio, and have another five multifamily developments underway, which are expected to add an additional 1,300 units once completed. Of these seven projects, six were built on undeveloped land that we already owned. As we continue to monitor the market fundamentals, we will look for opportunities to continue to grow the company through development efforts on undeveloped land we already own and by disposing of land, including for-sale residential assets, land held for future for-sale and commercial developments and outparcels.

Property Markets

The table below sets forth certain information with respect to the geographic concentration of our consolidated properties as of December 31, 2012.

Geographic Concentration of Consolidated Properties

State	Units (1)	% of Total Units	NRA ⁽²⁾	% of Total NRA
Alabama	3,265	9.6%	1,258,143	46.6%
Arizona	952	2.8%	,, -	
Florida	3,080	9.1%		%
Georgia	4,035	11.9%	813,229	30.2%
Louisiana			282,946	10.5%
Nevada	721	2.1%		
North Carolina	8,977	26.5%	342,223	12.7%
South Carolina	1,890	5.6%		
Tennessee	349	1.0%		
Texas	8,127	24.0%		
Virginia	2,455	7.3%		
-				
Total	33,851	100.0%	2,696,541	100.0%

Mortgage Financing

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately \$1.8 billion of collateralized and unsecured indebtedness outstanding with a weighted average interest rate of 4.93% and a weighted average maturity of 4.4 years. Of this amount, approximately \$1.1 billion was unsecured debt and \$691.9 million was collateralized mortgage

Table of Contents 6

G-45

⁽¹⁾ Units (in this table only) refer to multifamily apartment units.

⁽²⁾ NRA refers to net rentable area of commercial space, which includes gross leasable area and space owned by anchor tenants.

Our primary markets are Charlotte and Raleigh, North Carolina; Austin and Dallas/Fort Worth, Texas; Atlanta, Georgia; and Orlando, Florida. We believe that our markets in these states are characterized by stable and increasing populations. While supply is increasing in Austin, Charlotte, Dallas and Raleigh, we believe that continued job growth in these markets will provide sufficient demand to absorb the new supply.

financing. Our mortgaged indebtedness was collateralized by 36 of our consolidated properties and carried a weighted average interest rate of 5.64% and a weighted average maturity of 6.2 years. The following table sets forth our secured and unsecured indebtedness as of December 31, 2012, in more detail.

(\$ in thousands) Property (1)	Interest Rate	Principal Balance as of 12/31/2012	Anticipated Annual Debt Service 1/1/2013 12/31/2013	Maturity Date	Balance Due on Maturity
Multifamily Properties	Katt	12/31/2012	12/31/2013	Daic	Maturity
CG at Wilmington	5.380%	\$ 26,509	\$ 1,426	4/1/2015	\$ 26,509
CV at Timber Crest	$3.130\%^{(2)}$	12,465	390	8/15/2015	12,465
CV at Matthews	5.800%	14,174	822	3/29/2016	14,174
CG at Trinity Commons	5.430%	29,841	1,620	4/1/2018	29,841
CG at Arringdon (3)	6.040%	18,104	1,093	2/27/2019	18,104
CG at Bear Creek (3)	6.040%	22,568	1,363	2/27/2019	22,568
CG at Beverly Crest (3)	6.040%	14,521	877	2/27/2019	14,521
CG at Brier Creek (3)	6.040%	23,888	1,443	2/27/2019	23,888
CG at Crabtree Valley (3)	6.040%	9,869	596	2/27/2019	9,869
CG at Heathrow (3)	6.040%	19,299	1,166	2/27/2019	19,299
CG at Liberty Park (3)	6.040%	16,703	1,009	2/27/2019	16,703
CG at Mallard Creek (3)	6.040%	14,647	885	2/27/2019	14,647
CG at Mallard Lake (3)	6.040%	16,533	999	2/27/2019	16,533
CG at Mount Vernon (3)	6.040%	14,364	868	2/27/2019	14,364
CG at Patterson Place (3)	6.040%	14,396	870	2/27/2019	14,396
CG at Round Rock (3)	6.040%	22,945	1,386	2/27/2019	22,945
CG at Shiloh (3)	6.040%	28,540	1,724	2/27/2019	28,540
CV at Oakbend (3)	6.040%	20,305	1,226	2/27/2019	20,305
CV at Quarry Oaks (3)	6.040%	25,145	1,519	2/27/2019	25,145
CV at Shoal Creek (3)	6.040%	21,373	1,291	2/27/2019	21,373
CV at Sierra Vista (3)	6.040%	10,215	617	2/27/2019	10,215
CV at West End (3)	6.040%	11,818	714	2/27/2019	11,818
CV at Willow Creek (3)	6.040%	24,768	1,496	2/27/2019	24,768
CG at Barrett Creek (4)	5.310%	18,378	976	6/1/2019	18,378
CG at Edgewater (4)	5.310%	26,456	1,405	6/1/2019	26,456
CG at Huntersville (4)	5.310%	14,165	752	6/1/2019	14,165
CG at Madison (4)	5.310%	21,473	1,140	6/1/2019	21,473
CG at River Oaks (4)	5.310%	11,147	592	6/1/2019	11,147
CG at Seven Oaks (4)	5.310%	19,774	1,050	6/1/2019	19,774
CG at Town Park (4)	5.310%	31,434	1,669	6/1/2019	31,434
CV at Greystone (4)	5.310%	13,532	719	6/1/2019	13,532
CG at Canyon Creek	5.640%	14,957	844	9/14/2019	14,957
CG at Bellevue (5)	5.020%	22,274	1,118	7/1/2020	22,274
CG at Valley Ranch (5)	5.020%	25,257	1,268	7/1/2020	25,257
CV at Twin Lakes (5)	5.020%	25,257	1,268	7/1/2020	25,257
CG at Godley Station	5.550%	14,850	824	6/1/2025	14,850
Other debt:	1 (10 ~ (2)	100 (21	2.005	21201201	100 (2)
Unsecured Credit Facility Senior Unsecured Notes	1.610% ⁽²⁾ 6.150%	188,631 99,504	3,037	3/29/2016	188,631 99,504
Senior Unsecured Notes Senior Unsecured Notes	6.250%	192,051	6,118 12,003	4/15/2013 6/15/2014	192,051
	0.25070	1,2,001	12,003	0,10,2011	1,001

Edgar Filing: BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC - Form DEFA14A

TOTAL CONSOLIDATED DEBT	4.930%	\$ 1,831,992	\$ 92,458		\$ 1,831,992
Senior Unsecured Term Loan (7)	2.710%	150,000	4,065	5/11/2017	150,000
Senior Unsecured Term Loan (6)	4.550%	250,000	11,375	7/22/2018	250,000
Senior Unsecured Notes	6.050%	75,172	4,548	9/1/2016	75,172
Senior Unsecured Notes	5.500%	184,690	10,158	10/1/2015	184,690

Footnotes on following page

G-46

Table of Contents

- (1) In the listing of property names, CG has been used as an abbreviation for Colonial Grand and CV as an abbreviation for Colonial Village.
- (2) Represents variable rate debt.
- (3) These properties are cross-collateralized under the same secured credit facility and bear a weighted average interest rate of 6.04%.
- (4) These properties are cross-collateralized under the same secured credit facility and bear a weighted average interest rate of 5.31%.
- (5) These properties are cross-collateralized under the same secured credit facility and bear a fixed interest rate of 5.02%.
- (6) Represents the outstanding balance as of December 31, 2012 of our senior unsecured term loan entered into on July, 22, 2011. We entered into two interest rate swaps to fix the interest rate through maturity at an all-in initial interest rate of 5.00%, based on the initial margin of 245 basis points. See Note 14 Financing Activities Senior Unsecured Term Loans in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. During 2012, our senior unsecured debt rating was upgraded to Baa3, therefore reducing the interest rate to 4.550%.
- (7) Represents the outstanding balance as of December 31, 2012 of our senior unsecured term loan entered into on May 11, 2012. We entered into two interest rate swaps to fix the interest rate through maturity at an all-in initial interest rate of 2.71%, based on the initial margin of 160 basis points. See Note 14 Financing Activities Senior Unsecured Term Loans in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

In addition to our consolidated debt, the majority of our unconsolidated joint venture properties are subject to mortgage loans. Under these unconsolidated joint venture non-recourse mortgage loans, we could, under certain circumstances, be responsible for portions of the mortgage indebtedness in connection with certain customary non-recourse carve-out provisions, such as environmental conditions, misuse of funds, and material misrepresentations. Our pro-rata share of such indebtedness as of December 31, 2012, was \$20.7 million. We intend to cooperate with our joint venture partners in connection with their efforts to refinance and/or replace other outstanding joint venture indebtedness (which may also include, for example, property dispositions), which cooperation may include additional capital contributions from time to time. See Item 1A

Risk Factors Risks Associated with Our Operations Our joint venture investments could be adversely affected by our lack of sole decision-making authority, our reliance on our joint venture partners financial condition, any disputes that may arise between us and our joint venture partners and our exposure to potential losses from the actions of our joint venture partners.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings. Colonial Grand at Traditions Litigation

As previously disclosed, in early 2007, CRLP and SM Traditions Associates, LLC (SM) entered into a joint venture to develop the Colonial Grand at Traditions located in Gulf Shores, Alabama. CRLP and SM formed TA-Colonial Traditions LLC (the Joint Venture), in which CRLP owns a 35% interest and SM owns a 65% interest. In April 2007, the Joint Venture entered into a construction loan agreement for \$34.1 million with Regions Bank (Regions). The Trust and SM each guaranteed up to \$3.5 million of the principal amount of the loan, for an aggregate of up to \$7.0 million. The construction loan, which had a balance of \$35.5 million as of June 17, 2011 (including accrued interest), matured by its terms on April 15, 2010. In October 2010, Regions, as the lender, filed a complaint in the Circuit Court of Baldwin County, Alabama seeking appointment of a receiver for the Colonial Grand at Traditions, demanding payment of the outstanding balance under the loan from the Joint Venture and demanding payment on the guarantees from each of the guarantors, including the Trust, together with outstanding interest and other charges on the loan.

On or about December 13, 2010, MTGLQ Investors, L.P. (MTGLQ) purchased the construction loan from Regions. MTGLQ subsequently transferred all of its interest in the construction loan to MLQ-ELD, L.L.C. (MLQ). MLQ initiated foreclosure proceedings with respect to the property in January 2011. Pursuant to an

G-47

Table of Contents

order of the Court entered on May 17, 2011, MLQ was also substituted for Regions with respect to the claims of Regions against the Joint Venture and the guarantors. On June 17, 2011, the Company purchased the outstanding note and related loan documents from MLQ for \$21.1 million. The Company was substituted as the plaintiff in the action and the claims originally asserted by Regions against the Trust on the guarantee were dismissed. On August 1, 2011, CRLP acquired the Joint Venture s property through foreclosure.

Separately, in December 2010, SM and the Joint Venture (together, the JV Parties) filed cross-claims in the Circuit Court of Baldwin County, Alabama against CRLP, the Trust, CPSI and Colonial Construction Services, LLC (collectively, the Colonial Parties), in connection with the development and management of the Colonial Grand at Traditions by the Colonial Parties. The JV Parties asserted several claims relating to the Colonial Parties oversight and involvement in the development and construction of the property, including breach of management and development agreements, material misrepresentation, fraudulent concealment and breach of fiduciary duty. The JV Parties also asserted that the Colonial Parties conspired with Regions in connection with the activities alleged; however, in July 2012, the Court dismissed the conspiracy claims. The JV Parties have made a demand for an accounting of the costs of development and construction and claim damages of at least \$13.0 million, plus an unspecified amount of attorney s fees.

On February 1, 2013, a Baldwin County, Alabama jury awarded SM \$6.7 million in compensatory damages (\$5.0 million for its original investment plus \$1.7 million interest) and \$6.0 million in punitive damages for a total of \$12.7 million. The jury returned a verdict in favor of SM with respect to the Colonial Parties claims relating to the guaranty agreement it gave to Regions and in favor of the Joint Venture with respect to the Colonial Parties claims relating to the construction loan purchased by the Company. The Company believes the verdicts should be vacated or a new trial ordered, and intends to pursue all available post-trial remedies. However, the Company cannot give any assurance as to the outcome of these efforts. As a result of the jury verdict, the Company recorded an increase to its loss contingency reserve of \$12.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2012. The Company has included in its loss contingency an estimate of probable loss in connection with this matter, but currently cannot reasonably estimate any further possible loss, or any range of reasonably possible loss, in connection with this matter.

Mira Vista at James Island Litigation

As previously disclosed, the Trust and CRLP, along with multiple other parties, are named defendants in lawsuits arising out of alleged construction deficiencies with respect to condominium units at Mira Vista at James Island in Charleston, South Carolina. Mira Vista was acquired by certain of the Company's subsidiaries after the units were constructed and operated as a multifamily rental project. The condominium conversion occurred in 2006 and all 230 units were sold. The lawsuits, one filed on behalf of the condominium homeowners association and one filed by one of the purchasers (purportedly on behalf of all purchasers), were filed in the South Carolina state court, Charleston County, in March 2010, against various parties involved in the development, construction and conversion of the Mira Vista at James Island property, including the contractors, subcontractors, architects, engineers, lenders, the developer, inspectors, product manufacturers and distributors. The plaintiffs are seeking \$41.0 million in damages resulting from, among other things, alleged construction deficiencies and misleading sales practices. The lawsuits are currently in discovery. The Company is continuing to investigate the matter and evaluate its options and intends to vigorously defend itself against these claims. No assurance can be given that the matter will be resolved favorably to the Company. The Company has included in its loss contingency an estimate of probable loss in connection with this matter, but currently cannot reasonably estimate any further possible loss, or any range of reasonably possible loss, in connection with this matter.

UCO Litigation

The Company is involved in a contract dispute with a general contractor and three of its officers/managers in connection with construction cost overruns with respect to five for-sale projects which were being developed in a joint venture, CPSI-UCO, LLC. The President of the contractor is affiliated with the Company s joint venture partner.

G-48

Table of Contents

In connection with the dispute, in January 2008, the contractor and three managers filed a lawsuit in the Circuit Court of Baldwin County against the Trust, CPSI, CPSI-UCO, LLC, CPSI-UCO Grander, LLC, CPSI-UCO Spanish Oaks, LLC; CPSI-UCO Cypress Village I, LLC; CPSI-UCO Cypress Village II, and CPSI Cypress Village III, LLC alleging, among other things, breach of contract, enforcement of a lien against real property, misrepresentation, conversion, declaratory judgment and an accounting of costs, seeking \$10.3 million in damages, plus consequential and punitive damages. In December 2011, following a jury trial, the plaintiffs were awarded compensatory damages of approximately \$4.8 million for their claims against all defendants and the defendants were awarded compensatory damages of approximately \$0.5 million for their claims against the President of the contractor. The jury also found that the contractor breached its contract. In January 2012, the plaintiffs filed post-trial motions, including a request for an amendment to the judgment to add approximately \$4.8 million for attorneys fees, interest and costs. The defendants filed a motion for a new trial and opposed the award of attorney s fees to the plaintiffs. In the fourth quarter 2012, the Company recorded charges of \$8.2 million related to a proposed settlement with respect to the UCO litigation. The charges are comprised of an increase in the loss contingency accrual of \$4.9 million (in addition to the \$3.3 million loss contingency accrual previously recorded with respect to this litigation matter in the fourth quarter 2011) and a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge on certain for-sale residential lots in the Cypress Village development proposed to be included as part of the settlement. The loss contingency accrual and impairment are reflected in Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses on the company s consolidated statement of operations. Settlement negotiations between the parties involving the settlement, including transfer of these tracts of land, are continuing. However, no assurance can be given that the such settlement discussions will be successful, that this matter will be resolved in the Company s favor or that additional charges will not be taken in future periods.

Grander Litigation

The Trust, CPSI, Marion Uter, UCO Partners, LLC, UCO Development, LLC, UCO Construction, LLC, UCO, LLC, CPSI-UCO Grander, LLC, and CPSI-UCO, LLC (collectively, the Colonial Entities) were sued by five individual purchasers of condominium units in The Grander alleging breach of contract, fraud, construction deficiencies and misleading sales practices. In April 2011, an arbitrator awarded rescission rights in favor of the purchasers against CPSI-UCO Grander, LLC. The Company is pursuing post-arbitration appeals, but no prediction of the likelihood or the amount of any resulting loss or recovery can be made at this time, and no assurance can be given that the matter will be resolved favorably. The Company has included in its loss contingency an estimate of probable loss in connection with this matter, but currently cannot reasonably estimate any further possible loss, or any range of reasonably possible loss, in connection with this matter.

In addition, we are involved in various other lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business, many of which are expected to be covered by liability insurance. In the opinion of management, although the outcomes of those normal course suits and claims are uncertain, in the aggregate they should not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. See also *Note*20 Legal Proceedings in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures. Not applicable.

G-49

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

The Trust s common shares are traded on the NYSE under the symbol CLP. The following sets forth the high and low sale prices for the common shares for each quarter in the two-year period ended December 31, 2012, as reported by the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape, and the distributions paid by us with respect to each such period.

	Calendar Period	High	Low	Distr	ibution
2012					
	First Quarter	\$ 21.88	\$ 20.14	\$	0.18
	Second Quarter	\$ 22.75	\$ 20.48	\$	0.18
	Third Quarter	\$ 23.64	\$ 20.67	\$	0.18
	Fourth Quarter	\$ 22.83	\$ 19.66	\$	0.18
2011					
	First Quarter	\$ 20.05	\$ 17.96	\$	0.15
	Second Quarter	\$ 21.37	\$ 18.60	\$	0.15
	Third Quarter	\$ 22.00	\$ 16.84	\$	0.15
	Fourth Quarter	\$ 21.18	\$ 16.24	\$	0.15

On February 25, 2013, the last reported sales price of the Trust s common shares on the NYSE was \$21.48. On February 15, 2013, the Trust had approximately 2,455 shareholders of record.

There is no established public trading market for CRLP s common units. The common unitholders of CRLP received quarterly distributions in same amounts as the common shareholders of the Trust (as set forth in the table above) during the two years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. On February 15, 2013, CRLP had 61 holders of record of common units and 7,152,752 common units outstanding, excluding the 88,450,069 common units owned by the Trust.

Issuance of Unregistered Equity Securities

During the period from October 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012, the Trust did not issue any unregistered common shares or other equity securities. The Trust from time to time issues common shares pursuant to its Direct Investment Program, its Non-Employee Trustee Share Plan, its Trustee Share Option Plan, its 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended (the Omnibus Incentive Plan), its Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan and its Employee Share Purchase Plan, in transactions that are registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Act). Pursuant to the CRLP Partnership Agreement, each time the Trust issues common shares pursuant to the foregoing plans, CRLP issues to the Trust, its general partner, an equal number of units for the same price at which the common shares were sold, in transactions that are not registered under the Act in reliance on Section 4(2) of the Act due to the fact that units were issued only to the Trust and therefore, did not involve a public offering. During the quarter ended December 31, 2012, CRLP issued 104,624 common units to the Trust for direct investments and other issuances under these plans for an aggregate of approximately \$0.4 million.

Dividend Policy

The Trust intends to continue to declare quarterly distributions on the Trust s common shares. In order to maintain its qualification as a REIT, the Trust must make annual distributions to shareholders of at least 90% of our REIT taxable income. Future distributions will be declared and paid at the discretion of our Board of Trustees of the Trust and the amount and timing of distributions will depend upon cash generated by operating activities.

G-50

our financial condition, capital requirements, restrictions in any of our financing agreements, annual distribution requirements under the REIT provisions of the Code, our ability to pay dividends under Alabama law and such other factors as our Board of Trustees of the Trust deem relevant. The Board of Trustees of the Trust reviews the dividend quarterly and there can be no assurance as to the manner in which future dividends will be paid or that the current dividend level will be maintained in future periods.

The CRLP partnership agreement requires CRLP to distribute at least quarterly 100% of our available cash (as defined in the CRLP Partnership Agreement) to holders of CRLP partnership units. Consistent with the CRLP Partnership Agreement, we intend to continue to distribute quarterly an amount of our available cash sufficient to enable the Trust to pay quarterly dividends to its shareholders in an amount necessary to satisfy the requirements applicable to REITs under the Code and to eliminate federal income and excise tax liability.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

A summary of our repurchases of the Trust s common shares for the three months ended December 31, 2012 is as follows:

	Total Number of Shares Purchased ⁽¹⁾	Average Pi per Sh		Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs	Maximum Number of Shares that may yet be Purchased Under the Plans
October 1 October 31, 2012	5,975	\$	21.01		
November 1 November 30, 2012	566		20.34		
December 1 December 31, 2012	338		20.61		
Total	6,879	\$	20.94		

(1) Represents the number of shares acquired by us from employees as payment of applicable statutory minimum withholding taxes owed upon vesting of restricted stock granted under our Third Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan and Restricted Stock Plan and our Omnibus Incentive Plan. Whenever the Trust purchases or redeems its preferred and common shares, CRLP purchases, redeems or cancels an equivalent number of preferred or common units. Accordingly, during the three months ended December 31, 2012, CRLP acquired an equal number of common units corresponding to the number of common shares listed in the table above.

G-51

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following tables set forth selected financial and operating information on a historical basis for each of the five years ended December 31, 2012, for the Trust and CRLP. The following information should be read together with the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and CRLP and notes thereto included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(\$ in thousands, except per share data)		2012		2011		2010		2009		2008
OPERATING DATA (1)										
Total revenues	\$	393,544	\$	353,389	\$	324,083	\$	303,927	\$	311,612
Expenses:		ĺ		,				,		ĺ
Depreciation and amortization		127,115		120,921		113,012		103,100		93,761
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses (2)		26,013		5,736		1,308		10,388		93,116
Other operating		196,974		177,772		167,126		161,732		170,223
1		,		,		,		,,,,		
Income (loss) from operations		43,442		48,960		42,637		28,707		(45,488)
Interest expense		92.085		86,573		83,091		86.069		71,323
Debt cost amortization		5,697		4,767		4,618		4,941		5,019
Interest income		2,569		1,521		1,580		1,424		2,774
(Loss) gain on sale of property		(4,306)		115		(1,391)		10,421		6,776
Gain on retirement of debt		(-)/				1,044		56,427		15,951
Other income, net		30,955		16,625		1,992		7,063		12,080
		00,500		10,020		1,>>2		7,000		12,000
(Loss) income from continuing operations		(25,122)		(24,119)		(41,847)		13,032		(84,249)
Income from discontinued operations (2)		33,987		30,298		3,304		2,146		33,726
Dividends to preferred shareholders		,		,		5,649		8,142		8,773
Preferred unit repurchase gains				2,500		3,000		-,		,,,,,,
Preferred share/unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)		(4,868)		25		(27)
Distributions to preferred unitholders				3,586		7,161		7,250		7,251
	Φ.	0.460								
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders (2)	\$	8,160	\$	3,428	\$	(48,054)	\$	(509)	\$	(55,429)
Income (loss) per share basic:										
Continuing Operations	\$	(0.27)	\$	(0.30)	\$	(0.71)	\$	(0.10)	\$	(1.79)
Discontinued Operations		0.36		0.34		0.04		0.09		0.60
Net income (loss) per share basi6 ³)	\$	0.09	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)	\$	(0.01)	\$	(1.19)
Income (loss) per share diluted:										
Continuing Operations	\$	(0.27)	\$	(0.30)	\$	(0.71)	\$	(0.10)	\$	(1.79)
Discontinued Operations		0.36		0.34		0.04		0.09		0.60
Net income (loss) per share dilute₫³)	\$	0.09	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)	\$	(0.01)	\$	(1.19)
Dividends declared per common share	\$	0.72	\$	0.60	\$	0.60	\$	0.70	\$	1.75
BALANCE SHEET DATA										
Land, buildings and equipment, net	¢ 2	,777,810	¢ ′	2,724,104	¢ ^	2,706,988	¢ ,	2,755,644	¢ ^	2,665,700
Total assets		,777,810		3,258,605		3,171,134	-	3,172,632		,155,169
		/ /								
Total long-term liabilities Padagmahla preferred stock	1	,831,992		1,759,727		,761,571		1,704,343	1	,762,019
Redeemable preferred stock								4		4
OTHER DATA										
Funds from operations (4) *	\$	92,461	\$	104,712	\$	81,310	\$	129,808	\$	920

Edgar Filing: BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC - Form DEFA14A

Cash flow provided by (used in)					
Operating activities	137,108	118,086	109,707	108,594	117,659
Investing activities	(143,612)	(175,639)	(102,287)	(166,466)	(167,497)
Financing activities	11,726	59,051	(7,056)	53,277	(34,010)
Total properties (at end of year)	125	153	156	156	192

Footnotes on following page

G-52

Table of Contents

- (1) All periods have been adjusted in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations.
- (2) For 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, includes \$7.0 million, \$0.2 million, \$0.3 million, \$12.3 million, including \$2.1 million presented in Discontinued Operations, and \$116.9 million, including \$25.5 million presented in Discontinued Operations, respectively, in non-cash impairment charges.
- (3) All periods have been adjusted to reflect the adoption of ASC 260, Earnings per Share.
- Funds from Operations (FFO), as defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (NAREIT), means income (loss) before noncontrolling interest (determined in accordance with GAAP), excluding sales of depreciated property and impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate, plus real estate depreciation and amortization and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. FFO is presented to assist investors in analyzing our performance. We believe that FFO is useful to investors because it provides an additional indicator of our financial and operating performance. This is because, by excluding the effect of real estate depreciation and amortization, gains (or losses) from sales of properties and impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate (all of which are based on historical costs which may be of limited relevance in evaluating current performance), FFO can facilitate comparison of operating performance among equity REITs. FFO is a widely recognized measure in the company s industry. We believe that the line on our consolidated statements of operations entitled net income (loss) available to common shareholders is the most directly comparable GAAP measure to FFO. Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values instead have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry investors and analysts have considered presentation of operating results for real estate companies that use historical cost accounting to be insufficient by themselves. Thus, NAREIT created FFO as a supplemental measure of REIT operating performance that excludes historical cost depreciation, among other items, from GAAP net income. Management believes that the use of FFO, combined with the required primary GAAP presentations, has been fundamentally beneficial, improving the understanding of operating results of REITs among the investing public and making comparisons of REIT operating results more meaningful. Management uses FFO and FFO per share, along with other measures, to assess performance in connection with evaluating and granting incentive compensation to key employees. Our method of calculating FFO may be different from methods used by other REITs and, accordingly, may not be comparable to such other REITs. FFO should not be considered (A) as an alternative to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP), (B) as an indicator of financial performance, (C) as cash flow from operating activities (determined in accordance with GAAP) or (D) as a measure of liquidity nor is it indicative of sufficient cash flow to fund all of the company s needs, including our ability to make distributions.

* Non-GAAP financial measure. See Item 7 Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Funds from Operations for reconciliation.

G-53

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(\$ in thousands, except per unit data)		2012		2011		2010		2009		2008
OPERATING DATA (1)										
Total revenues	\$	393,544	\$	353,389	\$	324,083	\$	303,927	\$	311,612
Expenses:										
Depreciation and amortization		127,115		120,921		113,012		103,100		93,761
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses (2)		26,013		5,736		1,308		10,388		93,116
Other operating		196,974		177,772		167,126		161,732		170,223
Income (loss) from operations		43,442		48,960		42,637		28,707		(45,488)
Interest expense		92,085		86,573		83,091		86,069		71,323
Debt cost amortization		5,697		4,767		4,618		4,941		5,019
Interest income		2,569		1,521		1,580		1,424		2,774
(Loss) gain on sale of property Gain on retirement of debt		(4,306)		115		(1,391) 1,044		10,421 56,427		6,776 15,951
Other income, net		26,810		16,625		1,992		7,063		12,080
Other meome, net		20,010		10,023		1,992		7,003		12,000
(Loss) income from continuing operations		(29,267)		(24,119)		(41,847)		13,032		(84,249)
(2000) meone nom commung operations		(=>,=01)		(= 1,117)		(11,017)		10,002		(0 :,= :>)
Income from discontinued operations (2)		22 007		20.200		2 204		2 146		22.726
Distributions to preferred unitholders		33,987		30,298 (3,586)		3,304 (12,810)		2,146 (15,392)		33,726 (16,024)
Preferred unit repurchase gains				2,500		3,000		(13,392)		(10,024)
Preferred unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)		(4,868)		25		(27)
Net income (loss) available to common unitholders (2)	\$	4,677	\$	3,721	\$	(53,122)	\$	(591)	\$	(66,654)
Income (loss) per unit basic:										
Continuing operations	\$	(0.31)	\$	(0.30)	\$	(0.71)	\$	(0.10)	\$	(1.79)
Discontinued operations		0.36		0.34		0.04		0.09		0.60
Net income (loss) per unit basi6 ³⁾	\$	0.05	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)	\$	(0.01)	\$	(1.19)
Income (loss) per unit diluted:										
Continuing operations	\$	(0.31)	\$	(0.30)	\$	(0.71)	\$	(0.10)	\$	(1.79)
Discontinued operations		0.36		0.34		0.04		0.09		0.60
Net income (loss) per unit diluted ⁽³⁾	\$	0.05	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)	\$	(0.01)	\$	(1.19)
`										
Distributions per unit	\$	0.72	\$	0.60	\$	0.60	\$	0.70	\$	1.75
1										
BALANCE SHEET DATA										
Land, buildings and equipment, net	2	,777,810	2.	,724,104	2	2,706,987	2	2,755,643	2	2,665,698
Total assets		,286,160		,258,428		3,170,515		3,171,960		3,154,501
Total long-term liabilities		,831,992		,759,727		,761,571		,704,343		,762,019
OTHER DATA										
Total properties (at end of year)		125		153		156		156		192

- (1) All periods have been adjusted in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations.
- (2) For 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, includes \$7.0 million, \$0.2 million, \$0.3 million, \$12.3 million, including \$2.1 million presented in Discontinued Operations, and \$116.9 million, including \$25.5 million presented in Discontinued Operations, respectively, in non-cash impairment charges.
- (3) All periods have been adjusted to reflect the adoption of ASC 260, Earnings per Share.

G-54

Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion analyzes the financial condition and results of operations of both Colonial Properties Trust (the Trust), and Colonial Realty Limited Partnership (CRLP), of which the Trust is the sole general partner and in which the Trust owned a 92.5% limited partner interest as of December 31, 2012. The Trust conducts all of its business through CRLP and CRLP s various subsidiaries. Except as otherwise required by the context, the Company, Colonial, we, us and our refer to the Trust and CRLP together, as well as CRLP s subsidiaries, including Colonial Properties Services Limited Partnership (CPSLP) and Colonial Properties Services, Inc. (CPSI).

The following discussion and analysis of the consolidated financial condition and consolidated results of operations should be read together, except as otherwise noted, with the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and CRLP and the notes thereto contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

General

We are a multifamily-focused self-administered equity REIT that owns, operates and develops multifamily apartment communities primarily located in the Sunbelt region of the United States. Also, we create additional value for our shareholders from investments in commercial assets and by pursuing development opportunities. We are a fully-integrated real estate company, which means that we are engaged in the acquisition, development, ownership, management and leasing of multifamily communities and other commercial real estate properties. Our activities include full or partial ownership and operation of 125 properties as of December 31, 2012, located in Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Nevada, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas and Virginia, development of new properties, acquisition of existing properties, build-to-suit development and the provision of management, leasing and brokerage services for commercial real estate.

As of December 31, 2012, we owned or maintained a partial ownership in:

	Consolidated Properties	Units/Sq. Feet (1)	Unconsolidated Properties	Units/Sq. Feet (1)	Total Properties	Total Units/ Sq. Feet (1)
Multifamily apartment communities	112 (2)	33,851	2	646	114	34,497
Commercial properties	8	2.167.000	3	350,000	11	2.517.000

- (1) Units refer to multifamily apartment units. Square feet refers to commercial space and excludes space owned by anchor tenants.
- (2) Includes one property partially-owned through a joint venture entity.

In addition, we own certain parcels of land adjacent to or near these properties (the land). The multifamily apartment communities, the commercial properties and the land are referred to herein collectively as the properties. As of December 31, 2012, consolidated multifamily apartment communities and commercial properties that were no longer in lease-up were 95.8% and 92.3% leased, respectively. We generally consider a property to be in lease-up until it first attains physical occupancy of at least 93%.

The Trust is the general partner of CRLP and, as of December 31, 2012, held approximately 92.5% of the interests in CRLP. We conduct all of our business through CRLP, CPSLP, which provides management services for our properties, and CPSI, which provides management services for properties owned by third parties, including unconsolidated joint venture entities. We perform all of our for-sale residential activities through CPSI.

As a lessor, the majority of our revenue is derived from residents and tenants under existing leases at our properties. Therefore, our operating cash flow is dependent upon the rents that we are able to charge our residents and tenants, and the ability of these residents and tenants to make their rental payments. We also receive third-party management fees generated from third-party management agreements related to management of properties held in joint ventures.

G-55

Table of Contents

The Trust was formed in Maryland on July 9, 1993. The Trust was reorganized as an Alabama real estate investment trust in 1995. Our executive offices are located at 2101 Sixth Avenue North, Suite 750, Birmingham, Alabama, 35203 and our telephone number is (205) 250-8700.

Business Strategy and Outlook

During 2012, our primary business directives were to grow the company, improve our portfolio and continue efforts to maintain a strong balance sheet and improve margins to help re-establish an investment grade rating.

We made significant progress on each of these directives as outlined below.

Grow the Company

We continued to grow the Company by:

producing a 7.6% increase in multifamily same-property net operating income from continuing operations when compared with the year ended December 31, 2011 (see Note 12 Segment Information in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K); and

developing multifamily apartment communities on land that we already own.

We achieved a 7.6% increase in multifamily same-property net operating income through continued increases in lease rates while maintaining a high level of occupancy. Average monthly rent per unit for our multifamily same-property communities increased to \$787 per unit for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$749 per unit for the same period in 2011. Average occupancy for our multifamily same-property communities was 95.5% for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to 95.4% for the same period in 2011.

We added 718 units through the completion of two developments: Colonial Grand at Hampton Preserve, located in Tampa, Florida, and Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase I), located in Orlando, Florida. In addition, we continued the development of Colonial Grand at Double Creek, located in Austin, Texas and started construction on four additional apartment community developments: Colonial Grand at Ayrsley (Phase II) and Colonial Reserve at South End, located in Charlotte, North Carolina, and Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase II) and Colonial Grand at Randal Lakes, located in Orlando, Florida. The five active developments are expected to add 1,300 units once completed. We also started construction of Colonial Brookwood West, a commercial asset located in Birmingham, Alabama, that is expected to add approximately 41,300 square-feet once completed.

Improve our portfolio

We improved our portfolio by:

increasing the percentage of net operating income from our multifamily portfolio through disposition of investments in certain commercial properties;

recycling older multifamily apartment communities; and

selectively acquiring newer multifamily apartment communities attractively priced in our higher growth Sunbelt markets.

G-56

Table of Contents

During 2012, we sold one wholly-owned commercial asset, representing approximately 219,000 square-feet (excluding anchor-owned square-feet) for \$37.4 million and exited our interest in three commercial joint ventures, comprised of 28 commercial properties. For the full year, the percentage of net operating income from the multifamily portfolio to total net operating income was 85% compared to 79% for 2011 while 87% of our net operating income in the fourth quarter was generated from our multifamily portfolio.

We also sold four wholly-owned multifamily apartment communities for \$95.5 million, representing 1,380 units with an average age of 31 years and average monthly rent of \$695 per unit. We reinvested proceeds from the multifamily and commercial dispositions into five multifamily apartment communities located in Austin and Dallas, Texas, and Raleigh, North Carolina. These five acquisitions added 1,554 units with an average age of six years and average monthly rent of \$1,076 per unit.

Maintain a strong balance sheet and achieve an investment grade rating

During 2012, we continued to reduce our leverage by selectively disposing of non-income producing assets and extended our debt maturities primarily through a new \$500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility and a new \$150.0 million senior unsecured term loan. Also, in February 2012, Standard & Poors upgraded our senior unsecured debt rating to BBB- and, in September 2012, Moody s Investment Services upgraded our senior unsecured debt rating to Baa3. In addition, we reduced our exposure with respect to joint venture indebtedness by unwinding certain joint venture arrangements, eliminating approximately \$127.1 million of unconsolidated debt, which represented our pro rata share of the mortgage debt of these various joint ventures.

We also simplified our portfolio, as well as our organizational structure, by unwinding certain joint venture arrangements. During 2012, we completed the following transactions:

redeemed our 15% noncontrolling interest in the 18-asset DRA/CLP joint venture; representing approximately 5.2 million commercial square-feet;

sold our 10% noncontrolling interest in the nine-asset Bluerock office portfolio, representing approximately 1.7 million commercial square-feet

sold our 25% noncontrolling interest in Colonial Promenade Madison, representing approximately 111,000 commercial square-feet; and

purchased Colonial Grand at Research Park, a 370-unit multifamily apartment community (prior to the acquisition of Colonial Grand at Research Park, we owned a 20% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture).

Simplified and stronger, our business directives for 2013 are to further grow the Company, fortify our balance sheet and enhance our portfolio. We intend to grow the Company s multifamily business by completing the projects we have in our development pipeline as well as initiating the development of several additional multifamily communities in 2013 on land we already own. We also intend to grow the Company through continued expansion of our core operations with the focus on quality of earnings from our multifamily product, which we are continually improving. We intend to fortify our balance sheet by continuing to lower our overall debt levels, primarily through the sale of commercial assets, and improving our financial ratios through improved earnings. We intend to enhance our portfolio by reducing the average age of our assets, increasing average rents and lowering our capital expenditure requirements, each through our multifamily asset recycling program, and by bringing new developments successfully on-line, within budget and on schedule. In addition, we intend to further enhance our portfolio by continuing to reduce our commercial asset exposure.

Executive Summary of Results of Operations

The following discussion of results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP and related notes thereto included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

G-57

Table of Contents

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Trust reported net income available to common shareholders of \$8.2 million, compared with net income available to common shareholders of \$3.4 million for the prior year period. For the year ended December 31, 2012, CRLP reported net income available to common unitholders of \$4.7 million, compared with net income available to common unitholders of \$3.7 million for the prior year period.

The principal factors that influenced our results from continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2012 include:

the inclusion of the results of operations from Colonial Grand at Brier Falls, a 350-unit multifamily apartment community located in Raleigh, North Carolina, which we acquired for \$45.0 million on January 10, 2012; Colonial Grand at Fairview, a 256-unit multifamily apartment community located in Dallas, Texas, which we acquired for \$29.8 million on May 30, 2012; Colonial Grand at Research Park, a 370-unit multifamily apartment community located in Raleigh, North Carolina, which we acquired for \$38.0 million on October 1, 2012; Colonial Grand at Canyon Ranch, a 272-unit multifamily apartment community located in Austin, Texas, which we acquired for \$24.5 million on November 13, 2012; and Colonial Reserve at Las Colinas, a 306-unit multifamily apartment community located in Dallas, Texas, which we acquired for \$42.8 million on November 20, 2012;

the inclusion of two multifamily apartment communities resulting from completed construction during 2012: Colonial Grand at Hampton Preserve, a 486-unit community located in Tampa, Florida, which we built for \$52.2 million, and Colonial Grand at Lake Mary I, a 232-unit community located in Orlando, Florida, which we built for \$25.7 million;

the redemption of our remaining 15% noncontrolling interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture, effective as of June 30, 2012, resulting in a gain of approximately \$21.9 million, the majority of which had been deferred since the formation of the DRA/CLP joint venture in 2007;

the sale of our remaining 10% noncontrolling interest in the Bluerock office portfolio resulting in a gain of approximately \$7.4 million;

charges of \$8.2 million related to a proposed settlement with respect to the UCO litigation, consisting of an increase in our loss contingency accrual of \$4.9 million and a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge related to certain for-sale residential lots;

an increase of \$12.7 million in our loss contingency accrual following a jury verdict in early 2013 in the Colonial Grand at Traditions litigation;

non-cash impairment charges of \$3.3 million related to a commercial asset;

an adjustment to a previously recognized gain on sale of property of approximately \$4.2 million in 2012 related to required infrastructure repairs on a retail asset that was originally developed by the Company and sold in the fourth quarter of 2007; and

G-58

charges of \$1.8 million recorded in 2012 related to severance costs associated with the departure of the Company s President and Chief Financial Officer, as well as departures of other management personnel as a result of additional simplification of our operations.

We define multifamily same-property communities as consolidated multifamily properties continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1 of the prior year. Same-property communities may be adjusted during the year to account for disposition activity.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Property-related revenue

Total property-related revenues, which consist of minimum rent, tenant recoveries and other property related revenue, were \$387.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$345.3 million for the same period in 2011. The components of property-related revenues for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are:

		Year Ended December 31, 2012		Year Ended December 31, 2011		
(\$ in thousands)	Revenues	% of Total Revenues	Revenues	% of Total Revenues	from 2011 to 2012	
Minimum rent (1)	\$ 320,489	83%	\$ 287,667	83.3%	11.4%	
Tenant recoveries	9,574	2%	9,329	2.7%	2.6%	
Other property-related revenue	57,769	15%	48,346	14.0%	19.5%	
Total property-related revenues	\$ 387,832	100%	\$ 345,342	100.0%	12.3%	

(1) Includes \$0.2 million of rentals from affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The increase in total property-related revenues of \$42.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, is primarily attributable to increases in minimum rent resulting from properties acquired during 2011 and 2012 and an increase in rental rates at our multifamily same-property communities. The following table illustrates the change in property-related revenues by property type, with the three components (minimum rent, tenant recoveries and other property-related revenue) presented on an aggregate basis for each property type:

		Years Ended December 31,		
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	2011 to 2012	
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 307,415	\$ 291,482	\$ 15,933	
Acquisitions:				
Multifamily (2)	34,112	12,944	21,168	
Developments:				
Multifamily	5,153	89	5,064	
Other (3)	41,152	40,827	325	
	\$ 387,832	\$ 345,342	\$ 42,490	

⁽¹⁾ Consists of the 94 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 28,611 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011. Excludes the one consolidated multifamily apartment community, containing 332 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011, which is classified in discontinued operations.

- (2) Includes 13 multifamily communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.
- (3) Includes all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 13 communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.

G-59

Property-related revenues for our multifamily same-property communities classified in continuing operations increased \$15.9 million, or 5.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the same period in 2011, primarily due to improvements in new and renewal lease rental rates while maintaining consistently high occupancy levels. During the year, rents increased an average of 1.7% on new move-ins compared to the expiring lease for the same unit and renewal rates increased an average of 6.3% over the expiring lease for the same unit. As a result, average monthly rent per unit for our multifamily same-property communities increased to \$787 per unit for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$749 per unit for the same period in 2011. Average occupancy for our multifamily same-property communities was 95.5% for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to 95.4% for the same period in 2011.

Other non-property related revenue

Other non-property related revenues, which consist primarily of management fees, leasing fees and other miscellaneous fees, were \$5.7 million for the year December 31, 2012, compared to \$8.0 million for the same period in 2011. The \$2.3 million decrease is attributable to the loss of third-party management and leasing contracts, since December 31, 2011, related to properties previously held in joint ventures or owned by third-parties.

Property-related expenses

Total property-related expenses were \$152.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$138.1 million for the same period in 2011. The components of property-related expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are:

	Year Ended December 31, 2012		Year Ended December 31, 2011		%
		% of Total	_	% of Total	Change from
(\$ in thousands)	Expenses \$ 107,657	Expenses 71%	Expenses \$ 98,108	Expenses 71.0%	2011 to 2012 9.7%
Property operating expenses Taxes, licenses and insurance	44,413	29%	40,039	29.0%	10.9%
Total property-related expenses	\$ 152,070	100%	\$ 138,147	100.0%	10.1%

The increase in total property-related expenses of \$13.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, was primarily attributable to properties acquired during 2011 and 2012. The following table illustrates the change in total property-related expenses by property type, with the two components (property operating expenses and taxes, licenses and insurance) presented on an aggregate basis for each property type:

	Years Ended December 31,		Change from	
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	201	1 to 2012
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 120,533	\$ 117,741	\$	2,792
Acquisitions:				
Multifamily (2)	13,733	5,410		8,323
Developments:				
Multifamily	2,570	292		2,278
Other (3)	15,234	14,704		530
	\$ 152,070	\$ 138,147	\$	13,923

⁽¹⁾ Consists of the 94 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 28,611 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011. Excludes the one consolidated multifamily apartment community, containing 332 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1,

2011, which is classified in discontinued operations.

G-60

- (2) Includes 13 multifamily communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.
- (3) Includes all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 13 communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.

Property management expense

Property management expense consist of regional supervision and accounting costs related to consolidated property operations, primarily consisting of salaries and incentive compensation and property management software costs. Property management expenses were \$12.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$9.2 million for the same period in 2011. The \$3.7 million increase in expenses was primarily attributable to an increase in salaries and higher incentive compensation expense in 2012.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expense were \$22.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$20.4 million for the same period in 2011. The \$2.2 million increase in expenses is primarily attributable to higher incentive compensation and legal expense in 2012.

Management fees and other expenses

Management fees and other expenses consist of property management and other services provided to third parties, primarily consisting of salaries and incentive compensation, leasing commissions and legal expenses. Management fees and other expenses were \$6.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$8.1 million for the same period in 2011. The \$1.8 million reduction in management fee and other expenses is primarily attributable to the termination of management contracts in connection with the disposition of our interests in certain joint ventures or the termination of other management contracts owned by third parties since December 31, 2011.

Restructuring charges

Restructuring charges were \$1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$0.2 million for the same period in 2011. The \$1.6 million increase in restructuring charges is attributable to the departure of our President and Chief Financial Officer and other management personnel as a result of the further streamlining of our operations.

Depreciation

Depreciation expense was \$121.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$113.5 million for the same period in 2011. The total increase in depreciation expense of \$7.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, was primarily attributable to properties acquired since December 31, 2011 as follows:

	Years Ended December 31,		Change from	
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	2011	l to 2012
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 90,528	\$ 91,916	\$	(1,388)
Acquisitions:				
Multifamily (2)	13,760	5,192		8,568
Developments:				
Multifamily	2,074	27		2,047
Other (3)	14,631	16,340		(1,709)
	\$ 120,993	\$ 113,475	\$	7,518

⁽¹⁾ Consists of the 94 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 28,611 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011. Excludes the one consolidated multifamily apartment community, containing 332 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011, which is classified in discontinued operations.

G-61

Table of Contents

- (2) Includes 13 multifamily communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.
- (3) Includes overhead, all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 13 communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.

Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses

Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses were \$26.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$5.7 million for the same period in 2011. See Note 3 *Real Estate Activity Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses* in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional details.

Interest expense

Interest expense was \$92.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$86.6 million for the same period in 2011. The \$5.5 million increase in expense is primarily the result of higher interest rates on the \$250.0 million senior unsecured term loan that was entered into in July 2011 and the \$150.0 million senior unsecured term loan that was entered into in May 2012, both of which replaced debt outstanding under our prior and current unsecured credit facilities and extended our weighted-average debt maturity.

Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities

For the Trust, income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities was \$31.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$17.5 million for the same period in 2011. The change is primarily attributable to the gain of approximately \$21.9 million recognized on the redemption of our remaining 15% noncontrolling interest in the 18-asset DRA/CLP joint venture, net of a \$3.2 million non-cash impairment charge, which represents our pro rata share of an impairment recorded by the joint venture for 2011 but omitted in our annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011. In addition to the net gain recognized on the DRA/CLP joint venture transaction, we recognized a gain of approximately \$7.4 million on the sale of our remaining 10% noncontrolling interest in the nine-asset Bluerock office portfolio and a gain of approximately \$1.0 million on the sale of our 25% noncontrolling interest in Colonial Promenade Madison, a commercial asset located in Huntsville, Alabama. Income recognized in 2011 is primarily due to the gain of approximately \$18.8 million recognized on the sale of our remaining 50% noncontrolling interest in Colonial Pinnacle Turkey Creek in Knoxville, Tennessee, in December 2011, which was partially offset by a reduction in our share of earnings from joint ventures.

For CRLP, income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities was \$27.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$17.5 million for the same period in 2011. CRLP recognized a gain of approximately \$17.8 million on the redemption of our remaining 15% noncontrolling interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture. The difference in the amount of gain recognized on the transaction compared to the gain recognized by the Trust is due to the Trust being released from a \$4.1 million contingent liability as a part of this transaction, which represented the Trust s pro rata share of a guaranty obligation resulting from a debt guaranty provided by the joint venture.

(Loss) gain on sale of property

(Loss) gain on sale of property, net of income taxes, was a loss of \$4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to a gain of \$0.1 million for the same period in 2011. The loss in 2012 is the result of a \$4.2 million adjustment to a previously recognized gain on sale of a property related to required infrastructure repairs on a retail asset that was originally developed by us and sold in the fourth quarter of 2007.

G-62

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations was \$22.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as a result of the disposition of four multifamily apartment communities and one commercial asset, compared to \$23.7 million for the same period in 2011, as a result of the disposition of six multifamily apartment communities and two commercial assets.

Noncontrolling interest in CRLP preferred unitholders

In December 2011, we repurchased the remaining 1.0 million of the outstanding Series B Preferred Units from the existing holders; therefore, there were no dividends to preferred unitholders for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$3.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Preferred Unit Repurchase Gains

Preferred unit repurchase gains for the year ended December 31, 2011 were \$2.5 million. This gain resulted from CRLP s repurchase of the remaining 1.0 million of the outstanding Series B Preferred Units in December 2011, representing a 5% discount.

Preferred Share/Unit Issuance Costs

Preferred unit issuance costs for the year ended December 31, 2011 were \$1.3 million. We wrote off the original preferred unit issuance costs related to the repurchase of CRLP s remaining Series B Preferred Units.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Property-related revenue

Total property-related revenues, which consist of minimum rent, tenant recoveries and other property-related revenue, were \$345.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$312.4 million for the same period in 2010. The following table illustrates the change in property-related revenues by property type, with the three components (minimum rent, tenant recoveries and other property-related revenue) presented on an aggregate basis for each property type:

	Year Ended December 31, 2011		Year Ended December 31, 2010 %		
(\$ in thousands)	Revenues	% of Total Revenues	Revenues	% of Total Revenues	from 2010 to 2011
Minimum rent (1)	\$ 287,667	83%	\$ 260,838	83.5%	10.3%
Tenant recoveries	9,329	3%	8,627	2.8%	8.1%
Other property-related revenue	48,346	14%	42,925	13.7%	12.6%
Total property-related revenue	\$ 345,342	100%	\$ 312,390	100.0%	10.5%

(1) Includes \$0.2 million of rentals from affiliates for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

G-63

The increase in total property-related revenues of \$33.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, was primarily attributable to increases in minimum rent resulting from properties acquired during 2010 and 2011 and an increase in rental rates at our multifamily same-property communities. The following table illustrates the change in property-related revenues by property type, with the three components (minimum rent, tenant recoveries and other property-related revenue) presented on an aggregate basis for each property type:

	Years Ended December 31,		Change from 2010	
(\$ in thousands)	2011	2010	to 2011	
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 295,620	\$ 283,115	\$ 12,505	
Multifamily same-property community dispositions (2)	(15,434)	(14,639)	(795)	
Acquisitions:				
Multifamily (3)	20,370	2,333	18,037	
Developments:				
Multifamily	89		89	
Commercial	2,742	998	1,744	
Other ⁽⁴⁾	41,955	40,583	1,372	
	\$ 345,342	\$ 312,390	\$ 32,952	

- (1) Consists of the 96 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 29,173 apartment units, continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1, 2010.
- (2) Consists of four multifamily same-property communities that were sold during 2012 containing 1,380 apartment units and one multifamily same-property community that was classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2012 containing 332 apartment units. Operations for these properties are reflected in Income from discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).
- (3) Includes 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.
- (4) Includes all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.

Property-related revenues for our multifamily same-property communities classified in continuing operations increased \$11.7 million, or 4.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in 2010, primarily due to improvements in new and renewal lease rental rates while maintaining consistently high occupancy levels. During the year, rents increased an average of 3.5% on new move-ins compared to the expiring lease for the same unit and renewal rates increased an average of 6.3% over the expiring lease for the same unit. As a result, average monthly rent per unit for our multifamily same-property communities increased to \$748 per unit for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to \$720 per unit for the same period in 2010. Average occupancy for our multifamily same-property communities was 96.1% for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to 96.5% for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Other non-property related revenue

Other non-property related revenues, which consist primarily of management fees, leasing fees and other miscellaneous fees, were \$8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$11.7 million for the same period in 2010. The \$3.7 million decrease is attributable to the loss, since December 31, 2010, of third-party management and leasing contracts related to properties previously held in joint ventures or owned by third parties.

G-64

Property-related expenses

Total property-related expenses were \$138.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$129.7 million for the same period in 2010. The components of property-related expenses for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are:

		Year Ended December 31, 2011		Year Ended December 31, 2010	
		% of Total		% of Total	from
(\$ in thousands)	Expenses	Expenses	Expenses	Expenses	2010 to 2011
Property operating expenses	\$ 98,108	71%	\$ 92,080	71.0%	6.5%
Taxes, licenses and insurance	40,039	29%	37,612	29.0%	6.5%
Total property-related expenses	\$ 138,147	100%	\$ 129,692	100.0%	6.5%

The increase in total property-related expenses of \$8.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, was primarily attributable to properties acquired during 2010 and 2011. The following table illustrates the change in total property-related expenses by property type, with the two components (property operating expenses and taxes, licenses and insurance) presented on an aggregate basis for each property type:

	Years Ended December 31,		Change from	
(\$ in thousands)	2011	2010	2010) to 2011
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 120,730	\$ 120,057	\$	673
Multifamily same-property community dispositions (2)	(7,161)	(7,554)		393
Acquisitions:				
Multifamily (3)	8,179	1,022		7,157
Developments:				
Multifamily	291			291
Commercial	911	415		496
Other ⁽⁴⁾	15,197	15,752		(555)
	,			. ,
	\$ 138,147	\$ 129,692	\$	8,455

- (1) Consists of the 96 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 29,173 apartment units, continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1, 2010.
- (2) Consists of four multifamily same-property communities that were sold during 2012 containing 1,380 apartment units and one multifamily same-property community that was classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2012 containing 332 apartment units. Operations for these properties are reflected in Income from discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).
- (3) Includes 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.
- (4) Includes all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.

Property management expense

Property management expense consist of regional supervision and accounting costs related to consolidated property operations, primarily consisting of salaries and incentive compensation and property management software costs. These expenses were \$9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$8.6 million for the same period in 2010. The \$0.6 million increase in expenses was primarily related to a \$0.4 million reduction in self-insurance reserves in 2010, which was based on an actuarial study of claims history.

G-65

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expense were \$20.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$18.6 million for the same period in 2010. The \$1.8 million increase in expenses is primarily attributable to a \$1.5 million increase in salaries and incentive compensation and the effects of a \$2.2 million reduction in self-insurance accruals in 2010 (which reduced general and administrative expense in 2010). These increases were partially offset by a \$1.5 million decrease in legal expenses.

Management fees and other expenses

Management fees and other expenses consist of property management and other services provided to third parties, primarily consisting of salaries and incentive compensation, leasing commissions and legal expenses. These expenses were \$8.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$9.5 million for the same period in 2010. The \$1.4 million reduction in management fee and other expenses was attributable to the termination of management contracts since December 31, 2010.

Depreciation

Depreciation expense was \$113.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$106.2 million for the same period in 2010. The total increase in depreciation expense of \$7.3 million was primarily attributable to properties acquired during 2010 and 2011, as follows:

	Years Ended December 31,		Change from 2010	
(\$ in thousands)	2011	2010	to 2011	
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 92,485	\$ 92,818	\$ (333)	
Multifamily same-property community dispositions (2)	(5,251)	(5,134)	(117)	
Acquisitions:				
Multifamily (3)	7,939	769	7,170	
Developments:				
Multifamily	27		27	
Commercial	1,158	353	805	
Other ⁽⁴⁾	17,117	17,399	(282)	
	\$ 113,475	\$ 106,205	\$ 7,270	

- (1) Consists of the 96 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 29,173 apartment units, continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1, 2010.
- (2) Consists of four multifamily same-property communities that were sold during 2012 containing 1,380 apartment units and one multifamily same-property community that was classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2012 containing 332 apartment units. Operations for these properties are reflected in Income from discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).
- (3) Includes 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.
- (4) Includes overhead, all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.

Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses

Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses were \$5.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$1.3 million for the same period in 2010. See Note 3 *Real Estate Activity Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses* in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional details.

G-66

Table of Contents

Interest expense

Interest expense was \$86.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$83.1 million for the same period in 2010. The \$3.5 million increase in expense is primarily a result of a higher interest rate on the \$250.0 million senior unsecured term loan that was entered into in July 2011, which replaced debt outstanding under our prior unsecured credit facility.

Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities

Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities was \$17.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to \$3.4 million for the year ended 2010. Income recognized in 2011 is primarily due to the gain of approximately \$18.8 million recognized on the sale of our remaining 50% noncontrolling interest in Colonial Pinnacle Turkey Creek in Knoxville, Tennessee, in December 2011, which was partially offset by a reduction in our share of earnings from joint ventures. Income recognized in 2010 is primarily due to the gain of approximately \$3.5 million recognized on the sale of our remaining 50% noncontrolling interest in Parkway Place Mall in Huntsville, Alabama, in October 2010.

(Loss) gain on sale of property

(Loss) gain on sale of property, net of income taxes, was a gain of \$0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to a loss of \$1.4 million for the same period in 2010. The loss in 2010 is the result of mitigation of structural settlement and infrastructure costs related to two commercial assets. Both of these assets were sold by CPSI in previous years, and therefore are expensed as additional development costs in (Loss) gain on sale of property in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations was \$23.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as a result of the gains recognized on the disposition of six multifamily apartment communities and two commercial assets, compared to a \$0.4 million loss for the same period in 2010.

Dividends to preferred shareholders

In September 2010, the Trust redeemed all of the outstanding Series D Preferred Depositary Shares (and CRLP repurchased all of the Series D Preferred Units); therefore, there were no dividends to preferred shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$5.6 million for the same period in 2010.

Preferred Unit Repurchase Gains

Preferred unit repurchase gains for the year ended December 31, 2011 were \$2.5 million. This gain resulted from CRLP s repurchase of the remaining 1.0 million of the outstanding Series B Preferred Units in December 2011, representing a 5% discount. Preferred unit repurchase gains for the year ended December 31, 2010 was \$3.0 million, which resulted from the repurchase of one-half of CRLP s outstanding Series B Preferred Units in December 2010 at a 6% discount.

Preferred Share/Unit Issuance Costs

Preferred share/unit issuance costs for year ended December 31, 2011 were \$1.3 million. We wrote off the original preferred unit issuance costs related to the repurchase of CRLP s remaining Series B Preferred Units. Preferred share/unit issuance costs for year ended December 31, 2010 were \$4.9 million. We wrote off \$3.6 million of the original preferred share issuance costs related to the redemption of the Trust s Series D Preferred Depositary Shares and \$1.3 million of the original preferred unit issuance costs related to the repurchase of one-half of CRLP s Series B Preferred Units.

G-67

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As noted above, except as otherwise required by the context, references to the Company, we, us and our refer to the Trust and CRLP together, well as CRLP s subsidiaries. Unless otherwise specified below, the following discussion of liquidity and capital resources applies to both the Trust and CRLP.

Short-Term Liquidity Needs

We believe our principal short-term liquidity needs are to fund:

operating expenses directly associated with our portfolio of properties (including regular maintenance items);

capital expenditures incurred to lease our multifamily apartment communities and commercial space (e.g., tenant improvements and leasing commissions);

interest expense and scheduled principal payments on our outstanding debt; and

quarterly distributions that we pay to the Trust s shareholders and holders of partnership units in CRLP. With \$99.5 million of debt maturing in 2013, we believe that cash generated from operations, dispositions of assets and borrowings under our credit facility will be sufficient to allow us to execute our 2013 business directives and meet our short-term liquidity requirements. However, factors described below and elsewhere herein may have a material adverse effect on our future cash flow.

Our cash flows from operations, financing activities and investing activities (including dispositions), as well as general economic and market conditions, are the principal factors affecting our liquidity and capital resources. Changes in cash due to operating, investing and financing activities are as follows:

Operating activities Net cash provided by operating activities increased to \$137.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from \$118.1 million for the comparable prior year period. The change was primarily driven by an increase in operating performance at our same-property multifamily communities, the inclusion of the results of operations from properties acquired in 2011 and 2012 and changes attributable to the timing of payments relating to accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and accounts payable. For 2013, we expect cash flows from operating activities to be higher than in 2012 due to acquisitions and developments placed into service in 2012 and acquisitions and developments we expect to place into service in 2013.

Investing activities Net cash used in investing activities was \$143.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$175.6 million for the comparable prior year period. The change is primarily the result of decreased acquisition activity in the year ended December 31, 2012 net of restricted cash used from exchanges under Section 1031 of the Code, when compared to the same period in the prior year, partially offset by an increase in development and capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2012 when compared to the same period in the prior year. In addition, the year ended December 31, 2011 includes cash distributions resulting from the sale of our interest in certain joint ventures, partially offset by the cash used for the repurchase of the outstanding mortgage loan secured by Colonial Grand at Traditions. As we continue to explore other growth opportunities through potential acquisitions and developments, we expect our cash flow used in investing activities to be consistent with or slightly lower than 2012.

Financing activities Net cash provided by financing activities was \$11.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$59.1 million for the comparable prior year period. The change was primarily driven by \$150.0 million of proceeds from a term loan entered into during the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$250.0 million of proceeds from a term loan entered into during the year ended December 31, 2011, plus \$163.4 million of net cash proceeds from common shares issued pursuant to

Table of Contents

at-the-market equity offering programs during the year ended December 31, 2011. This increase in proceeds in 2011 was offset by an increase in payments on our prior unsecured credit facility and the use of \$47.5 million of funds to repurchase the remaining outstanding Series B preferred units of CRLP during the year ended December 31, 2011. In addition, we made principal debt payments of \$82.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$58.9 million for the comparable prior year period.

The majority of our revenue is derived from residents and tenants under existing leases, primarily at our multifamily apartment communities. Therefore, our operating cash flow is dependent upon (i) the number of multifamily apartment communities in our portfolio, (ii) rental rates, (iii) occupancy rates, (iv) operating expenses associated with these apartment communities and (v) the ability of residents to make their rental payments. As a result of continued job growth in our markets, we continue to see strong multifamily fundamentals, such as high occupancy rates, positive new and renewal lease rates over the expiring leases and a lower homeownership rate, which all are positive developments for the multifamily industry.

The Trust made an election to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code, commencing with its taxable year ended December 31,1993. If the Trust maintains its qualification for taxation as a REIT, it generally will not be subject to federal income tax on its distributed net income if it distributes at least 90% of its REIT taxable income subject to certain adjustments and excluding net capital gain, to the Trust shareholders. Even if the Trust qualifies for taxation as a REIT, it may be subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed income.

Long-Term Liquidity Needs

W/A	helieve	our principa	l long-term	liquidity	needs are	to fund:
we	beneve	our principa	i iong-term	maumanty	needs are	to runa:

the principal amount of our long-term debt as it matures;

significant capital expenditures that need to be made at our properties;

development projects that we undertake; and

costs associated with acquisitions of properties that we pursue.

Historically, we have satisfied these requirements principally through the most advantageous source of capital at the time, which has included the incurrence of new debt through borrowings by CRLP (through public offerings of unsecured debt and private incurrence of collateralized and unsecured debt), sales of common shares of the Trust (including through at-the-market equity offering programs), sales of preferred shares of the Trust, capital raised through the disposition of assets and joint venture capital transactions.

On May 6, 2011, the Trust and CRLP filed a joint universal shelf registration statement with the SEC allowing the Trust to offer, from time to time, an unspecified amount of equity securities of the Trust (including common and preferred shares) and allowing CRLP to offer, from time to time, an unspecified amount of debt securities, each on an as-needed basis subject to the ability of the Trust and CRLP to effect offerings on satisfactory terms based on prevailing conditions. In 2011 (through July 8, 2011), the Trust sold 8,416,846 common shares under its December 2010 and May 2011 continuous at-the-market equity offering programs at a weighted average issuance price of \$19.80 per share for net proceeds of approximately \$163.7 million, net of underwriting discounts and administrative expenses. Pursuant to CRLP s Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership, each time the Trust issues common shares pursuant to the foregoing programs or other equity offerings, CRLP issues to the Trust, its general partner, an equal number of units for the same price at which the common shares were sold and the Trust contributes the net proceeds of such offerings to CRLP. The net proceeds resulting from this program were used to pay down a portion of the outstanding borrowings under CRLP s unsecured credit facility, to partially fund the acquisition of three multifamily properties and to fund other general corporate purposes. The Trust s last continuous at-the-market equity offering program was fully exhausted in July 2011.

G-69

Table of Contents

Our ability to raise funds through sales of common shares and preferred shares of the Trust in the future is dependent on, among other things, general market conditions for REIT s, market perceptions about our company and the current trading price of the Trust s common shares. We will continue to analyze which source of capital is most advantageous to us at any particular point in time, but the equity and credit markets may not be consistently available on terms that are attractive or at all.

Our ability to incur additional debt (and the cost of incurring additional debt) is dependent upon a number of factors, including our credit ratings, the value of our assets, our degree of leverage and borrowing restrictions imposed by our current lenders. We will continue to monitor the unsecured and secured debt markets, and as market conditions permit, access borrowings that are advantageous to us. During the year ended December 31, 2012, Standard & Poors upgraded our senior unsecured debt rating to BBB- and Moody s Investment Services upgraded our senior unsecured debt rating to Baa3.

Our ability to generate cash from asset sales is limited by market conditions and certain rules applicable to REITs. We may not be able to sell a property or properties as quickly as we have in the past or on terms as favorable as we have previously received. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we sold assets (or our interests in assets) for aggregate proceeds of approximately \$152.5 million (\$148.4 million from the sale of consolidated assets and \$4.1 million, which is our pro-rata share, from the sale of unconsolidated assets and from dispositions of our joint venture interests in the underlying assets). The proceeds were used to repay a portion of outstanding borrowings under our credit facility.

At December 31, 2012, our total outstanding debt balance was \$1.83 billion. The outstanding balance includes fixed-rate debt of \$1.63 billion, or 89.0% of the total debt balance, and variable-rate debt of \$201.1 million, or 11.0% of the total debt balance. As further discussed below, at December 31, 2012, we had an unsecured revolving credit facility providing for total borrowings of up to \$500.0 million and a cash management line providing for borrowings up to \$35.0 million. The cash management line was amended and restated in April 2012, as discussed below.

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility and Cash Management Line

On March 30, 2012, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a \$500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the Credit Facility) with Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated as joint lead arrangers and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (Wells Fargo), as administrative agent for the lenders, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as agents and lenders. The Credit Facility replaced CRLP s prior \$675.0 million credit facility, which would have matured on June 21, 2012. The Credit Facility has a maturity date of March 29, 2016, with a one-year extension option, which may be exercised as long as there is no existing default and upon payment of a 0.20% extension fee. The Credit Facility includes an accordion feature that allows the total commitments to be increased to \$700.0 million, subject to certain conditions, including obtaining commitments from any one or more lenders, whether or not currently a lender under the Credit Facility.

The spread over LIBOR for syndicated borrowings under the Credit Facility ranges from 1.00% to 1.80% and the facility fee ranges from 0.15% and 0.40%, each based on the credit ratings of CRLP s senior unsecured debt from time to time. As of December 31, 2012, the Credit Facility had a stated interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.40% and required the payment of an annual facility fee equal to 0.30% of the aggregate loan commitments. The Credit Facility also includes an uncommitted competitive bid option for up to \$250.0 million of the \$500.0 million Credit Facility, which can be utilized if CRLP maintains an investment grade credit rating from either Moody s Investors Services, Inc. or Standard & Poor s Ratings Services. This option would allow participating banks to bid to provide CRLP loans at a rate that may be lower than the stated rate for syndicated borrowings.

In addition to the Credit Facility, we have a \$35.0 million cash management line provided by Wells Fargo which was amended and restated in April 2012. The amended and restated cash management line has a maturity date of March 29, 2016.

G-70

Table of Contents

The Credit Facility and cash management line, which have been primarily used to finance property acquisitions and developments, had an outstanding balance of \$188.6 million, including \$170.0 million outstanding on the Credit Facility and \$18.6 million outstanding on the cash management line. The weighted average interest rate of the Credit Facility and the cash management line was 1.61% as of December 31, 2012.

The Credit Facility agreement contains various covenants and events of default that are more fully described in *Note 14* Financing Activities Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP, included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. As of December 31, 2012, we were in compliance with these covenants.

Senior Unsecured Term Loans

On May 11, 2012, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a term loan agreement with U.S. Bank National Association, as administrative agent and a lender, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as lenders, which provides for a \$150.0 million senior unsecured term loan. As of December 31, 2012, the term loan had an outstanding balance of \$150.0 million. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 1.10% to 2.05% based on the credit ratings on CRLP s unsecured debt from time to time. We entered into two interest rate swap agreements that fixed the interest rate of the term loan through maturity at an all-in initial interest rate of 2.71%, based on the initial margin of 1.60%. The term loan matures on May 11, 2017. The term loan agreement contains various covenants and events of default that are more fully described in *Note 14 Financing Activities Senior Unsecured Term Loans* in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. The proceeds from the term loan were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility.

On July 22, 2011, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a term loan agreement with Wells Fargo, as administrative agent and a lender, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as lenders, which provides for a \$250.0 million senior unsecured term loan. As of December 31, 2012, the term loan had an outstanding balance of \$250.0 million. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 1.65% to 2.90% based on the credit ratings on CRLP s unsecured debt from time to time. We entered into two interest rate swap agreements that fixed the interest rate of the term loan through maturity at an all-in initial interest rate of 5.00%, based on the initial margin of 245 basis points. During 2012, our senior unsecured debt rating was upgraded to an investment grade rating, therefore reducing the interest rate to 4.55%. The term loan matures on August 1, 2018. The term loan agreement contains various covenants and events of default that are more fully described in *Note 14 Financing Activities Senior Unsecured Term Loans* in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. The proceeds from the term loan were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our prior unsecured credit facility.

Unsecured Senior Note Maturities

During August 2012, our outstanding 6.875% senior notes matured and we satisfied our obligation thereunder with an aggregate payment of \$82.8 million (\$80.0 million of principal and \$2.8 million of accrued interest) using borrowings under our Credit Facility.

G-71

Capital Investments / Cost Capitalization

The following table summarizes our capital investments and capitalized costs, consisting of costs associated with acquisition of assets, as well as development expenditures and other capitalized expenditures for our consolidated assets, for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

	==	ve Months Ended December 31,
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011
Multifamily Acquisitions	\$ 180,11	5 \$ 234,845
Developments:		
Multifamily	\$ 76,12	7 \$ 35,862
Commercial	17,49	4 8,938
For Sale / Other	2,25	1 747
Total Developments	\$ 95,87	2 \$ 45,547
Capital Expenditures:		
Multifamily Capital Expenditures	\$ 25,06	5 \$ 22,398
Commercial Capital Expenditures	\$ 72	8 \$ 435
Commercial Tenant Improvements	\$ 63	6 \$ 1,383
Commercial Leasing Commissions	\$ 1,16	\$ 513

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, our multifamily capital expenditures were \$745 per unit and \$681 per unit, respectively. For 2013, we estimate that capital expenditures per unit for our multifamily apartment communities will be slightly lower than those in 2012, which were approximately \$745 per unit.

We capitalize interest, real estate taxes and certain internal personnel and associated costs related to projects under development, construction and rehabilitation. The incremental personnel and associated costs are capitalized to the projects under development and rehabilitation based upon the effort associated with such projects. Prior to the commencement of leasing activities, interest and other construction costs are capitalized and included in construction in progress. We cease the capitalization of such costs as the project becomes substantially complete and available for occupancy. In addition, prior to the completion of the project, we expense, as incurred, substantially all operating expenses (including pre-opening marketing expenses) of such project. Capitalized indirect costs associated with our projects under development or construction were \$2.7 million and \$1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Distributions

We intend to continue to declare quarterly distributions on the Trust s common shares. In order to maintain its qualification as a REIT, the Trust must make annual distributions to shareholders of at least 90% of its REIT taxable income. Future distributions will be declared and paid at the discretion of our Board of Trustees and the amount and timing of distributions will depend upon cash generated by operating activities, our financial condition, capital requirements, restrictions in any of our financing agreements, annual distribution requirements under the REIT provisions of the Code, the Trust s ability to pay dividends under Alabama law and such other factors as our Board of Trustees of the Trust deem relevant. The Board of Trustees of the Trust reviews the dividend quarterly and there can be no assurance as to the manner in which future dividends will be paid or that the current dividend level will be maintained in future periods.

Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to the effect of interest rate changes that could affect our results of operations and financial condition or cash flow. We limit these risks by following established risk

G-72

management policies and procedures, including the use of derivative instruments to manage or hedge interest rate risk. However, interest rate swap agreements and other hedging arrangements may expose us to additional risks, including a risk that a counterparty to a hedging arrangement may fail to honor its obligations. Developing an effective interest rate risk strategy is complex and no strategy can completely insulate us from risks associated with interest rate fluctuations. There can be no assurance that our hedging activities will have the desired beneficial impact on our results of operations or financial condition. The table below presents the principal amounts, weighted average interest rates, fair values and other terms required by year of expected maturity to evaluate the expected cash flows and sensitivity to interest rate changes at December 31, 2012.

								Estimated
(0: 1 1)	2012	2014	2015	2016	2015	TTD 64	TD 4.1	Fair
(\$ in thousands)	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	Thereafter	Total	Value
Fixed Rate Debt	\$ 99,504	\$ 192,051	\$ 211,199	\$ 89,346	\$ 150,000	\$ 888,796	\$ 1,630,896	\$ 1,732,671
Average interest rate at December 31,								
2012	6.2%	6.3%	5.5%	6.0%	2.7%	5.4%	5.3%	
Variable Rate Debt	¢	Ф	¢ 10.465	\$ 188.631 (1)	¢	¢	¢ 201.00¢	\$ 201.096
variable Kate Debt	\$	\$	\$ 12,465	\$ 188,031 (1)	3	3	\$ 201,096	\$ 201,096
Average interest rate at December 31,								
2012			3.1%	1.6%			1.7%	

(1) Represents amount outstanding under our Credit Facility as of December 31, 2012, which Credit Facility matures on March 29, 2016. The table incorporates only those exposures that exist as of December 31, 2012. It does not consider those exposures or positions which could arise after that date. Moreover, because firm commitments are not presented in the table above, the information presented therein has limited predictive value. As a result, our ultimate realized gain or loss with respect to interest rate fluctuations will depend on the exposures that arise during the period, our hedging strategies at that time, and interest rates.

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately \$201.1 million of outstanding variable rate debt. We do not believe that the interest rate risk represented by our variable rate debt is material in relation to our \$1.8 billion of outstanding total debt and our \$3.3 billion of total assets as of December 31, 2012.

If market rates of interest on our variable rate debt increase by 1%, the increase in annual interest expense on our variable rate debt would decrease annual future earnings and cash flows by approximately \$2.0 million. If market rates of interest on our variable rate debt decrease by 1%, the decrease in interest expense on our variable rate debt would increase future earnings and cash flows by approximately \$2.0 million. This assumes that the amount outstanding under our variable rate debt remains approximately \$201.1 million, the balance as of December 31, 2012.

Our objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage our exposure to interest rate movements. To accomplish this objective, we primarily use interest rate swaps and caps as part of our interest rate risk management strategy. Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in exchange for us making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount. Interest rate caps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty if interest rates rise above the strike rate on the contract in exchange for an upfront premium.

On April 11, 2012, we entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$100.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 1.13%, and a maturity date of May 11, 2017. On April 27, 2012, we entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$50.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 1.06%, and a maturity date of May 11, 2017. In accordance with these agreements, the Company will pay the fixed rate and receive a variable rate based on one-month LIBOR. These interest rate swap agreements became effective on May 11, 2012 when we entered into a new \$150.0 million term loan, as discussed above.

G-73

Table of Contents

On June 3, 2011, we entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement to hedge the interest rate risk associated with forecasted debt issuance. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$200.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 2.58%, and a maturity date of August 1, 2018. On July 12, 2011, we entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement to hedge the interest rate risk associated with forecasted debt issuance. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$50.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 2.47%, and a maturity date of August 1, 2018. These interest rate swaps became effective on July 22, 2011 when we entered into a new \$250.0 million term loan, as discussed above.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges is recorded in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* and is subsequently reclassified into earnings as *Interest expense* as interest payments are made on our variable-rate debt. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the derivatives is recognized directly in earnings as a *Loss on hedging activities*. We did not classify amounts to *Loss on hedging activities* for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we accelerated the reclassification of \$0.3 million in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* to Loss on hedging activities related to interest payments on the hedged debt deemed probable not to occur as a result of the repurchases of senior notes of CRLP.

Amounts reported in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* related to derivatives will be reclassified to *Interest expense* as interest payments are made on our variable-rate debt. The changes in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* for reclassifications to *Interest expense* tied to interest payments on the hedged debt were \$7.2 million, \$3.2 million and \$0.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Over the next 12 months, the Company expects to reclassify \$7.7 million from *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* as an increase to *Interest expense*.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had the following outstanding interest rate derivatives that were designated as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk (\$ in thousands):

	Number	
	of	Notional
Interest Rate Derivative	Instruments	Amount
Interest Rate Swaps	4	\$ 400,000

Further, we have a policy of only entering into contracts with major financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and other factors. When viewed in conjunction with the underlying and offsetting exposure that the derivatives are designed to hedge, we have not sustained a material loss from those instruments nor do we anticipate any material adverse effect on our net income or financial position in the future from the use of derivatives.

G-74

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments

The following tables summarize the material aspects of our future contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of December 31, 2012:

Contractual Obligations

			Payn	nents Due in Fi	scal		
(\$ in thousands)	Total	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	Thereafter
Long-Term Debt Principal:							
Consolidated (1)	\$ 1,831,992	\$ 99,504	\$ 192,051	\$ 223,664	\$ 277,977	\$ 150,000	\$ 888,796
Partially-Owned Entities (2)	20,697	13,715	4,922	137		1,923	
Long-Term Debt Interest: (3)							
Consolidated	396,811	85,970	77,665	68,455	55,818	49,219	59,684
Partially-Owned Entities (2)	1,468	983	168	116	115	86	
Long-Term Debt Principal and Interest:							
Consolidated (1)	2,228,803	185,474	269,716	292,119	333,795	199,219	948,480
Partially-Owned Entities (2)	22,165	14,698	5,090	253	115	2,009	
Total	\$ 2,250,968	\$ 200,172	\$ 274,806	\$ 292,372	\$ 333,910	\$ 201,228	\$ 948,480

- (1) Amounts due in 2016 include the Credit Facility, which matures on March 29, 2016.
- (2) Represents our pro-rata share of principal maturities (excluding net premiums and discounts) and interest, based on our ownership interest in the joint ventures.
- (3) *Includes effect of interest rate swaps.*

Other Commercial Commitments

	Total	Amounts						
(\$ in thousands)	Con	nmitted	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	Thereafter
Standby Letters of Credit	\$	5,134	\$ 5,134	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$

Commitments and Contingencies

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we recorded \$4.2 million related to required infrastructure repairs on Colonial Promenade Alabaster II. During 2010, we recorded \$1.3 million for certain contingent liabilities related to the mitigation of structural settlement at Colonial Promenade Alabaster II and additional infrastructure cost at Colonial Promenade Fultondale. Both of these retail assets were developed and sold by CPSI in previous years, and therefore are expensed as additional development costs in (Loss) gain on sale of property in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

As a result of transactions executed in 2007, we implemented our strategic initiative to become a multifamily focused REIT, which included two significant joint venture transactions whereby the majority of our wholly-owned commercial properties were transferred into separate joint ventures. In December 2009, we disposed of our interest in one of these joint ventures. In connection with the other 2007 joint venture transaction, the DRA/CLP joint venture, the Trust assumed certain contingent liabilities, of which \$4.1 million remained outstanding until our remaining 15% noncontrolling interest was redeemed by the joint venture effective June 30, 2012, and in connection therewith, we were released from this contingent liability.

As of December 31, 2012, we are self-insured up to \$0.8 million, \$0.9 million and \$1.8 million for general liability, workers compensation and property insurance, respectively. We are also self-insured for health insurance and responsible for amounts up to \$135,000 per claim and up to \$2.0 million per person.

For a discussion of certain ongoing litigation matters, see Item 3 Legal Proceedings . In addition, we are involved in various other lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business, many of which are expected to be covered by liability insurance. In the opinion of management, although the outcomes of those normal course suits and claims are uncertain, in the aggregate they should not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Guarantees and Other Arrangements

In connection with the formation of Highway 150 LLC in 2002, we executed a guarantee, pursuant to which we served as a guaranter of \$1.0 million of the debt related to the joint venture, which was collateralized by the Colonial Promenade Hoover retail property. At December 31, 2012, the total amount of debt of the joint venture, which matured on January 11, 2013, was approximately \$15.1 million. At December 31, 2012, no liability was recorded for the guarantee. Subsequently, on January 14, 2013, we sold our 10% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture and paid off the debt associated with this guarantee. Therefore are no longer liable for this guarantee.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our pro-rata share of mortgage debt of unconsolidated joint ventures was \$20.7 million as of December 31, 2012. The aggregate maturities of this mortgage debt are as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	As of ber 31, 2012
2013	\$ 13,715
2014	4,922
2015	137
2016	
2017	1,923
Thereafter	
	\$ 20,697

Our pro rata share of mortgage debt of unconsolidated joint ventures has declined from \$147.8 million as of December 31, 2012 to \$20.7 million as of December 31, 2012, primarily as a result of the redemption of our remaining 15% noncontrolling interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture, which was effective as of June 30, 2012. As a result of the redemption, we no longer have responsibility for \$111.3 million of the joint venture s mortgage debt, which represented our pro rata share of the debt. Of the \$13.7 million maturing in 2013, \$12.2 million represents our pro rata share of the amount outstanding on the construction note for the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint venture, which we acquired from the lender in May 2010 (see *Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Notes Receivable* in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K) and \$1.5 million represents our pro rata share of the outstanding debt on the Colonial Promenade Hoover joint venture, which we exited in January 2013 (see *Note 22 Subsequent Events* in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K). We intend to cooperate with our joint venture partners in connection with their efforts to refinance and/or replace debt, which cooperation may include additional capital contributions from time to time in connection therewith.

There can be no assurance that our joint ventures will be successful in refinancing and/or replacing existing debt at maturity or otherwise. If the joint ventures are unable to obtain additional financing, payoff the existing

G-76

Table of Contents

loans that are maturing, or renegotiate suitable terms with the existing lenders, the lenders generally would have the right to foreclose on the properties in question and, accordingly, the joint ventures will lose their interests in the assets. The failure to refinance and/or replace such debt and other factors with respect to our joint venture interests discussed in Item 1A Risk Factors included in this Form 10-K may materially adversely impact the value of our joint venture interests, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Under our various unconsolidated joint venture non-recourse mortgage loans, we could, under certain circumstances, be responsible for portions of the mortgage indebtedness in connection with certain customary non-recourse carve-out provisions, such as environmental conditions, misuse of funds, and material misrepresentations. In addition, as more fully described above, we have made certain guarantees in connection with our investment in unconsolidated joint ventures. We do not have any other off-balance sheet arrangements with any unconsolidated investments or joint ventures that we believe have or are reasonably likely to have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity or capital resources.

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies

We believe our accounting policies are in conformity with GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to use judgment in the application of accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions. These judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. If our judgment or interpretation of the facts and circumstances relating to various transactions had been different, it is possible that different accounting policies would have been applied resulting in a different presentation of our financial statements. A comprehensive listing of our significant accounting policies is discussed in Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. We consider the following accounting policies to be critical to our reported operating results:

Principles of Consolidation We consolidate entities in which we have a controlling interest or entities where we are determined to be the primary beneficiary under ASC 810-20, *Control of Partnerships and Similar Entities*. Variable interest entities (VIEs) are generally entities that lack sufficient equity to finance their activities without additional financial support from other parties or whose equity holders lack adequate decision-making ability. The primary beneficiary, the entity that directs the most significant business activities of the VIE, is required to consolidate the VIE for financial reporting purposes.

Revenue Recognition Residential properties are leased under operating leases with terms of generally one year or less. Rental revenues from residential leases are recognized on the straight-line method over the approximate life of the leases, which is generally one year. The recognition of rental revenues from residential leases when earned has historically not been materially different from rental revenues recognized on a straight-line basis.

Under the terms of residential leases, the residents of our residential communities are obligated to reimburse us for certain utility usage (cable, water, electricity and trash), where we are the primary obligor to the public utility entity. These utility reimbursements from residents are included as *Other property-related revenue* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

Rental income attributable to commercial leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases. Certain commercial leases contain provisions for additional rent based on a percentage of tenant sales. Percentage rents are recognized in the period in which sales thresholds are met. Recoveries from tenants for taxes, insurance, and other property operating expenses are recognized in the period the applicable costs are incurred in accordance with the terms of the related lease.

G-77

Sales and the associated gains or losses on real estate assets, condominium conversion projects and for-sale residential projects including developed condominiums are recognized in accordance with ASC 360-20, *Real Estate Sales*. For condominium conversion and for-sale residential projects, sales and the associated gains for individual condominium units are recognized upon the closing of the sale transactions, as all conditions for full profit recognition have been met. We use the relative sales value method to allocate costs and recognize profits from condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales.

Real Estate Assets, Impairment and Depreciation Land, buildings, and equipment is stated at the lower of cost, less accumulated depreciation, or fair value. Undeveloped land and construction in progress is stated at cost unless such assets are impaired in which case such assets are recorded at fair value. We review our long-lived assets and certain intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If an asset is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the asset s fair value. Assets classified as held for sale are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. We determine fair value based on inputs management believes are consistent with those other market participants would use. The fair values of these assets are determined using widely accepted valuation techniques, including (i) discounted cash flow analysis, which considers, among other things, unit sales assumptions, leasing assumptions, cost structure, growth rates, discount rates and terminal capitalization rates, (ii) income capitalization approach, which considers prevailing market capitalization rates and (iii) comparable sales activity. The valuation technique and related inputs vary with the specific facts and circumstances of each project. Estimates are significantly impacted by estimates of sales price, selling velocity, sales incentives, construction costs and other factors. Due to uncertainties in the estimation process, actual results could differ from such estimates. For those assets deemed to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is to be measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the as

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

	Useful Lives
Buildings	20 - 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	3 - 7 years
Land improvements	10 or 15 years
Tenant improvements	Life of lease

Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to expense as incurred. Replacements and improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated remaining useful lives of the assets.

Loss Contingencies The outcomes of claims, disputes and legal proceedings including those described in Item 3 Legal Proceedings of this Form 10-K are subject to significant uncertainty. The Company records an accrual for loss contingencies when a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company reviews these accruals quarterly and makes revisions based on changes in facts and circumstances. When a loss contingency is not both probable and reasonably estimable, the Company does not accrue the loss. However, if the loss (or an additional loss in excess of the accrual) is at least a reasonable possibility and material, then the Company discloses a reasonable estimate of the possible loss, or range of loss, if such reasonable estimate can be made. If the Company cannot make a reasonable estimate of the possible loss, or range of loss, then that is disclosed.

The assessment of whether a loss is probable or a reasonable possibility, and whether the loss or range of loss is reasonably estimable, often involve a series of complex judgments about future events. Among the factors that the Company considers in this assessment, including with respect to the matters disclosed in Item 3 Legal

G-78

Table of Contents

Proceedings of this Form 10-K, are the nature of existing legal proceedings and claims, the asserted or possible damages or loss contingency (if reasonably estimable), the progress of the matter, existing law and precedent, the opinions or views of legal counsel and other advisers, the Company's experience in similar matters, the facts available to the Company at the time of assessment, and how the Company intends to respond, or has responded, to the proceeding or claim. The Company's assessment of these factors may change over time as individual proceedings or claims progress. For matters where the Company is not currently able to reasonably estimate a range of reasonably possible loss, the factors that have contributed to this determination include the following: (i) the damages sought are indeterminate, (ii) the proceedings are in the early stages, (iii) the matters involve novel or unsettled legal theories or a large or uncertain number of actual or potential cases or parties, and/or (iv) discussions with the parties in matters that are expected ultimately to be resolved through negotiation and settlement have not reached the point where the Company believes a reasonable estimate of loss, or range of loss, can be made. In such instances, the Company believes that there is considerable uncertainty regarding the timing or ultimate resolution of such matters, including a possible eventual loss or business impact, if any.

As of December 31, 2012, our loss contingency accrual was \$26.8 million in the aggregate, and is reflected as a component of Accrued expenses in our accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2012 in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Cost Capitalization Costs incurred during pre-development are capitalized after we have identified a development site, determined that a project is feasible and concluded that it is probable that the project will proceed. While we believe we will recover this capital through the successful development of such projects, it is possible that a write-off of unrecoverable amounts could occur. Once it is no longer probable that a development will be successful, the pre-development costs that have been previously capitalized are expensed.

The capitalization of costs during the development of assets (including interest, property taxes and other costs) begins when an active development commences and ends when the asset, or a portion of an asset, is delivered and is ready for its intended use. Cost capitalization during redevelopment of assets (including interest and other costs) begins when the asset is taken out of service for redevelopment and ends when the asset redevelopment is completed and the asset is placed in-service.

Acquisition of Real Estate Assets We account for our acquisitions of investments in real estate in accordance with ASC 805-10, *Business Combinations*, which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be allocated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building and tenant improvements, and identified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of above-market and below-market leases, other value of in-place leases and value of other tenant relationships, based in each case on the fair values.

We allocate purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property (which includes the land and building) determined by valuing the property as if it were vacant. The as-if-vacant value is allocated to land and buildings based on management s determination of the relative fair values of these assets. We also allocate value to tenant improvements based on the estimated costs of similar tenants with similar terms.

We record acquired intangible assets (including above-market leases, customer relationships and in-place leases) and acquired intangible liabilities (including below-market leases) at their estimated fair value separate and apart from goodwill. We amortize identified intangible assets and liabilities that are determined to have finite lives over the period the assets and liabilities are expected to contribute directly or indirectly to the future cash flows of the property or business acquired. Intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an intangible asset is not recoverable and its carrying amount exceeds its estimated fair value.

G-79

Inflation

Leases at our multifamily properties generally provide for an initial term of six months to one year and allow for rent adjustments at the time of renewal. Leases at our office properties typically provide for rent adjustments and the pass-through of certain operating expenses during the term of the lease. Substantially all of the leases at our retail properties provide for the pass-through to tenants of certain operating costs, including real estate taxes, common area maintenance expenses, and insurance. All of these provisions permit us to increase rental rates or other charges to tenants in response to rising prices and, therefore, serve to minimize our exposure to the adverse effects of inflation.

An increase in general price levels may immediately precede, or accompany, an increase in interest rates. At December 31, 2012, our exposure to rising interest rates was mitigated by our high percentage of consolidated fixed rate debt (89.0%). As it relates to the short-term, an increase in interest expense resulting from increasing inflation is anticipated to be less than future increases in income before interest.

Funds From Operations

Funds from Operations (FFO), as defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (NAREIT), means income (loss) before noncontrolling interest (determined in accordance with GAAP), excluding gains/(losses) from sales of depreciated property and impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate, plus real estate depreciation and amortization and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. FFO is presented to assist investors in analyzing our performance. We believe that FFO is useful to investors because it provides an additional indicator of our financial and operating performance. This is because, by excluding the effect of real estate depreciation and amortization, gains (or losses) from sales of properties and impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate (all of which are based on historical costs which may be of limited relevance in evaluating current performance), FFO can facilitate comparison of operating performance among equity REITs. FFO is a widely recognized measure in the company s industry. We believe that the line item on our consolidated statements of operations entitled Net income (loss) available to common shareholders is the most directly comparable GAAP measure to FFO. Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values instead have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry investors and analysts have considered presentation of operating results for real estate companies that use historical cost accounting to be insufficient by themselves. Thus, NAREIT created FFO as a supplemental measure of REIT operating performance that excludes historical cost depreciation, among other items, from GAAP net income. Management believes that the use of FFO, combined with the required primary GAAP presentations, has been fundamentally beneficial, improving the understanding of operating results of REITs among the investing public and making comparisons of REIT operating results more meaningful.

In addition to Management evaluating the operating performance of our reportable segments based on FFO results, Management uses FFO and FFO per share, along with other measures, to assess performance in connection with evaluating and granting incentive compensation to key employees. Our method of calculating FFO may be different from methods used by other REITs and, accordingly, may not be comparable to such other REITs. FFO should not be considered (1) as an alternative to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP), (2) as an indicator of financial performance, (3) as cash flow from operating activities (determined in accordance with GAAP) or (4) as a measure of liquidity nor is it indicative of sufficient cash flow to fund all of the company s needs, including our ability to make distributions.

G-80

The following information is provided to reconcile net income available to common shareholders of the Trust, the most comparable GAAP measure, to FFO, and to show the items included in our FFO for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

		Years	Ended Decemb	er 31.	
(in thousands, except per share and unit data)	2012	2011	2010	2009	2008
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders	\$ 8,160	\$ 3,428	\$ (48,054)	\$ (509)	\$ (55,429)
Adjustments (consolidated):					
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP	662	293	(5,068)	(82)	(11,225)
Noncontrolling interest in gain on sale of undepreciated property				992	
Real estate depreciation	126,222	126,696	120,471	111,220	101,035
Real estate amortization	6,613	8,306	7,248	1,582	1,272
Impairment on depreciable assets	3,251			958	
Consolidated (gains) losses from sales of property, net of income tax and					
noncontrolling interest	(18,423)	(23,849)	1,786	(7,606)	(49,851)
Gains (losses) from sales of undepreciated property, net of income tax					
and noncontrolling interest	(4,339)	102	(1,720)	4,327	7,335
Adjustments (unconsolidated subsidiaries):					
Real estate depreciation	2,699	6,451	8,060	17,927	18,744
Real estate amortization	843	2,822	2,810	6,516	8,699
Gains from sales of property	(32,508)	(18,765)	(3,578)	(4,958)	(18,943)
Funds from operations	\$ 93,180	\$ 105,484	\$ 81,955	\$ 130,367	\$ 1,637
Income allocated to participating securities	(719)	(772)	(645)	(559)	(717)
income anocated to participating securities	(719)	(112)	(043)	(339)	(/1/)
	ф 02 4 <i>C</i> 1	¢ 104.710	¢ 01.210	¢ 120 000	Ф 020
Funds from operations available to common shareholders and unitholders	\$ 92,461	\$ 104,712	\$ 81,310	\$ 129,808	\$ 920
Funds from operations per share and unit basic	\$ 0.98	\$ 1.15	\$ 1.02	\$ 2.09	\$ 0.02
runds from operations per share and unit basic	φ 0.30	φ 1.13	φ 1.02	\$ 2.09	\$ 0.02
Fronds from a security and sold diluted	¢ 0.00	¢ 115	\$ 1.02	\$ 2.09	\$ 0.02
Funds from operations per share and unit diluted	\$ 0.98	\$ 1.15	\$ 1.02	\$ 2.09	\$ 0.02
Weighted average common shares outstanding basic	87,251	84,142	71,919	53,266	47,231
Weighted average partnership units outstanding basic basic	7,159	7,247	7,617	8,519	9,673
Weighted average partiers in p units outstanding basic	7,137	7,247	7,017	0,317	2,073
Weighted average shares and units outstanding basic	94,410	91,389	79,536	61,785	56,904
	,	,		ĺ	
Effect of diluted securities					
Weighted average shares and units outstanding diluted	94,410	91,389	79,536	61,785	56,904
respined average shares and arms outstanding united	7-79-110	71,507	17,550	01,703	JU, JUT

Item 7A.Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Market Risk .

⁽¹⁾ Represents the weighted average of outstanding units of noncontrolling interest in Colonial Realty Limited Partnership.

G-81

Table of Contents

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules.

The following are filed as part of this report:

Financial Statements:

Colonial Properties Trust

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011	G-83
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	G-84
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	G-86
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	G-88
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership	
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011	G-90
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	G-91
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	G-93
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	G-95
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	G-97
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	G-145

G-82

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share data)

	December 31, 2012	December 31, 2011
ASSETS	2012	2011
Land, buildings and equipment	\$ 3,489,324	\$ 3,445,455
Undeveloped land and construction in progress	296,153	306,826
Less: Accumulated depreciation	(804,964)	(731,894)
Real estate assets held for sale, net	93,450	10,543
	ŕ	·
Net real estate assets	3,073,963	3,030,930
Cash and cash equivalents	11,674	6,452
Restricted cash	38,128	43,489
Accounts receivable, net	23,977	26,762
Notes receivable	42,399	43,787
Prepaid expenses	19,460	19,912
Deferred debt and lease costs	23,938	22,408
Investment in partially-owned unconsolidated entities	7,777	12,303
Other assets	44,892	52,562
	,	,
Total assets	\$ 3,286,208	\$ 3,258,605
1 out about	Ψ 2,200,200	Ψ 3,230,003
LIABILITIES, NONCONTROLLING INTEREST AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY		
Notes and mortgages payable	\$ 1,643,361	\$ 1,575,727
Unsecured credit facility	188,631	184,000
Chiseculed credit facility	100,031	104,000
Total debt	1,831,992	1,759,727
Accounts payable	53,545	50,266
Accrued interest	10,209	11,923
Accrued expenses	41,652	15,731
Investment in partially-owned unconsolidated entities	,	31,577
Other liabilities	36,751	25,208
		-,
Total liabilities	1,974,149	1,894,432
10th Intollices	1,577,175	1,001,132
Commitments and Contingencies (see Notes 19 and 20)		
Redeemable noncontrolling interest:		
Common units	162,056	159,582
Equity:	102,030	139,362
Common shares of beneficial interest, \$0.01 par value, 125,000,000 shares authorized; 93,835,794 and		
93,096,722 shares issued at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively	938	931
Additional paid-in capital	1,973,594	1,964,881
Cumulative earnings	1,276,118	1,267,958
Cumulative distributions	(1,926,167)	(1,862,838)
Noncontrolling interest	695	728
Treasury shares, at cost; 5,623,150 shares at December 31, 2012 and 2011	(150,163)	(150,163)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(25,012)	(16,906)
	(==,0==)	(10,500)
Total shareholders equity	1,150,003	1,204,591
Total shareholders equity	1,130,003	1,207,371

Total liabilities, noncontrolling interest and shareholders equity

\$ 3,286,208

\$ 3,258,605

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

G-83

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

${\bf CONSOLIDATED\ STATEMENTS\ OF\ OPERATIONS\ AND\ COMPREHENSIVE\ INCOME\ (LOSS)}$

(in thousands, except per share data)

		s Ended Decemb	
	2012	2011	2010
Revenues: Minimum rent	¢ 220 490	¢ 207 421	¢ 260 625
Rentals from affiliates	\$ 320,489	\$ 287,431 236	\$ 260,635 203
Tenant recoveries	0.574	9,329	
	9,574 57,769	48,346	8,627 42,925
Other property related revenue	•		
Other non-property related revenue	5,712	8,047	11,693
Total revenues	393,544	353,389	324,083
Operating expenses:			
Property operating expense	107,657	98,108	92,080
Taxes, licenses and insurance	44,413	40,039	37,612
Property management expense	12,858	9,185	8,584
General and administrative expense	22,615	20,439	18,563
Management fees and other expenses	6,298	8,067	9,504
Restructuring charges	1,848	153	361
Investment and development expenses	1,285	1,781	422
Depreciation	120,993	113,475	106,205
Amortization	6,122	7,446	6,807
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses	26,013	5,736	1,308
Total operating expenses	350,102	304,429	281,446
Income from operations	43,442	48,960	42,637
Other income (expense):			
Interest expense	(92,085)	(86,573)	(83,091)
Debt cost amortization	(5,697)	(4,767)	(4,618)
Gain on retirement of debt			1,044
Interest income	2,569	1,521	1,580
Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	31,862	17,497	3,365
Loss on hedging activities			(289)
(Loss) gain on sale of property, net of income taxes of \$ - , \$ - and \$ 117 for 2012, 2011 and 2010	(4,306)	115	(1,391)
Taxes and other	(907)	(872)	(1,084)
Total other income (expense)	(68,564)	(73,079)	(84,484)
Loss from continuing operations	(25,122)	(24,119)	(41,847)
Income from discontinued operations	11,258	6,565	3,699
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations	22,729	23,733	(395)
		25,755	(373)
Net income from discontinued operations	33,987	30,298	3,304
Net income (loss)	8,865	6,179	(38,543)

Noncontrolling interest

Continuing operations:			
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP common unitholders	1,893	2,094	5,382
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP preferred unitholders		(3,586)	(7,161)
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners	(43)	(53)	103

G-84

Table of Contents						
		Years	End	ed Decembe	er 31.	
		2012		2011		2010
Discontinued operations:						
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP		(2,555)		(2,387)		(314)
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners						(4)
Income attributable to noncontrolling interest		(705)		(3,932)		(1,994)
C						, , ,
Net income (loss) attributable to parent company		8,160		2,247	(40,537)
		,		ĺ		, ,
Dividends to preferred shareholders						(5,649)
Preferred unit repurchase gains				2,500		3,000
Preferred share/unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)		(4,868)
				() /		()/
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders	\$	8,160	\$	3,428	\$ (48,054)
	-	-,	-	-,	+ (10,00 1)
Net income (loss) per common share basic:						
Continuing operations	\$	(0.27)	\$	(0.30)	\$	(0.71)
Discontinued operations	Ψ	0.36	Ψ	0.34	Ψ	0.04
Discontinued operations		0.50		0.51		0.01
Net income (loss) per common share basic	\$	0.09	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)
(1000) por common suare	Ψ	0.00	Ψ	0.0.	Ψ	(0.07)
Net income (loss) per common share diluted:						
Continuing operations	\$	(0.27)	\$	(0.30)	\$	(0.71)
Discontinued operations	-	0.36	-	0.34	-	0.04
Net income (loss) per common share diluted	\$	0.09	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)
	•				·	()
Weighted average common shares outstanding:						
Basic		87,251		84,142		71,919
Diluted		87,251		84,142		71,919
		,		ŕ		,
Net income (loss)	\$	8,865	\$	6,179	\$ (38,543)
Other comprehensive income (loss):		,		ĺ		, ,
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges		(15,985)		(19,302)		
Adjust for amounts included in net income (loss)		7,222		3,164		726
		,		,		
Comprehensive income (loss)	\$	102	\$	(9,959)	\$ (37,817)
1			- 1	,,,	, (, ,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

(in thousands, except per share data)

								1	Accumulated	1	
			Additional						Other	Total	Redeemab
I	Preferre(C ommon	n Paid-In	Cumulative	Cumulativ No.	ncontroll	in P referred	Treasury C	omprehensiv	v&hareholders	Common
ears Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	Shares	Shares	Capital	Earnings	Distributions		Units	Shares	Loss	Equity	Units
alance, December 31, 2009	\$ 4		\$ 1,760,362	\$ 1,296,188	\$ (1,753,015)	\$ 985	\$ 100,000	\$ (150,163)	\$ (2,957)	\$ 1,252,124	\$ 133,537
et income (loss)				(33,376)		(99)				(33,475)	
eclassification adjustment for amounts included in											
t income (loss)									726	726	
stributions on common shares (\$0.60 per share)					(42,875)					(42,875)	(4,541
stributions on preferred shares					(5,649)					(5,649)	
stributions on preferred units of CRLP					(7,161)					(7,161)	,
suance of restricted common shares of beneficial											
terest		4	455							459	
mortization of stock based compensation			4,585							4,585	
edemption of Series D preferred shares of											
neficial interest	(4)		(96,565)	(3,550)						(100,119)	
epurchase of Series B preferred shares of beneficia	ıl										
terest			1,318	1,682			(50,000)			(47,000)	,
ancellation of vested restricted shares to pay taxes			(277)							(277)	/ //
suance of common shares from options exercised		2	2,659							2,661	
suance of common shares of beneficial interest											
rough the Company s dividend reinvestment plan											
d Employee Stock Purchase Plan		1	1,618							1,619	
suance of common shares of beneficial interest											
rough conversion of units from Colonial Realty											
mited Partnership		9	14,068							14,077	(14,077
uity Offering Programs, net of cost		104	155,763							155,867	
nange in interest of limited partners						(117)				(117)	
nange in redemption value of common units			(35,688)							(35,688)	35,688
alance, December 31, 2010	\$	\$ 840	\$ 1,808,298	¢ 1 260 044	\$ (1,808,700)	769	\$ 50,000	\$ (150,163)	¢ (2.231)	¢ 1 150 757	\$ 145,539
alance, December 31, 2010	Ф	\$ 0 4 0	\$ 1,000,250	\$ 1,200,544	\$ (1,000,700)	705	\$ 50,000	\$ (130,103)	\$ (2,231)	\$ 1,139,131	\$ 145,555
et income (loss)				5,833		53				5,886	\$ 293
eclassification adjustment for amounts included in t income (loss)									3,164	3,164	
nanges in fair value of qualifying hedges									(17,839)	(17,839)	(1,463
stributions on common shares (\$0.60 per share)					(50,552)				, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	(50,552)	(4,345
stributions on preferred units of CRLP					(3,586)					(3,586)	
suance of restricted common shares of beneficial										, ,	
terest		3	492							495	ļ
mortization of stock based compensation			6,013							6,013	
			-,							- ,	

Table of Contents

									Accumulated	1	
I			Additional						Other	Total	Redeemable
P	referr	C bmmon	n Paid-In	Cumulative	Cumulativ N o	oncontrol	lingreferred	Treasury	Comprehensiv	√Shareholders	Common
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	Share	s Shares	Capital	Earnings	Distributions	Interest	Units	Shares	Loss	Equity	Units
Repurchase of Series B preferred units of beneficial											L J
nterest			1,319	1,181			(50,000)			(47,500)	,
Cancellation of vested restricted shares to pay taxes		(1)	(1,741)							(1,742)	,
ssuance of common shares from options exercised		1	748							749	l l
ssuance of common shares of beneficial interest											,
hrough the Company s dividend reinvestment plan											Ţ
nd Employee Stock Purchase Plan		3	5,987							5,990	
ssuance of common shares of beneficial interest											l l
hrough conversion of units from Colonial Realty											l l
imited Partnership		1	2,495							2,496	(2,496)
Equity Offering Programs, net of cost		84	163,324							163,408	Ţ
Change in interest of limited partners						(94)				(94)	, ,
Change in redemption value of common units			(22,054)							(22,054)	22,054
											,
Balance, December 31, 2011	\$	\$ 931	\$ 1,964,881	\$ 1,267,958	\$ (1,862,838)	\$ 728	\$	\$ (150,163	3) \$ (16,906)	\$ 1,204,591	\$ 159,582
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			-	+ - , ,-	+ (,- , , , ,		-	T (/	, , , , , ,	+ - , - ,-	
Vet income (loss)				8,160		43				8,203	\$ 662
Reclassification adjustment for amounts included in											
et income (loss)									6,680	6,680	542
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges									(14,786)		
Distributions on common shares (\$0.72 per share)					(63,329)					(63,329)	
ssuance of restricted common shares of beneficial					()-					(,,	
nterest		4	312							316	ŀ
Amortization of stock based compensation			8,833							8,833	
Cancellation of vested restricted shares to pay taxes		(1)	(1,561)							(1,562))
ssuance of common shares from options exercised			771							771	
ssuance of common shares of beneficial interest											
hrough the Company s dividend reinvestment plan											ļ
nd Employee Stock Purchase Plan		4	7,981							7,985	ļ
ssuance of common shares of beneficial interest											
hrough conversion of units from Colonial Realty											
imited Partnership			359							359	(359)
Change in interest of limited partners						(76)	,			(76)	
Change in redemption value of common units			(7,982)							(7,982)	
zminge in reason provide a construction of the			(.,,							(.,,	. ,-
Balance, December 31, 2012	\$	\$ 938	\$ 1,973,594	\$ 1,276,118	\$ (1,926,167)	\$ 695	\$	\$ (150,163	3) \$ (25,012)	\$ 1,150,003	\$ 162,056

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

G-87

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

	Years Ended December 31,				on 21	
		2012	ars Em	2011	CI 31,	2010
Cash flows from operating activities:						
Net income (loss)	\$	8,865	\$	6,179	\$	(38,543)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:						
Depreciation and amortization		133,731		136,752		131,539
(Income) loss from partially-owned unconsolidated entities		(31,862)		(17,497)		(3,365)
(Gain) loss from sales of property		(18,423)		(23,848)		1,669
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses		26,013		5,736		1,448
Gain on retirement of debt						(1,044)
Distributions of income from partially-owned entities		958		3,737		5,566
Share-based compensation expense		8,833		6,013		4,589
Other, net		341		(3,067)		1,522
Change in:						
Restricted cash		(1,126)		1,157		(1,342)
Accounts receivable		4,456		(10,288)		18,073
Prepaid expenses		452		(13,162)		(328)
Other assets		4,090		435		(1,501)
Accounts payable		(7,046)		14,398		4,210
Accrued interest		(1,714)		(79)		(1,131)
Accrued expenses and other		9,540		11,620		(11,655)
Net cash provided by operating activities		137,108		118,086		109,707
Cash flows from investing activities:						
Acquisition of properties	(184,727)		(225,885)		(42,635)
Development expenditures paid to non-affiliates		(84,386)		(41,497)		(14,867)
Development expenditures paid to an affiliate		(7,997)		(4,065)		(13,740)
Capital expenditures, tenant improvements and leasing commissions		(27,936)		(25,101)		(42,450)
Proceeds from sale of property, net of selling costs		145,942		146,733		21,194
Restricted cash		6,487		(35,352)		
Issuance of notes receivable				(17,977)		(29,137)
Repayments of notes receivable		2,074		1,485		5,787
Distributions from partially-owned entities		6,985		26,020		19,104
Capital contributions to partially-owned entities		(54)				(5,543)
Net cash used in investing activities	(143,612)		(175,639)		(102,287)

G-88

	Years Ended December 31,					
		2012		2011	,	2010
Cash flows from financing activities:						
Proceeds from additional borrowings		150,000		250,000		73,200
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment plan and exercise of stock options		7,196		5,000		4,003
Proceeds from common share issuance, net of expenses				163,408		155,867
Principal reductions of debt		(82,718)		(58,885)	((101,552)
Payment of debt issuance costs		(5,309)		(2,879)		(1,351)
Proceeds from borrowings on revolving credit lines	,	750,040		1,450,000		945,000
Payments on revolving credit lines and overdrafts	('	739,000)		(1,641,610)	((874,878)
Dividends paid to common and preferred shareholders		(63,329)		(54,138)		(55,685)
Distributions to noncontrolling partners in CRLP		(5,154)		(4,345)		(4,541)
Redemption of Preferred Series D shares					((100,119)
Repurchase of Preferred Series B units				(47,500)		(47,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities		11,726		59.051		(7,056)
r		, .		,		(1)111)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents		5,222		1,498		364
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period		6,452		4,954		4,590
		·				
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$	11,674	\$	6.452	\$	4.954
Cush and cash equivalents, that of period	Ψ	11,07	Ψ	0,132	Ψ	1,231
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:						
Cash paid during the period for interest, including amounts capitalized	\$	95,009	\$	88,184	\$	86,836
Cash received during the period for income taxes	\$		\$	(729)	\$	(17,368)
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions:						
Consolidation of Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture (principally a multifamily						
property)		(4.00.0)	\$	17,615		(2.400)
Change in accrual of construction expenses and capital expenditures	\$	(1,906)	\$	2,331	\$	(3,100)
Exchange of interest in DRA multifamily joint ventures for acquisition of CG at					.	1.607
Riverchase Trails					\$	1,637

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

G-89

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except unit data)

	D	December 31, 2012	December 31, 2011
ASSETS		2012	2011
Land, buildings and equipment	\$	3,489,322	\$ 3,445,441
Undeveloped land and construction in progress	Ψ	296,153	306,826
Less: Accumulated depreciation		(804,962)	(731,880)
Real estate assets held for sale, net		93,450	10,543
		70,100	2 0,0 10
Net real estate assets		3,073,963	3,030,930
Cash and cash equivalents		11,674	6,452
Restricted cash		38,128	43,489
Accounts receivable, net		23,977	26,762
Notes receivable		42,399	43,787
Prepaid expenses		19,460	19,912
Deferred debt and lease costs		23,938	22,408
Investment in partially-owned unconsolidated entities		7,777	12,303
Other assets		44,844	52,385
		•	
Total assets	\$	3,286,160	\$ 3,258,428
		0,200,200	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY			
Notes and mortgages payable	\$	1,643,361	\$ 1,575,727
Unsecured credit facility		188,631	184,000
			,
Total debt		1,831,992	1,759,727
Accounts payable		53,496	50,090
Accrued interest		10,209	11,923
Accrued expenses		41,652	15,731
Investment in partially-owned unconsolidated entities		ŕ	27,432
Other liabilities		36,751	25,174
		,	
Total liabilities		1,974,100	1,890,077
		_,,,	2,02 0,011
Commitments and Contingencies (see Notes 19 and 20)			
Redeemable units, at redemption value - 7,152,752 and 7,169,388 units outstanding at December 31, 2012			
and 2011, respectively		162,056	159,582
General partner		102,000	10,002
Common equity - 88,212,644 and 87,473,572 units outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011,			
respectively		1,174,321	1,224,947
Limited partners noncontrolling interest in consolidated partnership		695	728
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		(25,012)	(16,906)
Total equity		1,150,004	1,208,769
- com equity		_,,_	1,200,709
Total liabilities and equity	¢	3,286,160	\$ 3,258,428
Total habilities and equity	Φ	3,200,100	ψ 3,430,440

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

G-90

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(in thousands, except per unit data)

	Years Ended December 31,						
	2012	2011	2010				
Revenues:							
Minimum rent	\$ 320,489	\$ 287,431	\$ 260,635				
Rentals from affiliates		236	203				
Tenant recoveries	9,574	9,329	8,627				
Other property related revenue	57,769	48,346	42,925				
Other non-property related revenue	5,712	8,047	11,693				
Total revenues	393,544	353,389	324,083				
Operating expenses:							
Property operating expense	107,657	98,108	92,080				
Taxes, licenses and insurance	44,413	40,039	37,612				
Property management expense	12,858	9,185	8,584				
General and administrative expense	22,615	20,439	18,563				
Management fees and other expenses	6,298	8,067	9,504				
Restructuring charges	1,848	153	361				
Investment and development expenses	1,285	1,781	422				
Depreciation	120,993	113,475	106,205				
Amortization	6,122	7,446	6,807				
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses	26,013	5,736	1,308				
Total operating expenses	350,102	304,429	281,446				
Income from operations	43,442	48,960	42,637				
Other income (expense):							
Interest expense	(92,085)	(86,573)	(83,091)				
Debt cost amortization	(5,697)	(4,767)	(4,618)				
Gain on retirement of debt			1,044				
Interest income	2,569	1,521	1,580				
Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	27,717	17,497	3,365				
Loss on hedging activities			(289)				
(Loss) gain on sale of property, net of income taxes of \$ - , \$ - and \$117 for 2012, 2011 and 2010	(4,306)	115	(1,391)				
Taxes and other	(907)	(872)	(1,084)				
Total other income (expense)	(72,709)	(73,079)	(84,484)				
Loss from continuing operations	(29,267)	(24,119)	(41,847)				
Income from discontinued operations	11,258	6,565	3,699				
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations	22,729	23,733	(395)				
Net income from discontinued operations	33,987	30,298	3,304				
Net income (loss)	4,720	6,179	(38,543)				

Noncontrolling interest of limited partners continuing operations	(43)	(53)	103
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners discontinued operations			(4)
(Income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest	(43)	(53)	99
Net income (loss) attributable to CRLP	4,677	6,126	(38,444)

G-91

		Years		ed Decembe		
		2012		2011		2010
Distributions to limited partner preferred unitholders				(3,586)		(7,161)
Distributions to general partner preferred unitholders						(5,649)
Preferred unit repurchase gains				2,500		3,000
Preferred unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)		(4,868)
Net income (loss) available to common unitholders	\$	4,677	\$	3,721	\$ (53,122)
Net loss available to common unitholders allocated to limited partners continuing operations		1,893		2,094		5,382
Net income available to common unitholders allocated to limited partners discontinued operations		(2,555)		(2,387)		(314)
Net income (loss) available to common unitholders allocated to general partner	\$	4,015	\$	3,428	\$ (48,054)
······································	Ċ	,-	·	-, -		-, ,
Net income (loss) per common unit basic:						
Continuing operations	\$	(0.31)	\$	(0.30)	\$	(0.71)
Discontinued operations	Ψ	0.36	Ψ	0.34	Ψ	0.04
Discontinued operations		0.50		0.54		0.04
Not income (loss) non common unit. Incid	ф	0.05	¢	0.04	¢	(0.67)
Net income (loss) per common unit basic	\$	0.05	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)
Net income (loss) per common unit diluted:			_		_	
Continuing operations	\$	(0.31)	\$	(0.30)	\$	(0.71)
Discontinued operations		0.36		0.34		0.04
Net income (loss) per common unit diluted	\$	0.05	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)
Weighted average common units outstanding:						
Basic		94,410		91,389		79,536
Diluted		94,410		91,389		79,536
Net income (loss)	\$	4,720	\$	6,126	\$ (38,444)
Other comprehensive income (loss):		,		, -		, ,
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges	((15,985)	(19,302)		
Adjust for amounts included in net income (loss)		7,222	· ·	3,164		726
		,		,		
Comprehensive income (loss)	\$	(4,043)	\$ /	10,012)	\$ (37,718)
Compressive income (1055)	Ψ	(T,UT 3)	φ(10,014)	Φ(51,110)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(in thousands)

	General F	artner	Limited Partners		imited artners	Accumulated Other			Redeemable
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	Common Equity	Preferred Equity	Preferred Equity	Nonc		Con	nprehensive Loss	Total	Common Units
Balance, December 31, 2009	\$ 1,066,390	\$ 96,550	\$ 97,406	\$	985	\$	(2,957)	\$ 1,258,374	\$ 133,537
Net income (loss)	(46,186)	5,649	7,161		(99)			(33,475)	(5,068)
Reclassification adjustment for amounts									
included in net income (loss)							726	726	
Distributions to common unitholders	(42,875)							(42,875)	(4,541)
Distributions to preferred unitholders		(5,649)	(7,161)					(12,810)	
Change in interest of limited partners					(117)			(117)	
Contributions from partners and the									
Company related to employee stock									
purchase and dividend reinvestment									
plans	164,245							164,245	
Redemption of preferred units	(1,868)	(96,568)	(48,682)					(147,118)	
Redemption of partnership units for									
shares	14,068							14,068	(14,077)
Change in redeemable noncontrolling									
interest	(35,688)							(35,688)	35,688
Other		18						18	
Balance, December 31, 2010	\$ 1,118,086	\$	\$ 48,724	\$	769	\$	(2,231)	\$ 1,165,348	\$ 145,539
Net income (loss)	2,247		3,586		53			5,886	293
Reclassification adjustment for amounts	,		,					,	
included in net income (loss)							3,164	3,164	
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges							(17,839)	(17,839)	(1,463)
Distributions to common unitholders	(50,552)						(=1,001)	(50,552)	(4,345)
Distributions to preferred unitholders	(= =,===)		(3,586)					(3,586)	(1,010)
Change in interest of limited partners			(- ,)		(94)			(94)	
Contributions from partners and the					(-)			()	
Company related to employee stock									
purchase, dividend reinvestment plans									
and equity offerings	173,543							173,543	
Redemption of preferred units	1,181		(48,724)					(47,543)	
Redemption of partnership units for	,		, , ,					. , -,	
shares	2,496							2,496	(2,496)
Change in redeemable noncontrolling									
interest	(22,054)							(22,054)	22,054
Balance, December 31, 2011	\$ 1,224,947	\$	\$	\$	728	\$	(16,906)	\$ 1,208,769	\$ 159,582

	General Partner Limited Limited Accumulated Partners Partners Other					D. J 11.		
Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	Common Equity	Preferred Equity		Noncontrolling Interest	g Con	nprehensive Loss	Total	Redeemable Common Units
Net income (loss)	4,015			43			4,058	662
Reclassification adjustment for amounts included in net loss						6,680	6,680	542
Changes in fair value of qualifying								
hedges						(14,786)	(14,786)	(1,199)
Distributions to common unitholders	(63,329)						(63,329)	(5,154)
Change in interest of limited partners				(76)			(76)	
Contributions from partners and the Company related to employee stock purchase, dividend reinvestment plans								
and equity offerings	16,311						16,311	
Redemption of partnership units for shares	359						359	(359)
Change in redeemable noncontrolling interest	(7,982)						(7,982)	7,982
Balance, December 31, 2012	\$ 1,174,321		\$	\$ 695	\$	(25,012)	\$ 1,150,004	\$ 162,056

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

	Years Ended December 31,			
	2012	2011	2010	
Cash flows from operating activities:				
Net income (loss)	\$ 4,720	\$ 6,179	\$ (38,543)	
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:				
Depreciation and amortization	133,731	136,752	131,539	
(Income) loss from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	(27,717)	(17,497)	(3,365)	
(Gain) loss from sales of property	(18,423)	(23,848)	1,669	
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses	26,013	5,736	1,448	
Gain on retirement of debt			(1,044)	
Distributions of income from partially-owned entities	958	3,737	5,566	
Share-based compensation expense	8,833	6,013	4,589	
Other, net	341	(3,067)	1,522	
Change in:				
Restricted cash	(1,126)	1,157	(1,342)	
Accounts receivable	4,456	(10,288)	18,073	
Prepaid expenses	452	(13,162)	(328)	
Other assets	4,090	435	(1,501)	
Accounts payable	(7,046)	14,398	4,210	
Accrued interest	(1,714)	(79)	(1,131)	
Accrued expenses and other	9,540	11,620	(11,655)	
Net cash provided by operating activities	137,108	118,086	109,707	
Cash flows from investing activities:				
Acquisition of properties	(184,727)	(225,885)	(42,635)	
Development expenditures paid to non-affiliates	(84,386)	(41,497)	(14,867)	
Development expenditures paid to an affiliate	(7,997)	(4,065)	(13,740)	
Capital expenditures, tenant improvements and leasing commissions	(27,936)	(25,101)	(42,450)	
Proceeds from sales of property, net of selling costs	145,942	146,733	21,194	
Restricted Cash	6,487	(35,352)		
Issuance of notes receivable		(17,977)	(29,137)	
Repayments of notes receivable	2,074	1,485	5,787	
Distributions from partially-owned entities	6,985	26,020	19,104	
Capital contributions to partially-owned entities	(54)		(5,543)	
Net cash used in investing activities	(143,612)	(175,639)	(102,287)	

	Years Ended December 31,					
		2012		2011		2010
Cash flows from financing activities:						
Proceeds from additional borrowings		150,000		250,000		73,200
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment plan and exercise of stock options		7,196		5,000		4,003
Proceeds from issuance of common units				163,408		155,867
Principal reductions of debt		(82,718)		(58,885)	((101,552)
Payment of debt issuance costs		(5,309)		(2,879)		(1,351)
Proceeds from borrowings on revolving credit lines		750,040	1	,450,000		945,000
Payments on revolving credit lines and overdrafts	(739,000)	(1	,641,610)	((874,878)
Dividends paid to common and preferred shareholders		(63,329)		(54,138)		(55,685)
Distributions to noncontrolling partners in CRLP		(5,154)		(4,345)		(4,541)
Redemption of preferred units				(47,500)	((147,119)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities		11,726		59,051		(7,056)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents		5,222		1,498		364
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period		6,452		4,954		4,590
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$	11,674	\$	6,452	\$	4,954
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:						
Cash paid during the period for interest, including amounts capitalized	\$	95,009	\$	88,184	\$	86,836
Cash received during the period for income taxes	\$		\$	(729)	\$	(17,368)
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions:						
Consolidation of Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture (principally a multifamily property)	\$			17,615		
Change in accrual of construction expenses and capital expenditures	\$	(1,906)	\$	2,331	\$	(3,100)
Exchange of interest in DRA multifamily joint ventures for acquisition of CG at	Ψ	(2,500)	Ψ	2,001	Ψ	(5,100)
Riverchase Trails			\$			1,637
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements						

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

G-96

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST AND COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Note 1 Organization and Business

As used herein, Colonial or the Trust means Colonial Properties Trust, an Alabama real estate investment trust (REIT), together with its subsidiaries, including Colonial Realty Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership (CRLP), Colonial Properties Services, Inc. (CPSI) and Colonial Properties Services Limited Partnership (CPSLP). The term the Company refers to the Trust and CRLP, collectively. The Trust was originally formed as a Maryland REIT on July 9, 1993 and reorganized as an Alabama REIT under a new Alabama REIT statute on August 21, 1995. The Trust is the sole general partner of, and, as of December 31, 2012 owned 92.5% of the limited partner interests in CRLP. The Trust and CRLP are structured as an umbrella partnership REIT, or UPREIT, and the Trust is only material asset is its ownership of limited partnership interests in CRLP. The Trust conducts all of its business and owns all of its properties through CRLP and CRLP is various subsidiaries and, as the sole general partner of CRLP, is vested with managerial control and authority over the business and affairs of CRLP.

The Trust is a multifamily-focused self-administered and self-managed equity REIT, which means that it is engaged in the acquisition, development, ownership, management and leasing of multifamily apartment communities and other commercial real estate properties. The Company s activities include full or partial ownership and operation of a portfolio of 125 properties, consisting of multifamily and commercial properties located in 11 states (Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Nevada, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas and Virginia).

As of December 31, 2012, the Company owned or maintained a partial ownership in:

	Consolidated	Units/Sq.	Unconsolidated	Units/Sq.	Total	Total Units/Sq.
	Properties	Feet (1)	Properties	Feet (1)	Properties	Feet (1)
Multifamily apartment communities	112 (2)	33,851	2	646	114	34,497
Commercial properties	8	2,167,000	3	350,000	11	2,517,000

⁽¹⁾ Units refer to multifamily apartment units. Square feet refers to commercial space and excludes space owned by anchor tenants.

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation The notes included in this Form 10-K apply to both the Trust and CRLP, unless specifically noted otherwise. Specifically Note 6 - Net Loss Per Share of the Trust , Note 8 - Equity of the Trust , Note 10 - Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests of the Trust and Note 23 - Quarterly Financial Information for the Trust (Unaudited) pertain only to the Trust. Note 7 - Net Loss Per Unit of CRLP , Note 9 - Capital Structure of CRLP , Note 11 - Redeemable Partnership Units of CRLP and Note 24 - Quarterly Financial Information for CRLP (Unaudited) pertain only to CRLP.

Due to the Trust s ability as general partner to control CRLP and various other subsidiaries, each such entity has been consolidated for financial reporting purposes. CRLP, an SEC registrant, files separate financial statements under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Trust allocates income to the noncontrolling interest in CRLP based on the weighted average noncontrolling ownership percentage for the periods presented in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust. At the end of each period, the Trust adjusts the Consolidated Balance Sheet for CRLP s noncontrolling interest balance based on the noncontrolling ownership percentage at the end of the period.

⁽²⁾ Includes one property partially-owned through a joint venture entity.

Table of Contents

The Company also consolidates other entities in which it has a controlling interest or entities where it is determined to be the primary beneficiary under Accounting Standards Codification ASC 810-20, Control of Partnerships and Similar Entities. Under ASC 810-20, variable interest entities (VIEs) are generally entities that lack sufficient equity to finance their activities without additional financial support from other parties or whose equity holders lack adequate decision-making ability. The primary beneficiary, as determined primarily based on a qualitative evaluation of the entity with the ability to direct the most significant business activities of the VIE, is required to consolidate the VIE for financial reporting purposes. The application of ASC 810-20 requires management to make significant estimates and judgments about the Company s and its other partners rights, obligations and economic interests in such entities. Where the Company has less than a controlling financial interest in an entity or the Company is not the primary beneficiary of the entity, the entity is accounted for on the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, the Company s share of net earnings or losses of these entities is included in consolidated net income (loss). A description of the Company s investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting is included in Note 13 - Investment in Partially-Owned Entities . All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Federal Income Tax Status The Trust, which is considered a corporation for federal income tax purposes, qualifies as a REIT and generally will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes its REIT taxable income to its shareholders. REITs are subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements. If the Trust fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, the Trust will be subject to federal income tax on its taxable income at regular corporate rates. Even if the Trust does qualify as a REIT, the Trust may be subject to certain federal, state and local taxes on its income and property and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed income. For example, the Trust will be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes less than 100% of its REIT taxable income (including undistributed net capital gains) and the Trust has certain gains that, if recognized, will be subject to corporate tax because it acquired the assets in tax-free acquisitions of non-REIT corporations.

CRLP is a partnership for federal income tax purposes. As a partnership, CRLP is not subject to federal income tax on its income. Instead, each of CRLP s partners, including the Trust, is responsible for paying tax on such partner s allocable share of income.

The Company s consolidated financial statements include the operations of a taxable REIT subsidiary, CPSI, which is not entitled to a dividends paid deduction and is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. CPSI uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities result from temporary differences. Temporary differences are differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in future periods. CPSI provides property development, construction services, leasing and management services for joint venture and third-party owned properties and administrative services to the Company and engages in for-sale development activity. The Company generally reimburses CPSI for payroll and other costs incurred in providing services to the Company. All inter-company transactions are eliminated in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, CPSI recognized no income tax expense (benefit). CPSI s effective income tax rates were zero for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had no net deferred tax asset after the effect of the valuation allowance.

Tax years 2005 through 2007 and tax years 2009 through 2011 are subject to examination by the federal taxing authorities. Generally, tax years 2009 through 2011 are subject to examination by state taxing authorities. There are no state tax examinations currently in process.

On November 6, 2009, the Worker, Homeownership and Business Assistance Act of 2009 was signed into law, which expanded the net operating loss (NOL) carryback rules to allow businesses to carry back NOLs incurred in either 2008 or 2009 up to five years. As a result of the new legislation, CPSI was able to carry back tax losses that occurred in the year ended December 31, 2009 against income that was recognized in 2005 and 2006. The Company received no tax refunds during 2012. The Company received \$0.7 million of tax refunds during the year ended December 31, 2011.

G-98

Table of Contents

The Company may from time to time be assessed interest or penalties by federal and state tax jurisdictions, although any such assessments historically have been minimal and immaterial to the Company s financial results. When the Company has received an assessment for interest and/or penalties, it has been classified in the financial statements as *Taxes and other*.

Real Estate Assets, Impairment and Depreciation Land, buildings, and equipment is stated at the lower of cost, less accumulated depreciation, or fair value. Undeveloped land and construction in progress is stated at cost unless such assets are impaired in which case such assets are recorded at fair value. The Company reviews its long-lived assets and all intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. Assets classified as held for sale are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. The Company s determination of fair value is based on inputs management believes are consistent with those that market participants would use (See - Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value). Estimates are significantly impacted by estimates of sales price, selling velocity, sales incentives, construction costs and other factors. Due to uncertainties in the estimation process, actual results could differ from such estimates. For those assets deemed to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

	Useful Lives
Buildings	20 - 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	3 - 7 years
Land improvements	10 or 15 years
Tenant improvements	Life of lease

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Replacements and improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated remaining useful lives of the assets.

Acquisition of Real Estate Assets The Company accounts for its acquisitions of investments in real estate in accordance with ASC 805-10, *Business Combinations*, which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be allocated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building and tenant improvements, and identified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of above-market and below-market leases, other value of in-place leases and value of other tenant relationships, based in each case on the fair values.

The Company allocates purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property (which includes the land and building) determined by valuing the property as if it were vacant. The as-if-vacant value is allocated to land and buildings based on management s determination of the relative fair values of these assets. The Company also allocates value to tenant improvements based on the estimated costs of similar tenants with similar terms.

The Company records acquired intangible assets (including above-market leases, customer relationships and in-place leases) and acquired liabilities (including below-market leases) at their estimated fair value separate and apart from goodwill. The Company amortizes identified intangible assets and liabilities that are determined to have finite lives over the period the assets and liabilities are expected to contribute directly or indirectly to the future cash flows of the property or business acquired. Intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an intangible asset is not recoverable and its carrying amount exceeds its estimated fair value.

G-99

Table of Contents

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had \$6.7 million, \$0.6 million and \$7.3 million of unamortized in-place lease intangible assets, net market lease intangibles and intangibles related to relationships with customers, respectively, which is reflected as a component of *Other assets* in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP. The aggregate amortization expense for in-place lease intangible assets recorded during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$4.8 million, \$6.0 million and \$5.2 million, respectively.

Cost Capitalization Costs incurred during predevelopment are capitalized after the Company has identified a development site, determined that a project is feasible and concluded that it is probable that the project will proceed. While the Company believes it will recover this capital through the successful development of such projects, it is possible that a write-off of unrecoverable amounts could occur. Once it is no longer probable that a development will be successful, the predevelopment costs that have been previously capitalized are expensed.

The capitalization of costs during the development of assets (including interest, property taxes and other costs) begins when an active development commences and ends when the asset, or a portion of an asset, is completed and is ready for its intended use. Cost capitalization during redevelopment of assets (including interest and other costs) begins when the asset is taken out-of-service for redevelopment and ends when the asset redevelopment is completed and the asset is transferred back into service.

Cash and Equivalents The Company includes highly liquid marketable securities and debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less in cash equivalents. The majority of the Company s cash and equivalents are held at major commercial banks.

The Company has included in accounts payable book overdrafts representing outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit of \$15.4 million and \$9.0 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Restricted Cash Restricted cash is comprised of cash balances which are legally restricted as to use and consists of resident and tenant deposits, deposits on for-sale residential lots and units and cash in escrow for self insurance retention.

During 2012 and 2011, the Company used multifamily and commercial asset disposition proceeds to fund investment activities through tax-deferred exchanges under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, \$28.9 million and \$35.4 million of the proceeds remained in temporary cash accounts, classified as restricted cash, pending the fulfillment of Section 1031 exchange requirements. (see *Note 3 - Real Estate Activity*)

Valuation of Receivables Due to the short-term nature of the leases at the Company s multifamily properties, generally six months to one year, the Company s exposure to resident defaults and bankruptcies is minimized. The Company s policy is to record allowances for all outstanding receivables greater than 30 days past due at its multifamily properties.

The Company is subject to tenant defaults and bankruptcies at its commercial properties that could affect the collection of outstanding receivables. In order to mitigate these risks, the Company performs a credit review and analysis on commercial tenants and significant leases before they are executed. The Company evaluates the collectability of outstanding receivables and records allowances as appropriate. The Company s policy is to record allowances for all outstanding invoices greater than 60 days past due at its commercial properties.

The Company had an allowance for doubtful accounts of \$0.8 million and \$1.1 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Notes Receivable Notes receivable consists primarily of promissory notes representing loans by the Company to third parties. The Company records notes receivable at cost. The Company evaluates the collectability of both interest and principal for each of its notes to determine whether they are impaired. A note is considered to be impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be

G-100

Table of Contents

unable to collect all amounts due according to the existing contractual terms. When a note is considered to be impaired, the amount of the allowance is calculated by comparing the recorded investment to either the value determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at the note s effective interest rate or to the value of the collateral if the note is collateral-dependent. As of December 31, 2012, the Company did not have any impaired notes receivable.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had notes receivable of \$42.4 million consisting primarily of:

\$24.4 million outstanding on the construction note, which is secured by the property, for the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint venture, which the Company acquired from the lender in May 2010. On January 31, 2012, the Company and the joint venture amended the note and related loan documents to extend the maturity date to December 2012, fix the annual interest rate at 5.25%, provided for two additional one-year extension options and reduce the joint venture partner s guarantee to \$1.3 million. In December 2012, the joint venture opted to extend the maturity date to December 2013 with a fixed interest rate of 5.38%. See Note 14 - Financing Activities Unconsolidated Joint Venture Financing Activity; and

\$16.9 million outstanding on a seller-financing note with a five year term at an annual interest rate of 5.60% associated with the disposition of Colonial Promenade at Fultondale in February 2009.

The Company had accrued interest related to its outstanding notes receivable of \$0.3 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had no reserve recorded against its outstanding notes receivable. The weighted average interest rate on the notes receivable outstanding at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was approximately 5.5% and 4.9%, respectively. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

The Company received principal payments of \$2.1 million and \$1.5 million on these and other outstanding subordinated loans during 2012 and 2011, respectively. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had outstanding notes receivable balances, net of reserves, of \$42.4 million and \$43.8 million, respectively.

Deferred Debt and Lease Costs Deferred debt costs consist of loan fees and related expenses which are amortized on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest method, over the terms of the related debt. Deferred lease costs include leasing charges, direct salaries and other costs incurred by the Company to originate a lease, which are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related leases.

Derivative Instruments All derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet and measured at fair value. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge treatment must be recorded at fair value with gains or losses recognized in earnings in the period of change. The Company enters into derivative financial instruments from time to time, but does not use them for trading or speculative purposes. Interest rate cap agreements and interest rate swap agreements are used to reduce the potential impact of increases in interest rates on variable-rate debt.

The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge (see *Note 15 - Derivatives and Hedging*). This process includes specific identification of the hedging instrument and the hedged transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the hedging instrument s effectiveness in hedging the exposure to the hedged transaction s variability in cash flows attributable to the hedged risk will be assessed. Both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company assesses whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows or fair values of hedged items. The Company discontinues hedge accounting if a derivative is not determined to be highly effective as a hedge or has ceased to be a highly effective hedge.

Share-Based Compensation The Company currently sponsors share option plans and restricted share award plans (see *Note 16 - Share-Based Compensation*). The Company accounts for share based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, *Stock Compensation*, which requires compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the consolidated statements of operations when earned.

G-101

Table of Contents

Revenue Recognition Residential properties are leased under operating leases with terms of generally one year or less. Rental revenues from residential leases are recognized on the straight-line method over the life of the leases, which is generally one year. The recognition of rental revenues from residential leases when earned has historically not been materially different from rental revenues recognized on a straight-line basis.

Under the terms of residential leases, the residents of the Company s communities are obligated to reimburse the Company for certain utility usage, cable, water, electricity and trash, where the Company is the primary obligor to the utility entities. These utility reimbursements from residents are included as *Other property-related revenue* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

Rental income attributable to commercial leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases. Certain commercial leases contain provisions for additional rent based on a percentage of tenant sales. Percentage rents are recognized in the period in which sales thresholds are met. Recoveries from tenants for taxes, insurance, and other property operating expenses are recognized in the period the applicable costs are incurred in accordance with the terms of the related lease.

Sales and the associated gains or losses on real estate assets, condominium conversion projects and for-sale residential projects including developed condominiums are recognized in accordance with ASC 360-20, *Real Estate Sales*. For condominium conversion and for-sale residential projects, sales and the associated gains for individual condominium units are recognized upon the closing of the sale transactions, as all conditions for full profit recognition have been met. The Company uses the relative sales value method to allocate costs and recognize profits from condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales.

Other income received from long-term contracts signed in the normal course of business, including property management and development fee income, is recognized when earned for services provided to third parties, including joint ventures in which the Company owns a noncontrolling interest.

Warranty Reserves Warranty reserves are included in Accrued expenses on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP. Estimated future warranty costs on condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales are charged to cost of sales in the period when the revenues from such sales are recognized. Such estimated warranty costs are approximately 0.5% of total revenue. As necessary, additional warranty costs are charged to costs of sales based on management s estimate of the costs to remediate existing claims. While the Company believes the warranty reserve is adequate as of December 31, 2012, historical data and trends may not accurately predict actual warranty costs, or future development could lead to a significant change in the reserve. The Company s warranty reserves are as follows:

	Years E	Years Ended December 31,		
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	2010	
Balance at beginning of period	\$ 704	\$ 960	\$871	
Accruals for warranties issued	899	63	109	
Payments made	(313)	(319)	(20)	
Balance at end of period	\$ 1,290	\$ 704	\$ 960	

Net Income (Loss) Per Share Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed under the two class method as described in ASC 260, Earnings per Share. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that determines earnings per share for each class of common stock and participating security according to dividends declared and participation rights in undistributed earnings or losses. According to the guidance, the Company has included share-based payment awards that have non-forfeitable rights to dividends prior to vesting as participating securities. Diluted net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period, the dilutive effect of restricted shares issued, and the assumed conversion of all potentially dilutive outstanding share options.

G-102

Table of Contents

Self Insurance Accruals The Company is self-insured up to certain limits for general liability claims, workers compensation claims, property claims and health insurance claims. Amounts are accrued currently for the estimated cost of claims incurred, both reported and unreported.

Loss Contingencies The Company is subject to various claims, disputes and legal proceedings, including those described under Note 20 - Legal Proceedings , the outcomes of which are subject to significant uncertainty. The Company records an accrual for loss contingencies when a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company reviews these accruals quarterly and makes revisions based on changes in facts and circumstances. The Company expenses legal defense costs as incurred. As of December 31, 2012, the Company s loss contingency accrual was \$26.8 million in the aggregate, and is reflected as a component of Accrued expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2012.

Restructuring Charges Restructuring charges reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) relate primarily to one-time termination benefits. The Company recognizes these severance charges when the requirements of ASC 420 have been met regarding a plan of termination and when communication has been made to employees. During 2012, the Company recorded \$1.8 million of restructuring charges related to severance costs associated with the departure of the Company s President and Chief Financial Officer, as well as departures of other management personnel as a result of additional simplification of the Company s operations. During 2011 and 2010, the Company recorded \$0.2 million and \$0.4 million in restructuring charges, respectively.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Segment Reporting The Company reports on its segments in accordance with ASC 280, Segment Reporting, which defines an operating segment as a component of an enterprise that engages in business activities that generate revenues and incur expenses, which operating results are reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in the determination of resource allocation and performance and for which discrete financial information is available. The Company manages its business based on the performance of two separate operating segments: multifamily and commercial.

Noncontrolling Interests and Redeemable Common Units Amounts reported as limited partners interest in consolidated partnerships on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are presented as noncontrolling interests within equity. Additionally, amounts reported as preferred units in CRLP are presented as noncontrolling interests within equity. Noncontrolling interests in common units of CRLP are included in the temporary equity section (between liabilities and equity) of the Consolidated Balance Sheets because of the redemption feature of these units. Each common unit is redeemable at the option of the holder for cash equal to the fair market value of one common share at the time of redemption or, at the option of the Trust, one common share. Based on the requirements of ASC 480-10-S99, the measurement of noncontrolling interests is presented at redemption value i.e., the fair value of the units (or limited partners interests) as of the balance sheet date (based on the Trust s share price multiplied by the number of outstanding units), or the aggregate value of the individual partner s capital balances, whichever is greater. See the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 for the presentation and related activity of the noncontrolling interests and redeemable common units.

Investments in Joint Ventures To the extent that the Company contributes assets to a joint venture, the Company s investment in the joint venture is recorded at the Company s cost basis in the assets that were contributed to the joint venture. To the extent that the Company s cost basis is different from the basis reflected at the joint venture level, the basis difference is amortized over the life of the related assets and included in the

G-103

Company s share of equity in net income of the joint venture. In accordance ASC 323, *Investments Equity Method and Joint Ventures*, the Company recognizes gains on the contribution of real estate to joint ventures, relating solely to the outside partner s interest, to the extent the economic substance of the transaction is a sale. On a periodic basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators that the value of the Company s investments in unconsolidated joint ventures may be impaired. An investment s value is impaired only if management s estimate of the fair value of the investment is less than the carrying value of the investment and such difference is deemed to be other than temporary. To the extent an other than temporary impairment has occurred, the loss shall be measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the investment over the estimated fair value of the investment. During 2012, the Company determined that its 40% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Regents Park (Phase II) was impaired and that this impairment was other than temporary. As a result, the Company recognized a non-cash impairment charge of \$0.4 million during 2012. Other than Regents Park (Phase II) charge in 2012, the Company has determined that these investments were not other than temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Investment and Development Expenses Investment and development expenses consist primarily of costs related to potential mergers, acquisitions, and abandoned development pursuits. Abandoned development costs are costs incurred prior to land acquisition including contract deposits, as well as legal, engineering and other external professional fees related to evaluating the feasibility of such developments. If the Company determines that it is probable that it will not develop a particular project, any related pre-development costs previously incurred are immediately expensed. The Company recorded \$1.3 million, \$1.8 million and \$0.4 million in investment and development expenses in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value The Company applies ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a transaction between willing market participants. Additional disclosures focusing on the methods used to determine fair value are also required using the following hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

The Company applies ASC 820 in relation to the valuation of real estate assets recorded at fair value, to its impairment valuation analysis of real estate assets (see *Note 3 - Real Estate Activity*), to its disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments, which principally consists of indebtedness (see *Note 14 - Financing Activities*), to its disclosure of fair value of derivative financial instruments (see *Note 15 - Derivatives and Hedging*) and to notes receivable (see below). The following table presents the Company's real estate assets and derivative financial instruments reported at fair market value and the related level in the fair value hierarchy as defined by ASC 820 used to measure those assets, liabilities and disclosures:

	Fair value measurements as of			
(\$ in thousands)	December 31, 2012			
Assets (Liabilities)	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3
Real estate assets, including assets held for sale	\$ 43,291	\$	\$	\$ 43,291
Investment in partially-owned entities	\$ 2,460	\$	\$	\$ 2,460
Derivative financial instruments	\$ (25,862)	\$	\$ (25,862)	\$

Real estate assets and investments in partially-owned entities

Real estate assets, including assets held for sale, and investments in partially-owned entities were valued using sales activity for similar assets, current contracts and using inputs management believes are consistent with those that market participants would use. The fair values of these assets are determined using widely accepted

G-104

Table of Contents

valuation techniques, including (i) discounted cash flow analysis, which considers, among other things, units sales assumptions, leasing assumptions, cost structure, growth rates, discount rates and terminal capitalization rates (ii) income capitalization approach, which considers prevailing market capitalization rates and (iii) comparable sales activity, including current offers. The valuation technique and related inputs vary with the specific facts and circumstances of each project.

Derivative financial instruments

Currently, the Company uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk. The valuation of these instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including interest rate curves, foreign exchange rates, and implied volatilities. The fair values of interest rate swaps are determined using the market standard methodology of netting the discounted future fixed cash payments and the discounted expected variable cash receipts. The variable cash receipts are based on an expectation of future interest rates (forward curves) derived from observable market interest rate curves.

To comply with the provisions of ASC 820, the Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty s nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of its derivative contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk, the Company, in conjunction with the FASB s fair value measurement guidance, made an accounting policy election to measure the credit risk of its derivative financial instruments that are subject to master netting agreements on a net basis by counterparty portfolio.

Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with its derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by itself and its counterparties. However, as of December 31, 2012, the Company has assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of its derivative positions and has determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the overall valuation of its derivatives. As a result, the Company has determined that its derivative valuations in their entirety are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Indebtedness

At December 31, 2012, the estimated fair value of fixed rate debt was approximately \$1.73 billion (carrying value of \$1.63 billion) and the estimated fair value of the Company s variable rate debt, including the Company s unsecured credit facility, is consistent with the carrying value of \$201.1 million. The Company has determined that the fair value of its fixed and variable rate debt is classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Notes receivable

The estimated fair value of the Company s notes receivable at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was consistent with the carrying values of approximately \$42.4 million and \$43.8 million, respectively, based on market rates and similar financing arrangements after giving consideration to the credit standing of the borrowers. The Company has determined that the fair value of its notes receivable is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The disclosure of estimated fair values was determined by management using available market information, considering market participant assumptions and appropriate valuation methodologies available to management at December 31, 2012. Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develop estimated fair value. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the estimates presented above are indicative of the amounts the Company could realize on disposition of the real estate assets or financial instruments. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies could have material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

G-105

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, and update to ASC 220, Comprehensive Income. ASU 2013-02 was issued to improve the reporting of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income. The amendments in this update seek to attain that objective by requiring an entity to report the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income on the respective line items in net income if the amount being reclassified is required under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles GAAP to be reclassified in its entirety to net income. For other amounts that are not required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net income in the same reporting period, an entity is required to cross-reference other disclosures required under U.S. GAAP that provide additional detail about those amounts. This would be the case when a portion of the amount reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income is reclassified to a balance sheet account instead of directly to income or expense in the same reporting period. ASU 2013-02 will become effective for the fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2012. The Company does not foresee the adoption of ASU 2013-02 to have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

Note 3 Real Estate Activity

Acquisition Activity

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company acquired the following multifamily apartment communities:

Acquisitions	Location	Units	Effective Acquisition Date	nase Price
Colonial Reserve at Las Colinas	Dallas, TX	306	November 20, 2012	\$ 42.8
Colonial Grand at Canyon Ranch	Austin, TX	272	November 13, 2012	24.5
Colonial Grand at Research Park	Raleigh, NC	370	October 1, 2012	38.0
Colonial Grand at Fairview (1)	Dallas, TX	256	May 30, 2012	29.8
Colonial Grand at Brier Falls	Raleigh, NC	350	January 10, 2012	45.0
Colonial Grand at Hebron	Dallas, TX	312	November 8, 2011	34.1
Colonial Grand at Commerce Park	Charleston, SC	312	September 20, 2011	30.9
Colonial Reserve at Medical District	Dallas, TX	278	September 1, 2011	33.0
Colonial Village at Beaver Creek	Raleigh, NC	316	August 2, 2011	26.4
Colonial Grand at Traditions	Gulf Shores, AL	324	June 17, 2011	17.6
Colonial Grand at Palm Vista (2)	Las Vegas, NV	341	March 14, 2011	40.9
Colonial Grand at Cornelius	Charlotte, NC	236	February 28, 2011	23.6
Colonial Grand at Wells Branch	Austin, TX	336	February 24, 2011	28.4
Colonial Grand at Brier Creek	Raleigh, NC	364	October 22, 2010	37.9
Colonial Grand at Riverchase Trails (3)	Birmingham, AL	345	June 30, 2010	24.6
Total		4,718		\$ 477.5

G-106

⁽¹⁾ Prior to the acquisition, the Company owned a 20% noncontrolling interest in the joint venture that owned the property. See Note 13 - Investment in Partially-Owned Entities .

⁽²⁾ The Company acquired the property through foreclosure on August 1, 2011. For additional information regarding the status of ongoing litigation between the Company and its joint venture partner involving this property, see Note 20 - Legal Proceedings.

⁽³⁾ The Company acquired ownership in this asset through a joint venture transaction. See Note 13 - Investment in Partially-Owned Entities for additional details regarding this transaction.

The results of operations of the above mentioned acquisitions have been included in the consolidated financial statements since each date of acquisition or, in the case of Colonial Grand at Traditions, since the date of consolidation. These transactions were funded by proceeds received from shares issued under the Trust s at-the-market continuous equity offering programs, proceeds received from asset dispositions, as discussed below, and borrowings on the Company s unsecured credit facility. The cash paid to acquire these properties is included in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the Trust and CRLP. For properties acquired, assets were recorded at fair value based on an independent third party appraisal or internal models using assumptions consistent with those made by other market participants. The property acquisitions during 2012, 2011 and 2010 are comprised of the following:

(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	2010
Assets purchased:			
Land, buildings and equipment	\$ 177,505	\$ 230,823	\$ 61,285
In-place lease intangibles	2,610	3,954	1,059
Total assets purchased	180,115	234,777	62,344
Notes and mortgages assumed			$(19,300)_{(1)}$
			(1)
Total consideration	\$ 180,115	\$ 234,777	\$ 43,044

(1) See Note 13 - Investment in Partially-Owned Entities regarding additional details for this transaction.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, gives effect to the above operating property acquisitions, including the consolidation of Colonial Grand at Traditions, as if they had occurred at the beginning of the periods presented. The information for the year in which a property was acquired/consolidated includes pro forma results for the portion of the period prior to the acquisition/consolidation date and actual results from the date of acquisition/consolidation through the end of the year. The pro forma results are not intended to be indicative of the results of future operations.

	** Pro Forma (Unaudited) **			
	Years Ended December 31,			
(\$ in thousands, except per share data)	2012	2011	2010	
Total revenue	\$ 403,768	\$ 382,417	\$ 353,175	
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders	\$ 6,935	\$ 1,105	\$ (49,379)	
Net income (loss) per common share dilutive	\$ 0.07	\$ 0.01	\$ (0.69)	

Disposition Activity - Continuing Operations

In July 2012, the Company sold 53,000 square feet at Colonial Promenade Tannehill, a 234,000 square-foot (excluding anchor-owned square footage) commercial asset located in Birmingham, Alabama, for a sales price of \$5.6 million.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company sold various consolidated parcels of land for an aggregate sales price of \$4.3 million, \$6.0 million, and \$17.2 million, respectively, which were used to repay a portion of the borrowings under the Company s unsecured credit facility and for general corporate purposes.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010 the Company also sold its interest in various multifamily and commercial joint ventures. See *Note 13 - Investment in Partially-Owned Entities* for additional details regarding these transactions.

G-107

Disposition Activity - Discontinued Operations

Net income/(loss) and gain/(loss) on disposition of real estate for properties sold in which the Company does not maintain continuing involvement are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP as *Discontinued Operations* for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. Following is a listing of the properties the Company disposed of in 2012, 2011 and 2010, which are classified as discontinued operations:

		Units/ Sq. Feet	Effective		
Dispositions	Location	(1)	Disposal Date		es Price
Multifamily Properties				,	ĺ
Autumn Hill	Charlottesville, VA	425	December 20, 2012	\$	32.0
Colonial Village at Canyon Hills	Austin, TX	229	December 20, 2012		16.9
Colonial Village at Highland Hills	Raleigh, NC	250	December 20, 2012		17.8
Heatherwood	Charlotte, NC	476	December 20, 2012		28.8
Brookfield	Dallas/Ft. Worth, TX	232	September 27, 2011		9.5
Colonial Grand at McGinnis Ferry	Atlanta, GA	434	September 27, 2011		39.0
Colonial Grand at Sugarloaf	Atlanta, GA	250	September 27, 2011		22.5
Colonial Village at Meadow Creek	Charlotte, NC	250	September 27, 2011		13.6
Paces Cove	Dallas/Ft. Worth, TX	328	September 27, 2011		12.5
Summer Tree	Dallas/Ft. Worth, TX	232	September 27, 2011		8.7
Commercial Properties					
Colonial Promenade Alabaster	Birmingham, AL	219,000	October 24, 2012		37.4
Colonial Center Town Park 400	Orlando, FL	176,000	November 10, 2011		23.9
Brookwood Village Center	Birmingham, AL	88,000	September 23, 2011		8.0
Total				\$	270.6

G-108

⁽¹⁾ Units refer to multifamily apartment units. Square feet refers to commercial space and excludes space owned by anchor tenants. The proceeds from the sales of these assets were used to fund the acquisitions of multifamily apartment communities discussed above, as well as to repay a portion of the borrowings under the Company s unsecured credit facility. In some cases, the Company uses disposition proceeds to fund investment activities through tax-deferred exchanges under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. Of the proceeds received from the sale of assets described above, \$28.9 million remains in temporary restricted cash accounts pending the fulfillment of Section 1031 exchange requirements.

Below is a summary of the operations of the properties classified as discontinued operations during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

	Years Ended December 31,			
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	2010	
Property revenues:				
Minimum rent	\$ 23,614	\$ 32,915	\$ 35,495	
Tenant recoveries	1,749	1,608	1,605	
Other revenue	3,288	5,650	5,826	
Total revenues	28,651	40,173	42,926	
Property expenses:				
Property operating and administrative expense	11,140	17,051	19,733	
Depreciation	5,930	14,314	15,898	
Amortization	335	1,112	2,124	
Total operating expenses	17,405	32,477	37,755	
Interest income (expense), net	12	(1,111)	(1,445)	
Debt cost amortization		(20)	(27)	
Income from discontinued operations before net gain (loss) on	44.050		2 (00	
disposition of discontinued operations	11,258	6,565	3,699	
Net gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operations, net of income			(205)	
taxes	22,729	23,733	(395)	
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP from discontinued operations	(2,555)	(2,387)	(314)	
Noncontrolling interest to limited partners			(4)	
Income from discontinued operations attributable to parent company	\$ 31,432	\$ 27.911	\$ 2.986	
mediae from discontinued operations attributable to parent company	φ 31,434	\$ 41,711	φ 4,700	

Held for Sale

The Company classifies real estate assets as held for sale only after the Company has received approval by the Board of Trustees investment committee, has commenced an active program to sell the assets, does not intend to retain a continuing interest in the property and in the opinion of the Company s management, it is probable the assets will sell within the next 12 months.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had classified one multifamily apartment community, two commercial assets, two for-sale developments and three outparcels/pads as held for sale. These real estate assets are reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP at \$93.5 million as of December 31, 2012, which represents the lower of depreciated cost or fair value less costs to sell. There was no mortgage debt associated with these properties as of December 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had two for-sale developments classified as held for sale. These real estate assets are reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP at \$10.5 million at December 31, 2011, which represents the lower of depreciated cost or fair value less costs to sell. There was no mortgage debt associated with these properties as of December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, there were no operating properties classified as held for sale.

G-109

Table of Contents

For-Sale Activities

The total number of units sold for condominium conversion properties, for-sale residential units and lots for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

	2012	2011	2010
For-sale residential units	8	11	28
Residential lots	1		

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company received total proceeds of \$4.9 million, \$5.1 million and \$9.3 million, respectively, related to the sale of for-sale residential units and lots. These dispositions eliminate the operating expenses and costs to carry the associated units/lots. The Company s portion of the proceeds from the sales was used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings on the Company s unsecured credit facility. The Company recognized immaterial gains/losses on for sale residential sales in 2012, 2011 and 2010.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had five for-sale residential units and 39 single-family lots remaining. These units/lots, valued at \$5.9 million in the aggregate, are reflected in *Real estate assets held for sale, net* on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP at December 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had \$10.1 million of completed for-sale residential projects classified as held for sale.

For cash flow statement purposes, the Company classifies capital expenditures for newly developed for-sale residential communities in investing activities. Likewise, the proceeds from the sales of condominium units and other residential sales are also included in investing activities.

Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses

During 2012, the Company recorded impairment charges, legal contingencies and other losses totaling \$26.0 million. Included in the \$26.0 million is a \$12.7 million charge related to certain ongoing litigation regarding Colonial Grand at Traditions (see *Note 20 - Legal Proceedings*) and \$8.2 million of charges (a \$4.9 million increase in loss contingency accrual and a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge on for-sale residential lots) related to a proposed settlement with respect to the UCO litigation (see *Note 20 - Legal Proceedings*). In addition, the Company recorded a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge on one of its commercial assets, a \$0.9 million charge related to warranty claims on for-sale residential units previously sold, a \$0.4 million non-cash impairment charge related to a joint venture investment consisting of undeveloped land and a \$0.5 million casualty loss due to property damage caused by a fire at one of the Company s multifamily apartment communities.

During 2011, the Company recorded impairment charges, legal contingencies and other losses totaling \$5.7 million. The \$5.7 million was comprised of \$4.8 million in loss contingencies related to certain on-going litigation (see *Note 20 - Legal Proceedings*), \$0.7 million of casualty losses and \$0.2 million of other non-cash impairment charges. The \$0.7 million of casualty losses were due to fire and weather-related structural damage at eight of the Company s multifamily apartment communities. Of the other non-cash impairment charges, \$0.1 million was related to sales of various for-sale residential units and \$0.1 million was related to the sale of land outparcels. These charges are included in *Impairment*, *legal contingencies and other losses* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP for the years ended December 31, 2011.

During 2010, the Company recorded non-cash impairment charges totaling \$1.3 million. Of the \$1.3 million, \$1.0 million relates to casualty losses resulting from fire and weather-related structural damage at four of the Company s multifamily apartment communities and the remaining \$0.3 million relates to sales of various for-sale residential units. These charges are included in *Impairment*, *legal contingencies and other losses* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP for the years ended December 31, 2010.

G-110

The Company s determination of fair value is based on inputs management believes are consistent with those that market participants would use. The Company estimates the fair value of each property and development project evaluated for impairment based on current market conditions and assumptions made by management, which may differ materially from actual results if market conditions continue to deteriorate or improve. The fair value of these assets are determined using widely accepted valuation techniques, including (i) discounted cash flow analysis, which considers, among other things, unit sales assumptions, leasing assumptions, cost structure, growth rates, discount rates and terminal capitalization rates, (ii) income capitalization approach, which considers prevailing market capitalization rates and (iii) comparable sales activity. The Company will continue to monitor the specific facts and circumstances at the Company s for-sale properties and development projects. Existing economic and market uncertainties may impact the number of projects the Company can sell, the timing of the sales and/or the prices at which the Company can sell them in future periods, and may result in additional impairment charges in connection with sales. If the Company is unable to sell projects, the Company may incur additional impairment charges on projects previously impaired as well as on projects not currently impaired but for which indicators of impairment may exist, which would decrease the value of the Company s assets as reflected on the balance sheet and adversely affect net income and equity. There can be no assurances of the amount or pace of future property sales and closings, particularly given current economic and market conditions.

Note 4 Land, Buildings and Equipment

Land, buildings and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011
Land	\$ 437,094	\$ 417,463
Depreciable property:		
Buildings and improvements	2,855,123	2,849,427
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	197,107	178,565
Undeveloped land and construction in progress	296,153	306,826
	3,785,477	3,752,281
Accumulated depreciation	(804,964)	(731,894)
•		
	2,980,513	3,020,387
Real estate assets held for sale, net	93,450	10,543
Net real estate assets	\$ 3,073,963	\$ 3,030,930

Note 5 Undeveloped Land and Construction in Progress

During 2012, the Company completed the development of Colonial Grand at Hampton Preserve and Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase I), adding 718 apartment units to the Company s multifamily portfolio. Additionally, the Company completed the infrastructure of Colonial Promenade Huntsville, a commercial development located in Huntsville, Alabama. Project development costs for these completed developments (as outlined in the table below) were funded primarily through borrowings on the Company s unsecured credit facility and sales of certain commercial properties. At December 31, 2012, the Company had six active development projects, as outlined in the table below. In addition, the Company owns approximately \$207.4 million of undeveloped land parcels that are held for future developments. Of the future developments listed below, the Company expects to initiate development of at least four multifamily apartment communities during 2013. Although the Company believes that it is probable that it will develop certain of the other projects in the future as market conditions dictate, there can be no assurance that the Company will pursue any of these particular future development projects.

G-111

Similar Signatur	Table of Contents				
Sim thousands Campited Developments Campited Developments Colonial Grand at Hampton Preserve Tampa, FL 486 \$ 5.2,24 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$					
Completed Developments:	(\$ in thousands)	Location	(1) (un qudited)		to Date
Multifamily: Colonial Grand at Hampton Preserve Tampa, FL 486 \$ 5.2,24			(инананеа)		
Colonial Grand at Hampion Preserve Tampa, FL 2486 \$ 5.2,244					
Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase I)		Tampa, FL	486	\$	52,244
Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase I)					
Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase D 22) Huntsville, AL \$ 4,116	• ` '	,			
Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase I)			718		77,946
Total Completed Developments					
Active Developments:	Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase I) (2)	Huntsville, AL		\$	4,116
Multifamily: Charlotte, NC S1 \$ 3,454	Total Completed Developments			\$	82,062
Multifamily: Charlotte, NC S1 \$ 3,454 Colonial Grand at Ayrsley (Phase II) Orlando, FL 108 11,362 Colonial Grand at Double Creek Austin, TX 296 27,297 Colonial Grand at Double Creek Austin, TX 296 27,297 Colonial Grand at Randal Lakes Orlando, FL 462 19,579 Colonial Reserve at South End Charlotte, NC 353 26,133	Active Developments:				
Colonial Grand at Ayrsley (Phase II) Charlotte, NC 81 \$ 3,454 Colonial Grand at Double Creek	•				
Colonial Grand at Duble Creek Austin, TX 296 27,297 Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase II) Orlando, FL 108 11,382 Colonial Grand at Randal Lakes Orlando, FL 462 19,579 Colonial Reserve at South End Charlotte, NC 353 26,133 26,133		Charlotte, NC	81	\$	3,454
Colonial Grand at Randal Lakes Orlando, FL 462 19,579 Colonial Reserve at South End Charlotte, NC 353 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26,133 26			296		
Colonial Reserve at South End Charlotte, NC 353 26,133	Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase II)		108		
Commercial: Brookwood West Retail		Orlando, FL	462		19,579
Commercial: Birmingham, AL 41,300 \$ 914	Colonial Reserve at South End	Charlotte, NC	353		26,133
Birmingham, AL 41,300 \$ 914			1,300	\$	87,845
Future Developments: Multifamily: Sanda at Bellevue (Phase II) Orlando, FL 132 1,851 Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase III) Orlando, FL 314 6,232 Colonial Grand at Thunderbird Phoenix, AZ 244 8,042 Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Phoenix, AZ 1915 7,240 Colonial Grand at Azure Las Vegas, NV 438 10,575		5	44 200	ф	014
Future Developments: Multifamily: Colonial Grand at Bellevue (Phase II) Nashville, TN 220 \$ 3,701	Brookwood West Retail	Birmingham, AL	41,300	\$	914
Multifamily: Colonial Grand at Bellevue (Phase II) Nashville, TN 220 \$ 3,701 Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase III) Orlando, FL 132 1,851 Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase III) Orlando, FL 314 6,232 Colonial Grand at Randal Park Orlando, FL 314 6,232 Colonial Grand at Thunderbird Phoenix, AZ 244 8,042 Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Phoenix, AZ 195 7,240 Colonial Grand at Azure Las Vegas, NV 438 10,575 Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Huntsville, AL \$ 5,215 Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac Covington, LA 236,000 25,634 Randal Park Orlando, FL 10,996 Other Undeveloped Land: Multifamily \$ 1,496 Commercial \$ 42,095 Commercial Outparcels/Pads 17,629 For Sels Residential Land 66,688	Total Active Developments			\$	88,759
Multifamily: Colonial Grand at Bellevue (Phase II) Nashville, TN 220 \$ 3,701 Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase III) Orlando, FL 132 1,851 Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase III) Orlando, FL 314 6,232 Colonial Grand at Randal Park Orlando, FL 314 6,232 Colonial Grand at Thunderbird Phoenix, AZ 244 8,042 Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Phoenix, AZ 195 7,240 Colonial Grand at Azure Las Vegas, NV 438 10,575 Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Huntsville, AL \$ 5,215 Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac Covington, LA 236,000 25,634 Randal Park Orlando, FL 10,996 Other Undeveloped Land: Multifamily \$ 1,496 Commercial \$ 42,095 Commercial Outparcels/Pads 17,629 For Sels Residential Land 66,688	Future Developments:				
Colonial Grand at Bellevue (Phase II) Nashville, TN 220 \$ 3,701					
Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase III)		Nashville, TN	220	\$	3,701
Colonial Grand at Randal Park Orlando, FL 314 6,232 Colonial Grand at Thunderbird Phoenix, AZ 244 8,042 Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Phoenix, AZ 195 7,240 Colonial Grand at Azure Las Vegas, NV 438 10,575 Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Huntsville, AL \$ 5,215 Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac Covington, LA 236,000 25,634 Randal Park Orlando, FL 10,996 Commercial Outpaceloped Land: Multifamily \$ 1,496 Commercial Outpacels/Pads 17,629 For Sale Regidential Land 66,688	Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase III)		132		1,851
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater		Orlando, FL	314		6,232
Colonial Grand at Azure	Colonial Grand at Thunderbird	Phoenix, AZ	244		8,042
Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II)	Colonial Grand at Sweetwater		195		7,240
Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Huntsville, AL \$ 5,215 Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac Covington, LA 236,000 25,634 Randal Park Orlando, FL 10,996 Cother Undeveloped Land: Multifamily \$ 1,496 Commercial 42,095 Commercial Outparcels/Pads 17,629 For-Sale Residential Land 66,688	Colonial Grand at Azure	Las Vegas, NV	438		10,575
Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac Covington, LA Covingt			1,543	\$	37,641
Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac Randal Park Covington, LA 236,000 25,634 Rordal Park Orlando, FL 10,996 Cother Undeveloped Land: Multifamily Commercial Commercial Commercial Outparcels/Pads For-Sale Residential Land 66,688					
Randal Park Orlando, FL 10,996 236,000 \$ 41,845 Other Undeveloped Land: Multifamily \$ 1,496 Commercial 42,095 Commercial Outparcels/Pads 17,629 For-Sale Residential Land 66,688	Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II)	Huntsville, AL		\$	5,215
Randal Park Orlando, FL 10,996 236,000 \$ 41,845 Other Undeveloped Land: Multifamily \$ 1,496 Commercial 42,095 Commercial Outparcels/Pads 17,629 For-Sale Residential Land 66,688	Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac	Covington, LA	236,000		25,634
Other Undeveloped Land: Multifamily \$ 1,496 Commercial 42,095 Commercial Outparcels/Pads 17,629 For-Sale Residential Land 66,688	Randal Park	Orlando, FL			10,996
Multifamily Commercial Commercial Outparcels/Pads For-Sale Residential Land 66 688			236,000	\$	41,845
Multifamily Commercial Commercial Outparcels/Pads For-Sale Residential Land 66 688	Other Undeveloped Land				
Commercial 42,095 Commercial Outparcels/Pads 17,629 For-Sale Residential Land 66,688				\$	1 496
Commercial Outparcels/Pads 17,629 For-Sale Residential Land 66,688				Ψ	
For-Sale Residential Land					
	-				

	\$ 127,908
Total Future Developments	\$ 207,394
Consolidated Undeveloped Land and Construction in Progress	\$ 296,153

G-112

- (1) Units refer to multifamily apartment units. Square feet refers to commercial space and excludes space owned by anchor tenants.
- (2) Development costs for this project are net of reimbursements received from the shadow-anchor.
- (3) The Company intends to develop this project in phases over time. Costs capitalized to date for this development are presented net of an aggregate \$18.1 million of non-cash impairment charges recorded during 2009 and 2008.
- (4) These costs are presented net of \$27.9 million of non-cash impairment charges recorded on two of the projects in 2012, 2009, 2008 and 2007. Of these charges \$3.3 million were recorded during 2012.

Interest capitalized on construction in progress during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$1.2 million, \$0.4 million and \$1.2 million, respectively.

Note 6 Net Loss Per Share of the Trust

For the years ended 2012, 2011 and 2010, a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the basic and diluted loss from continuing operations per common share of the Trust is as follows:

	Years Ended December 31,		
(in thousands)	2012	2011	2010
Numerator:			
Net income (loss) attributable to parent company	\$ 8,160	\$ 2,247	\$ (40,537)
Adjusted by:			
Preferred stock dividends			(5,649)
Income from discontinued operations	(31,432)	(27,911)	(2,986)
Income allocated to participating securities	(529)	(402)	(373)
Preferred unit repurchase gains		2,500	3,000
Preferred share/unit issuance costs write-off		(1,319)	(4,868)
Loss from continuing operations available to common shareholders	\$ (23,801)	\$ (24,885)	\$ (51,413)
Denominator:			
Denominator for basic net loss per share weighted average common			
shares	87,251	84,142	71,919
Effect of dilutive securities			
Denominator for diluted net loss per share adjusted weighted average			
common shares	87,251	84,142	71,919

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Trust reported a net loss from continuing operations (after preferred dividends), and as such, dilutive share equivalents have been excluded from per share computations because including such shares would be anti-dilutive. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2011, 285,064, 225,163 and 55,802 dilutive share equivalents, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 696,749, 994,118 and 1,001,237 outstanding share options, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share because the grant date prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive.

G-113

Note 7 Net Loss Per Unit of CRLP

For the years ended 2012, 2011 and 2010, a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the basic and diluted loss from continuing operations per common unit of CRLP is as follows:

	Years Ended December 31,		
(in thousands)	2012	2011	2010
Numerator:			
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (29,267)	\$ (24,119)	\$ (41,847)
Adjusted by:			
Income allocated to participating securities	(529)	(402)	(373)
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners - continuing operations	(43)	(53)	103
Distributions to limited partner preferred unitholders		(3,586)	(7,161)
Distributions to general partner preferred unitholders			(5,649)
Preferred unit repurchase gains		2,500	3,000
Preferred unit issuance costs		(1,319)	(4,868)
Loss from continuing operations available to common unitholders	\$ (29,839)	\$ (26,979)	\$ (56,795)
Denominator:			
Denominator for basic net loss per unit weighted average common units Effect of dilutive securities	94,410	91,389	79,536
Denominator for diluted net loss per unit adjusted weighted average common units	94,410	91,389	79,536

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, CRLP reported a net loss from continuing operations (after preferred dividends), and as such, dilutive unit equivalents have been excluded from per unit computations because including such units would be anti-dilutive. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 285,064, 225,163 and 55,802 dilutive unit equivalents, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per unit. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 696,749, 994,118 and 1,001,237 outstanding unit options, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per unit because the grant date prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares/units and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive.

Note 8 Equity of the Trust

Ownership of the Trust is maintained through common shares of beneficial interest (the preferred shares) and noncontrolling interest in CRLP (the units). Common shareholders represent public equity owners and common unitholders represent noncontrolling interest owners. Each unit may be redeemed for either one common share or, at the option of the Trust, cash equal to the fair market value of a common share at the time of redemption. When a common unitholder redeems a unit for a common share or cash, noncontrolling interest is reduced. In addition, the Company has acquired properties since its formation by issuing distribution paying and non-distribution paying units. The non-distribution paying units convert to distribution paying units at various dates subsequent to their original issuance. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, 7,152,752 and 7,169,388 units of CRLP were outstanding, respectively, excluding units held by the Trust, all of which were distribution paying units.

G-114

The following table presents the changes in the issued common shares of beneficial interest of the Trust since December 31, 2011 (but excluding 7,152,752 and 7,169,388 units of CRLP at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively, each of which is redeemable for either cash equal to the fair market value of a common share at the time of redemption or, at the option of the Trust, one common share):

Issued at December 31, 2011	93,096,722
Common shares issued through dividend reinvestments	341,131
Restricted shares issued (cancelled), net	273,628
Redemption of CRLP units for common shares	16,636
Issuances under other employee and nonemployee share plans	107,677
Issued at December 31, 2012	93,835,794

(1) Includes 5,623,150 treasury shares.

Equity Offerings

In 2010 and 2011, the Trust completed the following offerings of its common shares under four separate continuous at-the-market equity offering programs, each of which was fully exhausted as of December 31, 2011:

(\$ in thousands, except per share amounts)

					ghted Avg		
		Amount			nce Price	Net	Proceeds
	Issuance Authorized	Authorized	Shares Issued	Pe	r Share		(1)
2010	February 2010	\$ 50,000	3,602,348	\$	13.88	\$	48,999
	July 2010	100,000	6,329,026		15.80		98,990
	December 2010	100,000	462,500		18.06		8,185
	2010 Total		10,393,874	\$	15.24	\$	156,174
2011	December 2010	\$ 100,000	4,788,525	\$	19.14	\$	89,813
	May 2011	75,000	3,628,321		20.67		73,873
	2011 Total		8,416,846	\$	19.80	\$	163,686

⁽¹⁾ Amounts are shown net of underwriting discounts, but excludes \$0.3 million of one-time administrative expenses paid by the Company during each of the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

The net proceeds resulting from the equity offerings were used to redeem all of the Trust soutstanding Series D Preferred Depositary Shares and to repurchase one-half of CRLP soutstanding Series B Preferred Units during 2010; to partially fund three of the multifamily property acquisitions and the purchase of the Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture mortgage loan during 2011 (see Note 3 - Real Estate Activity - Acquisition Activity); to pay down a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Company source credit facility and to fund other general corporate purposes.

Repurchases/Redemption of Series D Preferred Depositary Shares

In April 2003, the Trust issued 5,000,000 depositary shares (the Series D Preferred Depositary Shares), each representing 1/10 of a share of 8.125% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest, par value \$0.01 per share. During 2010, the Trust redeemed all of the remaining outstanding 4,004,735

G-115

Table of Contents

Series D Preferred Depositary Shares, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends, in open market (or privately negotiated) transactions for an aggregate redemption price per share of \$25.2257, or \$100.1 million in the aggregate. As a result of this redemption, the Company recorded a charge of approximately \$3.6 million related to the original preferred share issuance costs.

Partially-Owned Properties

The Company reflects noncontrolling interests in partially-owned properties on the balance sheet as a component of equity for the portion of properties consolidated by the Company that are not wholly-owned by the Company. The earnings or losses from those properties attributable to the noncontrolling interests are reflected as *Noncontrolling interest of limited partners* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). Allocation of income or loss for these properties vary depending on the underlying operating agreements of the joint venture.

Note 9 Capital Structure of CRLP

Issuances of Common Units

Pursuant to the CRLP partnership agreement, each time the Trust issues common shares, CRLP issues to the Trust an equal number of units for the same price at which the common shares were sold. As described in *Note 8 - Equity of the Trust*, during the year ended December 31, 2011, the Trust issued 8,416,846 common shares, generating proceeds of approximately \$163.7 million, net of underwriting discounts, at an average price of \$19.80 per share, under its continuous at-the-market equity offering programs. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Trust issued 10,393,874 common shares, generating proceeds of approximately \$156.2 million, net of underwriting discounts, at an average price of \$15.24 per share, under its continuous at-the-market equity offering programs. Accordingly, CRLP issued 8,416,846 common units, at a weighted average issue price of \$19.80 per unit, to the Trust during 2011 and 10,393,874 common units, at a weighted average issue price of \$15.24 per unit, to the Trust during 2010.

Repurchase of Series B Preferred Units

In February 1999, CRLP issued 2.0 million units of \$50 par value 8.875% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Units (the Series B Preferred Units), valued at \$100.0 million in a private placement, net of offering costs of \$2.6 million. On February 18, 2004, CRLP modified the terms of the Series B Preferred Units. Under the modified terms, the Series B Preferred Units bore a distribution rate of 7.25% and were redeemable at the option of CRLP, in whole or in part, after February 24, 2009, at the cost of the original capital contribution plus the cumulative priority return, whether or not declared. The terms of the Series B Preferred Units were further modified on March 14, 2005 to extend the redemption date from February 24, 2009 to August 24, 2009. The Series B Preferred Units were exchangeable for 7.25% Series B Preferred Shares of the Trust, in whole or in part at anytime on or after January 1, 2014, at the option of the holders.

During December 2010, CRLP repurchased 1.0 million of its outstanding 7.25% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Units (the Series B Preferred Units) from the existing holders for \$47.0 million, plus accrued but unpaid dividends, which represented a 6% discount to the original issuance price and resulted in a gain of \$3.0 million. The Series B Preferred Units were originally issued in a private placement in February 1999. As a result of the repurchase, during 2010, CRLP wrote off \$1.3 million related to the original preferred unit issuance costs. During December 2011, CRLP repurchased the remaining 1.0 million of the outstanding Series B Preferred Units from the existing holders for \$47.5 million, plus accrued but unpaid dividends, which represented a 5% discount to the original issuance price and resulted in a gain of \$2.5 million. As a result of the repurchase, during 2011, CRLP wrote off \$1.3 million related to the original preferred unit issuance costs.

G-116

Table of Contents

Repurchases/Redemption of Series D Preferred Units

During 2010, in connection with the Trust s redemption of all of the outstanding 4,004,735 Series D Preferred Shares, CRLP repurchased from the Trust all of the corresponding Series D Preferred Units of CRLP for the same price at which the Trust redeemed the Series D Preferred Shares, \$25.2257 per Series D Preferred Depositary Unit, or \$100.1 million in the aggregate.

Note 10 Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests of the Trust

Redeemable noncontrolling interests Common units, as presented on the Trust s consolidated balance sheets, represent the limited partner interests in CRLP held by individuals and entities other than the Trust, at the greater of the closing market price of the Trust s common shares or the aggregate value of the individual partners capital balances, as of the applicable date. At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the value of these redeemable noncontrolling interests was \$162.1 million and \$159.6 million, respectively, based on the closing price of the Trust s common shares of \$21.37 and \$20.86, respectively, on those dates.

Each common unit may be redeemed by the holder thereof for either cash equal to the fair market value of one common share of the Trust at the time of such redemption or, at the option of the Trust, one common share of the Trust. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, holders redeemed 16,636 and 130,142 units, respectively, in exchange for an equal number of the Trust s common shares.

Note 11 Redeemable Partnership Units of CRLP

Redeemable units, as presented on CRLP s consolidated balance sheets, represent the limited partner interests in CRLP held by individuals and entities other than the Trust, valued at the greater of the closing market price of the Trust s common shares or the aggregate value of the individual partners capital balances, as of the applicable date. At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the value of the redeemable units was \$162.1 million and \$159.6 million, respectively, based on the closing price of the Trust s common shares of \$21.37 and \$20.86, respectively, on those dates.

Holders of common units are entitled to receive distributions in a per unit amount equal to the per share dividends made with respect to each share of the Trust s common shares, if and when the Board of Trustees of the Trust declares such a dividend. Each common unit may be redeemed by the holder thereof for either cash equal to the fair market value of one common share of the Trust at the time of such redemption or, at the option of the Trust, one common share of the Trust. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, holders redeemed 16,636 and 130,142 units, respectively, in exchange for an equal number of the Trust s common shares.

Operating Partnership

Net income is allocated to noncontrolling interests based on their respective ownership percentage of the Operating Partnership. The ownership percentage is calculated by dividing the number of operating partnership units held by the noncontrolling interests by the total operating partnership units held by the noncontrolling interests and the Trust. Issuance of additional Common Shares changes the ownership interests of both the noncontrolling interests and the Trust.

Note 12 Segment Information

The Company currently manages its business based on the performance of two operating segments: multifamily and commercial. The multifamily and commercial segments have separate management teams that are responsible for acquiring, developing, managing and leasing properties within each respective segment.

G-117

Multifamily management is responsible for all aspects of the Company s multifamily property operations, including the management and leasing services for 114 multifamily apartment communities, as well as third-party management services for multifamily apartment communities in which the Company does not have an ownership interest. Additionally, the multifamily management team is responsible for all aspects of for-sale developments, including disposition activities. The multifamily segment includes the operations and assets of the for-sale developments due to the insignificance of these operations in the periods presented. Commercial management is responsible for all aspects of the Company s commercial property operations, including the management and leasing services for 11 commercial properties, as well as third-party management services for a commercial property in which the Company does not have an ownership interest and for brokerage services in other commercial property transactions.

The pro-rata portion of the revenues and net operating income (NOI) of the partially-owned unconsolidated entities in which the Company has an interest are included in the applicable segment information. Additionally, the revenues and NOI of properties sold that are classified as discontinued operations are also included in the applicable segment information. In reconciling the segment information presented below to total revenues, income/loss from continuing operations and total assets, investments in partially-owned unconsolidated entities are eliminated as equity investments and discontinued operations are reported separately. Management evaluates the performance of its multifamily and commercial segments and allocates resources to them based on segment NOI. Segment NOI is defined as total property revenues (including minimum rent and other property-related revenue) less total property operating expenses (including such items as general and administrative expenses, on-site payroll, repairs and maintenance, real estate taxes, insurance and advertising) and includes revenues/expenses from unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures.

Presented below is segment information for the multifamily and commercial segments including the reconciliation of total segment revenues to total revenues and total segment NOI to income/loss from continuing operations before noncontrolling interest for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. For purposes of the following table, Multifamily - Same-Property includes all consolidated multifamily properties continuously owned since January 1, 2011. Same-property communities may be adjusted during the year to account for disposition activity.

	Years Ended	December 31,
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011
Revenues:		
Segment revenues:		
Multifamily - Same Property (1)	\$ 310,859	\$ 294,800
Multifamily - Other (2)	56,771	41,247
Total multifamily	367,630	336,047
Commercial	62,084	77,850
Total segment revenues	429,714	413,897
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Multifamily	(1,731)	(2,336)
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Commercial	(11,500)	(26,046)
Other non-property related revenue	5,712	8,047
Discontinued operations property revenue	(28,651)	(40,173)
Total consolidated revenues	\$ 393,544	\$ 353,389

G-118

(\$ in thousands)	Years Ended I 2012	December 31, 2011
NOI:		
Segment NOI:		
Multifamily - Same Property	\$ 188,869	\$ 175,553
Multifamily - Other (2)	31,067	20,491
Total multifamily	219,936	196,044
Commercial	41,601	52,774
Total segment NOI	261,537	248,818
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Multifamily	(924)	(1,183)
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Commercial	(7,340)	(17,318)
Other non-property related revenue	5,712	8,047
Discontinued operations property NOI	(17,511)	(23,122)
Property management expense	(12,858)	(9,185)
General and administrative expense	(22,615)	(20,439)
Management fees and other expenses	(6,298)	(8,067)
Restructuring charges	(1,848)	(153)
Investment and development expenses	(1,285)	(1,781)
Depreciation (3)	(120,993)	(113,475)
Amortization	(6,122)	(7,446)
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses (4)	(26,013)	(5,736)
Income from operations	43,442	48,960
Total other income (expense), net (5)	(68,564)	(73,079)
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (25,122)	\$ (24,119)

G-119

⁽¹⁾ Consists of the 95 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 28,943 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011.

⁽²⁾ Includes all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and operations from the for-sale portfolio.

⁽³⁾ Reflects costs incurred related to acquisitions and abandoned pursuits. These costs are volatile and, therefore, may vary between periods.

⁽⁴⁾ See Note 3 - Real Estate Activity - Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses for a description of the charges.

⁽⁵⁾ For-sale residential activities, including net gain on sales and income tax expense (benefit), are included in the line item Total other income (expense). See Note 3 - Real Estate Activity - For-Sale Activities.

Presented below is segment information, for the multifamily and commercial segments, including the reconciliation of total segment revenues to total revenues and total segment NOI to income/loss from continuing operations before noncontrolling interest for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. For the purposes of the following table, Multifamily - Same-Property includes all consolidated multifamily properties continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1, 2010. Same-property communities may be adjusted during the year to account for disposition activity.

	Years Ended	,
(\$ in thousands)	2011	2010
Revenues:		
Segment revenues:	A 207 (20	* • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
Multifamily - Same Property (1)	\$ 295,620	\$ 283,115
Multifamily - Other (2)	40,427	26,279
Total multifamily	336,047	309,394
Commercial	77,850	80,015
Total segment revenues	413,897	389,409
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Multifamily	(2,336)	(3,106)
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Commercial	(26,046)	(30,987)
Other non-property related revenue	8,047	11,693
Discontinued operations property revenue	(40,173)	(42,926)
Total consolidated revenues	\$ 353,389	\$ 324,083
NOI:		
Segment NOI:		
Multifamily - Same Property (1)	\$ 174,890	\$ 163,058
Multifamily - Other (2)	21,154	11,134
Total multifamily	196,044	174,192
Commercial	52,774	54,006
	,	,
Total segment NOI	248,818	228,198
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Multifamily	(1,183)	(1,468)
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Commercial	(17,318)	(20,839)
Other non-property related revenue	8,047	11,693
Discontinued operations property NOI	(23,122)	(23,193)
Property management expense	(9,185)	(8,584)
General and administrative expense	(20,439)	(18,563)
Management fees and other expenses	(8,067)	(9,504)
Restructuring charges	(153)	(361)
Investment and development expenses	(1,781)	(422)
Depreciation	(113,475)	(106,205)
Amortization	(7,446)	(6,807)
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses (4)	(5,736)	(1,308)
Income from operations	48,960	42,637
Total other income (expense), net (5)	(73,079)	(84,484)

Loss from continuing operations

\$ (24,119) \$ (41,847)

G-120

- (1) Consists of the 96 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 29,233 apartment units, continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1, 2010.
- (2) Includes all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and operations from the for-sale portfolio.
- (3) Reflects costs incurred related to acquisitions and abandoned pursuits. These costs are volatile and, therefore, may vary between periods.
- (4) See Note 3 Real Estate Activity Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses for a description of the charges.
- (5) For-sale residential activities, including net gain on sales and income tax expense (benefit), are included in the line item Total other income (expense). See Note 3 Real Estate Activity For-Sale Activities.

Additionally, the Company s total segment capitalized expenditures to total capitalized expenditures and total segment assets to total assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are presented below.

	As of December 31,		
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	
Development and Capitalized Expenditures:			
Multifamily	\$ 103,444	\$ 59,007	
Commercial	18,857	10,756	
Corporate	346	373	
Total consolidated development and capitalized expenditures	\$ 122,647	\$ 70,136	
Assets:			
Segment assets:			
Multifamily	\$ 2,669,843	\$ 2,584,769	
Commercial	450,582	514,810	
Total segment assets	3,120,425	3,099,579	
Unallocated corporate assets	165,783	159,026	
Colonial Properties Trust	\$ 3,286,208	\$ 3,258,605	
Corporate assets specific to Colonial Properties Trust	(48)	(177)	
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership	\$ 3,286,160	\$ 3,258,428	

Note 13 Investment in Partially-Owned Entities

The Company evaluates all transactions and relationships with variable interest entities (VIEs) to determine whether the Company is the primary beneficiary.

Consolidated Investments in Variable Interest Entities

Based on the Company s evaluation, as of December 31, 2012, the Company has one consolidated VIE CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek which the Company began consolidating in September 2009 as a result of a preferred equity contribution of \$11.5 million made by the Company to the joint venture in connection with a construction loan refinancing. This joint venture is a variable interest entity and the Company s \$11.5 million preferred equity contribution constituted a reconsideration event.

⁽¹⁾ Includes the Company s investment in partially-owned entities of \$7.8 million and \$12.3 million as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

G-121

In assessing whether the Company was the primary beneficiary under FASB ASU 2009-17, the Company considered the significant economic activities of this variable interest entity to consist of:

- (1) the sale of the single apartment community owned by the partnership,
- (2) the financing arrangements with banks or other creditors,
- (3) the capital improvements or significant repairs, and
- (4) the pricing of apartment units for rent.

The Company concluded that it has the power to direct the activities of this joint venture and that the Company has the obligation to absorb losses and the right to receive benefits from this joint venture that could be significant to the joint venture. Therefore, the Company consolidates the CMS/Canyon Creek joint venture.

Investments in Unconsolidated Partially-Owned Entities

Investments in unconsolidated partially-owned entities at December 31, 2012 and 2011 consisted of the following:

	Percent	As of Dec	,
(\$ in thousands)	Owned	2012	2011
Multifamily:	100	Φ 200	A 265
Belterra, Ft. Worth, TX	10%	\$ 300	\$ 365
Colonial Grand at Huntcliff, Atlanta, GA	20%	1,195	1,382
Colonial Grand at McKinney, Dallas, TX	25%	1,715	1,721
Colonial Grand at Research Park, Raleigh, NC (2)	%		660
Regents Park (Phase II), Atlanta, GA (1)	40%	2,460	3,341
Total Multifamily		\$ 5,670	\$ 7,469
Commercial:			
600 Building Partnership, Birmingham, AL	33%	357	331
Bluerock, Huntsville, AL (3)	%		(6,426)
Colonial Promenade Madison, Huntsville, AL	%		2,062
Colonial Promenade Smyrna, Smyrna, TN	50%	1,683	2,259
DRA/CLP JV (5)	%		(25,152)
Highway 150, LLC, Birmingham, AL	10%	50	43
Parkside Drive LLC II, Knoxville, TN (7)	%		112
V/			
Total Commercial		\$ 2,090	\$ (26,771)
Other:			
Colonial/Polar-BEK Management Company, Birmingham, AL	50%	17	28
T (101		Φ 4=	Φ 20
Total Other		\$ 17	\$ 28
Net investment in partially-owned entities $_{(8)}$		\$ 7,777	\$ (19,274)

- (1) These joint ventures consist of undeveloped land.
- (2) In October 2012, the Company acquired the property held by the joint venture (see below).
- (3) Effective December 31, 2012, the Company sold its 10% noncontrolling interest (see below). This equity interest is presented under Liabilities on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2011.
- (4) In February 2012, the Company sold its 25% noncontrolling joint venture interest (see below).
- (5) Effective June 30, 2012, the Company redeemed its 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest (see below).

G-122

Table of Contents

- (6) In January 2013, the Company sold its 10% noncontrolling joint venture interest (see Note 22 Subsequent Events).
- (7) In December 2011, the Company sold its 50% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture (see below).
- (8) Net investment in partially-owned entities as of December 31, 2011 includes the Trust s \$4.1 million contingent obligation related to the DRA/CLP JV. CRLP s net investment in partially owned entities was \$(15.1) million as of December 31, 2011.

Effective December 31, 2012, the Company disposed of its 10% noncontrolling interest in the Bluerock office portfolio, which consisted of nine office assets comprising 1.7 million square feet located in Huntsville, Alabama. As a result of the transaction, the Company recognized a gain of approximately \$7.4 million (presented in *Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities* on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)), the majority of which had been deferred since the formation of the Bluerock entity in 2007. Pursuant to the transaction, the Company received \$2.0 million in cash, of which \$1.3 million was related to the management agreement buyout and \$0.7 million was related to the purchase of the Company's equity interest in the portfolio. Also, as a result of the transaction, the Company no longer has responsibility for \$10.7 million of associated mortgage debt and \$7.9 million of other liabilities, which represents the Company's pro-rata share. The Company transitioned management and leasing responsibilities as of January 31, 2013. As a result of this transaction, the Company no longer has an equity interest in this portfolio.

In October 2012, the Company purchased Colonial Grand at Research Park, a 370-unit multifamily apartment community located in Raleigh, North Carolina, for \$38.0 million, of which \$21.3 million was used to repay existing property specific debt at closing. Prior to the acquisition, the Company owned a 20% noncontrolling interest in the joint venture that owned the property. In accordance with ASC 805, the Company remeasured its former noncontrolling interest to fair value and recognized a gain of \$2.8 million on the transaction (presented in *Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities* on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)). As a result of the transaction, the Company began presenting Colonial Grand at Research Park in the Company s consolidated financial statements beginning October 1, 2012. This acquisition was funded with proceeds from asset dispositions and borrowings on the Company s unsecured credit facility.

In September 2012, the Company recorded a \$0.5 million non-cash impairment charge, which represents the Company s pro-rata share of the charge, related to a for-sale residential parcel of land held in a joint venture. This charge is presented in *Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

Effective June 30, 2012, the Company s remaining 15% noncontrolling interest in the 18-asset DRA/CLP joint venture was redeemed by the joint venture in exchange for \$2.0 million, and the Company is no longer responsible for approximately \$111.3 million of mortgage debt, which represented the Company s pro rata share of the joint venture s mortgage debt. The \$2.0 million contingent consideration is payable to the Company following the occurrence of one or more capital events and after certain returns have been achieved with respect to additional capital expected to be invested in the joint venture by other members of the joint venture. However, the Company has assigned no value to this consideration. In addition, the Trust was released from a \$4.1 million contingent liability, which represented the Trust s pro rata share of a guaranty obligation resulting from a debt guaranty provided by the joint venture. As a result of the transaction, during the second quarter of 2012, the Company recognized a gain of approximately \$21.9 million (presented in *Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities* on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)), the majority of which had been deferred since the formation of the DRA/CLP joint venture in 2007. The gain is net of a \$3.2 million non-cash impairment charge, which represents the Company s pro-rata share of an impairment recorded by the joint venture for 2011, but omitted in the Company s annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011. Along with the redemption of its interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture the Company has reduced its workforce in the commercial segment by a total of 27 employees through the elimination of certain positions. As a result, approximately \$1.4 million in termination benefits and severance-

G-123

Table of Contents

related charges, are included in *Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities* on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the year ended December 31, 2012. Of the \$1.4 million in charges, \$0.7 million is unpaid and reflected in *Accrued expenses* on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP as of December 31, 2012. The Company transitioned the management of the properties and certain leasing responsibilities to a third party as of September 30, 2012. As a result of this transaction, the Company no longer has an interest in this joint venture.

In February 2012, the Company sold its 25% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Promenade Madison, a 111,000 square-foot retail center located in Huntsville, Alabama, to a minority partner for total consideration of \$3.0 million. The Company recognized a gain of approximately \$1.0 million on this transaction. Proceeds from the sale were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s unsecured credit facility. As a result of this transaction, the Company no longer has an interest in this joint venture.

In December 2011, the Company, Parkside Drive LLC I and Parkside Drive LLC II sold Colonial Pinnacle at Turkey Creek, a 659,000-square-foot retail center located in Knoxville, Tennessee, for total consideration of \$131.7 million. The Company held a 50% noncontrolling interest in this asset and received cash proceeds of \$25.6 million in connection with the sale, which is presented in *Distributions from partially-owned entities* on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the Trust and CRLP. These proceeds were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s unsecured credit facility and fund the acquisition of multifamily apartment communities (see *Note 3 - Real Estate Activity - Acquisition Activity*). The Company recognized an \$18.8 million gain on this transaction.

In November 2011, the Company sold its remaining 5% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Promenade Alabaster II/Tutwiler II, LLC, a 420,000-square-foot retail center located in Birmingham, Alabama, to the majority partner. The company s interest was sold for total consideration of \$2.4 million, comprised of \$0.4 million in cash and the joint venture partner s assumption of the Company s \$2.0 million share of the existing loan secured by the property. Proceeds from the sale were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s unsecured credit facility. As a result of this transaction, the Company no longer has an interest in this joint venture.

In July 2011, the Company purchased the remaining 50% interest in Laneboro at Heathrow, LLC for \$1.3 million. This site is currently under active construction and is scheduled to be completed in the first quarter of 2013 (see *Note 5 - Undeveloped Land and Construction in Progress*). The property under construction, Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase II), is adjacent to the Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase I) multifamily property that was placed into service in the fourth quarter 2012.

In October 2010, the Company sold its remaining 50% noncontrolling interest in the Parkway Place Mall in Huntsville, Alabama, to joint venture partner CBL & Associates Properties, Inc. The Company s interest was sold for total consideration of \$38.8 million, comprised of \$17.9 million in cash (presented as a component of *Distributions from partially-owned unconsolidated entities* in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows of the Trust and CRLP) and CBL s assumption of the Company s \$20.9 million share of the existing loan secured by the property. Proceeds from the sale were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance of the Company s unsecured credit facility. The Company recognized a \$3.5 million gain on this transaction.

In June 2010, the Company exited two single-asset multifamily joint ventures with DRA Advisors LLC (DRA) totaling 664 units, in each of which the Company had a 20% ownership interest. Pursuant to the transaction, the Company transferred its 20% ownership interest in Colonial Village at Cary to DRA and made a net cash payment of \$2.7 million in exchange for DRA s 80% ownership in the 345-unit Colonial Grand at Riverchase Trails located in Birmingham, Alabama. Additionally, the Company assumed and subsequently repaid the \$19.3 million loan securing Colonial Grand at Riverchase Trails, which was set to mature on October 1, 2010. The Company now owns 100% of Colonial Grand at Riverchase Trails and DRA now owns 100% of Colonial Village at Cary, with respect to which DRA assumed the existing secured mortgage. The

G-124

Company continued to manage Colonial Village at Cary through September 30, 2010, pursuant to an existing management agreement. The transaction was funded by borrowings from the Company s unsecured credit facility and proceeds from issuances of common shares through the Company s at-the-market equity program.

Combined financial information for the Company s investments in unconsolidated partially-owned entities since the respective dates of the Company s acquisitions is as follows:

	As of December 31,	
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011 (1)
Balance Sheet		
Assets		
Land, building and equipment, net	\$ 92,366	\$ 1,044,266
Construction in progress	12,701	13,841
Other assets	10,347	78,564
Total assets	\$ 115,414	\$ 1,136,671
Liabilities and partners equity		
Notes payable	\$ 83,738	\$ 957,068
Other liabilities ⁽²⁾	2,238	106,068
Partners equity	29,438	73,535
Total liabilities and partners equity	\$ 115,414	\$ 1,136,671

⁽²⁾ The Company s pro-rata share of indebtedness, as calculated based on ownership percentage, at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was \$20.7 million and \$147.8 million, respectively.

	Years Ended December 31,		
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011 (1)	2010
Statement of Operations		(-)	
Revenues	\$ 88,790	\$ 162,474	\$ 179,506
Operating expenses	(34,754)	(93,707)	(64,478)
Interest expense	(39,899)	(67,930)	(71,524)
Depreciation, amortization and other	(18,409)	(23,963)	(74,006)
Net loss (2)	\$ (4,272)	\$ (23,126)	\$ (30,502)

⁽¹⁾ Operating expenses has been revised from amount previously reported to appropriately reflect an impairment charge of \$34.5 million recorded by the DRA/CLP joint venture during 2011.

Table of Contents 105

G-125

⁽¹⁾ Land, building and equipment, net has been revised from the amount previously reported to appropriately reflect an asset impairment of \$34.5 million recorded by the DRA/CLP joint venture during 2011.

⁽²⁾ In addition to including the Company's pro-rata share of income (loss) from partially-owned unconsolidated entities of \$0.2 million, \$12.3 million and \$(3.7) million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) includes gains (losses) on the Company's dispositions of joint-venture interests and amortization of basis differences which are not reflected in the table above.

Note 14 Financing Activities

Notes and mortgages payable at December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

	Years Ended D	Years Ended December 31,		
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011		
Unsecured credit facility	\$ 188,631	\$ 184,000		
Unsecured term loans	400,000	250,000		
Mortgages and other notes:				
3.13% to 6.00%	526,634	529,243		
6.01% to 6.88%	716,727	796,484		
	\$ 1.831.992	\$ 1.759.727		

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility and Cash Management Line

On March 30, 2012, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a \$500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the Credit Facility) with Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated as joint lead arrangers and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (Wells Fargo), as administrative agent for the lenders, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as agents and lenders. The Credit Facility replaced CRLP s prior \$675.0 million credit facility, which matured on June 21, 2012. The Credit Facility has a maturity date of March 29, 2016, with a one-year extension option, which may be exercised as long as there is no existing default and upon payment of a 0.20% extension fee. The Credit Facility includes an accordion feature that allows the total commitments to be increased to \$700.0 million, subject to certain conditions, including obtaining commitments from any one or more lenders, whether or not currently a lender under the Credit Facility.

The spread over LIBOR for syndicated borrowings under the Credit Facility ranges from 1.00% to 1.80% and the facility fee ranges from 0.15% and 0.40%, each based on the credit ratings of CRLP s senior unsecured debt from time to time. As of December 31, 2012, the Credit Facility had a stated interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.40% and required the payment of an annual facility fee equal to 0.30% of the aggregate loan commitments. The Credit Facility also includes an uncommitted competitive bid option for up to \$250.0 million of the \$500.0 million Credit Facility, which can be utilized if CRLP maintains an investment grade credit rating from either Moody s Investors Services, Inc., or Standard & Poor s Ratings Services. This option would allow participating banks to bid to provide CRLP loans at a rate that may be lower than the stated rate for syndicated borrowings.

The Credit Facility includes certain events of default including, but not limited to, nonpayment of principal, interest, fees or other amounts, failure to perform certain covenants, an event of default under any other indebtedness in the aggregate greater than or equal to \$25.0 million, an event of default under CRLP s unsecured term loan, and bankruptcy of other insolvency events. The occurrence of an event of default, following any applicable cure period, would permit the lenders to, among other things, declare the principal, accrued interest and other obligations of CRLP under the Credit Facility to be immediately due and payable.

Both the Credit Facility and term loan agreements (described below) under Senior Unsecured Term Loans require that CRLP satisfy similar financial and operational covenants, including the following:

	As of December 31, 2012	Requirements	:
Fixed Charge Ratio	2.2x	>1.5x	
Debt to Total Asset Value Ratio	45%	<60.0	%
Secured Debt to Total Asset Value Ratio	17%	<40.0	%
Unencumbered Leverage Ratio	45%	<62.5	%
Permitted Investments Ratio	11%	<30.0	%
Tangible Net Worth (\$ in billions)	\$ 2.1	\$ 1.0	

G-126

Table of Contents

At December 31, 2012, the Company was in compliance with these covenants.

In addition to the Credit Facility, the Company has a \$35.0 million cash management line provided by Wells Fargo, which was amended and restated in April 2012. The amended and restated cash management line has a maturity date of March 29, 2016.

The Credit Facility and the cash management line, which primarily are used by the Company to finance property acquisitions and developments, had an outstanding balance at December 31, 2012 of \$188.6 million, including \$170.0 million outstanding on the Credit Facility and \$18.6 million outstanding on the cash management line. The weighted average interest rate of the Credit Facility and the cash management line was 1.61% and 1.35% as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

CRLP intends to use future borrowings under the Credit Facility and the cash management line for general corporate purposes, including, without limitation, the repayment of outstanding indebtedness, the future development of properties, the acquisition of additional properties and other acquisition transactions as suitable opportunities arise, capital expenditures, and redevelopment and/or improvements to certain existing properties.

Senior Unsecured Term Loans

On May 11, 2012, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a term loan agreement with U.S. Bank National Association, as administrative agent and a lender, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as lenders, which provides for a \$150.0 million senior unsecured term loan. As of December 31, 2012, the term loan had an outstanding balance of \$150.0 million. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 1.10% to 2.05% based on the credit ratings on CRLP s unsecured debt from time to time. The Company entered into two interest rate swaps (see *Note 15 - Derivatives and Hedging*) to fix the interest rate through maturity at an all-in initial rate of 2.71%, based on an initial margin of 1.60%. The term loan matures on May 11, 2017 and may be prepaid, in whole or in part, at any time, without premium or penalty. The proceeds from the term loan were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility. In connection with this new term loan agreement, the Company amended the 2011 term loan agreement described below, as well as the Company s March 2012 credit agreement, to conform certain defined terms and the language in certain covenants among the three loans and to reflect the new May 2012 term loan.

On July 22, 2011, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a term loan agreement (the Term Loan Agreement) with Wells Fargo, as administrative agent and a lender, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as lenders, for a \$250.0 million senior unsecured term loan. As of December 31, 2012, the term loan had an outstanding balance of \$250.0 million. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 1.65% to 2.90% based on the credit ratings on CRLP s unsecured debt from time to time. The Company entered into two interest rate swaps (see *Note 15 - Derivatives and Hedging*) to fix the interest rate through maturity at an all-in initial interest rate of 5.00%, based on the initial margin of 2.45%. During 2012, CRLP s senior unsecured debt rating was upgraded to Baa3, therefore reducing the interest rate to 4.55%. The term loan matures on August 1, 2018 and may be prepaid, in whole or in part, at any time, subject to a prepayment premium of 2% for amounts prepaid on or prior to July 22, 2013 and 1% for amounts prepaid after July 22, 2013 but prior to July 23, 2014. There is no prepayment premium for amounts prepaid after July 22, 2014. The proceeds from the term loan were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility.

Both term loan agreements discussed above contain various restrictive covenants, including with respect to liens, indebtedness, distributions, mergers and asset sales, and also limits the percentage of CRLP s total asset value that may be invested in unimproved land, mortgage receivables, unconsolidated joint ventures, residential units for sale and construction. As described above, the term loan agreements require that CRLP satisfy certain financial and operational covenants. The term loan agreements include certain events of default including, but not limited to, nonpayment of principal, interest, fees or other amounts, failure to perform certain covenants, an event of default under any other indebtedness in the aggregate greater than or equal to \$20.0 million for the term

G-127

loan entered into in June 2011 and greater than or equal to \$25.0 million for the term loan entered into in May 2012, an event of default under the Credit Facility, and bankruptcy or other insolvency events. The occurrence of an event of default, following any applicable cure period, would permit the lenders to, among other things, declare the principal, accrued interest and other obligations of CRLP under the term loan agreements to be immediately due and payable.

Secured and Unsecured Indebtedness

At December 31, 2012, the Company had \$1.1 billion in unsecured indebtedness including balances outstanding under its Credit Facility and certain other notes payable. The remainder of the Company s notes and mortgages payable are collateralized by the assignment of rents and leases of certain properties and assets with an aggregate net book value of approximately \$691.9 million at December 31, 2012.

The aggregate maturities of notes and mortgages payable, including the Company s Credit Facility as of December 31, 2012, were as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	Docor	As of nber 31, 2012
		· ·
2013	\$	99,504
2014		192,051
2015		223,664
2016		277,977
2017 (1)		150,000
Thereafter		888,796
	\$	1,831,992

(1) Includes \$188.6 million outstanding on the Company s Credit Facility as of December 31, 2012, which matures in March 2016. Collateralized Credit Facilities

In the second quarter of 2010, the Company closed on \$73.2 million of secured financing originated by Berkadia Commercial Mortgage LLC for repurchase by Fannie Mae. The financing has a 10 year term, carries a fixed interest rate of 5.02% and is secured by three multifamily properties. The proceeds from this financing were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s Credit Facility.

Unsecured Senior Notes Repurchases

During 2010, under a note repurchase program approved by the Trust s Board of Trustees in January 2010, CRLP repurchased \$37.7 million of its outstanding unsecured senior notes, at an average discount of 3.5%, representing an average yield-to-maturity of 6.7%. The Company recognized a gain of approximately \$1.0 million in 2010 related to these note repurchases, which is included in *Gains on retirement of debt* on the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP. The gains are presented gross of the loss on hedging activities of \$0.3 million, which loss is the result of a reclassification of amounts in *Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss* in connection with the Company s conclusion that it is probable that the Company will not make interest payments associated with previously hedged debt as a result of these note repurchases. This repurchase program expired on December 31, 2010.

Unsecured Senior Note Maturities

During August 2012, the Company s outstanding 6.875% senior note matured, which the Company satisfied with an aggregate payment of \$82.8 million (\$80.0 million of principal and \$2.8 million of accrued interest) using borrowings under the Company s Credit Facility.

G-128

Table of Contents

During April 2011, the Company s 4.80% senior note matured, which the Company satisfied with a gross payment of \$58.3 million (\$56.9 million of principal and \$1.4 million of accrued interest) using proceeds from the the Company s at-the-market equity offering programs and borrowings under the Credit Facility.

In December 2010, the Company had a \$10.0 million 8.08% medium-term note and a \$10.0 million 8.05% medium-term note mature. Both notes were satisfied by a gross payment of \$20.5 million (\$20.0 million of principal and \$0.5 million of accrued interest), using proceeds from the December 2010 at-the-market equity offering program and borrowings under the Credit Facility.

Unconsolidated Joint Venture Financing Activity

In May 2010, the Company acquired from the lender at par the outstanding construction loan originally obtained by the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint venture, a joint venture in which the Company has a 50% ownership interest. This note, which had an original principal amount of \$34.6 million and matured by its terms in December 2009, had not been repaid and had an outstanding balance of \$28.3 million and an interest rate of one-month LIBOR plus 1.20% as of the date of purchase. The Company and its joint venture partner agreed to several extensions of the maturity date through December 2011. In January 2012, the note and the related loan documents were amended to extend the maturity date to December 2012, fix the interest rate at 5.25%, provide for two additional one-year extension options and reduce the joint venture partner s guarantee to \$1.3 million. In December 2012, the joint venture opted to exercise its second one year option, extending the maturity date to December 2013 with a fixed interest rate of 5.38%. As of December 31, 2012, the note had an outstanding balance of \$24.4 million.

There can be no assurance that the Company s joint ventures will be successful in refinancing and/or replacing existing debt at maturity or otherwise. If the joint ventures are unable to obtain additional financing, payoff the existing loans that are maturing, or renegotiate suitable terms with the existing lenders, the lenders generally would have the right to foreclose on the properties in question and, accordingly, the joint ventures will lose their interests in the assets. The failure to refinance and/or replace such debt and other factors with respect to the Company s joint venture interests may materially adversely impact the value of the Company s joint venture interests, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on the Company s financial condition and results of operations.

Note 15 Derivatives and Hedging

Risk Management Objective and Using Derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations and economic conditions. The Company principally manages its exposures to a wide variety of business and operational risks through management of its core business activities. The Company manages economic risks, including interest rate, liquidity and credit risk primarily by managing the amount, sources and duration of its debt funding and the use of derivative financial instruments. Specifically, the Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage exposures that arise from business activities that result in the receipt or payment of future known and uncertain cash amounts, the value of which is determined by interest rates. The Company s derivative financial instruments are used to manage differences in the amount, timing and duration of the Company s known or expected cash receipts and its known or expected cash payments principally related to the Company s investments and borrowings.

Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

The Company s objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate movements. To accomplish this objective, the Company primarily uses interest rate swaps and caps as part of its interest rate risk management strategy. Interest rate swaps designated as

G-129

Table of Contents

cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in exchange for the Company making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount. Interest rate caps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty if interest rates rise above the strike rate on the contract in exchange for an upfront premium.

On April 11, 2012, the Company entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$100.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 1.13%, and a maturity date of May 11, 2017. On April 27, 2012, the Company entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$50.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 1.06%, and a maturity date of May 11, 2017. In accordance with these agreements, the Company will pay the fixed rate and receive a variable rate based on one-month LIBOR. These interest rate swap agreements became effective on May 11, 2012 upon the execution of a term loan agreement (see Note 14 Financing Activities Senior Unsecured Term Loans).

On June 3, 2011, the Company entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$200.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 2.58%, and a maturity date of August 1, 2018. On July 12, 2011, the Company entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$50.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 2.47%, and a maturity date of August 1, 2018. In accordance with these agreements, the Company will pay the fixed rate and receive a variable rate based on one-month LIBOR. These interest rate swap agreements became effective on July 22, 2011 upon the execution of the Term Loan Agreement (see *Note 14 Financing Activities Senior Unsecured Term Loans*).

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges is recorded in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* and is subsequently reclassified into earnings as *Interest expense* as interest payments are made on the Company s variable-rate debt. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the derivatives is recognized directly in earnings as a *Loss on hedging activities*. The Company reclassified no amounts to *Loss on hedging activities* for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company accelerated the reclassification of amounts in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* to *Loss on hedging activities* related to interest payments on the hedged debt were deemed probable not to occur as a result of the repurchases of senior notes of CRLP. The accelerated amount was a loss of \$0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Amounts reported in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* related to derivatives will be reclassified to *Interest expense* as interest payments are made on the Company s variable-rate debt. Over the next 12 months, the Company expects to reclassify \$7.7 million from *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* as an increase to *Interest expense*.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had the following outstanding interest rate derivatives that were designated as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk (\$ in thousands):

Interest Rate Derivative	Number of Instruments		nal Amount
Interest Rate Swaps	4	\$	400,000

The table below presents the fair value of the Company s derivative financial instruments as well as their classification on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

	Fair Value of Derivative Instruments			
	Asset Derivatives	Liability Derivatives		
	Balance Fair Value at	Balance Fair Value at		
(\$ in thousands)	Sheet Location 12/31/2012 12/31/201	11 Sheet Location 12/31/2012 12/31/2011		
Interest Rate Swap	Other Assets \$ \$	Other Liabilities \$ (25,862) \$ (16,619)		

G-130

The tables below present the effect of the Company s derivative financial instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

	Amo	ount of Gain (Lo	oss)		Amount	of Gain (Loss) R	eclass	ified
	Rec	cognized in OCI	on			Reclassified		
		Derivative			fro	om OCI into Inco	ome	
(\$ in thousands)	(E	Effective Portion	1)		(Effective Portio	n)	
				Location of Gain (Loss)				
				Reclassified from				
Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash Flow Hedging Relationships	12/31/2012	Years Ended 12/31/2011	12/31/2010	Accumulated OCI into Income (Effective Portion)	12/31/2012	Years Ended 12/31/2011	12/3	1/2010
Interest Rate Swaps	\$ (15,985)	\$ (19,302)	\$	Interest Expense	\$ (7,222)	\$ (3,164)	\$	(437)
				Loss on Hedging Activities				(289)
					\$ (7.222)	\$ (3.164)	\$	(726)

Credit-Risk-Related Contingent Features

The Company has an agreement with its derivatives counterparty that contains a provision whereby if the Company defaults on any of its indebtedness, including default where repayment of the indebtedness has not been accelerated by the lender, then the Company could also be declared in default on its derivative obligations.

As of December 31, 2012 the fair value of the derivatives in a net liability position, which includes accrued interest, but excludes any adjustment for nonperformance risk related to this agreement was \$27.3 million. As of December 31, 2012, the Company has not posted any collateral related to this agreement. If the Company had breached any of its provisions at December 31, 2012, it could have been required to settle its obligations under the agreement at its termination value of \$27.3 million.

Note 16 Share-Based Compensation

Incentive Share Plans

The Board of Trustees of the Trust approved the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan on March 7, 2008 and certain amendments thereto (the Amendments) on March 1, 2011 (as amended, the Omnibus Plan). The 2008 Plan and those Amendments requiring shareholder approval were approved by the Trust s shareholders on April 23, 2008 and April 27, 2011, respectively. The Third Amended and Restated Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan (the Prior Plan) expired by its terms in 2008. The Omnibus Plan provides the Trust with the opportunity to grant long-term incentive awards to employees and non-employee trustees, as well independent contractors, as appropriate. The Omnibus Plan authorizes the grant of seven types of share-based awards share options, restricted shares, unrestricted shares, share units, share appreciation rights, performance shares and performance units. At December 31, 2012, 4,415,964 shares were available for issuance under the Omnibus Plan.

In connection with the grant of options under the Omnibus Plan, the Executive Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees determines the option exercise period and any vesting requirements. All outstanding options granted under the Omnibus Plan prior to April 27, 2011 and under the Prior Plan have a term of ten years. All outstanding options granted under the Omnibus Plan since April 27, 2011 have a term of seven years. All options and restricted shares vest over periods ranging from one to five years.

G-131

Compensation costs for share options have been valued on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing method. The weighted average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model were as follows:

	Years	Years Ended December 31,		
	2012	2012 2011		
Dividend yield	3.11%	3.94%	8.41%	
Expected volatility	65.37%	64.14%	83.83%	
Risk-free interest rate	1.08%	2.23%	1.71%	
Expected option term (years)	5.8	5.8	3.1	

For this calculation, the expected dividend yield reflects the Trust s historical yield. Expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of the Trust s common shares. The risk-free interest rate for the expected life of the options was based on the implied yields on the U.S Treasury yield curve. The weighted average expected option term was based on the Trust s historical data for prior period share option exercises and forfeiture activity.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Trust granted share options to purchase 251,495 common shares to the Company s employees and trustees. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized compensation expense related to share options of \$2.8 million (\$0.2 million of compensation expense related to share options was accelerated due to the Company s restructuring), \$1.8 million and \$1.0 million, respectively. Upon the exercise of share options, the Trust issues common shares from authorized but unissued common shares. Total cash proceeds from exercise of stock options were \$0.8 million, \$0.7 million and \$2.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The following table presents a summary of share option activity under all plans for the year ended December 31, 2012:

	Options Outstanding		
	C)	0	ed Average
	Shares	Exer	cise Price
Options outstanding, beginning of period	2,008,632	\$	19.76
Granted	251,495		20.98
Exercised	(52,317)		14.74
Forfeited	(297,369)		23.20
Options outstanding, end of period	1,910,441	\$	19.52

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted in 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$9.52 per share, \$8.13 per share and \$4.19 per share, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$0.3 million, \$0.3 million and \$0.4 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, the Trust had approximately 1.9 million share options outstanding with a weighted average exercise price of \$19.52 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.5 years. The intrinsic value for the share options outstanding as of December 31, 2012 was \$7.5 million. The total number of exercisable options at December 31, 2012 was approximately 0.7 million. As of December 31, 2012, the weighted average exercise price of exercisable options was \$25.75 and the weighted average remaining contractual life was 2.8 years for these exercisable options. The intrinsic value for the share options exercisable as of December 31, 2012 was \$0.6 million. As of December 31, 2012, the total number of options expected to vest is approximately 1.1 million. The weighted average exercise price of options expected to vest is \$15.50 and the weighted average remaining contractual life is 7.1 years. The options expected to vest have an aggregate intrinsic value at December 31, 2012 of \$6.8 million. At December 31, 2012, there was \$2.4 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years.

G-132

The following table presents the change in nonvested restricted share awards:

	Year Ended December 31, 2012	Gra	ted Average ant Date ir Value
Nonvested Restricted Shares, December 31, 2011	634,170	\$	15.95
Granted	389,550		20.73
Vested	(299,260)		16.68
Cancelled/Forfeited	(25,778)		17.06
Nonvested Restricted Shares, December 31, 2012	698,682	\$	18.26

The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted share awards issued during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$20.73, \$19.18 and \$11.29, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized compensation expense related to restricted share awards was accelerated and \$0.1 million was reversed due to the Company s restructuring), \$4.2 million and \$3.6 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company separately capitalized \$0.3 million, \$0.5 million and \$0.1 million, respectively, for restricted share awards granted in connection with certain real estate developments. The total fair value for restricted share awards that vested during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$5.0 million, \$8.1 million and \$1.2 million, respectively. At December 31, 2012, the unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted share awards is \$7.1 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.6 years.

Employee Share Purchase Plan

The Company maintains an Employee Share Purchase Plan (the Purchase Plan). The Purchase Plan permits eligible employees of the Company, through payroll deductions, to purchase common shares at market price. The Purchase Plan has no limit on the number of common shares that may be issued under the plan. The Trust issued 3,568, 3,943 and 6,293 common shares pursuant to the Purchase Plan during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Note 17 Income Taxes

The Trust, which is considered a corporation for federal income tax purposes, has elected to be taxed and qualifies to be taxed as a REIT and generally will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes its REIT taxable income to its shareholders. REITs are subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements. If the Trust fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, it will be subject to federal income tax on its taxable income at regular corporate rates and may not be able to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent taxable years. The Trust may also be subject to certain federal, state and local taxes on its income and property and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed taxable income even if it does qualify as a REIT. For example, the Trust will be subject to income tax to the extent it distributes less than 100% of its REIT taxable income (including capital gains) and the Trust has certain gains that, if recognized, will be subject to corporate tax because it acquired the assets in tax-free acquisitions of non-REIT corporations.

In the preparation of income tax returns in federal and state jurisdictions, the Company and its taxable REIT subsidiary assert certain tax positions based on their understanding and interpretation of the income tax law. The taxing authorities may challenge such positions, and the resolution of such matters could result in additional income tax expense, interest or penalties. Although any such assessments historically have been minimal and immaterial to the Company s financial results, when the Company has received an assessment for interest and/or penalties, it has been classified in the financial statements as income tax expense. Management believes it has used reasonable judgments and conclusions in the preparation of its income tax returns.

G-133

Taxable REIT Subsidiary

The Company s consolidated financial statements include the operations of a taxable REIT subsidiary, CPSI, which is not entitled to a dividends paid deduction and is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. CPSI uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities result from temporary differences. Temporary differences are differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in future periods. CPSI provides property development, construction services, leasing and management services for joint venture and third-party owned properties and administrative services to the Company and engages in for-sale development activity. The Company generally reimburses CPSI for payroll and other costs incurred in providing services to the Company. All inter-company transactions are eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, CPSI recognized no income tax expense/(benefit). Significant deferred tax assets and liabilities and a reconciliation of CPSI s income tax expense to the statutory federal rate are reflected in the tables below.

The components of CPSI s deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

	Years Ended December 31,		
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	
Deferred tax assets:			
Real estate asset basis differences	\$ 6,099	\$ 270	
Impairments	11,875	11,944	
Deferred revenue	1,008	1,116	
Deferred expenses	16,846	14,863	
Net operating loss carryforward	15,979	14,298	
Accrued liabilities	6,012	2,297	
	57,819	44,788	
Deferred tax liabilities:			
Real estate asset basis differences			
Net deferred tax assets, before valuation allowance	57,819	44,788	
Valuation allowance	(57,819)	(44,788)	
Net deferred tax assets, included in other assets	\$	\$	

Reconciliations of the effective tax rates of CPSI to the federal statutory rate are detailed below.

	Years Ended December 31,			
	2012	2011	2010	
Federal tax rate	35.00%	35.00%	35.00%	
Valuation reserve	(34.99)%	(34.99)%	(34.99)%	
State income tax, net of federal income tax benefit				
Other	(0.01)%	(0.01)%	(0.01)%	
CPSI provision for income taxes	%	%	%	

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, other expenses include estimated state franchise and other taxes, including franchise taxes in North Carolina and Tennessee and the margin-based tax in Texas.

Tax years 2005 through 2007 and tax years 2009 through 2011 are subject to examination by the federal taxing authorities. Generally, tax years 2009 through 2011 are subject to examination by state taxing authorities. There are no state tax examinations currently in process.

G-134

On November 6, 2009, the Worker, Homeownership and Business Assistance Act of 2009 was signed into law, which expanded the net operating loss (NOL) carryback rules to allow businesses to carryback NOLs incurred in either 2008 or 2009 up to five years. As a result of the new legislation, CPSI was able to carry back tax losses that occurred in the year ended December 31, 2009 against income that was recognized in 2005 and 2006. The Company received no tax refunds during 2012. The Company received \$0.7 million of tax refunds during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Note 18 Leasing Operations

The Company s business includes leasing and management of multifamily and commercial properties. For commercial properties owned by the Company, minimum rentals due in future periods under noncancelable operating leases extending beyond one year are as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	As of December 31,
2013	\$ 26,950
2014	26,211
2015	23,924
2016	21,983
2017	19,263
Thereafter	91,874
	\$ 210,205 ⁽¹⁾

(1) Due to the sale of Metropolitan Midtown on February 1, 2013 (see Note 22 Subsequent Events), all associated retail and office operating leases have been excluded.

The noncancelable leases are with tenants engaged in commercial operations in Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana and North Carolina. Performance in accordance with the lease terms is in part dependent upon the economic conditions of the respective areas. No additional credit risk exposure relating to the leasing arrangements exists beyond the accounts receivable amounts shown in the December 31, 2012 balance sheet. However, financial difficulties of tenants could impact their ability to make lease payments on a timely basis which could result in actual lease payments being less than amounts shown above. Leases with residents in multifamily properties are generally for one year or less and are thus excluded from the above table. Substantially all of the Company s land, buildings, and equipment represent property leased under the above and other short-term leasing arrangements.

Rental income from continuing operations for 2012, 2011 and 2010 includes percentage rent of \$0.3 million, \$0.3 million and \$0.5 million, respectively. This rental income was earned when certain retail tenants attained sales volumes specified in their respective lease agreements.

Note 19 Contingencies, Guarantees and Other Arrangements

Contingencies

As a result of transactions executed in 2007, the Company implemented a strategic initiative to become a multifamily focused REIT, which included two significant joint venture transactions whereby the majority of the Company s wholly-owned commercial properties were transferred into separate joint ventures. In December 2009, the Company disposed of its interest in one of these joint ventures. In connection with the other 2007 joint venture transaction, the DRA/CLP joint venture, the Trust assumed certain contingent liabilities, of which \$4.1 million remained outstanding until the Company s remaining 15% noncontrolling interest was redeemed by the joint venture effective June 30, 2012, and in connection therewith the Company was released from this contingent liability. The liabilities were the direct obligation of the Trust and thus, prior to the redemption of its interest, were not reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of CRLP as of December 31, 2011. See *Note 13 Investment in Partially-Owned Entities* for more detail regarding this transaction.

Table of Contents

During 2012, the Company recorded \$4.2 million related to required infrastructure repairs on Colonial Promenade Alabaster II. During 2010, the Company recorded \$1.3 million for certain contingent liabilities related to the mitigation of structural settlement at Colonial Promenade Alabaster II and additional infrastructure cost at Colonial Promenade Fultondale. Both of these retail assets were developed and sold by CPSI in previous years, and therefore are expensed as additional development costs in (Loss) gain on sale of property in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company is self-insured up to \$0.8 million, \$0.9 million and \$1.8 million for general liability, workers compensation and property insurance, respectively. The Company is also self-insured for health insurance and responsible for amounts up to \$135,000 per claim and up to \$2.0 million per person.

Guarantees and Other Arrangements

In connection with the formation of Highway 150 LLC in 2002, the Company executed a guarantee, pursuant to which the Company served as a guarantor of \$1.0 million of the debt related to the joint venture, which was collateralized by the Colonial Promenade Hoover retail property. At December 31, 2012, the total amount of debt of the joint venture, which matured on January 11, 2013, was approximately \$15.1 million. As of December 31, 2012, no liability was recorded for the guarantee. Subsequently, on January 14, 2013, the Company sold its 10% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture and paid off the debt associated with this guarantee. Therefore is no longer liable for this guarantee. See *Note 22 Subsequent Events* for additional details regarding this transaction.

In connection with certain retail developments, the Company has received funding from municipalities for infrastructure costs. In most cases, the municipalities issue bonds that are repaid primarily from sales tax revenues generated from the tenants at each respective development. The Company previously guaranteed the shortfall, if any, of tax revenues to the debt service requirements on the bonds issued for the Colonial Promenade Tannehill development. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had satisfied the minimum debt service coverage ratio necessary to cancel the guarantee and, in February 2012, received confirmation of the cancellation from the bondholders.

Note 20 Legal Proceedings

Colonial Grand at Traditions Litigation

As previously disclosed, in early 2007, CRLP and SM Traditions Associates, LLC (SM) entered into a joint venture to develop the Colonial Grand at Traditions located in Gulf Shores, Alabama. CRLP and SM formed TA-Colonial Traditions LLC (the Joint Venture), in which CRLP owns a 35% interest and SM owns a 65% interest. In April 2007, the Joint Venture entered into a construction loan agreement for \$34.1 million with Regions Bank (Regions). The Trust and SM each guaranteed up to \$3.5 million of the principal amount of the loan, for an aggregate of up to \$7.0 million. The construction loan, which had a balance of \$35.5 million as of June 17, 2011 (including accrued interest), matured by its terms on April 15, 2010. In October 2010, Regions, as the lender, filed a complaint in the Circuit Court of Baldwin County, Alabama seeking appointment of a receiver for the Colonial Grand at Traditions, demanding payment of the outstanding balance under the loan from the Joint Venture and demanding payment on the guarantees from each of the guarantors, including the Trust, together with outstanding interest and other charges on the loan.

On or about December 13, 2010, MTGLQ Investors, L.P. (MTGLQ) purchased the construction loan from Regions. MTGLQ subsequently transferred all of its interest in the construction loan to MLQ-ELD, L.L.C. (MLQ). MLQ initiated foreclosure proceedings with respect to the property in January 2011. Pursuant to an order of the Court entered on May 17, 2011, MLQ was also substituted for Regions with respect to the claims of Regions against the Joint Venture and the guarantors. On June 17, 2011, the Company purchased the outstanding note and related loan documents from MLQ for \$21.1 million. The Company was substituted as the plaintiff in the action and the claims originally asserted by Regions against the Trust on the guarantee were dismissed. On August 1, 2011, CRLP acquired the Joint Venture s property through foreclosure.

G-136

Separately, in December 2010, SM and the Joint Venture (together, the JV Parties) filed cross-claims in the Circuit Court of Baldwin County, Alabama against CRLP, the Trust, CPSI and Colonial Construction Services, LLC (collectively, the Colonial Parties), in connection with the development and management of the Colonial Grand at Traditions by the Colonial Parties. The JV Parties asserted several claims relating to the Colonial Parties oversight and involvement in the development and construction of the property, including breach of management and development agreements, material misrepresentation, fraudulent concealment and breach of fiduciary duty. The JV Parties also asserted that the Colonial Parties conspired with Regions in connection with the activities alleged; however, in July 2012, the Court dismissed the conspiracy claims. The JV Parties have made a demand for an accounting of the costs of development and construction and claim damages of at least \$13.0 million, plus an unspecified amount of attorney s fees.

On February 1, 2013, a Baldwin County, Alabama jury awarded SM \$6.7 million in compensatory damages (\$5.0 million for its original investment plus \$1.7 million interest) and \$6.0 million in punitive damages for a total of \$12.7 million. The jury returned a verdict in favor of SM with respect to the Colonial Parties claims relating to the guaranty agreement it gave to Regions and in favor of the Joint Venture with respect to the Colonial Parties claims relating to the construction loan purchased by the Company. The Company believes the verdicts should be vacated or a new trial ordered, and intends to pursue all available post-trial remedies. However, the Company cannot give any assurance as to the outcome of these efforts. As a result of the jury verdict, the Company recorded an increase to its loss contingency reserve of \$12.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2012. The Company has included in its loss contingency an estimate of probable loss in connection with this matter, but currently cannot reasonably estimate any further possible loss, or any range of reasonably possible loss, in connection with this matter.

Mira Vista at James Island Litigation

As previously disclosed, the Trust and CRLP, along with multiple other parties, are named defendants in lawsuits arising out of alleged construction deficiencies with respect to condominium units at Mira Vista at James Island in Charleston, South Carolina. Mira Vista was acquired by certain of the Company's subsidiaries after the units were constructed and operated as a multifamily rental project. The condominium conversion occurred in 2006 and all 230 units were sold. The lawsuits, one filed on behalf of the condominium homeowners association and one filed by one of the purchasers (purportedly on behalf of all purchasers), were filed in the South Carolina state court, Charleston County, in March 2010, against various parties involved in the development, construction and conversion of the Mira Vista at James Island property, including the contractors, subcontractors, architects, engineers, lenders, the developer, inspectors, product manufacturers and distributors. The plaintiffs are seeking \$41.0 million in damages resulting from, among other things, alleged construction deficiencies and misleading sales practices. The lawsuits are currently in discovery. The Company is continuing to investigate the matter and evaluate its options and intends to vigorously defend itself against these claims. No assurance can be given that the matter will be resolved favorably to the Company. The Company has included in its loss contingency an estimate of probable loss in connection with this matter, but currently cannot reasonably estimate any further possible loss, or any range of reasonably possible loss, in connection with this matter.

UCO Litigation

The Company is involved in a contract dispute with a general contractor and three of its officers/managers in connection with construction cost overruns with respect to five for-sale projects which were being developed in a joint venture, CPSI-UCO, LLC. The President of the contractor is affiliated with the Company s joint venture partner.

In connection with the dispute, in January 2008, the contractor and three managers filed a lawsuit in the Circuit Court of Baldwin County against the Trust, CPSI, CPSI-UCO, LLC, CPSI-UCO Grander, LLC, CPSI-UCO Spanish Oaks, LLC; CPSI-UCO Cypress Village II, LLC; CPSI-UCO Cypress Village II, and CPSI Cypress Village III, LLC alleging, among other things, breach of contract, enforcement of a lien against real property,

G-137

misrepresentation, conversion, declaratory judgment and an accounting of costs, seeking \$10.3 million in damages, plus consequential and punitive damages. In December 2011, following a jury trial, the plaintiffs were awarded compensatory damages of approximately \$4.8 million for their claims against all defendants and the defendants were awarded compensatory damages of approximately \$0.5 million for their claims against the President of the contractor. The jury also found that the contractor breached its contract. In January 2012, the plaintiffs filed post-trial motions, including a request for an amendment to the judgment to add approximately \$4.8 million for attorneys fees, interest and costs. The defendants filed a motion for a new trial and opposed the award of attorney s fees to the plaintiffs. In the fourth quarter 2012, the Company recorded charges of \$8.2 million related to a proposed settlement with respect to the UCO litigation. The charges are comprised of an increase in the loss contingency accrual of \$4.9 million (in addition to the \$3.3 million loss contingency accrual previously recorded with respect to this litigation matter in the fourth quarter 2011) and a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge on certain for-sale residential lots in the Cypress Village development proposed to be included as part of the settlement. The loss contingency accrual and impairment are reflected in *Impairment*, *Legal Contingencies and Other Losses* on the Company s Consolidated Statement of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss). Settlement negotiations between the parties involving the settlement, including transfer of these tracts of land, are continuing. However, no assurance can be given that the such settlement discussions will be successful, that this matter will be resolved in the Company s favor or that additional charges will not be taken in future periods.

Grander Litigation

The Trust, CPSI, Marion Uter, UCO Partners, LLC, UCO Development, LLC, UCO Construction, LLC, UCO, LLC, CPSI-UCO Grander, LLC, and CPSI-UCO, LLC (collectively, the Colonial Entities) were sued by five individual purchasers of condominium units in The Grander alleging breach of contract, fraud, construction deficiencies and misleading sales practices. In April 2011, an arbitrator awarded rescission rights in favor of the purchasers against CPSI-UCO Grander, LLC. The Company is pursuing post-arbitration appeals, but no prediction of the likelihood or the amount of any resulting loss or recovery can be made at this time, and no assurance can be given that the matter will be resolved favorably. The Company has included in its loss contingency an estimate of probable loss in connection with this matter, but currently cannot reasonably estimate any further possible loss, or any range of reasonably possible loss, in connection with this matter.

Loss Contingencies

The outcomes of the claims, disputes and legal proceedings described or referenced above are subject to significant uncertainty. The Company records an accrual for loss contingencies when a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company reviews these accruals quarterly and makes revisions based on changes in facts and circumstances. When a loss contingency is not both probable and reasonably estimable, the Company does not accrue the loss. However, if the loss (or an additional loss in excess of the accrual) is at least a reasonable possibility and material, then the Company discloses a reasonable estimate of the possible loss, or range of loss, if such reasonable estimate can be made. If the Company cannot make a reasonable estimate of the possible loss, or range of loss, then that is disclosed.

The assessment of whether a loss is probable or a reasonable possibility, and whether the loss or range of loss is reasonably estimable, often involve a series of complex judgments about future events. Among the factors that the Company considers in this assessment, including with respect to the matters disclosed in this Note 20, are the nature of existing legal proceedings and claims, the asserted or possible damages or loss contingency (if reasonably estimable), the progress of the matter, existing law and precedent, the opinions or views of legal counsel and other advisers, the Company s experience in similar matters, the facts available to the Company at the time of assessment, and how the Company intends to respond, or has responded, to the proceeding or claim. The Company s assessment of these factors may change over time as individual proceedings or claims progress. For matters where the Company is not currently able to reasonably estimate a range of reasonably possible loss, the factors that have contributed to this determination include the following: (i) the damages sought are

G-138

Table of Contents

indeterminate, (ii) the proceedings are in the early stages, (iii) the matters involve novel or unsettled legal theories or a large or uncertain number of actual or potential cases or parties, and/or (iv) discussions with the parties in matters that are expected ultimately to be resolved through negotiation and settlement have not reached the point where the Company believes a reasonable estimate of loss, or range of loss, can be made. In such instances, the Company believes that there is considerable uncertainty regarding the timing or ultimate resolution of such matters, including a possible eventual loss or business impact, if any.

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Company s accrual for loss contingencies was \$26.8 million and \$8.8 million in the aggregate, respectively.

Note 21 Related Party Transactions

The Company has implemented a specific procedure for reviewing and approving related party construction activities. The Company historically has used Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC, a commercial construction company controlled by Mr. M. Miller Gorrie (a trustee of the Company), to manage and oversee certain of its development, redevelopment and expansion projects. This construction company is headquartered in Alabama and has completed numerous projects within the Sunbelt region of the United States. Through the use of market survey data and in-house development expertise, the Company negotiates the fees and contract prices of each development, redevelopment or expansion project with this company in compliance with the Company s Policy on Hiring Architects, Contractors, Engineers, and Consultants , which policy was developed to allow the selection of certain preferred vendors that have demonstrated an ability to consistently deliver a quality product at a competitive price and in a timely manner. Additionally, this company outsources all significant subcontractor work through a competitive bid process. Upon approval by the Management Committee, the Management Committee (a non-board level committee composed of various members of management of the Company) presents each project to the independent members of the Investment Committee (or, prior to April 2011, the Executive Committee) for final approval.

The Company paid \$8.0 million, \$4.1 million and \$13.7 million for property construction and tenant improvement costs to Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. In addition, the Company had \$1.6 million, \$2.4 million and \$1.9 million in outstanding construction invoices or retainage payable to this construction company at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Of these amounts, \$6.9 million, \$4.5 million and \$13.1 million were then paid to unaffiliated subcontractors for the construction of these development projects during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Mr. Gorrie has a 2.35% economic interest in Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC. These transactions were unanimously approved by the independent members of the Investment Committee or the Executive Committee, as applicable, consistent with the procedure described above.

The Company also leases space to Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC, pursuant to a lease originally entered into in 2003. The original lease, which ran through October 31, 2008, was amended in 2007 to extend the term of the lease through October 31, 2013. The underlying property was contributed to a joint venture during 2007 in which the Company retained a 15% noncontrolling interest. Effective June 30, 2012, the Company sold its 15% noncontrolling interest in the underlying property. The aggregate amount of rent paid in 2012 through the date of disposition was approximately \$0.4 million. During 2011 and 2010, the aggregate amount of rent paid was \$0.7 million and \$0.6 million, respectively.

Since 1993, Colonial Insurance Agency, a corporation wholly-owned by The Colonial Company (in which Thomas Lowder and James Lowder each has a 50% ownership interest), has provided insurance risk management, administration and brokerage services for the Company. As part of this service, the Company placed insurance coverage with unaffiliated insurance brokers and agents, including Willis of Alabama and Colonial Insurance Agency, through a competitive bidding process. The premiums paid to these unaffiliated insurance brokers and agents (as they deducted their commissions prior to paying the carriers) totaled \$7.2 million, \$5.9 million and \$5.8 million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The aggregate amounts paid by the

G-139

Table of Contents

Company to Colonial Insurance Agency, Inc., either directly or indirectly, for these services during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were \$0.6 million. The aggregate amounts paid by the Company to Colonial Insurance Agency, Inc., either directly or indirectly during 2010 were \$0.7 million. In addition, in 2010, the Company entered into an arrangement with an insurance carrier to advertise for its renter s insurance program at the Company s multifamily apartment communities. Pursuant to this arrangement, Colonial Insurance Agency, which serves as the insurance carrier s broker, paid the Company \$0.3 million in 2012 and 2011, in advertising fees. In 2010 the Company was paid \$0.2 million in advertising fees. Neither Mr. T. Lowder nor Mr. J. Lowder has an interest in these premiums.

Other than a specific procedure for reviewing and approving related party construction activities, the Company has not adopted a formal policy for the review and approval of related persons transactions generally. Pursuant to its charter, our audit committee reviews and discusses with management any such transaction if deemed material and relevant to an understanding of the Company s financial statements. Our policies and practices may not be successful in eliminating the influence of conflicts.

Note 22 Subsequent Events

Dispositions

On February 1, 2013, the Company sold Metropolitan Midtown, a commercial asset located in Charlotte, North Carolina, comprised of 170,000 square-feet of office space and 172,000 square-feet of retail space, for an aggregate sales price of \$94.4 million. The Company intends to use the proceeds from the sale to fund the multifamily development pipeline and to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s unsecured credit facility.

On January 14, 2013, the Company sold its 10% noncontrolling interest in Colonial Promenade Hoover (Highway 150, LLC), a 172,000 square-foot (excluding anchor-owned square feet) retail asset located in Birmingham, Alabama. The Company received \$0.5 million in cash and was released from its pro-rata share of the mortgage debt, which was \$1.5 million. The remaining proceeds from the sale were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s unsecured credit facility.

Distributions

On January 23, 2013, a cash distribution was declared to shareholders of the Trust in the amount of \$0.21 per common share and to partners of CRLP in the amount of \$0.21 per common unit, totaling approximately \$20.1 million. The \$0.21 per common share and per common unit distribution represents a 16.7% increase (\$0.03 per share/unit) when compared to the previous distribution. The distributions were declared to shareholders and partners of record as of February 4, 2013 and was paid on February 11, 2013.

G-140

Note 23 Quarterly Financial Information for the Trust (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. The information provided herein has been reclassified in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, and adjusted to reflect ASC 260, Earnings per Share, for all periods presented.

2012
(in thousands, except per share data)

(in thousands, except per share data)				
	First	Second	Third	Fourth
	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter
Revenues	\$ 94,390	\$ 97,029	\$ 99,114	\$ 103,011
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(7,572)	14,164	(9,426)	(20,438)
Income from discontinued operations	1,598	2,213	2,976	24,645
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders	\$ (5,974)	\$ 16,377	\$ (6,450)	\$ 4,207
Net (loss) income per share:				
Basic	\$ (0.07)	\$ 0.19	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.05
Diluted	\$ (0.07)	\$ 0.19	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.05
Weighted average common shares outstanding:				
Basic	87,012	87,201	87,325	87,454
Diluted	87,012	87,490	87,325	87,454

The increase in Revenues from quarter to quarter is attributable to the acquisition of five multifamily apartment communities during 2012 (one property in the first quarter, one property in the second quarter and three properties in the fourth quarter). In addition, the Company completed the development of two multifamily apartment communities during 2012.

In the second quarter 2012, the increase in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to the \$21.9 million gain that the Company recognized when it redeemed its 15% noncontrolling interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture.

In the third quarter of 2012, the decrease in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge recorded on a commercial asset.

G-141

In the fourth quarter 2012, the decrease in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to \$17.6 million in charges for loss contingencies related to certain ongoing litigation, \$4.2 million related to required infrastructure repairs on Colonial Promenade Alabaster and \$3.3 million of non-cash impairment charges recorded on certain for-sale residential lots. These charges were partially offset by the \$7.4 million gain recognized on the disposition of the Company s 10% noncontrolling interest in the Bluerock office portfolio and the \$2.8 million gain recognized on the Company s purchase of Colonial Grand at Research Park. The increase in Income from discontinued operations for the fourth quarter 2012 is attributable to gains recognized on the disposition of four multifamily apartment communities and one commercial asset.

2011
(in thousands, execut new share data)

(in thousands, except pe	er share data)			
	First	Second	Third	Fourth
	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter
Revenues	\$ 83,115	\$ 87,142	\$ 89,812	\$ 93,320
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(13,267)	(8,095)	(11,119)	6,819
Income from discontinued operations	1,656	1,658	23,506	1,089
Net (loss) income attributable to parent company	(11,611)	(6,437)	12,387	7,908
Preferred unit repurchase gains				2,500
Preferred unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders	\$ (11,611)	\$ (6,437)	\$ 12,387	\$ 9,089
Net (loss) income per share:				
Basic	\$ (0.15)	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.10
Diluted	\$ (0.15)	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.10
Weighted average common shares outstanding:				
Basic	79,512	83,588	86,573	86,769
Diluted	79,512	83,588	86,573	87,010

The increase in Revenues from quarter to quarter is attributable to the acquisition of eight multifamily apartment communities during 2011 (three properties in the first quarter, one property in the second quarter, three properties in the third quarter and one property in the fourth quarter).

The increase in Income from discontinued operations for the third quarter 2011 is attributable to gains recognized on the disposition of six multifamily apartment communities.

In the fourth quarter 2011, the increase in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to the \$18.8 million gain that the Company recognized on the sale of its 50% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Pinnacle at Turkey Creek.

G-142

Note 24 Quarterly Financial Information for CRLP (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. The information provided herein has been reclassified in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, and adjusted to reflect ASC 260, Earnings per Unit, for all periods presented.

2012
(in thousands, except per unit data)

(in thousands, except per unit data)				
	First	Second	Third	Fourth
	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter
Revenues	\$ 94,390	\$ 97,029	\$ 99,114	\$ 103,011
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(8,191)	11,173	(10,196)	(22,096)
Income from discontinued operations	1,729	2,393	3,222	26,643
Net (loss) income available to common unitholders	\$ (6,462)	\$ 13,566	\$ (6,974)	\$ 4,547
Net (loss) income per unit:				
Basic	\$ (0.07)	\$ 0.15	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.05
Diluted	\$ (0.07)	\$ 0.15	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.05
Weighted average common units outstanding:				
Basic	94,181	94,363	94,478	94,607
Diluted	94,181	94,652	94,478	94,607

The increase in Revenues from quarter to quarter is attributable to the acquisition of five multifamily apartment communities during 2012 (one property in the first quarter, one property in the second quarter and three properties in the fourth quarter). In addition, the Company completed the development of two multifamily apartment communities during 2012.

In the second quarter 2012, the increase in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to the \$21.9 million gain that the Company recognized when it redeemed its 15% noncontrolling interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture.

In the third quarter of 2012, the decrease in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge recorded on a commercial asset.

G-143

In the fourth quarter 2012, the decrease in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to \$17.6 million in charges for loss contingencies related to certain ongoing litigation, \$4.2 million related to required infrastructure repairs on Colonial Promenade Alabaster and \$3.3 million of non-cash impairment charges recorded on certain for-sale residential lots. These charges were partially offset by the \$7.4 million gain recognized on the disposition of the Company s 10% noncontrolling interest in the Bluerock office portfolio and the \$2.8 million gain recognized on the Company s purchase of Colonial Grand at Research Park. The increase in Income from discontinued operations for the fourth quarter 2012 is attributable to gains recognized on the disposition of four multifamily apartment communities and one commercial asset.

2011
(in thousands except per unit data)

(in thousands, except pe	r unii aaia)			
	First	Second	Third	Fourth
	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter
Revenues	\$ 83,115	\$ 87,142	\$ 89,812	\$ 93,320
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(13,565)	(7,885)	(11,064)	8,342
Income from discontinued operations	1,806	1,800	25,509	1,181
·				
Net (loss) income attributable to CRLP	(11,759)	(6,085)	14,445	9,523
Tet (1055) income attributable to CREF	(11,737)	(0,003)	11,113	7,525
Distributions to market described	(006)	(006)	(006)	(967)
Distributions to preferred unitholders	(906)	(906)	(906)	(867)
Preferred unit repurchase gains				2,500
Preferred unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)
Net (loss) income available to common unitholders	\$ (12,665)	\$ (6,991)	\$ 13,539	\$ 9,837
	Ψ (1 2 ,000)	Ψ (0,>>1)	Ψ 10,000	Ψ >,00.
Net (loss) income per unit:				
Basic	\$ (0.15)	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.10
Diluted	\$ (0.15)	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.10
Weighted average common units outstanding:				
Basic	86,796	90,847	93,826	93,960
Diluted	86,796	90,847	93,826	94,201

The increase in Revenues from quarter to quarter is attributable to the acquisition of eight multifamily apartment communities during 2011 (three properties in the first quarter, one property in the second quarter, three properties in the third quarter and one property in the fourth quarter).

The increase in Income from discontinued operations for the third quarter 2011 is attributable to gains recognized on the disposition of six multifamily apartment communities.

In the fourth quarter 2011, the increase in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to the \$18.8 million gain that the Company recognized on the sale of its 50% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Pinnacle at Turkey Creek.

G-144

Table of Contents

REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

[Explanatory Note: Items 6, 7 and 8 of this Form 10-K have been superseded by Items 6, 7 and 8 included in Exhibit 99.1 attached to the Colonial Realty Limited Partnership Current Report on From 8-K contained in Annex H to the accompanying joint consent solicitation/prospectus, which recasts the financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. Please refer to Exhibit 99.1 of the current report on Form 8-K contained in Annex H for the recast financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, including the reports of the independent registered public accounting firm with respect thereto.]

G-145

G-146

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Controls and Procedures with respect to the Trust

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure

The Trust has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Trust s Chief Executive Officer and the Interim Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness as of December 31, 2012 of the design and operation of the Trust s disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15. Based on this evaluation, the Trust s Chief Executive Officer and the Interim Chief Financial Officer concluded that the design and operation of these disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In the ordinary course of business, the Trust reviews its system of internal control over financial reporting to evaluate whether to implement any changes to its systems and processes to improve such controls and increase efficiency, while ensuring that we maintain an effective internal control environment. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Trust implemented a new system for financial reporting and accumulation of financial data. The new financial system is a significant component of the Trust s internal control over financial reporting, but was not made in response to any deficiency in our internal controls.

Other than the implementation of the new financial system described above, no changes in the Trust s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15) occurred during the year ended December 31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Trust s internal control over financial reporting.

Management s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Colonial Properties Trust is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). The Trust s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of the Trust sunnual financial statements, management has undertaken an assessment of the effectiveness of the Trust sunternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012. The assessment was based upon the framework described in Integrated Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Management such assessment included an evaluation of the design of internal control over financial reporting and testing of the operational effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. We have reviewed the results of the assessment with the Audit Committee of the Trust such Board of Trustees.

Based on our assessment under the criteria set forth in COSO, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2012, the Trust maintained effective internal control over financial reporting.

G-147

Table of Contents

The effectiveness of the Trust s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Controls and Procedures with respect to CRLP

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure

CRLP has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Trust s Chief Executive Officer and the Interim Chief Financial Officer, on behalf of the Trust in its capacity as the general partner of CRLP, of the effectiveness as of December 31, 2012 of the design and operation of CRLP s disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15. Based on this evaluation, the Trust s Chief Executive Officer and the Interim Chief Financial Officer, on behalf of the Trust in its capacity as the general partner of CRLP, concluded that the design and operation of CRLP s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In the ordinary course of business, CRLP reviews its system of internal control over financial reporting to evaluate whether to implement any changes to its systems and processes to improve such controls and increase efficiency, while ensuring that we maintain an effective internal control environment. During the year ended December 31, 2012, CRLP implemented a new system for financial reporting and accumulation of financial data. The new financial system is a significant component of CRLP s internal control over financial reporting, but was not made in response to any deficiency in our internal controls.

Other than the implementation of the new financial system described above, no changes in CRLP s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15) occurred during the year ended December 31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, CRLP s internal control over financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Colonial Properties Trust, acting on behalf of the Trust in its capacity as the general partner of CRLP, is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended CRLP s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of CRLP s annual financial statements, management has undertaken an assessment of the effectiveness of CRLP s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012. The assessment was based upon the framework described in Integrated Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO. Management s assessment included an evaluation of the design of internal control over financial reporting and testing of the operational effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. We have reviewed the results of the assessment with the Audit Committee of the Trust s Board of Trustees.

Based on our assessment under the criteria set forth in COSO, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2012, CRLP maintained effective internal control over financial reporting.

G-148

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Trustees and Shareholders of Colonial Properties Trust

Birmingham, Alabama

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Colonial Properties Trust and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in *Internal Control Integrated Framework* issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on the criteria established in *Internal Control Integrated Framework* issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012 of the Company and our report dated February 28, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Birmingham, Alabama February 28, 2013

G-149

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

G-150

PART III

Item 10. Trustees, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this item with respect to trustees, compliance with the Section 16(a) reporting requirements, procedures relating to trustee nominations, the audit committee and the audit committee financial expert is hereby incorporated by reference from the material appearing in our definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting of shareholders to be held in 2013 (the Proxy Statement) under the captions Election of Trustees Nominees for Election, Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance and Information Regarding Trustees and Corporate Governance Committees of the Board of Trustees Audit Committee, Information Regarding Trustees and Corporate Governance Committee Membership, respectively. Information required by this item with respect to executive officers is provided in Item 1 of this Form 10-K. See Executive Officers of the Company. Information required by this item with respect to the availability of our code of ethics is provided in Item 1 of this Form 10-K. See Item 1-Available Information.

We intend to disclose any amendment to, or waiver from, our code of ethics on our website within four business days following the date of the amendment or waiver.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under the captions Compensation Discussion and Analysis , Compensation of Trustees and Executive Officers , Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation and Compensation Committee Report .

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters.

The information with respect to the Trust pertaining to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under the caption Voting Securities Held by Principal Shareholders and Management.

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of CRLP units as of February 15, 2013 for:

- (1) each person known by CRLP to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of CRLP s outstanding units;
- (2) each trustee of the Trust and each named executive officer of the Trust; and
- (3) the trustees and executive officers of the Trust as a group.

Each person named in the table has sole voting and investment power with respect to all units shown as beneficially owned by such person, except as otherwise set forth in the notes to the table. References in the table to units are to units of limited partnership interest in CRLP. Unless otherwise provided in the table, the address of each beneficial owner is Colonial Plaza, Suite 750, 2101 Sixth Avenue North, Birmingham, Alabama 35203.

G-151

Name of Beneficial Owner	Number of Units	Percent of Units
Colonial Properties Trust	88,450,069	93.2%
Thomas H. Lowder	724,765 (2)	0.8%
James K. Lowder	724,636 ⁽³⁾	0.8%
Carl F. Bailey		*
Edwin M. Crawford		*
M. Miller Gorrie	266,523 (4)	*
William M. Johnson	210,200	*
Herbert A. Meisler	17,595	*
Claude B. Nielsen	5,865	*
Harold W. Ripps	1,925,975	2.0%
John W. Spiegel		*
C. Reynolds Thompson, III		*
Paul F. Earle		*
John P. Rigrish	17,595 ⁽⁵⁾	*
Bradley P. Sandidge		*
All executive officers and trustees as a group (15		
persons)	3,893,154	4.1%

^{*} Less than 1%

- (1) The number of units outstanding as of February 15, 2013 was 95,602,821.
- (2) Includes 89,415 units owned by Thomas H. Lowder Investments, LLC, and 635,350 units directly owned by Thomas H. Lowder.
- (3) Includes 89,285 units owned by James K. Lowder Investments, LLC and 635,351 units directly owned by James K. Lowder, of which 635,351 are pledged to bank loans.
- (4) Includes 157,140 units owned by MJE, LLC, and 109,383 units directly owned by Mr. Gorrie.
- (5) Includes 17,595 units owned directly by Mr. Rigrish, which are pledged to a bank loan.

The following table summarizes information, as of December 31, 2012, relating to the Trust s equity compensation plans pursuant to which options to purchase common shares and restricted common shares may be granted from time to time.

				Number of securities remaining
	Number of securities			available for
	to be issued upon	Weigh	ted-average	future issuance
	exercise of outstanding	exerc	cise price of	under equity
	options,	outstand	ling options,	compensation
	warrants and	warı	rants and	plans (excluding
Plan Category	rights (a)	r	rights (b)	securities reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved				
by security holders (1)	2,609,098 (2)	\$	19.52	4,415,964
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders				
Total	2,609,098	\$	19.52	4,415,964

⁽¹⁾ These plans include the Trust s 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended in 2011, Third Amended and Restated Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan, as amended in 1998 and 2006, and Trustee Share Option Plan, as amended in 1997.

⁽²⁾ Includes 698,682 restricted shares that had not vested as of December 31, 2012.

G-152

Table of Contents

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Trustee Independence.

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under the captions Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Information Regarding Trustees and Corporate Governance Board of Trustees Assessment of Independence.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by reference from the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under the captions Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Summary of Audit Fees and Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Pre-Approval Policy for Services by Auditor.

G-153

Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules. 15(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following financial statements of the Trust are included in Part II, Item 8 of this report:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

The following financial statements of CRLP are included in Part II, Item 8 of this report:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Part II, Item 8 of this report

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, included in Part II, Item 8 of this report

15(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules for the Trust and CRLP are listed on the financial statement schedule index at the end of this report.

All other schedules have been omitted because the required information of such other schedules is not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule or because the required information is included in the consolidated financial statements.

G-154

15(a)(3) Exhibits

Exhibit No.	Exhibit	Reference
3.1	Declaration of Trust of the Trust, as amended	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2010
3.2	Bylaws of the Trust, as amended	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 31, 2012
4.1	Indenture dated as of July 22, 1996, by and between CRLP and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (formerly Bankers Trust Company)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to CRLP s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed with the SEC on October 10, 2003
4.2	First Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 31, 1998, by and between CRLP and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (formerly Bankers Trust Company)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13.1 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1998 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.1	Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of CRLP	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 31, 2012
10.2	Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated September 29, 1993, among the Trust and the persons named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Trust s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A, No. 33-65954, filed with the SEC on September 21, 1993
10.3	Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated March 25, 1997, among the Trust and the persons named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.2 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1997 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.4	Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated November 4, 1994, among the Trust and the persons named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.3 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1997 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

G-155

Exhibit No.	Exhibit	Reference
10.5	Supplemental Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated August 20, 1997, among the Trust and the persons named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.4 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1997 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.6	Supplemental Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated November 1, 1997, among the Trust, CRLP and B&G Properties Company LLP	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.5 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1997 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.7	Supplemental Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated July 1, 1997, among the Trust, CRLP and Colonial Commercial Investments, Inc.	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.6 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1997 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.8	Supplemental Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated July 1, 1996, among the Trust and the persons named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.7 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1997 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.9	Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Trust, CRLP and each of the Trust s executive officers and trustees	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2011
10.10	Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated July 1, 1998, among the Trust and the persons named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.9 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1998 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)

G-156

Exhibit No.	Exhibit		Reference
10.11	Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated July 31, 1997, among the Trust and the persons named therein		Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.10 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1998 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.12	Supplemental Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated November 18, 1998, among the Trust, CRLP and Colonial Commercial Investments, Inc.		Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.11 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1998 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.13	Registration Rights and Lock-Up Agreement dated April 30, 1999, among the Trust, CRLP and MJE, L.L.C.		Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.13 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1999 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.14.1	Form of Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan Agreement 2 Year Vesting		Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.1 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2004
10.14.2	Form of Employee Share Option and Restricted Shares Plan Agreement 3 Year Vesting		Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.2 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2004
10.14.3	Form of Employee Share Option and Restricted Shares Plan Agreement 5 Year Vesting		Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.3 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2004
10.14.4	Form of Employee Share Option and Restricted Shares Plan Agreement 8 Year Vesting		Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.4 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2004
10.14.5	Amended and Restated Trustee Restricted Share Agreement Year Vesting	1	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.5 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2004
10.14.6	Amended and Restated Trustee Non-Incentive Share Option Agreement		Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.6 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30, 2004

G-157

Table of Contents

Exhibit No.	Exhibit	Reference
10.15	Non-employee Trustee Share Option Plan	Incorporated by reference to the Trust s Registration Statement on Form S-8, No. 333-27203, filed with the SEC on May 15, 1997 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.16	Employee Share Purchase Plan	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2003
10.16.1	Amendment to Employee Share Purchase Plan	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21.1 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2006
10.17	Annual Incentive Plan	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Trust s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A, No. 33-65954, filed with the SEC on September 3, 1993 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.18	Executive Unit Purchase Program Program Summary	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1999 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.19	Non-employee Trustee Option Agreement	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Trust s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A, No. 33-65954, filed with the SEC on September 3, 1993
10.20	Non-Competition Agreement, dated May 4, 2007, among Colonial Realty Limited Partnership, Colonial Properties Trust and Thomas H. Lowder	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007

G-158

Exhibit No.	Exhibit	Reference
10.21	Officers and Trustees Indemnification Agreement	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Trust s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A, No. 33-65954, filed with the SEC on September 21, 1993 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.22	Partnership Agreement of CPSLP	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Trust s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A, No. 33-65954, filed September 21, 1993 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.23	First Amendment to Partnership Agreement of CPSLP	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28.1 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2005
10.24	Articles of Incorporation of Colonial Real Estate Services, Inc., predecessor of CPSI, as amended	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 1994 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.25	Bylaws of predecessor of Colonial Real Estate Services, Inc., predecessor of CPSI	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Trust s Registration Statement on Form S-11/A, No. 33-65954, filed September 3, 1993 (which document may be found and reviewed in the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, in the files therein relating to the Trust, whose file number is 1-12358)
10.26	Credit Agreement dated as of March 22, 2005, by and among CRLP, as Borrower, Colonial Properties Trust, as Guarantor, Wachovia Bank, as Agent for the Lenders, and the Lenders named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 25, 2005
10.27	First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated June 2, 2006, among CRLP, the Trust, Wachovia Bank, National Association as Agent for the Lenders and the Lenders named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007

G-159

Table of Contents

Exhibit No.	Exhibit	Reference
10.28	Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated June 21, 2007, among CRLP, the Trust, Wachovia Bank, National Association as Agent for the Lenders and the Lenders named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 24, 2007
10.29	Form of Restricted Share Agreement (20% per year vesting)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 3, 2005
10.30	Form of Restricted Share Agreement (50%/25%/25% vesting)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 3, 2005
10.31	Form of Restricted Share Agreement (33 1/3% per year vesting)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 3, 2005
10.32	Form of Restricted Share Agreement (60%/40% vesting)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 3, 2005
10.33	Form of Restricted Share Agreement (eighth anniversary vesting)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 3, 2005
10.34	Form of Share Option Agreement (20% per year vesting)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 3, 2005
10.35	Colonial Properties Trust Third Amended and Restated Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan, as amended	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2006
10.36	Form of Colonial Properties Trust Third Amended and Restated Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan Restricted Share Agreement	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2006
10.37	Form of Colonial Properties Trust Third Amended and Restated Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan Performance Share Agreement	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2006
10.38	Form of Colonial Properties Trust Third Amended and Restated Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan Restricted Share Agreement	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2006
10.39	Form of Colonial Properties Trust Third Amended and Restated Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan Share Option Agreement	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2006

G-160

Exhibit No.	Exhibit	Reference
10.40	2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended	Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Trust s Definitive Proxy Statement, filed with the SEC on March 11, 2011
10.40.1	Summary of the 2011 Annual Incentive Plan of the Trust	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Trust s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2011
10.40.2	Form of Colonial Properties Trust Non-Qualified Share Option Agreement (Employee Form)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41.4 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2011
10.40.3	Form of Colonial Properties Trust Non-Qualified Share Option Agreement (Trustee Form)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41.5 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2011
10.40.4	Form of Colonial Properties Trust Restricted Share Agreement (Employee Form)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 29, 2008
10.40.5	Form of Colonial Properties Trust Restricted Share Agreement (Trustee Form)	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 29, 2008
10.41	Master Credit Facility Agreement by and between CMF 15 Portfolio LLC, as Borrower, CRLP, as Guarantor, and PMC ARCS LLC, as Lender	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 5, 2009
10.42	Fixed Facility Note (Standard Maturity) dated February 27, 2009, in the original principal amount of \$259 million made by CMF 15 Portfolio LLC to the order of PNC ARCS LLC	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 5, 2009
10.43	Fixed Facility Note (Standard Maturity) dated February 27, 2009, in the original principal amount of \$91 million made by CMF 15 Portfolio LLC to the order of PNC ARCS LLC	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 5, 2009
10.44	Master Credit Facility Agreement by and between CMF 7 Portfolio LLC, as Borrower, CRLP, as Guarantor, and Grandbridge Real Estate Capital LLC, as Lender.	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 1, 2009
10.45	Fixed Facility Note (Standard Maturity) dated May 29, 2009, in the original principal amount of \$145.2 million made by CMF 7 Portfolio LLC to the order of Grandbridge Real Estate Capital LLC.	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 1, 2009
10.46	Fixed Facility Note (Standard Maturity) dated May 29, 2009, in the original principal amount of \$11.2 million made by CMF 7 Portfolio LLC to the order of Grandbridge Real Estate Capital LLC.	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 1, 2009

G-161

Exhibit No.	Exhibit	Reference
10.47	Agreement for Purchase of Membership Interests, dated November 25, 2009, by and among CRTP OP, LLC, ACP Fitness Center LLC, Colonial Office JV LLC and CPSI.	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.56 to the Trust s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2009
10.48	Equity Distribution Agreement, dated May 10, 2011, by and among the Trust, CRLP and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, as Agent	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 10, 2011
10.49	Equity Distribution Agreement, dated May 10, 2011, by and among the Trust, CRLP and Wells Fargo Securities LLC, as Agent	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Trust s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 10, 2011
10.50	Term Loan Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2011, by and among CRLP and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and lender, and the other agents and lenders party thereto	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 28, 2011
10.51	Guaranty, dated as of July 22, 2011, by the Trust in favor of the agent and the lenders party to the Term Loan Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2011	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 28, 2011
10.52	Credit Agreement, dated March 30, 2012, by and among CRLP and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent and lender, and the other agents and lenders party thereto	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 5, 2012
10.53	First Amendment, dated as of May 11, 2012, to Credit Agreement dated March 30, 2012, by and among CRLP, as Borrower, the Trust, as Guarantor, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Agent for the lenders, and the lenders named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012
10.54	Guaranty, dated as of March 30, 2012, by the Trust in favor of the agent and the lenders party to the Credit Agreement, dated as of March 30, 2012	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 5, 2012
10.55	Term Loan Arrangement, dated as of May 11, 2012, by and among CRLP, U.S. Bank National Association and PNC Capital Markets LLC as joint lead arrangers, and other agents and lenders party thereto	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 16, 2012
10.56	Guaranty, dated as of May 11, 2012, by the Trust in favor of the agent and the lenders party to the Term Loan Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2012	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 16, 2012

G-162

Exhibit No.	Exhibit	Reference
10.57	First Amendment, dated as of March 30, 2012, to Term Loan Agreement dated July 22, 2011, by and among CRLP, as Borrower, the Trust, as Guarantor, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Agent for the lenders, and the lenders named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012
10.58	Second Amendment, dated as of May 11, 2012, to Term Loan Agreement dated July 22, 2011, by and among CRLP, as Borrower, Colonial Properties Trust, as Guarantor, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Agent for the lenders, and the lenders named therein	Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 8, 2012
12.1	Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Share Distributions	Filed herewith
12.2	Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges for CRLP	Filed herewith
21.1	List of Subsidiaries	Filed herewith
23.1	Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP	Filed herewith
31.1	Trust CEO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002	Filed herewith
31.2	Trust CFO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002	Filed herewith
31.3	CRLP CEO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002	Filed herewith
31.4	CRLP CFO Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002	Filed herewith
32.1	Trust CEO Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002	Filed herewith
32.2	Trust CFO Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002	Filed herewith
32.3	CRLP CEO Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002	Filed herewith
32.4	CRLP CFO Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002	Filed herewith

G-163

Filed herewith

Table of Contents

Exhibit No. Exhibit Reference

101 XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language). The

following materials from the Trust s and CRLP s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2012, formatted in XBRL: (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of

December 31, 2012 and 2011 (audited); (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (audited); (iii) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (audited); (iv) Consolidated Statements Shareholders Equity (Trust) and Equity (CRLP) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (audited); and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited). As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information is furnished and not filed for purpose of Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act and Section 18 of the Exchange Act.

Denotes a management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.

15(b) Exhibits

The list of Exhibits filed with this report is set forth in response to Item 15(a)(3). The required exhibit index has been filed with the exhibits.

15(c) Financial Statements

The Trust and CRLP file as part of this report the financial statement schedules listed on the financial statement schedule index at the end of this report.

G-164

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on February 28, 2013.

Colonial Properties Trust

By: /s/ Thomas H. Lowder Thomas H. Lowder

> Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 28, 2013.

Signature

/s/ Thomas H. Lowder Thomas H. Lowder	Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Bradley P. Sandidge Bradley P. Sandidge	Executive Vice President Accounting and Interim Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ Carl F. Baily Carl F. Bailey	Trustee
/s/ Edwin M. Crawford Edwin M. Crawford	Trustee
/s/ M. Miller Gorrie M. Miller Gorrie	Trustee
/s/ William M. Johnson William M. Johnson	Trustee
/s/ James K. Lowder James K. Lowder	Trustee
/s/ Herbert A. Meisler Herbert A. Meisler	Trustee
/s/ Claude B. Nielsen Claude B. Nielsen	Trustee
/s/ Harold W. Ripps Harold W. Ripps	Trustee
/s/ John W. Spiegel John W. Spiegel	Trustee

Table of Contents 148

G-165

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on February 28, 2013.

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

a Delaware limited partnership

By: Colonial Properties Trust, its general partner

By: /s/ Thomas H. Lowder Thomas H. Lowder Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities with Colonial Properties Trust indicated on February 28, 2013.

Signature

/s/ Thomas H. Lowder Thomas H. Lowder	Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Bradley P. Sandidge Bradley P. Sandidge	Executive Vice President Accounting and Interim Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ Carl F. Bailey Carl F. Bailey	Trustee
/s/ Edwin M. Crawford Edwin M. Crawford	Trustee
/s/ M. Miller Gorrie M. Miller Gorrie	Trustee
/s/ William M. Johnson William M. Johnson	Trustee
/s/ James K. Lowder James K. Lowder	Trustee
/s/ Herbert A. Meisler Herbert A. Meisler	Trustee
/s/ Claude B. Nielsen Claude B. Nielsen	Trustee
/s/ Harold W. Ripps Harold W. Ripps	Trustee
/s/ John W. Spiegel John W. Spiegel	Trustee

G-166

Table of Contents

Colonial Properties Trust

Index to Financial Statement Schedules

S-1 Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

S-2 Schedule III Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

G-167

Appendix S-1

SCHEDULE II

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

(\$ in thousands)

				Charged			
	Beg	ginning	Charged to	to		Bala	nce End of
Description	Balance	e of Period	Expense	Other Accounts	Deductions		Period
Allowance for uncollectable accounts deducted from accounts							
receivable in the balance sheet							
December 31, 2012	\$	1,136	458		$(786)^{(1)}$	\$	808
December 31, 2011	\$	1,688	485		$(1,037)^{(1)}$	\$	1,136
December 31, 2010	\$	1,688	499		(499) (1)	\$	1,688
Allowance for uncollectable accounts deducted from notes							
receivable in the balance sheet							
December 31, 2012	\$					\$	
December 31, 2011	\$	249			(249) (1)	\$	
December 31, 2010	\$	1,850			$(1,601)^{(1)}$	\$	249
Allowance for straight line rent deducted from other assets in the							
balance sheet							
December 31, 2012	\$	926		201 (2)	(54) (1)	\$	1,073
December 31, 2011	\$	801		145 (2)	$(20)^{(1)}$	\$	926
December 31, 2010	\$	830		133 (2)	(162) (1)	\$	801
Valuation allowance deducted from deferred tax assets on the							
balance sheet							
December 31, 2012	\$	44,788	13,031			\$	57,819
December 31, 2011	\$	38,492	6,296			\$	44,788
December 31, 2010	\$	32,600	5,892			\$	38,492

⁽¹⁾ Uncollectable accounts written off, and payments received on previously written-off accounts.

G-S-1

⁽²⁾ Amounts netted against Minimum rent in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Appendix S-2

SCHEDULE III

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

DECEMBER 31, 2012

Gross Amount at which Carried at Close Initial Cost to Company of Period Cost Capitalized Date Completed/ Subsequent Buildings and to Buildings and Accumulated Placed in Date Depreciable Total (2) Description Encumbrances (1) Land Improvements Acquisition Land Improvements Depreciation Service Acquired Lives-Years **Multifamily:** Ashley Park 1988 3-40 Years 3,702,098 15,332,923 2,269,537 3,702,098 17,602,460 21,304,558 (6,568,169)2005 Autumn Park 4,407,166 35,387,619 1,741,246 4,407,166 37,128,865 41,536,031 (7,922,791)2001/04 2005 3-40 Years Colonial Grand at Arringdon 18,104,424 3,016,358 23,295,172 1,624,392 3,016,358 24,919,564 27,935,922 (8,086,596)2003 2004 3-40 Years Coloinal Grand at Ashton Oaks 3,659,400 2009 3-40 Years 30,627,676 5,280,860 29,006,216 34,287,076 (5,923,919)2007 Colonial Grand at 4,261,351 32,033,939 2008 Ayrsley 6,970,497 29,324,793 36,295,290 (7,726,366)2006 3-40 Years Colonial Grand at Barrett Creek 18,378,000 3,320,000 27,237,381 1,246,602 3,320,000 28,483,983 31,803,983 (8,280,487)1999 2005 3-40 Years Colonial Grand at Bear Creek 22,567,667 4,360,000 32,029,388 2,223,536 4,360,000 34,252,924 38,612,924 (10,205,934)1998 2005 3-40 Years Colonial Grand at 2,590,015 Bellevue 22,274,152 31,544,370 (9,822,229)1996 2005 3-40 Years 3,490,000 3,490,986 34,133,399 37,624,385 Colonial Grand at Berkeley Lake 1,800,000 16,551,734 1,120,351 1,800,000 17,672,085 19,472,085 (5,711,301)1998 2004 3-40 Years Colonial Grand at Beverly Crest 14,521,257 1996 3-40 Years 2,400,000 20,718,143 3,117,535 2,400,000 23,835,678 26,235,678 (7,672,458)2004 Colonial Grand at 3-40 Years Brier Creek 23,887,781 3,640,000 33,742,241 959,981 3,640,000 34,702,222 38,342,222 (3,691,405)2010 2010 Colonial Grand at Brier Falls 3-40 Years 4,200,000 40,048,964 771,597 4,200,000 40,820,561 45,020,561 (1,978,706)2012 2012 14,956,652 2008 Colonial 4,032,000 24,272,721 153,300 4,032,000 24,426,021 28,458,021 (6,271,767)2005 3-40 Years Grand at Canyon

Edgar Filing: BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC - Form DEFA14A

Creek											
Colonial											
Grand at											
Canyon											The state of the s
Ranch		3,264,000	20,813,448	70,471	3,264,000	20,883,919	24,147,919	(136,566)	2012	2012	3-40 Years
Colonial											,
Grand at											,
Commerce											,
Park		3,120,000	27,230,728	965,859	3,120,000	28,196,587	31,316,587	(1,726,759)	2008	2011	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Grand at											
Cornelius		1,888,000	21,258,880	903,910	1,888,000	22,162,790	24,050,790	(2,023,908)	2009	2011	3-40 Years
Colonial											,
Grand at											•
Crabtree											
Valley	9,869,425	2,100,000	15,272,196	1,631,222	2,100,000	16,903,418	19,003,418	(4,816,465)	1997	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Grand at											
Cypress											
Cove		3,960,000	24,721,680	2,323,383	3,960,000	27,045,063	31,005,063	(6,909,246)	2001	2006	3-40 Years

Gross Amount at which Carried at Close

Table of Contents

		Initial Cost	t to Company	Cost Capitalized	Gioss Amoi	of Period	ieu at Ciose		Date Completed/	u/	
-	Encumbrances (1)	Land	Buildings and Improvements		Land	Buildings and Improvements	Total ⁽²⁾	Accumulated Depreciation	Completed/ Placed in Service	Date	Depreciable d Lives-Years
Colonial Grand at Desert Vista	а	12,000,000		40,157,684	13,586,197	38,571,487	52,157,684	(7,155,393)) 2009	2007	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at		12,000,		10,-2	10,000	50,2,	52 ,,	(,,,,			
Edgewater Colonial	26,456,000	1,540,000	12,671,606	18,280,680	2,602,325	29,889,961	32,492,286	(15,679,258)) 1990	1994	3-40 Years
Grand at Fairview Colonial		3,840,000	25,831,344	194,452	3,840,000	26,025,796	29,865,796	(621,422)) 2012	2012	3-40 Years
Grand at Godley											
Station Colonial Grand at	14,850,334	1,594,008	27,057,678	1,355,725	1,894,008	28,113,403	30,007,411	(6,799,964)) 2001	2006	3-40 Years
Hammocks Colonial		3,437,247	26,514,000	2,585,419	3,437,247	29,099,419	32,536,666	(8,009,272)) 1997	2005	3-40 Years
Grand at Hampton Preserve		10,500,000		41,927,132	10,914,151	41,512,981	52,427,132	(1,405,988)) 2012	2007	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at Heather		10,000,12		11,721,	10,72.,	11,012,5	J2, 12, ,	(1,,	20	200.	
Heatner Glen Colonial		3,800,000		36,574,837	4,134,235	36,240,602	40,374,837	(16,082,321)	2000	1998	3-40 Years
Grand at Heathrow	19,298,813	2,560,661	17,612,990	2,880,480	2,674,133	20,379,998	23,054,131	(10,354,397)) 1997	1994/97	7 3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at Hebron		3,900,000	29,680,352	510,686	3,900,000	30,191,038	34,091,038	(1,706,494)) 2011	2011	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at		· ·		·							
Huntersville Colonial Grand at	e 14,165,000	3,593,366		22,993,752	5,439,551	21,147,567	26,587,118	(5,393,937)) 2008	2006	3-40 Years
Inverness Commons		6,976,500	33,892,731	922,295	6,976,500	34,815,026	41,791,526	(8,277,779)) 2001	2006	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at Lake Mary		2,808,780		22,929,352	3,687,514	22,050,618	25,738,132	(430,031)) 2012	2002	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at		2,000,		22,> 2- ,.	3,65.,2	22,000,1	25,752,	(,		200	
Lakewood Ranch Colonial		2,320,442		24,885,314	2,359,875	24,845,881	27,205,756	(10,735,083)) 1999	1997	3-40 Years
Grand at Legacy Park	ζ	2,212,005	23,076,117	1,795,815	2,212,005	24,871,932	27,083,937	(6,179,458)) 2001	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at Liberty Park	k 16,702,589	2,296,019		27,343,868	2,296,019	27,343,868	29,639,887	(12,406,011)) 2000	1998	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at		· ·									
Madison	21,473,000	1,689,400		23,392,292	1,831,550	23,250,142	25,081,692	(10,529,661)) 2000	1998	3-40 Years

Colonial Grand at Mallard Creek	14,646,982	2,911,443	1,277,575	16,892,253	3,320,438	17,760,833	21,081,271	(5,199,504)	2005	2003	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at Mallard Lake	16,532,859	3,020,000	24,070,350	2,495,694	3,020,000	26,566,044	29,586,044	(7,754,694)	1998	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at Matthews	10,332,037		24,070,550								
Commons Colonial Grand at McDaniel		2,026,288	26 220 220	19,440,073	3,002,207	18,464,154	21,466,361	(4,250,914)	2008 1997	2007	3-40 Years 3-40 Years
Farm Colonial Grand at Mount		4,240,000	36,239,339	2,706,978	4,240,000	38,946,317	43,186,317	(10,493,387)		2006	
Vernon	14 364 100	2 130 000	24 943 402	1 718 251	2 130 000	26 661 653	28 791 653	(8 620 248)	1997	2004	3-40 Years

Gross Amount at which Carried at Close

Table of Contents

		Initial Cost	st to Company	Cost Capitalized		of Period	ned at Close		Date		
Description	Encumbrances (1)	Land	Buildings and Improvements	Subsequent to	Land	Buildings and Improvements	Total (2)	Accumulated Depreciation	Completed/ Placed in Service	Date	Depreciable l Lives-Years
Colonial Grand at OldTown						The state of the s		= =1			
Scottsdale North		4,837,040	5,271,474	24,238,804	4,837,040	29,510,278	34,347,318	(7,113,230)	2001	2006	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at OldTown Scottsdale											
South Colonial		6,139,320	6,558,703	30,665,496	6,139,320	37,224,199	43,363,519	(9,099,540)	2001	2006	3-40 Years
Grand at Onion Creel Colonial	k	3,505,449		29,043,225	5,127,405	27,421,269	32,548,674	(7,006,165)	2009	2005	3-40 Years
Grand at Palm Vista Colonial		4,262,500	36,101,294	615,571	4,262,500	36,716,865	40,979,365	(3,236,221)	2007	2011	3-40 Years
Grand at Patterson Place	14,395,531	2,016,000	19,060,725	2,489,850	2,016,000	21,550,575	23,566,575	(6,848,304)	1997	2004	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at	14,373,331	2,010,000	19,000,725	2,407,000	2,010,000	21,330,373	23,300,373	(0,040,504)	1771	200 1	3-40 Tears
Pleasant Hil Colonial	d	6,024,000	38,454,690	3,144,803	6,006,978	41,616,515	47,623,493	(10,704,556)	1996	2006	3-40 Years
Grand at Quarterdeck Colonial	ζ	9,123,452	12,297,699	1,785,499	9,123,452	14,083,198	23,206,650	(4,493,349)	1987	2005	3-40 Years
Grand at Research Park		5,550,000	31,811,328	204,854	5,550,000	32,016,182	37,566,182	(379,329)	2012	2012	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at		5,550,0	J1,0 = = ,=		3,330,0	32,011,	31,000,	(5.2,2	202		3 10
River Oaks Colonial	11,147,000	2,160,000	17,424,336	2,731,453	2,160,000	20,155,789	22,315,789	(6,734,278)	1992	2004	3-40 Years
Grand at River Plantation		2,320,000	19,669,298	2,740,008	2,320,000	22,409,306	24,729,306	(7,371,906)	1994	2004	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at Riverchase											
Trails Colonial		3,450,000	20,655,764	1,156,007	3,450,000	21,811,771	25,261,771	(2,656,705)	2010	2010	3-40 Years
Grand at Round Rock Colonial	k 22,944,843	2,647,588		32,666,911	2,700,769	32,613,730	35,314,499	(8,928,066)	1997	2004	3-40 Years
Grand at Scottsdale		3,780,000	25,444,988	734,290	3,780,000	26,179,278	29,959,278	(6,768,880)	1999	2006	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at Seven Oaks	s 19,774,000	3,439,125	19,943,544	1,938,104	3,439,125	21,881,648	25,320,773	(7,903,248)	2004	2004	3-40 Years
Colonial Grand at Shiloh	28,539,612	5,976,000	43,556,770	1,976,134	5,976,000	45,532,904	51,508,904	(11,685,647)	2002	2006	3-40 Years
1											

Colonial											
Grand at Silverado		2,375,425	17,744,643	906,459	2,375,425	18,651,102	21,026,527	(6,049,984)	2005	2003	3-40 Years
Colonial		2,575,125	17,711,015	700,137	2,373,123	10,031,102	21,020,027	(0,01),001)	2003	2003	3 10 Tears
Grand at											
Silverado											
Reserve		2,392,000		22,255,377	2,726,325	21,921,052	24,647,377	(5,947,679)	2005	2003	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Grand at											
Town Park	31,434,000	2,647,374		38,209,848	3,110,118	37,747,104	40,857,222	(17,169,535)	2005	2004	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Grand at											
Town Park											
Reserve		867,929		9,238,233	957,784	9,148,378	10,106,162	(2,733,106)	2004	2004	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Grand at											
Traditions		2,430,000	14,826,848	371,871	2,430,000	15,198,719	17,628,719	(1,085,561)	2007	2011	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Grand at											
Trinity											
Commons	29,841,176	5,333,807	35,815,269	2,409,407	5,333,807	38,224,676	43,558,483	(8,747,972)	2000/02	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Grand at											
University											
Center		1,872,000	12,166,656	830,107	1,872,000	12,996,763	14,868,763	(3,328,294)	2005	2006	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Grand at											
Valley		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •				12 22 22	45.054.000	(10.000.010)	400=	•	
Ranch	25,257,297	2,805,241	38,037,251	4,229,401	2,805,241	42,266,652	45,071,893	(10,298,012)	1997	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Grand at											
Wells		4 022 000	22 729 269	(25.024	4 022 000	24.262.264	20.205.204	(2.17(.001)	2000	2011	2 40 37
Branch		4,032,000	23,738,360	625,034	4,032,000	24,363,394	28,395,394	(2,176,091)	2008	2011	3-40 Years

Gross Amount at which Carried at Close

Table of Contents

		Initial Cost	t to Company		Gloss Allio	of Period	rica at Close				
		Illitiai Cost		Cost Capitalized		of refloc			Date		
			·	Subsequent					Completed/		
			Buildings and	to		Buildings and		Accumulated	Placed in	Date	Depreciable
Description I	Encumbrances (1)	Land	Improvements		Land	Improvements	Total (2)	Depreciation			Lives-Years
Colonial											
Grand at											
Wilmington	26,508,549	3,344,408	30,554,367	2,767,545	3,344,408	33,321,912	36,666,320	(8,174,382)	1998/2002	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial	20,300,317	3,3-11,100	30,331,337	2,101,515	3,3-11,100	33,321,712	30,000,320	(0,171,302)	1770/2002	2003	J-40 1 cars
Reserve at											
		C 722 000	24 594 709	104 001	C 722 000	24.760.500	41 501 500	(209 172)	2012	2012	2 40 Magna
Las Colinas		6,732,000	34,584,708	184,891	6,732,000	34,769,599	41,501,599	(208,172)	2012	2012	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Reserve at											
Medical											
District		5,560,000	26,932,350	1,630,660	5,560,000	28,563,010	34,123,010	(1,948,564)	2007	2011	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Reserve at											•
West											•
		4 7 42 270	14 416 210	7 (10 (17	4.7.42.270	22 025 026	26 770 215	(7.606.110)	1064165	2005	2 40 37
Franklin (3)		4,743,279	14,416,319	7,619,617	4,743,279	22,035,936	26,779,215	(7,696,110)	1964/65	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											
Ashford											
Place		537,600	5,839,838	1,656,303	537,600	7,496,141	8,033,741	(3,503,807)	1983	1996	3-40 Years
Colonial		,	,	.,			-,-	(-,-			
Village at											,
Beaver											,
		2.160.000	22 702 626	1 500 550	2 160 000	24 205 104	27 455 104	(1 702 716)	2007	2011	2 40 3/2000
Creek		3,160,000	22,702,636	1,592,558	3,160,000	24,295,194	27,455,194	(1,723,716)	2007	2011	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											
Chancellor											
Park		4,080,000	23,213,840	2,212,837	4,080,000	25,426,677	29,506,677	(6,881,806)	1999	2006	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											ļ
Charleston											ļ
Place		1,124,924	7,367,718	1,904,378	1,124,924	9,272,096	10,397,020	(2.266.888)	1986	2005	3-40 Years
		1,124,727	/,30/,/10	1,904,576	1,124,727	9,212,020	10,397,020	(3,266,888)	1900	2005	3-40 1 cars
Colonial											
Village at											
Chase											
Gayton		3,270,754	26,910,024	2,043,720	3,270,754	28,953,744	32,224,498	(11,651,847)	1984	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											1
Cypress											ļ
Village (7) (8))	7 020 500		20.260.407	2 440 450	22 651 627	26 100 007	(2.652.022)	2000	2006	2 40 37
		5,839,590		20,260,497	3,448,450	22,651,637	26,100,087	(3,653,932)	2008	2006	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											
Deerfield		2,032,054	14,584,057	2,137,674	2,032,054	16,721,731	18,753,785	(4,978,616)	1985	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											ļ
Godley Lake	~	1,053,307		25,961,515	2,958,793	24,056,029	27,014,822	(5,833,613)	2008	2007	3-40 Years
	;	1,055,507		23,701,313	2,730,175	24,030,027	21,017,022	(3,033,013)	2000	2007	3-40 1 cars
Colonial											
Village at			: : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	: : : 121		171	10.005	: 22 210)	227/06		
Grapevine		6,221,164	24,463,050	3,464,121	6,221,164	27,927,171	34,148,335	(8,133,310)	1985/86	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											ļ
Village at											l
Greenbrier		2,620,216	25,498,161	1,816,346	2,620,216	27,314,507	29,934,723	(6,786,616)	1980	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial		2,020,2	25, ., .,	1,010,0	2,020,0	27,01.,.	27,70 .,.	(0,, 0.,, .	1/1/	4	3 10 22
Village at											
-		1 020 426	10 200 050	1 556 612	1 070 106	11 007 013	12 765 009	(2.594.067)	1094	2005	2 40 Vanra
Greentree		1,920,436	10,288,950	1,556,612	1,878,186	11,887,812	13,765,998	(3,584,967)	1984	2005	3-40 Years

Colonial											
Village at											
Greystone	13,532,000	3,155,483	28,875,949	3,040,447	3,155,483	31,916,396	35,071,879	(7,692,422)	1998/2000	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											
Hampton											
Glen		3,428,098	17,966,469	1,997,868	3,428,098	19,964,337	23,392,435	(6,080,497)	1986	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											
Hampton											
Pointe		8,875,840	15,359,217	2,343,228	8,875,840	17,702,445	26,578,285	(5,545,138)	1986	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											
Harbour											
Club		3,209,585	20,094,356	1,910,343	3,209,585	22,004,699	25,214,284	(6,117,400)	1988	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											
Huntington		1,315,930	7,605,360	1,683,713	1,315,930	9,289,073	10,605,003	(2,873,038)	1986	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											
Huntleigh											
Woods		745,600	4.908.990	2,451,289	730,688	7.375.191	8.105.879	(3,960,133)	1978	1994	3-40 Years

Gross Amount at which Carried at Close

Table of Contents

		Initial Cost	to Company	Cost Capitalized		of Period			Date		
Description 1	Encumbrances (1)	Land	Buildings and	Subsequent to Acquisition	Land	Buildings and Improvements	Total (2)	Accumulated Depreciation	Completed/ Placed in Service	Date	Depreciable Lives-Years
Colonial	Elicumbrances (1)	Lanu	Improvements	Acquisition	Land	improvements	Total (=)	Depreciation	Service	Acquired	Lives- i ears
Village at									1986/87/90/	1986/87/	
Inverness		2,349,487	16,279,416	16,415,382	2,936,991	32,107,294	35,044,285	(17,850,643)	97	90/97	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at Main Park		1,208,434	10,235,978	1,564,595	1,208,434	11,800,573	13,009,007	(3,815,577)	1984	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial		1,200,434	10,233,976	1,304,393	1,200,434	11,600,575	13,009,007	(3,813,377)	1904	2003	3-40 Tears
Village at											
Marsh Cove		2,023,460	11,095,073	2,125,358	2,023,460	13,220,431	15,243,891	(4,470,277)	1983	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at	14.154.000	2 700 000	20.207.000	1 202 722	2 700 000	21 550 511	24 250 511	(4.700 (41)	2000	2000	2 40 17
Matthews Colonial	14,174,088	2,700,000	20,295,989	1,283,722	2,700,000	21,579,711	24,279,711	(4,799,641)	2008	2008	3-40 Years
Village at											
Mill Creek		2,153,567	9,331,910	1,354,233	2,153,567	10,686,143	12,839,710	(5,049,289)	1984	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial		,,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	, ,	.,,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	(= , = = , = = ,			
Village at											
North											
Arlington		2,439,102	10,804,027	1,469,397	2,439,102	12,273,424	14,712,526	(3,971,855)	1985	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial Village at											
Oakbend	20,304,614	5,100,000	26,260,164	2,399,821	5,100,000	28,659,985	33,759,985	(7,432,144)	1997	2006	3-40 Years
Colonial	20,00 .,01 .	2,100,000	20,200,10	2,000,021	2,100,000	20,000,000	20,703,300	(7,102,111)	1,,,,	2000	2 10 10415
Village at											
Pinnacle											
Ridge		1,212,917	8,499,638	1,466,317	1,212,917	9,965,955	11,178,872	(3,223,480)	1951/85	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial Village at											
Quarry											
Oaks	25,145,033	5,063,500	27,767,505	2,768,738	5,063,500	30,536,243	35,599,743	(8,337,938)	1996	2003	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at											
Shoal Creek	21,373,278	4,080,000	29,214,707	2,905,144	4,080,000	32,119,851	36,199,851	(8,934,274)	1996	2006	3-40 Years
Colonial Village at											
Sierra Vista	10,215,170	2,320,000	11,370,600	1,365,332	2,308,949	12,746,983	15,055,932	(4,436,335)	1999	2004	3-40 Years
Colonial	10,210,170	2,020,000	11,070,000	1,000,002	2,000,71.7	12,7 10,500	10,000,502	(1,100,000)	1,,,,	200.	2 10 10415
Village at											
South Tryon	ı	1,510,535	14,696,088	936,537	1,510,535	15,632,625	17,143,160	(3,863,627)	2002	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at Stone Point		1,417,658	9,291,464	1,785,793	1,417,658	11,077,257	12,494,915	(4,111,059)	1986	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial		1,417,030	9,291,404	1,765,795	1,417,030	11,077,237	12,494,913	(4,111,039)	1700	2003	3-40 T Cars
Village at											
Timber											
Crest	12,465,221	2,284,812	19,010,168	1,990,047	2,284,812	21,000,215	23,285,027	(5,172,324)	2000	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial											
Village at Tradewinds		5,220,717	22 470 077	2 6/2 760	5,220,717	25 122 727	20 244 454	(6 572 924)	1000	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial		3,220,717	22,479,977	2,643,760	3,220,717	25,123,737	30,344,454	(6,573,824)	1988	2005	3-40 Tears
Village at											
Trussville		1,504,000	18,800,253	3,670,429	1,510,409	22,464,273	23,974,682	(11,087,477)	1996/97	1997	3-40 Years
	25,257,297	4,966,922	29,925,363	1,985,628	5,624,063	31,253,850	36,877,913	(10,316,527)	2005	2001	3-40 Years

Edgar Filing: BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC - Form DEFA14A

Colonial										
Village at										
Twin Lakes										
Colonial										
Village at										•
Vista Ridge	2,003,172	11,186,878	1,869,661	2,003,172	13,056,539	15,059,711	(4,486,335)	1985	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial										
Village at										
Waterford	3,321,325	26,345,195	2,452,638	3,321,325	28,797,833	32,119,158	(8,914,750)	1989	2005	3-40 Years
Colonial										
Village at										ŀ
Waters										ŀ
Edge	888,386	13,215,381	2,218,298	888,386	15,433,679	16,322,065	(5,771,060)	1985	2005	3-40 Years
1										,

G-S-6

Table of Contents

2,318,878

	Initial Cost	to Company	Cost Capitalized	Gross Amo	ount at which Carr of Period	ied at Close		Date		
Encumbrances (1)	Land	Buildings and	Subsequent to Acquisition	Land	Buildings and	Total (2)	Accumulated Depreciation	Completed/ Placed in Service	Date Acquired	Depreci
	Land	improvements	Acquisition	Lanu	improvements	Total	Depreciation	Scrvice	Acquired	Lives- i
11 818 165	2 436 588	14 800 444	2 040 570	2 436 588	16 841 014	19 277 602	(5 403 069)	1987	2005	3-40 Y
11,010,103	2, 130,300	11,000,111	2,010,570	2,130,300	10,011,011	19,277,002	(3, 103,007)	1707	2003	3 10 1
	10 419 406	10 249 047	2 166 400	10 419 406	10 514 456	22 022 052	(5 550 712)	1005	2005	3-40 Y
	10,418,490	10,346,047	2,100,409	10,418,490	12,314,430	22,932,932	(3,338,713)	1983	2003	3-40 1
24.545.055	4.700.000	04.140.150	2 007 520	4.700.000	25.040.505	41 000 505	(0.050.500)	1006	2006	2 40 77
24,767,857	4,780,000	34,143,179	2,897,528	4,780,000	37,040,707	41,820,707	(9,978,528)	1996	2006	3-40 Y
	1,274,885	15,017,745	1,961,528	1,274,885	16,979,273	18,254,158	(5,990,757)	1985	2005	3-40 Y
	2,781,279	17,694,376	1,364,690	2,781,279	19,059,066	21,840,345	(5,191,706)	1996	2005	3-40 Y
		17 424 015								3-40 Y 3-40 Y
	2,020,204	17,424,913	1,990,003	2,020,204	19,422,920	21,431,124	(3,820,701)	1990/2000	2003	J-40 I
	2,520,011	22,451,151	5,072,900	2,520,011	27,524,051	30,044,062	(7,763,785)	1984	2005	3-40 Y
			3,543,643		3,543,643	3,543,643		2008	2006	N/A
	451 301		1 850 133		2 310 524	2 310 524		2008	2006	N/A
	731,391		1,039,133		2,310,324	2,310,324		2000	2000	11/7
r										
	1,285,379		42,305,129	1,285,379	42,305,129	43,590,508	(8,669,567)	2007	2007	3-40 Y
r										
	9,007,010	112,741,447	4,745,408	9,007,010	117,486,855	126,493,865	(12,887,412)	1991	2009	3-40 Y
	2,088,796		34,868,761	1,844,718	35,112,839	36,957,557	(7,126,674)	2008	2006	3-40 Y
	6,851,321	24,435,002	61,124,353	5,126,504	87,284,172	92,410,676	(51,371,031)	1973/91/00	1997	3-40 Y
	19 097 386		24 704 690	9 347 649	34 454 427	43 802 076	(5 472 943)	2008	2006	3-40 Y
	17,071,300		21,701,000	,,5 i i ,0 1 7	5 1, 15 1, 127	15,002,070	(5,172,773)	2000	2000	5 10 1
							.=			
	3,481,826		42,675,029	3,320,592	42,836,263	46,156,855	(5,495,365)	2008	2006	3-40 Y
	1,315,616		6,982,727	1,315,616	6,982,727	8,298,343	(953,591)	2010	2005	3-40 Y
	24,767,857	Encumbrances (1) Land 11,818,165 2,436,588 10,418,496 24,767,857 4,780,000 1,274,885 2,781,279 4,074,823 2,028,204 2,520,011 451,391 1,285,379 9,007,010 2,088,796 6,851,321 19,097,386 3,481,826	Encumbrances (1) Land Improvements 11,818,165	Encumbrances (I) Land Buildings and Improvements	Encumbrances (1) Land Buildings and Improvements Buildings and Into Acquisition Land 11,818,165	Initial Cost Company Cost Capitalized Subsequent to Acquisition Land Buildings and Improvements Land Improvements Land Buildings and Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Land Land Improvements Land Land Land Improvements Land Land	Cost Capitalized Subsequent	Initial Cost to Company Cost Capitalized Subsequent to Land Pulidings and Improvements Land Improvements Land Improvements Total © Depreciation	Initial Cost to Company	Initial Cost Company Cost Capitalized Subsequent Capitalized Su

Table of Contents 162

4,798,750

21,489,576

26,288,326

2010

2008 3-40 Y

(1,757,269)

23,969,448

N/A

N/A

3,458,489

1997

2012

N/A

N/A

ive						
elopment iects:						
okwood						
t Retail	839,225	74,704	839,225	74,704	913,929	
nial Grand						

yrsley

se II)

1,179,278

G-S-7

2,279,211 1,179,278 2,279,211

	Initial Cost to Company	Cost Capitalized	Gross Amou	unt at which Carri of Period	ed at Close		Date		
	and			Buildings and		Accumulated	Completed/ Placed in	Date	Depreciable
DescriptionEncumbrano Colonial	ces (1)Land Improve	men A scquisition	Land	Improvements	Total (2)	Depreciation	Service	Acquired	Lives-Years
Grand at Double Creek									
(formerly CG	2 656 250	22 671 901	3,656,250	22 671 901	27,328,141	(249.027)	NT/A	2006	NT/A
at Cityway) Colonial	3,656,250	23,671,891	3,030,230	23,671,891	27,328,141	(248,937)	N/A	2000	N/A
Grand at Lake Mary (Phase									
II)	3,339,623	8,042,742	3,339,623	8,042,742	11,382,365	(16,947)	N/A	2011	N/A
Colonial Grand at									
Randal Lakes	7,200,000	12,379,095	7,200,000	12,379,095	19,579,095		N/A	2006	N/A
Colonial									
Grand at South	0.020.024	17 202 076	0.020.024	17 202 076	26 222 010		NT/A	2007	NT/A
End Future	8,839,934	17,382,076	8,839,934	17,382,076	26,222,010		N/A	2007	N/A
Development									
Projects:									
Colonial									
Grand at Azure	8,463,640	2,110,897	8,463,640	2,110,897	10,574,537		N/A	2007	N/A
Colonial	0,103,010	2,110,057	0,105,010	2,110,057	10,571,557		1,71	2007	1071
Grand at									
Bellevue	2 422 720	1 277 700	2 422 720	1 277 700	2 700 517		N/A	2005	N/A
(Phase II) Colonial	2,422,729	1,277,788	2,422,729	1,277,788	3,700,517		N/A	2003	N/A
Grand at Lake									
Mary (Phase									
III)	1,641,913	209,380	1,641,913	209,380	1,851,293		N/A	2011	N/A
Colonial Grand at									
Sweetwater	5,238,000	2,002,164	5,238,000	2,002,164	7,240,164		N/A	2006	N/A
Colonial									
Grand at	6 500 500	1.541.010	(500 500	1.541.010	0.041.710		NT/A	2007	NT/A
Thunderbird Colonial	6,500,500	1,541,219	6,500,500	1,541,219	8,041,719		N/A	2007	N/A
Promenade									
Huntsville	7,014,849	970,001	7,014,849	970,001	7,984,850		N/A	2007	N/A
Colonial									
Promenade Nord du Lac									
(6) (7)	18,027,122	11,994,647	18,027,122	11,994,647	30,021,769		N/A	2008	N/A
Colonial	10,027,122	11,//4,04/	10,027,122	11,777,07/	50,021,709		11/71	2000	11//
Grand at									
Randal Park (7)	5,757,450	474,278	5,757,450	474,278	6,231,728		N/A	2006	N/A
Randal Park ⁽⁷⁾	10,316,859	679,363	10,316,859	679,363	10,996,222		N/A	2006	N/A
Unimproved									
Land: Breland Land	9,400,000	1,264,333	9,400,000	1,264,333	10,664,333		N/A	2005	N/A
Canal Place	2,400,000	1,204,333	J, T 00,000	1,204,333	10,007,333		11/71	2005	11//1
and									
Infrastructure	10,951,968	6,302,481	10,951,968	6,302,481	17,254,449		N/A	2005	N/A

Edgar Filing: BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC - Form DEFA14A

Colonial								
Pinnacle								
Tutwiler Farm								
II	4,682,430	1,293,501	4,682,430	1,293,501	5,975,931	N/A	2005	N/A
Craft Farms								
Mixed Use (7)	4,400,000	(123,750)	4,400,000	(123,750)	4,276,250	N/A	2004	N/A
Cypress								
Village Lot								
Development								
(4) (7) (8)	12,488,672	(4,167,903)	9,288,672	(967,903)	8,320,769	N/A	2006	N/A
Heathrow								
Land and								
Infrastructure	6,903,168	1,615,887	6,903,168	1,615,887	8,519,055	N/A	2002	N/A
Lakewood								
Ranch	479,900	874,511	479,900	874,511	1,354,411	N/A	1999	N/A
Town Park								
Land and								
Infrastructure	9,503,795	2,165,908	9,503,795	2,165,908	11,669,703	N/A	1999	N/A

Table of Contents Gross Amount at which Carried at Close of Initial Cost to Company Period Date Cost Capitalized Completed/ Buildings and Subsequent to Buildings and Accumulated Placed in Date Encumbrances (1) Improvements Acquisition Land Improvements Total (2) Land Depreciation Service Acquire reek pment 4,498,609 9,624,770 4,498,609 9,624,770 14,123,379 N/A 2006 ture Craft 15,300,000 N/A 2004 ntial 7,413,650 15,300,000 7,413,650 22,713,650 12,089,128 N/A 612,588 12,089,128 612,588 12,701,716 N/A 18,837,220 18,837,220 18,837,220 (15,334,445)N/A N/A ES 691,943,766 614,087,975 2,108,233,151 1,176,354,612 615,781,786 3,282,893,952 3,898,675,738 (824,712,347)sets (2,213)(2,213)(2,213)2,213

615,781,786

3,282,891,739

3,898,673,525

(824,710,134)

HIP

691,943,766

614,087,975

2,108,233,151

1,176,352,399

NOTES TO SCHEDULE III

DECEMBER 31, 2012

- (1) See description of mortgage notes payable in Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
- (2) The cost, net of accumulated depreciation, for Federal Income Tax purposes as of December 31, 2012 was approximately \$2.5 billion.
- (3) Amounts include real estate assets classified as held for sale at December 31, 2012.
- (4) These projects are net of an impairment charge of approximately \$6.2 million recorded during 2012.
- (5) These projects are net of an impairment charge of approximately \$0.3 million recorded during 2010.
- (6) These projects are net of an impairment charge of approximately \$12.3 million recorded during 2009.
- (7) These projects are net of an impairment charge of approximately \$116.9 million recorded during 2008.
- (8) These projects are net of an impairment charge of approximately \$46.6 million recorded during 2007.
- (9) The following is a reconciliation of real estate to balances reported at the beginning of the year:

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

Reconciliation of Real Estate

	2012	2011	2010
Real estate investments:			
Balance at beginning of year	\$ 3,762,823,764	\$ 3,609,924,063	\$ 3,512,471,980
Acquisitions of new property	176,675,792	235,379,798	61,569,807
Improvements and development	93,958,779	65,870,112	44,016,506
Dispositions of property	(134,782,597)	(148,350,209)	(8,134,230)
Balance at end of year	\$ 3,898,675,738	\$ 3,762,823,764	\$ 3,609,924,063

Reconciliation of Accumulated Depreciation

	2012	2011	2010
Accumulated depreciation:			
Balance at beginning of year	\$ 731,893,837	\$ 640,980,472	\$ 519,728,050
Depreciation	120,760,424	126,391,237	121,638,821
Depreciation of disposition of property	(27,941,914)	(35,477,872)	(386,399)
Balance at end of year	\$ 824,712,347	\$ 731,893,837	\$ 640,980,472

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Reconciliation of Real Estate

	2012	2011	2010
Real estate investments:			
Balance at beginning of year	\$ 3,762,809,887	\$ 3,609,909,186	\$ 3,512,458,103
Acquisitions of new property	176,675,792	235,379,798	61,569,807
Improvements and development	93,969,443	65,870,112	44,015,506
Dispositions of property	(134,781,597)	(148,349,209)	(8,134,230)

Balance at end of year \$3,898,673,525 \$3,762,809,887 \$3,609,909,186

G-S-10

Reconciliation of Accumulated Depreciation

	2012	2011	2010
Accumulated depreciation:			
Balance at beginning of year	\$ 731,880,145	\$ 640,967,411	\$ 519,715,041
Depreciation	120,771,903	126,518,087	121,638,769
Depreciation of disposition of property	(27,941,914)	(35,605,353)	(386,399)
Balance at end of year	\$ 824,710,134	\$ 731,880,145	\$ 640,967,411

G-S-11

Table of Contents

Annex H

Explanatory Note

Attached is a copy of the Colonial Realty Limited Partnership Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 21, 2013 (presenting recast financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2011). Please note that Items 6, 7 and 8 included in Exhibit 99.1 to this Form 8-K supersede Items 6, 7 and 8 included in the Colonial Realty Limited Partnership Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 contained in Annex G to the accompanying joint consent solicitation/prospectus. Please refer to Exhibit 99.1 of this Form 8-K for the recast financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, including the report of the independent registered public accounting firm with respect thereto.

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K

CURRENT REPORT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Date of Report (date of earliest event reported): August 21, 2013

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Alabama (State or other jurisdiction

1-12358 (Commission 59-7007599 (IRS Employer

of incorporation) File Number) Identification Number)

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction	0-20707 (Commission	63-1098468 (IRS Employer
of incorporation)	File Number) 2101 Sixth Avenue North, Suite 750, Birmingham, Alabama 35203	Identification Number
	(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)	

(205) 250-8700

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Not applicable

(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following provisions (*see* General Instruction A.2. below):

- " Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)
- " Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)
- " Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))
- " Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))

Item 8.01 Other Events

This Current Report on Form 8-K updates Items 6, 7 and 8 of the combined Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 of Colonial Properties Trust (CLP) and Colonial Realty Limited Partnership (CRLP , and together with CLP, the Company) to reflect the impact of the results of properties sold or held for sale, including Colonial Center Ravinia, Colonial Pinnacle Tannehill and Colonial Village at Pinnacle Ridge, during the period from January 1, 2013 to June 30, 2013 reclassified to discontinued operations in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, included in Exhibit 99.1 to this Current Report.

These reclassifications, presentational and computational changes have no material effect on the Company s reported net income applicable to common stockholders. Accordingly, this Current Report should be read in conjunction with the 2012 Form 10-K, the Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q filed on May 9, 2013 and August 7, 2013, and any amendments to those filings. Except to the extent expressly set forth above, no attempt has been made to update or discuss any other matters in the 2012 Form 10-K affecting the Company subsequent to the original filing date of the 2012 Form 10-K.

* * *

Safe Harbor statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995: Certain statements in this Current Report on Form 8-K may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the Company's actual results, performance, achievements or transactions to be materially different from the results, performance, achievements or transactions expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Factors that impact such forward-looking statements include, among others, changes in national, regional and local economic conditions, which may be negatively impacted by concerns about inflation, deflation, government deficits (including the European sovereign debt crisis), high unemployment rates, decreased consumer confidence and liquidity concerns, particularly in markets in which we have a high concentration of properties; adverse changes in real estate markets, including, but not limited to, the extent of tenant bankruptcies, financial difficulties and defaults, the extent of future demand for multifamily units and commercial space in our primary markets and barriers of entry into new markets which we may seek to enter in the future, the extent of decreases in rental rates, competition, our ability to identify and consummate attractive acquisitions on favorable terms, our ability to consummate any planned dispositions in a timely manner on acceptable terms, and our ability to reinvest sale proceeds in a manner that generates favorable returns; exposure, as a multifamily focused real estate investment trust (REIT), to risks inherent in investments in a single industry; risks associated with having to perform under various financial guarantees that we have provided with respect to certain of our joint ventures and developments; ability to obtain financing at favorable rates, if at all, and refinance existing debt as it matures; actions, strategies and performance of affiliates that we may not control or companies, including joint ventures, in which we have made investments; changes in operating costs, including real estate taxes, utilities, and insurance; higher than expected construction costs; uncertainties associated with our ability to sell our existing inventory of condominium and for-sale residential assets, including timing, volume and terms of sales; uncertainties associated with the timing and amount of real estate dispositions and the resulting gains/losses associated with such dispositions; legislative or other regulatory decisions, including tax legislation, government approvals, actions and initiatives, including the need for compliance with environmental and safety requirements, and changes in laws and regulations or the interpretation thereof; the Company s ability to continue to maintain its status as a REIT for federal income tax purposes; price volatility, dislocations and liquidity disruptions in the financial markets and the resulting impact on availability of financing; effect of any rating agency actions on the cost and availability of new debt financing; level and volatility of interest or capitalization rates or capital market conditions; effect of any terrorist activity or other heightened geopolitical crisis; or other factors affecting the real estate industry generally. Other factors or risks that could cause our actual results to differ material from the results express or implied by the forward-looking statements include: (1) the occurrence of any event, change or other circumstances that could give rise to the termination of the merger agreement with Mid-America Apartment Communities, Inc.; (2) the inability to complete the proposed merger due to the failure to obtain the required

H-2

Table of Contents

shareholder approvals for the proposed merger or the failure to satisfy other conditions to completion of the proposed merger; (3) risks related to disruption of management s attention from the Company s ongoing business operations due to the proposed merger transaction; and (4) the effect of the announcement of the proposed merger on the Company s relationships with its customers, tenants, operating results and business generally.

Except as otherwise required by the federal securities laws, the Company assumes no responsibility to update the information in this Current Report on Form 8-K.

The Company refers you to the documents filed by the Company from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission, specifically the section titled Risk Factors in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, as may be updated or supplemented in the Company s Form 10-Q filings, which discuss these and other factors that could adversely affect the Company s results.

This Current Report on Form 8-K is being filed or furnished (as the case may be) on behalf of Colonial Properties Trust and Colonial Realty Limited Partnership to the extent applicable to either or both registrants. Certain of the events disclosed in the items covered by this Current Report on Form 8-K may apply to Colonial Properties Trust only, Colonial Realty Limited Partnership only or both Colonial Properties Trust and Colonial Realty Limited Partnership, as applicable.

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(d) Exhibits.

Attached as an exhibit to this form is the document listed below:

Exhibit Description 12.1 CLP s Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges CRLP s Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges 12.2 23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP 99.1 Selected Financial Data, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for the year ended December 31, 2012 101 XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language). The following materials from the Trust s and CRLP s Annual Report on Form 8-K filed August 21, 2013, formatted in XBRL: (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 (audited); (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (audited); (iii) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (audited); (iv) Consolidated Statements Shareholders Equity (Trust) and Equity (CRLP) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (audited); and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited). As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information is furnished and not filed for purpose of Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act and Section 18 of the Exchange Act.

H-3

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

August 21, 2013

By: /s/ Bradley P. Sandidge Bradley P. Sandidge

Executive Vice President Accounting and

Interim Chief Financial Officer

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

By: Colonial Properties Trust, its general partner

August 21, 2013

By: /s/ Bradley P. Sandidge Bradley P. Sandidge

Executive Vice President Accounting and

Interim Chief Financial Officer

H-4

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit	Description
12.1	CLP s Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges
12.2	CRLP s Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges
23.1	Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP
99.1	Selected Financial Data, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for the year ended December 31, 2012
101	XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language). The following materials from the Trust s and CRLP s Annual Report on Form 8-K filed August 21, 2013, formatted in XBRL: (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 (audited); (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (audited); (iii) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (audited); (iv) Consolidated Statements Shareholders Equity (Trust) and Equity (CRLP) for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (audited); and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited). As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information is furnished and not filed for purpose of Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act and Section 18 of the Exchange Act.

H-5

Exhibit 12.1

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Share Distributions

(\$ in thousands)	Years Ended December 31,				
	2012	2011	2010	2009	2008
Earnings:					
Pre-tax (loss) income from continuing operations before					
adjustment for noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiaries					
or income (loss) from equity investees, extraordinary gain (loss), or					
gains (losses) on sale of properties	\$ (55,532)	\$ (47,061)	\$ (47,286)	\$ (8,659)	\$ (105,648)
Amortization of interest capitalized	1,971	1,986	1,988	2,008	3,100
Interest capitalized	(1,210)	(438)	(1,153)	(3,870)	(25,032)
Distributed income of equity investees	925	3,737	5,566	11,601	13,344
Distributions to Series B preferred unitholders		(3,586)	(7,161)	(7,250)	(7,251)
Fixed Charges	98,992	96,478	97,512	103,106	107,253
Total Earnings	\$ 45,146	\$ 51,116	\$ 49,466	\$ 96.936	\$ (14,234)
	+,	+,	+ 12,100	+	+ (,)
Fixed Charges:					
Interest expense	92,085	87,667	84,553	87,023	69,951
Interest capitalized	1,210	438	1,153	3,870	25,032
Debt costs amortization	5,697	4,787	4,645	4,963	5,019
Distributions to Series B preferred unitholders		3,586	7,161	7,250	7,251
Total Fixed Charges	\$ 98,992	\$ 96,478	\$ 97,512	\$ 103,106	\$ 107,253
Total Theo Charges	Ψ > 3, >> -	Ψ >0,.70	Ψ > / ,ε 12	Ψ 100,100	Ψ 107,200
Distributions to Series D and Series E preferred shareholders			5,649	8,142	8,773
Distributions to befres D and befres E preferred shareholders			3,017	0,112	0,773
Combined Fixed Changes and Dustamed Chang Distributions	\$ 98,992	\$ 96,478	\$ 103,161	\$ 111,248	\$ 116,026
Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Share Distributions	\$ 90,992	\$ 90,476	\$ 103,101	\$ 111,240	\$ 110,020
Ratio of Earning to Fixed Charges	(a)	(a)	(a)	(a)	(a)
The or an analysis of the order	(11)	(α)	(u)	(u)	(u)
Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred					
Share Distributions	(b)	(b)	(b)	(b)	(b)
Share Distributions	(b)	(b)	(b)	(b)	(b)

a) For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the aggregate amount of fixed charges exceeded our earnings by approximately \$53.8 million, \$45.4 million, \$48.0 million, \$6.2 million and \$121.5 million, respectively, which is the amount of additional earnings that would have been required to achieve a ratio of earnings to fixed charges of 1.0x for such period. The deficiency of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges for all years presented is impacted by non-cash depreciation and amortization expense and the classification of operations for assets held for sale and sold as discontinued operations. In addition, for the year ended December 31, 2010, the deficiency of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges is also the result of a decline in revenue as the result of pressure on net effective rents. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the deficiency of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges is also due to the \$116.9 million of non-cash impairment charges, respectively, related to the Company s for-sale residential business and certain development projects.

b) For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the aggregate amount of fixed charges and preferred share distributions exceeded our earnings by approximately \$53.8 million, \$45.4 million, \$53.7 million, \$14.3 million and \$130.3 million, respectively, which is the amount of additional earnings

H-6

Table of Contents

that would have been required to achieve a ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred share distributions of 1.0x for such period. The deficiency of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges for all years presented is impacted by non-cash depreciation and amortization expense and the classification of operations for assets held for sale and sold as discontinued operations. In addition, for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the deficiency of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges is also the result of a decline in revenue as the result of pressure on net effective rents. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the deficiency of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges is also due to the \$116.9 million of noncash impairment charges, respectively, related to the Company s for-sale residential business and certain development projects.

H-7

Exhibit 12.2

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

(\$ in thousands)					
	2012	2011	2010	2009	2008
Earnings:					
Pre-tax loss before adjustment for noncontrolling interest in					
consolidated subsidiaries or income (loss) from equity investees,					
extraordinary gain (loss), or gains (losses) on sale of properties	\$ (55,532)	\$ (47,061)	\$ (47,286)	\$ (8,659)	\$ (105,648)
Amortization of interest capitalized	1,971	1,986	1,988	2,008	3,100
Interest capitalized	(1,210)	(438)	(1,153)	(3,870)	(25,032)
Distributed income of equity investees	925	3,737	5,566	11,601	13,344
Fixed Charges	98,992	92,892	90,351	95,856	100,002
Total Earnings	\$ 45,146	\$ 51,116	\$ 49,466	\$ 96,936	\$ (14,234)
Fixed Charges:					
Interest expense	92,085	87,667	84,553	87,023	69,951
Interest capitalized	1,210	438	1,153	3,870	25,032
Debt costs amortization	5,697	4,787	4,645	4,963	5,019
Total Fixed Charges	\$ 98,992	\$ 92,892	\$ 90,351	\$ 95,856	\$ 100,002
	# - 	÷ > =, <> =	+ >0,001	÷ >2,000	+ 100,002
Ratio of Earning to Fixed Charges	(a)	(a)	(a)	1.0	(a)
	(4)	(4)	(u)	1.0	(4)

a) For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2008, the aggregate amount of fixed charges exceeded our earnings by approximately \$53.8 million, \$41.8 million, \$40.9 million and \$114.2 million, respectively, which is the amount of additional earnings that would have been required to achieve a ratio of earnings to fixed charges of 1.0x for such period. The deficiency of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges for all years presented is impacted by non-cash depreciation and amortization expense and the classification of operations for assets held for sale and sold as discontinued operations. In addition, for the year ended December 31, 2010, the deficiency of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges is also the result of a decline in revenue as the result of pressure on net effective rents. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the deficiency of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges is also due to the \$116.9 million of non-cash impairment charges, respectively, related to the Company s for-sale residential business and certain development projects.

Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-55078, 333-157884, 333-158081, 333-174035 and 333-180632 on Form S-3 and Registration Statement Nos. 033-84510, 333-27201, 333-27203, 333-27205, 333-60333, 333-123829, 333-150399, 333-165151 and 333-174270 on Form S-8 of Colonial Properties Trust and subsidiaries (the Company) of our report dated February 28, 2013, except for changes in items reflected in discontinued operations discussed in Note 3, as to which the date is August 21, 2013, relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules, appearing in this Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated August 21, 2013.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Birmingham, Alabama

August 21, 2013

H-9

Table of Contents

Exhibit 99.1

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following tables set forth selected financial and operating information on a historical basis for each of the five years ended December 31, 2012, for the Trust and CRLP. The following information should be read together with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Item 8. As discussed on page 2 of this Current Report on Form 8-K, the Company had discontinued operations in the periods ended March 31, 2013 and June 30, 2013, which have been retrospectively adjusted to all applicable periods presented in the table below in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations.

H-10

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(\$ in thousands, except per share data)		2012		2011		2010		2009		2008
OPERATING DATA (1)										
Total revenues	\$	368,847	\$	329,626	\$	301,707	\$	296,866	\$	309,043
Expenses:										
Depreciation and amortization		117,004		111,776		102,993		100,798		92,835
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses (2)		22,762		5,736		1,308		10,324		93,116
Other operating		188,392		169,262		158,890		159,222		169,245
, ,		ĺ								
Income (loss) from operations		40,689		42,852		38,516		26,522		(46,153)
` ′		ĺ		,		,		,		
Interest expense		92,085		86,573		83,091		86,177		72,531
Debt cost amortization		5,697		4,767		4,618		4,941		5,019
Interest income		2,468		1,337		1,289		1,424		2,774
(Loss) gain on sale of property		(4,305)		115		(1,504)		10,103		6,467
Gain on retirement of debt		(1)000)				1,044		56,427		15,951
Other income, net		30,955		16,625		1,969		7,176		12,080
						-,, -,		7,210		,
(Loss) income from continuing operations		(27,975)		(30,411)		(46,395)		10,534		(86,431)
(Loss) income from continuing operations		(21,513)		(50,411)		(40,373)		10,554		(00,431)
. (2)		26.040		26.500		7.050		4 < 4 4		25.000
Income from discontinued operations (2)		36,840		36,590		7,852		4,644		35,908
Dividends to preferred shareholders						5,649		8,142		8,773
Preferred unit repurchase gains				2,500		3,000				(A.F.)
Preferred share/unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)		(4,868)		25		(27)
Distributions to preferred unitholders				3,586		7,161		7,250		7,251
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders (2)	\$	8,160	\$	3,428	\$	(48,054)	\$	(509)	\$	(55,429)
Income (loss) per share basic:										
Continuing Operations	\$	(0.30)	\$	(0.36)	\$	(0.77)	\$	(0.14)	\$	(1.83)
Discontinued Operations	Ψ.	0.39	Ψ.	0.40	Ψ	0.10	Ψ.	0.13	Ψ.	0.64
Net income (loss) per share basic ⁽³⁾	ø	0.00	φ	0.04	ф	(0.67)	ф	(0.01)	ф	(1.10)
Net income (loss) per share—basic	\$	0.09	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)	\$	(0.01)	\$	(1.19)
In come (loss) was show dilute it										
Income (loss) per share diluted:	ф	(0.20)	φ	(0.26)	Φ	(0.77)	ф	(0.14)	ф	(1.02)
Continuing Operations	\$	(0.30) 0.39	\$	(0.36)	\$	(0.77) 0.10	\$	(0.14) 0.13	\$	(1.83)
Discontinued Operations		0.39		0.40		0.10		0.13		0.64
N	ф	0.00	Φ.	0.04	Φ.	(0.65)	Φ.	(0.01)	Φ.	(1.10)
Net income (loss) per share dilute(§)	\$	0.09	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)	\$	(0.01)	\$	(1.19)
Dividends declared per common share	\$	0.72	\$	0.60	\$	0.60	\$	0.70	\$	1.75
BALANCE SHEET DATA										
Land, buildings and equipment, net		2,777,810		2,724,104		2,706,988		2,755,644		2,665,700
Total assets		3,286,208		3,258,605		3,171,134		3,172,632		,155,169
Total long-term liabilities	1	1,831,992]	1,759,727]	1,761,571		1,704,343	1	,762,019
Redeemable preferred stock								4		4
OTHER DATA										
Funds from operations (4) *	\$	92,461	\$	104,712	\$	81,310	\$	129,808	\$	920

Edgar Filing: BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC - Form DEFA14A

Cash flow provided by (used in)					
Operating activities	137,108	118,086	109,707	108,594	117,659
Investing activities	(143,612)	(175,639)	(102,287)	(166,466)	(167,497)
Financing activities	11,726	59,051	(7,056)	53,277	(34,010)
Total properties (at end of year)	125	153	156	156	192

Footnotes on following page

H-11

Table of Contents

- (1) All periods have been adjusted in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, for properties sold or that met held for sale criteria during the six month period ended June 30, 2013.
- (2) For 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, includes \$7.0 million (including \$3.3 million presented in Discontinued Operations), \$0.2 million, \$0.3 million, \$12.3 million (including \$2.1 million presented in Discontinued Operations) and \$116.9 million (including \$25.5 million presented in Discontinued Operations), respectively, in non-cash impairment charges.
- (3) All periods have been adjusted to reflect the adoption of ASC 260, Earnings per Share.
- Funds from Operations (FFO), as defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (NAREIT), means income (loss) before noncontrolling interest (determined in accordance with GAAP), excluding sales of depreciated property and impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate, plus real estate depreciation and amortization and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. FFO is presented to assist investors in analyzing our performance. We believe that FFO is useful to investors because it provides an additional indicator of our financial and operating performance. This is because, by excluding the effect of real estate depreciation and amortization, gains (or losses) from sales of properties and impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate (all of which are based on historical costs which may be of limited relevance in evaluating current performance), FFO can facilitate comparison of operating performance among equity REITs. FFO is a widely recognized measure in the company s industry. We believe that the line on our consolidated statements of operations entitled net income (loss) available to common shareholders is the most directly comparable GAAP measure to FFO. Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values instead have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry investors and analysts have considered presentation of operating results for real estate companies that use historical cost accounting to be insufficient by themselves. Thus, NAREIT created FFO as a supplemental measure of REIT operating performance that excludes historical cost depreciation, among other items, from GAAP net income. Management believes that the use of FFO, combined with the required primary GAAP presentations, has been fundamentally beneficial, improving the understanding of operating results of REITs among the investing public and making comparisons of REIT operating results more meaningful. Management uses FFO and FFO per share, along with other measures, to assess performance in connection with evaluating and granting incentive compensation to key employees. Our method of calculating FFO may be different from methods used by other REITs and, accordingly, may not be comparable to such other REITs. FFO should not be considered (A) as an alternative to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP), (B) as an indicator of financial performance, (C) as cash flow from operating activities (determined in accordance with GAAP) or (D) as a measure of liquidity nor is it indicative of sufficient cash flow to fund all of the company s needs, including our ability to make distributions.
- * Non-GAAP financial measure. See Item 7 Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Funds from Operations for reconciliation.

H-12

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(\$ in thousands, except per unit data)		2012		2011		2010		2009		2008
OPERATING DATA (1)										
Total revenues	\$	368,847	\$	329,626	\$	301,707	\$	296,866	\$	309,043
Expenses:										
Depreciation and amortization		117,004		111,776		102,993		100,798		92,835
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses (2)		22,762		5,736		1,308		10,324		93,116
Other operating		188,392		169,262		158,890		159,222		169,245
Income (loss) from operations		40,689		42,852		38,516		26,522		(46,153)
, , ,		ĺ		,		ĺ		,		
Interest expense		92,085		86,573		83,091		86,177		72,531
Debt cost amortization		5,697		4,767		4,618		4,941		5,019
Interest income		2,468		1,337		1,289		1,424		2,774
(Loss) gain on sale of property		(4,305)		115		(1,504)		10,103		6,467
Gain on retirement of debt						1,044		56,427		15,951
Other income, net		26,810		16,625		1,969		7,176		12,080
		ĺ								
(Loss) income from continuing operations		(32,120)		(30,411)		(46,395)		10,534		(86,431)
(2000) meome from commany operations		(02,120)		(50,111)		(10,000)		10,00.		(00, .21)
T (2)		24.040		26.500		5 .050		1 6 1 1		25.000
Income from discontinued operations (2)		36,840		36,590		7,852		4,644		35,908
Distributions to preferred unitholders				(3,586)		(12,810)		(15,392)		(16,024)
Preferred unit repurchase gains Preferred unit issuance costs write-off				2,500		3,000		25		(27)
Preferred unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)		(4,868)		25		(27)
Net income (loss) available to common unitholders (2)	\$	4,677	\$	3,721	\$	(53,122)	\$	(591)	\$	(66,654)
Income (loss) non unit hosier										
Income (loss) per unit basic: Continuing operations	\$	(0.34)	\$	(0.36)	\$	(0.77)	\$	(0.14)	\$	(1.83)
Discontinued operations	φ	0.39	φ	0.40	φ	0.10	φ	0.13	φ	0.64
Discontinued operations		0.57		0.40		0.10		0.13		0.04
Not income (loss) non unit hasi(3)	\$	0.05	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)	\$	(0.01)	\$	(1.10)
Net income (loss) per unit basi ⁽³⁾	Þ	0.05	Þ	0.04	Þ	(0.67)	Э	(0.01)	Э	(1.19)
T (1) (1) (1)										
Income (loss) per unit diluted:	ф	(0.24)	Ф	(0.26)	Φ	(0.77)	Ф	(0.14)	Φ	(1.02)
Continuing operations	\$	(0.34)	\$	(0.36)	\$	(0.77)	\$	(0.14)	\$	(1.83)
Discontinued operations		0.39		0.40		0.10		0.13		0.64
(0)										
Net income (loss) per unit dilute(f)	\$	0.05	\$	0.04	\$	(0.67)	\$	(0.01)	\$	(1.19)
Distributions per unit	\$	0.72	\$	0.60	\$	0.60	\$	0.70	\$	1.75
BALANCE SHEET DATA										
Land, buildings and equipment, net		,777,810		,724,104		,706,987		2,755,643		2,665,698
Total assets		,286,160		,258,428		,170,515		3,171,960		3,154,501
Total long-term liabilities	1	,831,992	1	,759,727	1	,761,571	1	,704,343	1	,762,019
OTHER DATA										
Total properties (at end of year)		125		153		156		156		192

- (1) All periods have been adjusted in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, for properties sold or that met held for sale criteria during the six month period ended June 30, 2013
- (2) For 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, includes \$7.0 million (including \$3.3 million presented in Discontinued Operations), \$0.2 million, \$0.3 million, \$12.3 million (including \$2.1 million presented in Discontinued Operations) and \$116.9 million (including \$25.5 million presented in Discontinued Operations), respectively, in non-cash impairment charges.
- (3) All periods have been adjusted to reflect the adoption of ASC 260, Earnings per Share.

H-13

PART II

Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion analyzes the financial condition and results of operations of both Colonial Properties Trust (the Trust), and Colonial Realty Limited Partnership (CRLP), of which the Trust is the sole general partner and in which the Trust owned a 92.5% limited partner interest as of December 31, 2012. The Trust conducts all of its business through CRLP and CRLP s various subsidiaries. Except as otherwise required by the context, the Company, Colonial, we, us and our refer to the Trust and CRLP together, as well as CRLP s subsidiaries, including Colonial Properties Services Limited Partnership (CPSLP) and Colonial Properties Services, Inc. (CPSI).

The following discussion and analysis of the consolidated financial condition and consolidated results of operations should be read together, except as otherwise noted, with the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and CRLP and the notes thereto contained in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

General

We are a multifamily-focused self-administered equity REIT that owns, operates and develops multifamily apartment communities primarily located in the Sunbelt region of the United States. Also, we create additional value for our shareholders from investments in commercial assets and by pursuing development opportunities. We are a fully-integrated real estate company, which means that we are engaged in the acquisition, development, ownership, management and leasing of multifamily communities and other commercial real estate properties. Our activities include full or partial ownership and operation of 125 properties as of December 31, 2012, located in Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Nevada, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas and Virginia, development of new properties, acquisition of existing properties, build-to-suit development and the provision of management, leasing and brokerage services for commercial real estate.

As of December 31, 2012, we owned or maintained a partial ownership in:

	Consolidated Properties	Units/Sq. Feet ⁽¹⁾	Unconsolidated Properties	Units/Sq. Feet ⁽¹⁾	Total Properties	Total Units/ Sq. Feet (1)
Multifamily apartment communities	112(2)	33,851	2	646	114	34,497
Commercial properties	8	2,167,000	3	350,000	11	2,517,000

- (1) Units refer to multifamily apartment units. Square feet refers to commercial space and excludes space owned by anchor tenants.
- (2) Includes one property partially-owned through a joint venture entity.

In addition, we own certain parcels of land adjacent to or near these properties (the land). The multifamily apartment communities, the commercial properties and the land are referred to herein collectively as the properties. As of December 31, 2012, consolidated multifamily apartment communities and commercial properties that were no longer in lease-up were 95.8% and 92.3% leased, respectively. We generally consider a property to be in lease-up until it first attains physical occupancy of at least 93%.

The Trust is the general partner of CRLP and, as of December 31, 2012, held approximately 92.5% of the interests in CRLP. We conduct all of our business through CRLP, CPSLP, which provides management services for our properties, and CPSI, which provides management services for properties owned by third parties, including unconsolidated joint venture entities. We perform all of our for-sale residential activities through CPSI.

As a lessor, the majority of our revenue is derived from residents and tenants under existing leases at our properties.

H-14

Table of Contents

Therefore, our operating cash flow is dependent upon the rents that we are able to charge our residents and tenants, and the ability of these residents and tenants to make their rental payments. We also receive third-party management fees generated from third-party management agreements related to management of properties held in joint ventures.

The Trust was formed in Maryland on July 9, 1993. The Trust was reorganized as an Alabama real estate investment trust in 1995. Our executive offices are located at 2101 Sixth Avenue North, Suite 750, Birmingham, Alabama, 35203 and our telephone number is (205) 250-8700.

Business Strategy and Outlook

During 2012, our primary business directives were to grow the company, improve our portfolio and continue efforts to maintain a strong balance sheet and improve margins to help re-establish an investment grade rating.

We made significant progress on each of these directives as outlined below.

Grow the Company

We continued to grow the Company by:

producing a 7.6% increase in multifamily same-property net operating income from continuing operations when compared with the year ended December 31, 2011 (see Note 12 Segment Information in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8); and

developing multifamily apartment communities on land that we already own.

We achieved a 7.6% increase in multifamily same-property net operating income through continued increases in lease rates while maintaining a high level of occupancy. Average monthly rent per unit for our multifamily same-property communities increased to \$787 per unit for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$749 per unit for the same period in 2011. Average occupancy for our multifamily same-property communities was 95.5% for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to 95.4% for the same period in 2011.

We added 718 units through the completion of two developments: Colonial Grand at Hampton Preserve, located in Tampa, Florida, and Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase I), located in Orlando, Florida. In addition, we continued the development of Colonial Grand at Double Creek, located in Austin, Texas and started construction on four additional apartment community developments: Colonial Grand at Ayrsley (Phase II) and Colonial Reserve at South End, located in Charlotte, North Carolina, and Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase II) and Colonial Grand at Randal Lakes, located in Orlando, Florida. The five active developments are expected to add 1,300 units once completed. We also started construction of Colonial Brookwood West, a commercial asset located in Birmingham, Alabama, that is expected to add approximately 41,300 square-feet once completed.

Improve our portfolio

We improved our portfolio by:

increasing the percentage of net operating income from our multifamily portfolio through disposition of investments in certain commercial properties;

recycling older multifamily apartment communities; and

selectively acquiring newer multifamily apartment communities attractively priced in our higher growth Sunbelt markets.

H-15

Table of Contents

During 2012, we sold one wholly-owned commercial asset, representing approximately 219,000 square-feet (excluding anchor-owned square-feet) for \$37.4 million and exited our interest in three commercial joint ventures, comprised of 28 commercial properties. For the full year, the percentage of net operating income from the multifamily portfolio to total net operating income was 85% compared to 79% for 2011 while 87% of our net operating income in the fourth quarter was generated from our multifamily portfolio.

We also sold four wholly-owned multifamily apartment communities for \$95.5 million, representing 1,380 units with an average age of 31 years and average monthly rent of \$695 per unit. We reinvested proceeds from the multifamily and commercial dispositions into five multifamily apartment communities located in Austin and Dallas, Texas, and Raleigh, North Carolina. These five acquisitions added 1,554 units with an average age of six years and average monthly rent of \$1,076 per unit.

Maintain a strong balance sheet and achieve an investment grade rating

During 2012, we continued to reduce our leverage by selectively disposing of non-income producing assets and extended our debt maturities primarily through a new \$500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility and a new \$150.0 million senior unsecured term loan. Also, in February 2012, Standard & Poors upgraded our senior unsecured debt rating to BBB- and, in September 2012, Moody s Investment Services upgraded our senior unsecured debt rating to Baa3. In addition, we reduced our exposure with respect to joint venture indebtedness by unwinding certain joint venture arrangements, eliminating approximately \$127.1 million of unconsolidated debt, which represented our pro rata share of the mortgage debt of these various joint ventures.

We also simplified our portfolio, as well as our organizational structure, by unwinding certain joint venture arrangements. During 2012, we completed the following transactions:

redeemed our 15% noncontrolling interest in the 18-asset DRA/CLP joint venture; representing approximately 5.2 million commercial square-feet;

sold our 10% noncontrolling interest in the nine-asset Bluerock office portfolio, representing approximately 1.7 million commercial square-feet

sold our 25% noncontrolling interest in Colonial Promenade Madison, representing approximately 111,000 commercial square-feet; and

purchased Colonial Grand at Research Park, a 370-unit multifamily apartment community (prior to the acquisition of Colonial Grand at Research Park, we owned a 20% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture).

Simplified and stronger, our business directives for 2013 are to further grow the Company, fortify our balance sheet and enhance our portfolio. We intend to grow the Company s multifamily business by completing the projects we have in our development pipeline as well as initiating the development of several additional multifamily communities in 2013 on land we already own. We also intend to grow the Company through continued expansion of our core operations with the focus on quality of earnings from our multifamily product, which we are continually improving. We intend to fortify our balance sheet by continuing to lower our overall debt levels, primarily through the sale of commercial assets, and improving our financial ratios through improved earnings. We intend to enhance our portfolio by reducing the average age of our assets, increasing average rents and lowering our capital expenditure requirements, each through our multifamily asset recycling program, and by bringing new developments successfully on-line, within budget and on schedule. In addition, we intend to further enhance our portfolio by continuing to reduce our commercial asset exposure.

H-16

Executive Summary of Results of Operations

The following discussion of results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP and related notes thereto included in Item 8.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Trust reported net income available to common shareholders of \$8.2 million, compared with net income available to common shareholders of \$3.4 million for the prior year period. For the year ended December 31, 2012, CRLP reported net income available to common unitholders of \$4.7 million, compared with net income available to common unitholders of \$3.7 million for the prior year period.

The principal factors that influenced our results from continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2012 include:

a 5.5% increase in multifamily same-property revenue from continuing operations, from \$290.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to \$305.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, primarily as a result of an improvement in both new and renewal lease rates and a consistently high occupancy level during the year ended December 31, 2012. In addition, multifamily same-property expenses from continuing operations increased 2.3%, from \$117.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to \$119.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Overall, these changes resulted in an 7.6% increase in multifamily same-property net operating income from continuing operations when compared with the year ended December 31, 2011 (same-property results from continuing operations excludes the results of operations from two multifamily same-property apartment communities, which are currently classified as discontinued operations) (see Note 3 **Real Estate Activity** and Note 12 ***Segment Information** in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8);

the inclusion of the results of operations from Colonial Grand at Brier Falls, a 350-unit multifamily apartment community located in Raleigh, North Carolina, which we acquired for \$45.0 million on January 10, 2012; Colonial Grand at Fairview, a 256-unit multifamily apartment community located in Dallas, Texas, which we acquired for \$29.8 million on May 30, 2012; Colonial Grand at Research Park, a 370-unit multifamily apartment community located in Raleigh, North Carolina, which we acquired for \$38.0 million on October 1, 2012; Colonial Grand at Canyon Ranch, a 272-unit multifamily apartment community located in Austin, Texas, which we acquired for \$24.5 million on November 13, 2012; and Colonial Reserve at Las Colinas, a 306-unit multifamily apartment community located in Dallas, Texas, which we acquired for \$42.8 million on November 20, 2012;

the inclusion of two multifamily apartment communities resulting from completed construction during 2012: Colonial Grand at Hampton Preserve, a 486-unit community located in Tampa, Florida, which we built for \$52.2 million, and Colonial Grand at Lake Mary I, a 232-unit community located in Orlando, Florida, which we built for \$25.7 million;

the redemption of our remaining 15% noncontrolling interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture, effective as of June 30, 2012, resulting in a gain of approximately \$21.9 million, the majority of which had been deferred since the formation of the DRA/CLP joint venture in 2007:

the sale of our remaining 10% noncontrolling interest in the Bluerock office portfolio resulting in a gain of approximately \$7.4 million;

charges of \$8.2 million related to a proposed settlement with respect to the UCO litigation, consisting of an increase in our loss contingency accrual of \$4.9 million and a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge related to certain for-sale residential lots;

an increase of \$12.7 million in our loss contingency accrual following a jury verdict in early 2013 in the Colonial Grand at Traditions litigation;

H-17

an adjustment to a previously recognized gain on sale of property of approximately \$4.2 million in 2012 related to required infrastructure repairs on a retail asset that was originally developed by the Company and sold in the fourth quarter of 2007; and

charges of \$1.8 million recorded in 2012 related to severance costs associated with the departure of the Company s President and Chief Financial Officer, as well as departures of other management personnel as a result of additional simplification of our operations.

We define multifamily same-property communities as consolidated multifamily properties continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1 of the prior year. Same-property communities may be adjusted during the year to account for disposition activity.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Property-related revenue

Total property-related revenues, which consist of minimum rent, tenant recoveries and other property related revenue, were \$363.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$321.6 million for the same period in 2011. The components of property-related revenues for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are:

		Year Ended December 31, 2012		Year Ended December 31, 2011		
(\$ in thousands)	Revenues	% of Total Revenues	Revenues	% of Total Revenues	from 2011 to 2012	
Minimum rent (1)	\$ 304,364	84%	\$ 271,171	84%	12%	
Tenant recoveries	2,550	1%	3,032	1%	(16)%	
Other property-related revenue	56,221	15%	47,376	15%	19%	
Total property-related revenues	\$ 363,135	100%	\$ 321,579	100%	13%	

(1) Includes \$0.2 million of rentals from affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The increase in total property-related revenues of \$41.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, is primarily attributable to increases in minimum rent resulting from properties acquired during 2011 and 2012 and an increase in rental rates at our multifamily same-property communities. The following table illustrates the change in property-related revenues by property type, with the three components (minimum rent, tenant recoveries and other property-related revenue) presented on an aggregate basis for each property type:

		Years Ended December 31,			
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	2011 to 2012		
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 305,786	\$ 289,977	\$	15,809	
Acquisitions:					
Multifamily (2)	34,112	12,944		21,168	
Developments:					
Multifamily	5,153	89		5,064	
Other (3)	18,084	18,569		(485)	
	\$ 363,135	\$ 321,579	\$	41,556	

Footnotes on following page

H-18

- (1) Consists of the 93 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 28,445 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011. Excludes two consolidated multifamily apartment communities, containing 498 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011, which are classified in discontinued operations.
- (2) Includes 13 multifamily communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.
- (3) Includes all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 13 communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.

Property-related revenues for our multifamily same-property communities classified in continuing operations increased \$15.8 million, or 5.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the same period in 2011, primarily due to improvements in new and renewal lease rental rates while maintaining consistently high occupancy levels. During the year, rents increased an average of 1.7% on new move-ins compared to the expiring lease for the same unit and renewal rates increased an average of 6.3% over the expiring lease for the same unit. As a result, average monthly rent per unit for our multifamily same-property communities increased to \$787 per unit for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$749 per unit for the same period in 2011. Average occupancy for our multifamily same-property communities was 95.5% for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to 95.4% for the same period in 2011.

Other non-property related revenue

Other non-property related revenues, which consist primarily of management fees, leasing fees and other miscellaneous fees, were \$5.7 million for the year December 31, 2012, compared to \$8.0 million for the same period in 2011. The \$2.3 million decrease is attributable to the loss of third-party management and leasing contracts, since December 31, 2011, related to properties previously held in joint ventures or owned by third-parties.

Property-related expenses

Total property-related expenses were \$143.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$129.6 million for the same period in 2011. The components of property-related expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are:

		Year Ended December 31, 2012						
(\$ in thousands)	Expenses	% of Total Expenses	Expenses	% of Total Expenses	from 2011 to 2012			
Property operating expenses	\$ 101,746	71%	\$ 92,148	71%	10%			
Taxes, licenses and insurance	41,742	29%	37,489	29%	11%			
Total property-related expenses	\$ 143,488	100%	\$ 129,637	100%	11%			

The increase in total property-related expenses of \$13.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, was primarily attributable to properties acquired during 2011 and 2012. The following table illustrates the change in total property-related expenses by property type, with the two components (property operating expenses and taxes, licenses and insurance) presented on an aggregate basis for each property type:

	Years I Decemb	Change from 2011	
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	to 2012
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 119,834	\$ 117,107	\$ 2,727
Acquisitions:			
Multifamily (2)	13,733	5,410	8,323
Developments:			
Multifamily	2,570	292	2,278
Other (3)	7,351	6,828	523

\$ 143,488

\$ 129,637

\$ 13,851

H-19

Table of Contents

- (1) Consists of the 93 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 28,445 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011. Excludes two consolidated multifamily apartment communities, containing 498 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011, which are classified in discontinued operations.
- (2) Includes 13 multifamily communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.
- (3) Includes all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 13 communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.

Property management expense

Property management expense consist of regional supervision and accounting costs related to consolidated property operations, primarily consisting of salaries and incentive compensation and property management software costs. Property management expenses were \$12.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$9.2 million for the same period in 2011. The \$3.7 million increase in expenses was primarily attributable to an increase in salaries and higher incentive compensation expense in 2012.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expense were \$22.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$20.4 million for the same period in 2011. The \$2.2 million increase in expenses is primarily attributable to higher incentive compensation and legal expense in 2012.

Management fees and other expenses

Management fees and other expenses consist of property management and other services provided to third parties, primarily consisting of salaries and incentive compensation, leasing commissions and legal expenses. Management fees and other expenses were \$6.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$8.1 million for the same period in 2011. The \$1.8 million reduction in management fee and other expenses is primarily attributable to the termination of management contracts in connection with the disposition of our interests in certain joint ventures or the termination of other management contracts owned by third parties since December 31, 2011.

Restructuring charges

Restructuring charges were \$1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$0.2 million for the same period in 2011. The \$1.6 million increase in restructuring charges is attributable to the departure of our President and Chief Financial Officer and other management personnel as a result of the further streamlining of our operations.

H-20

Depreciation

Depreciation expense was \$114.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$107.2 million for the same period in 2011. The total increase in depreciation expense of \$6.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, was primarily attributable to properties acquired since December 31, 2011 as follows:

	Years Ended December 31,			Change from		
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	2011 to 2012			
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 90,176	\$ 91,548	\$	(1,372)		
Acquisitions:						
Multifamily (2)	13,760	5,192		8,568		
Developments:						
Multifamily	2,074	27		2,047		
Other (3)	7,951	10,469		(2,518)		
	\$ 113,961	\$ 107,236	\$	6,725		

- (1) Consists of the 93 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 28,445 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011. Excludes two consolidated multifamily apartment communities, containing 498 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011, which are classified in discontinued operations.
- (2) Includes 13 multifamily communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.
- (3) Includes overhead, all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 13 communities acquired during 2011 and 2012.

Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses

Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses were \$22.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$5.7 million for the same period in 2011. See Note 3 Real Estate Activity Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8 for additional details.

Interest expense

Interest expense was \$92.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$86.6 million for the same period in 2011. The \$5.5 million increase in expense is primarily the result of higher interest rates on the \$250.0 million senior unsecured term loan that was entered into in July 2011 and the \$150.0 million senior unsecured term loan that was entered into in May 2012, both of which replaced debt outstanding under our prior and current unsecured credit facilities and extended our weighted-average debt maturity.

Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities

For the Trust, income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities was \$31.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$17.5 million for the same period in 2011. The change is primarily attributable to the gain of approximately \$21.9 million recognized on the redemption of our remaining 15% noncontrolling interest in the 18-asset DRA/CLP joint venture, net of a \$3.2 million non-cash impairment charge, which represents our pro rata share of an impairment recorded by the joint venture for 2011 but omitted in our annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011. In addition to the net gain recognized on the DRA/CLP joint venture transaction, we recognized a gain of approximately \$7.4 million on the sale of our remaining 10% noncontrolling interest in the nine-asset Bluerock office portfolio and a gain of approximately \$1.0 million on the sale of our 25% noncontrolling interest in Colonial Promenade Madison, a commercial asset located in

Table of Contents

Huntsville, Alabama. Income recognized in 2011 is primarily due to the gain of approximately \$18.8 million recognized on the sale of our remaining 50% noncontrolling interest in Colonial Pinnacle Turkey Creek in Knoxville, Tennessee, in December 2011, which was partially offset by a reduction in our share of earnings from joint ventures.

For CRLP, income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities was \$27.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$17.5 million for the same period in 2011. CRLP recognized a gain of approximately \$17.8 million on the redemption of our remaining 15% noncontrolling interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture. The difference in the amount of gain recognized on the transaction compared to the gain recognized by the Trust is due to the Trust being released from a \$4.1 million contingent liability as a part of this transaction, which represented the Trust is promote a guaranty obligation resulting from a debt guaranty provided by the joint venture.

(Loss) gain on sale of property

(Loss) gain on sale of property, net of income taxes, was a loss of \$4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to a gain of \$0.1 million for the same period in 2011. The loss in 2012 is the result of a \$4.2 million adjustment to a previously recognized gain on sale of a property related to required infrastructure repairs on a retail asset that was originally developed by us and sold in the fourth quarter of 2007.

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations was \$22.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as a result of the disposition of four multifamily apartment communities and one commercial asset, compared to \$23.7 million for the same period in 2011, as a result of the disposition of six multifamily apartment communities and two commercial assets.

Noncontrolling interest in CRLP preferred unitholders

In December 2011, we repurchased the remaining 1.0 million of the outstanding Series B Preferred Units from the existing holders; therefore, there were no dividends to preferred unitholders for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$3.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Preferred Unit Repurchase Gains

Preferred unit repurchase gains for the year ended December 31, 2011 were \$2.5 million. This gain resulted from CRLP s repurchase of the remaining 1.0 million of the outstanding Series B Preferred Units in December 2011, representing a 5% discount.

Preferred Share/Unit Issuance Costs

Preferred unit issuance costs for the year ended December 31, 2011 were \$1.3 million. We wrote off the original preferred unit issuance costs related to the repurchase of CRLP s remaining Series B Preferred Units.

H-22

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Property-related revenue

Total property-related revenues, which consist of minimum rent, tenant recoveries and other property-related revenue, were \$321.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$290.0 million for the same period in 2010. The following table illustrates the change in property-related revenues by property type, with the three components (minimum rent, tenant recoveries and other property-related revenue) presented on an aggregate basis for each property type:

		Year Ended December 31, 2011		Year Ended December 31, 2010		
(\$ in thousands)	Revenues	% of Total Revenues	Revenues	% of Total Revenues	from 2010 to 2011	
Minimum rent (1)	\$ 271,171	84%	\$ 245,072	84%	11%	
Tenant recoveries	3,032	1%	2,473	1%	23%	
Other property-related revenue	47,376	15%	42,469	15%	12%	
Total property-related revenue	\$ 321,579	100%	\$ 290,014	100%	11%	

(1) Includes \$0.2 million of rentals from affiliates for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

The increase in total property-related revenues of \$31.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, was primarily attributable to increases in minimum rent resulting from properties acquired during 2010 and 2011 and an increase in rental rates at our multifamily same-property communities. The following table illustrates the change in property-related revenues by property type, with the three components (minimum rent, tenant recoveries and other property-related revenue) presented on an aggregate basis for each property type:

	Years l Decemb	Change from 2010		
(\$ in thousands)	2011	2011 2010		
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 295,620	\$ 283,115	\$ 12,505	
Multifamily same-property community dispositions (2)	(16,939)	(16,051)	(888)	
Acquisitions:				
Multifamily (3)	20,370	2,333	18,037	
Developments:				
Multifamily	89		89	
Commercial	2,742	998	1,744	
Other ⁽⁴⁾	19,697	19,619	78	
	\$ 321,579	\$ 290.014	\$ 31.565	

⁽¹⁾ Consists of the 96 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 29,173 apartment units, continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1, 2010.

⁽²⁾ Consists of four multifamily same-property communities that were sold during 2012 containing 1,380 apartment units and two multifamily same-property communities that were classified as discontinued operations as of December 31, 2012 containing 498 apartment units.

Operations for these properties are reflected in Income from discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).

⁽³⁾ Includes 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.

(4) Includes all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.

H-23

Property-related revenues for our multifamily same-property communities classified in continuing operations increased \$11.6 million, or 4.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the same period in 2010, primarily due to improvements in new and renewal lease rental rates while maintaining consistently high occupancy levels. During the year, rents increased an average of 3.5% on new move-ins compared to the expiring lease for the same unit and renewal rates increased an average of 6.3% over the expiring lease for the same unit. As a result, average monthly rent per unit for our multifamily same-property communities increased to \$748 per unit for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to \$720 per unit for the same period in 2010. Average occupancy for our multifamily same-property communities was 96.1% for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to 96.5% for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Other non-property related revenue

Other non-property related revenues, which consist primarily of management fees, leasing fees and other miscellaneous fees, were \$8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$11.7 million for the same period in 2010. The \$3.7 million decrease is attributable to the loss, since December 31, 2010, of third-party management and leasing contracts related to properties previously held in joint ventures or owned by third parties.

Property-related expenses

Total property-related expenses were \$129.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$121.5 million for the same period in 2010. The components of property-related expenses for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are:

		Year Ended December 31, 2011		Year Ended December 31, 2010		
(\$ in thousands)	Expenses	% of Total Expenses	Expenses	% of Total Expenses	from 2010 to 2011	
Property operating expenses	\$ 92,148	71%	\$ 86,369	71%	7%	
Taxes, licenses and insurance	37,489	29%	35,087	29%	7%	
Total property-related expenses	\$ 129,637	100%	\$ 121,456	100%	7%	

The increase in total property-related expenses of \$8.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, was primarily attributable to properties acquired during 2010 and 2011. The following table illustrates the change in total property-related expenses by property type, with the two components (property operating expenses and taxes, licenses and insurance) presented on an aggregate basis for each property type:

	Years I	Years Ended			
	Decemb	December 31,			
(\$ in thousands)	2011	2010	2010) to 2011	
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 120,730	\$ 120,057	\$	673	
Multifamily same-property community dispositions (2)	(7,795)	(8,154)		359	
Acquisitions:					
Multifamily (3)	8,179	1,022		7,157	
Developments:					
Multifamily	291			291	
Commercial	911	415		496	
Other (4)	7,321	8,116		(795)	
	,			. ,	
	\$ 129,637	\$ 121,456	\$	8,181	

(1) Consists of the 96 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 29,173 apartment units, continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1, 2010.

H-24

- (2) Consists of four multifamily same-property communities that were sold during 2012 containing 1,380 apartment units and two multifamily same-property communities that were classified as discontinued operations as of December 31, 2012 containing 498 apartment units.

 Operations for these properties are reflected in Income from discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).
- (3) Includes 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.
- (4) Includes all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.

Property management expense

Property management expense consist of regional supervision and accounting costs related to consolidated property operations, primarily consisting of salaries and incentive compensation and property management software costs. These expenses were \$9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$8.6 million for the same period in 2010. The \$0.6 million increase in expenses was primarily related to a \$0.4 million reduction in self-insurance reserves in 2010, which was based on an actuarial study of claims history.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expense were \$20.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$18.6 million for the same period in 2010. The \$1.8 million increase in expenses is primarily attributable to a \$1.5 million increase in salaries and incentive compensation and the effects of a \$2.2 million reduction in self-insurance accruals in 2010 (which reduced general and administrative expense in 2010). These increases were partially offset by a \$1.5 million decrease in legal expenses.

Management fees and other expenses

Management fees and other expenses consist of property management and other services provided to third parties, primarily consisting of salaries and incentive compensation, leasing commissions and legal expenses. These expenses were \$8.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$9.5 million for the same period in 2010. The \$1.4 million reduction in management fee and other expenses was attributable to the termination of management contracts since December 31, 2010.

Depreciation

Depreciation expense was \$107.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$100.1 million for the same period in 2010. The total increase in depreciation expense of \$7.1 million was primarily attributable to properties acquired during 2010 and 2011, as follows:

	Years I Decemb		Change from		
(\$ in thousands)	2011	2010	2010	to 2011	
Multifamily same-property communities (1)	\$ 92,485	\$ 92,818	\$	(333)	
Multifamily same-property community dispositions (2)	(5,619)	(5,592)		(27)	
Acquisitions:					
Multifamily (3)	7,939	769		7,170	
Developments:					
Multifamily	27			27	
Commercial	1,158	353		805	
Other ⁽⁴⁾	11,246	11,789		(543)	
	\$ 107,236	\$ 100,137	\$	7,099	

Table of Contents

- (1) Consists of the 96 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 29,173 apartment units, continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1, 2010.
- (2) Consists of four multifamily same-property communities that were sold during 2012 containing 1,380 apartment units and two multifamily same-property communities that were classified as discontinued operations as of December 31, 2012 containing 498 apartment units.

 Operations for these properties are reflected in Income from discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).
- (3) Includes 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.
- (4) Includes overhead, all commercial properties and all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and the 10 multifamily communities acquired during 2010 and 2011.

Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses

Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses were \$5.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$1.3 million for the same period in 2010. See Note 3 *Real Estate Activity Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses* in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8.

Interest expense

Interest expense was \$86.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$83.1 million for the same period in 2010. The \$3.5 million increase in expense is primarily a result of a higher interest rate on the \$250.0 million senior unsecured term loan that was entered into in July 2011, which replaced debt outstanding under our prior unsecured credit facility.

Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities

Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities was \$17.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to \$3.4 million for the year ended 2010. Income recognized in 2011 is primarily due to the gain of approximately \$18.8 million recognized on the sale of our remaining 50% noncontrolling interest in Colonial Pinnacle Turkey Creek in Knoxville, Tennessee, in December 2011, which was partially offset by a reduction in our share of earnings from joint ventures. Income recognized in 2010 is primarily due to the gain of approximately \$3.5 million recognized on the sale of our remaining 50% noncontrolling interest in Parkway Place Mall in Huntsville, Alabama, in October 2010.

(Loss) gain on sale of property

(Loss) gain on sale of property, net of income taxes, was a gain of \$0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to a loss of \$1.5 million for the same period in 2010. The loss in 2010 is the result of mitigation of structural settlement and infrastructure costs related to two commercial assets. Both of these assets were sold by CPSI in previous years, and therefore are expensed as additional development costs in (Loss) gain on sale of property in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations was \$23.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as a result of the gains recognized on the disposition of six multifamily apartment communities and two commercial assets, compared to a \$0.3 million loss for the same period in 2010.

Dividends to preferred shareholders

In September 2010, the Trust redeemed all of the outstanding Series D Preferred Depositary Shares (and CRLP repurchased all of the Series D Preferred Units); therefore, there were no dividends to preferred shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to \$5.6 million for the same period in 2010.

H-26

Preferred Unit Repurchase Gains

Preferred unit repurchase gains for the year ended December 31, 2011 were \$2.5 million. This gain resulted from CRLP s repurchase of the remaining 1.0 million of the outstanding Series B Preferred Units in December 2011, representing a 5% discount. Preferred unit repurchase gains for the year ended December 31, 2010 was \$3.0 million, which resulted from the repurchase of one-half of CRLP s outstanding Series B Preferred Units in December 2010 at a 6% discount.

Preferred Share/Unit Issuance Costs

Preferred share/unit issuance costs for year ended December 31, 2011 were \$1.3 million. We wrote off the original preferred unit issuance costs related to the repurchase of CRLP s remaining Series B Preferred Units. Preferred share/unit issuance costs for year ended December 31, 2010 were \$4.9 million. We wrote off \$3.6 million of the original preferred share issuance costs related to the redemption of the Trust s Series D Preferred Depositary Shares and \$1.3 million of the original preferred unit issuance costs related to the repurchase of one-half of CRLP s Series B Preferred Units.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As noted above, except as otherwise required by the context, references to the Company, we, us and our refer to the Trust and CRLP together, well as CRLP s subsidiaries. Unless otherwise specified below, the following discussion of liquidity and capital resources applies to both the Trust and CRLP.

Short-Term Liquidity Needs

We believe our principal short-term liquidity needs are to fund:

operating expenses directly associated with our portfolio of properties (including regular maintenance items);

capital expenditures incurred to lease our multifamily apartment communities and commercial space (e.g., tenant improvements and leasing commissions);

interest expense and scheduled principal payments on our outstanding debt; and

quarterly distributions that we pay to the Trust s shareholders and holders of partnership units in CRLP. With \$99.5 million of debt maturing in 2013, we believe that cash generated from operations, dispositions of assets and borrowings under our credit facility will be sufficient to allow us to execute our 2013 business directives and meet our short-term liquidity requirements. However, factors described below and elsewhere herein may have a material adverse effect on our future cash flow.

Our cash flows from operations, financing activities and investing activities (including dispositions), as well as general economic and market conditions, are the principal factors affecting our liquidity and capital resources. Changes in cash due to operating, investing and financing activities are as follows:

Operating activities Net cash provided by operating activities increased to \$137.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from \$118.1 million for the comparable prior year period. The change was primarily driven by an increase in operating performance at our same-property multifamily communities, the inclusion of the results of operations from properties acquired in 2011 and 2012 and changes attributable to the timing of payments relating to accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and accounts payable. For 2013, we expect cash flows from operating activities to be higher than in 2012 due to acquisitions and developments placed into service in 2012 and acquisitions and developments we expect to place into service in 2013.

H-27

Table of Contents

Investing activities Net cash used in investing activities was \$143.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$175.6 million for the comparable prior year period. The change is primarily the result of decreased acquisition activity in the year ended December 31, 2012 net of restricted cash used from exchanges under Section 1031 of the Code, when compared to the same period in the prior year, partially offset by an increase in development and capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2012 when compared to the same period in the prior year. In addition, the year ended December 31, 2011 includes cash distributions resulting from the sale of our interest in certain joint ventures, partially offset by the cash used for the repurchase of the outstanding mortgage loan secured by Colonial Grand at Traditions. As we continue to explore other growth opportunities through potential acquisitions and developments, we expect our cash flow used in investing activities to be consistent with or slightly lower than 2012.

Financing activities Net cash provided by financing activities was \$11.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to \$59.1 million for the comparable prior year period. The change was primarily driven by \$150.0 million of proceeds from a term loan entered into during the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$250.0 million of proceeds from a term loan entered into during the year ended December 31, 2011, plus \$163.4 million of net cash proceeds from common shares issued pursuant to at-the-market equity offering programs during the year ended December 31, 2011. This increase in proceeds in 2011 was offset by an increase in payments on our prior unsecured credit facility and the use of \$47.5 million of funds to repurchase the remaining outstanding Series B preferred units of CRLP during the year ended December 31, 2011. In addition, we made principal debt payments of \$82.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$58.9 million for the comparable prior year period.

The majority of our revenue is derived from residents and tenants under existing leases, primarily at our multifamily apartment communities. Therefore, our operating cash flow is dependent upon (i) the number of multifamily apartment communities in our portfolio, (ii) rental rates, (iii) occupancy rates, (iv) operating expenses associated with these apartment communities and (v) the ability of residents to make their rental payments. As a result of continued job growth in our markets, we continue to see strong multifamily fundamentals, such as high occupancy rates, positive new and renewal lease rates over the expiring leases and a lower homeownership rate, which all are positive developments for the multifamily industry.

The Trust made an election to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code, commencing with its taxable year ended December 31,1993. If the Trust maintains its qualification for taxation as a REIT, it generally will not be subject to federal income tax on its distributed net income if it distributes at least 90% of its REIT taxable income subject to certain adjustments and excluding net capital gain, to the Trust shareholders. Even if the Trust qualifies for taxation as a REIT, it may be subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed income.

Long-Term Liquidity Needs

We believe our principal long-term liquidity needs are to fund:

the principal amount of our long-term debt as it matures;

significant capital expenditures that need to be made at our properties;

development projects that we undertake; and

costs associated with acquisitions of properties that we pursue.

Historically, we have satisfied these requirements principally through the most advantageous source of capital at the time, which has included the incurrence of new debt through borrowings by CRLP (through public offerings of unsecured debt and private incurrence of collateralized and unsecured debt), sales of common shares of the Trust (including through at-the-market equity offering programs), sales of preferred shares of the Trust, capital raised through the disposition of assets and joint venture capital transactions.

Table of Contents

On May 6, 2011, the Trust and CRLP filed a joint universal shelf registration statement with the SEC allowing the Trust to offer, from time to time, an unspecified amount of equity securities of the Trust (including common and preferred shares) and allowing CRLP to offer, from time to time, an unspecified amount of debt securities, each on an as-needed basis subject to the ability of the Trust and CRLP to effect offerings on satisfactory terms based on prevailing conditions. In 2011 (through July 8, 2011), the Trust sold 8,416,846 common shares under its December 2010 and May 2011 continuous at-the-market equity offering programs at a weighted average issuance price of \$19.80 per share for net proceeds of approximately \$163.7 million, net of underwriting discounts and administrative expenses. Pursuant to CRLP s Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership, each time the Trust issues common shares pursuant to the foregoing programs or other equity offerings, CRLP issues to the Trust, its general partner, an equal number of units for the same price at which the common shares were sold and the Trust contributes the net proceeds of such offerings to CRLP. The net proceeds resulting from this program were used to pay down a portion of the outstanding borrowings under CRLP s unsecured credit facility, to partially fund the acquisition of three multifamily properties and to fund other general corporate purposes. The Trust s last continuous at-the-market equity offering program was fully exhausted in July 2011.

Our ability to raise funds through sales of common shares and preferred shares of the Trust in the future is dependent on, among other things, general market conditions for REIT s, market perceptions about our company and the current trading price of the Trust s common shares. We will continue to analyze which source of capital is most advantageous to us at any particular point in time, but the equity and credit markets may not be consistently available on terms that are attractive or at all.

Our ability to incur additional debt (and the cost of incurring additional debt) is dependent upon a number of factors, including our credit ratings, the value of our assets, our degree of leverage and borrowing restrictions imposed by our current lenders. We will continue to monitor the unsecured and secured debt markets, and as market conditions permit, access borrowings that are advantageous to us. During the year ended December 31, 2012, Standard & Poors upgraded our senior unsecured debt rating to BBB- and Moody s Investment Services upgraded our senior unsecured debt rating to Baa3.

Our ability to generate cash from asset sales is limited by market conditions and certain rules applicable to REITs. We may not be able to sell a property or properties as quickly as we have in the past or on terms as favorable as we have previously received. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we sold assets (or our interests in assets) for aggregate proceeds of approximately \$152.5 million (\$148.4 million from the sale of consolidated assets and \$4.1 million, which is our pro-rata share, from the sale of unconsolidated assets and from dispositions of our joint venture interests in the underlying assets). The proceeds were used to repay a portion of outstanding borrowings under our credit facility.

At December 31, 2012, our total outstanding debt balance was \$1.83 billion. The outstanding balance includes fixed-rate debt of \$1.63 billion, or 89.0% of the total debt balance, and variable-rate debt of \$201.1 million, or 11.0% of the total debt balance. As further discussed below, at December 31, 2012, we had an unsecured revolving credit facility providing for total borrowings of up to \$500.0 million and a cash management line providing for borrowings up to \$35.0 million. The cash management line was amended and restated in April 2012, as discussed below.

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility and Cash Management Line

On March 30, 2012, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a \$500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the Credit Facility) with Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated as joint lead arrangers and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (Wells Fargo), as administrative agent for the lenders, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as agents and lenders. The Credit Facility replaced CRLP s prior \$675.0 million credit facility, which would have matured on June 21, 2012. The Credit Facility has a maturity date of March 29, 2016, with a one-year extension option, which may be

H-29

Table of Contents

exercised as long as there is no existing default and upon payment of a 0.20% extension fee. The Credit Facility includes an accordion feature that allows the total commitments to be increased to \$700.0 million, subject to certain conditions, including obtaining commitments from any one or more lenders, whether or not currently a lender under the Credit Facility.

The spread over LIBOR for syndicated borrowings under the Credit Facility ranges from 1.00% to 1.80% and the facility fee ranges from 0.15% and 0.40%, each based on the credit ratings of CRLP s senior unsecured debt from time to time. As of December 31, 2012, the Credit Facility had a stated interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.40% and required the payment of an annual facility fee equal to 0.30% of the aggregate loan commitments. The Credit Facility also includes an uncommitted competitive bid option for up to \$250.0 million of the \$500.0 million Credit Facility, which can be utilized if CRLP maintains an investment grade credit rating from either Moody s Investors Services, Inc. or Standard & Poor s Ratings Services. This option would allow participating banks to bid to provide CRLP loans at a rate that may be lower than the stated rate for syndicated borrowings.

In addition to the Credit Facility, we have a \$35.0 million cash management line provided by Wells Fargo which was amended and restated in April 2012. The amended and restated cash management line has a maturity date of March 29, 2016.

The Credit Facility and cash management line, which have been primarily used to finance property acquisitions and developments, had an outstanding balance of \$188.6 million, including \$170.0 million outstanding on the Credit Facility and \$18.6 million outstanding on the cash management line. The weighted average interest rate of the Credit Facility and the cash management line was 1.61% as of December 31, 2012.

The Credit Facility agreement contains various covenants and events of default that are more fully described in *Note 14* Financing Activities Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP, included in Item 8. As of December 31, 2012, we were in compliance with these covenants.

Senior Unsecured Term Loans

On May 11, 2012, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a term loan agreement with U.S. Bank National Association, as administrative agent and a lender, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as lenders, which provides for a \$150.0 million senior unsecured term loan. As of December 31, 2012, the term loan had an outstanding balance of \$150.0 million. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 1.10% to 2.05% based on the credit ratings on CRLP s unsecured debt from time to time. We entered into two interest rate swap agreements that fixed the interest rate of the term loan through maturity at an all-in initial interest rate of 2.71%, based on the initial margin of 1.60%. The term loan matures on May 11, 2017. The term loan agreement contains various covenants and events of default that are more fully described in *Note 14 Financing Activities Senior Unsecured Term Loans* in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP included in Item 8. The proceeds from the term loan were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility.

On July 22, 2011, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a term loan agreement with Wells Fargo, as administrative agent and a lender, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as lenders, which provides for a \$250.0 million senior unsecured term loan. As of December 31, 2012, the term loan had an outstanding balance of \$250.0 million. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 1.65% to 2.90% based on the credit ratings on CRLP s unsecured debt from time to time. We entered into two interest rate swap agreements that fixed the interest rate of the term loan through maturity at an all-in initial interest rate of 5.00%, based on the initial margin of 245 basis points. During 2012, our senior unsecured debt rating was upgraded to an investment grade rating, therefore reducing the interest rate to 4.55%. The term loan matures on August 1, 2018. The term loan agreement contains various covenants and events of default that are more fully described in *Note 14* Financing Activities Senior Unsecured Term Loans in the Notes to Consolidated

H-30

Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP included in Item 8. The proceeds from the term loan were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our prior unsecured credit facility.

Unsecured Senior Note Maturities

During August 2012, our outstanding 6.875% senior notes matured and we satisfied our obligation thereunder with an aggregate payment of \$82.8 million (\$80.0 million of principal and \$2.8 million of accrued interest) using borrowings under our Credit Facility.

Capital Investments / Cost Capitalization

The following table summarizes our capital investments and capitalized costs, consisting of costs associated with acquisition of assets, as well as development expenditures and other capitalized expenditures for our consolidated assets, for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

(\$ in thousands)	=	Months Ended ember 31,
	2012	2011
Multifamily Acquisitions	\$ 180,115	\$ 234,845
Developments:		
Multifamily	\$ 76,127	\$ 35,862
Commercial	17,494	8,938
For Sale / Other	2,251	747
Total Developments	\$ 95,872	\$ 45,547
Total Developments	ψ 93,872	Φ +3,3+7
Capital Expenditures:		
Multifamily Capital Expenditures	\$ 25,065	\$ 22,398
Commercial Capital Expenditures	\$ 728	\$ 435
Commercial Tenant Improvements	\$ 636	\$ 1,383
Commercial Leasing Commissions	\$ 1,161	\$ 513

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, our multifamily capital expenditures were \$745 per unit and \$681 per unit, respectively. For 2013, we estimate that capital expenditures per unit for our multifamily apartment communities will be slightly lower than those in 2012, which were approximately \$745 per unit.

We capitalize interest, real estate taxes and certain internal personnel and associated costs related to projects under development, construction and rehabilitation. The incremental personnel and associated costs are capitalized to the projects under development and rehabilitation based upon the effort associated with such projects. Prior to the commencement of leasing activities, interest and other construction costs are capitalized and included in construction in progress. We cease the capitalization of such costs as the project becomes substantially complete and available for occupancy. In addition, prior to the completion of the project, we expense, as incurred, substantially all operating expenses (including pre-opening marketing expenses) of such project. Capitalized indirect costs associated with our projects under development or construction were \$2.7 million and \$1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Distributions

We intend to continue to declare quarterly distributions on the Trust s common shares. In order to maintain its qualification as a REIT, the Trust must make annual distributions to shareholders of at least 90% of its REIT taxable income. Future distributions will be declared and paid at the discretion of our Board of Trustees and the amount and timing of distributions will depend upon cash generated by operating activities, our financial condition, capital requirements, restrictions in any of our financing agreements, annual distribution requirements under the REIT provisions of the Code, the Trust s ability to pay dividends under Alabama law and such other

H-31

factors as our Board of Trustees of the Trust deem relevant. The Board of Trustees of the Trust reviews the dividend quarterly and there can be no assurance as to the manner in which future dividends will be paid or that the current dividend level will be maintained in future periods.

Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to the effect of interest rate changes that could affect our results of operations and financial condition or cash flow. We limit these risks by following established risk management policies and procedures, including the use of derivative instruments to manage or hedge interest rate risk. However, interest rate swap agreements and other hedging arrangements may expose us to additional risks, including a risk that a counterparty to a hedging arrangement may fail to honor its obligations. Developing an effective interest rate risk strategy is complex and no strategy can completely insulate us from risks associated with interest rate fluctuations. There can be no assurance that our hedging activities will have the desired beneficial impact on our results of operations or financial condition. The table below presents the principal amounts, weighted average interest rates, fair values and other terms required by year of expected maturity to evaluate the expected cash flows and sensitivity to interest rate changes at December 31, 2012.

								Estimated
(\$ in thousands)	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	Thereafter	Total	Fair Value
Fixed Rate Debt	\$ 99,504	\$ 192,051	\$ 211,199	\$ 89,346	\$ 150,000	\$ 888,796	\$ 1,630,896	\$ 1,732,671
Average interest rate at December 31, 2012	6.2%	6.3%	5.5%	6.0%	2.7%	5.4%	5.3%	
Variable Rate Debt	\$	\$	\$ 12,465	\$ 188,631(1)	\$	\$	\$ 201,096	\$ 201,096
Average interest rate at December 31, 2012			3.1%	1.6%			1.7%	

(1) Represents amount outstanding under our Credit Facility as of December 31, 2012, which Credit Facility matures on March 29, 2016. The table incorporates only those exposures that exist as of December 31, 2012. It does not consider those exposures or positions which could arise after that date. Moreover, because firm commitments are not presented in the table above, the information presented therein has limited predictive value. As a result, our ultimate realized gain or loss with respect to interest rate fluctuations will depend on the exposures that arise during the period, our hedging strategies at that time, and interest rates.

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately \$201.1 million of outstanding variable rate debt. We do not believe that the interest rate risk represented by our variable rate debt is material in relation to our \$1.8 billion of outstanding total debt and our \$3.3 billion of total assets as of December 31, 2012.

If market rates of interest on our variable rate debt increase by 1%, the increase in annual interest expense on our variable rate debt would decrease annual future earnings and cash flows by approximately \$2.0 million. If market rates of interest on our variable rate debt decrease by 1%, the decrease in interest expense on our variable rate debt would increase future earnings and cash flows by approximately \$2.0 million. This assumes that the amount outstanding under our variable rate debt remains approximately \$201.1 million, the balance as of December 31, 2012.

Our objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage our exposure to interest rate movements. To accomplish this objective, we primarily use interest rate swaps and caps as part of our interest rate risk management strategy. Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in exchange for us making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount. Interest rate caps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty if interest rates rise above the strike rate on the contract in exchange for an upfront premium.

H-32

Table of Contents

On April 11, 2012, we entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$100.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 1.13%, and a maturity date of May 11, 2017. On April 27, 2012, we entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$50.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 1.06%, and a maturity date of May 11, 2017. In accordance with these agreements, the Company will pay the fixed rate and receive a variable rate based on one-month LIBOR. These interest rate swap agreements became effective on May 11, 2012 when we entered into a new \$150.0 million term loan, as discussed above.

On June 3, 2011, we entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement to hedge the interest rate risk associated with forecasted debt issuance. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$200.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 2.58%, and a maturity date of August 1, 2018. On July 12, 2011, we entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement to hedge the interest rate risk associated with forecasted debt issuance. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$50.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 2.47%, and a maturity date of August 1, 2018. These interest rate swaps became effective on July 22, 2011 when we entered into a new \$250.0 million term loan, as discussed above.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges is recorded in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* and is subsequently reclassified into earnings as *Interest expense* as interest payments are made on our variable-rate debt. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the derivatives is recognized directly in earnings as a *Loss on hedging activities*. We did not classify amounts to *Loss on hedging activities* for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we accelerated the reclassification of \$0.3 million in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* to *Loss on hedging activities* related to interest payments on the hedged debt deemed probable not to occur as a result of the repurchases of senior notes of CRLP.

Amounts reported in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* related to derivatives will be reclassified to *Interest expense* as interest payments are made on our variable-rate debt. The changes in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* for reclassifications to *Interest expense* tied to interest payments on the hedged debt were \$7.2 million, \$3.2 million and \$0.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Over the next 12 months, the Company expects to reclassify \$7.7 million from *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* as an increase to *Interest expense*.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had the following outstanding interest rate derivatives that were designated as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk (\$ in thousands):

Interest Rate Derivative	Number of Instruments	Notio	nal Amount
Interest Rate Swaps	4	\$	400,000

Further, we have a policy of only entering into contracts with major financial institutions based upon their credit ratings and other factors. When viewed in conjunction with the underlying and offsetting exposure that the derivatives are designed to hedge, we have not sustained a material loss from those instruments nor do we anticipate any material adverse effect on our net income or financial position in the future from the use of derivatives

H-33

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments

The following tables summarize the material aspects of our future contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of December 31, 2012:

Contractual Obligations

	Payments Due in Fiscal							
(\$ in thousands)	Total	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	Thereafter	
Long-Term Debt Principal:								
Consolidated (1)	\$ 1,831,992	\$ 99,504	\$ 192,051	\$ 223,664	\$ 277,977	\$ 150,000	\$ 888,796	
Partially-Owned Entities (2)	20,697	13,715	4,922	137		1,923		
Long-Term Debt Interest: (3)								
Consolidated	396,811	85,970	77,665	68,455	55,818	49,219	59,684	
Partially-Owned Entities (2)	1,468	983	168	116	115	86		
Long-Term Debt Principal and Interest:								
Consolidated (1)	2,228,803	185,474	269,716	292,119	333,795	199,219	948,480	
Partially-Owned Entities (2)	22,165	14,698	5,090	253	115	2,009		
Total	\$ 2,250,968	\$ 200,172	\$ 274,806	\$ 292,372	\$ 333,910	\$ 201,228	\$ 948,480	

- (1) Amounts due in 2016 include the Credit Facility, which matures on March 29,2016.
- (2) Represents our pro-rata share of principal maturities (excluding net premiums and discounts) and interest, based on our ownership interest in the joint ventures.
- (3) Includes effect of interest rate swaps.

Other Commercial Commitments

Total Amounts								
(\$ in thousands)	Committed		2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	Thereafter
Standby Letters of Credit	\$	5,134	\$ 5,134	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$

Commitments and Contingencies

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we recorded \$4.2 million related to required infrastructure repairs on Colonial Promenade Alabaster II. During 2010, we recorded \$1.3 million for certain contingent liabilities related to the mitigation of structural settlement at Colonial Promenade Alabaster II and additional infrastructure cost at Colonial Promenade Fultondale. Both of these retail assets were developed and sold by CPSI in previous years, and therefore are expensed as additional development costs in (Loss) gain on sale of property in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

As a result of transactions executed in 2007, we implemented our strategic initiative to become a multifamily focused REIT, which included two significant joint venture transactions whereby the majority of our wholly-owned commercial properties were transferred into separate joint ventures. In December 2009, we disposed of our interest in one of these joint ventures. In connection with the other 2007 joint venture transaction, the DRA/CLP joint venture, the Trust assumed certain contingent liabilities, of which \$4.1 million remained outstanding until our remaining 15% noncontrolling interest was redeemed by the joint venture effective June 30, 2012, and in connection therewith, we were released from this contingent liability.

As of December 31, 2012, we are self-insured up to \$0.8 million, \$0.9 million and \$1.8 million for general liability, workers compensation and property insurance, respectively. We are also self-insured for health insurance and responsible for amounts up to \$135,000 per claim and up to \$2.0 million per person.

H-34

For a discussion of certain ongoing litigation matters, see Item 3 Legal Proceedings . In addition, we are involved in various other lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business, many of which are expected to be covered by liability insurance. In the opinion of management, although the outcomes of those normal course suits and claims are uncertain, in the aggregate they should not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Guarantees and Other Arrangements

In connection with the formation of Highway 150 LLC in 2002, we executed a guarantee, pursuant to which we served as a guaranter of \$1.0 million of the debt related to the joint venture, which was collateralized by the Colonial Promenade Hoover retail property. At December 31, 2012, the total amount of debt of the joint venture, which matured on January 11, 2013, was approximately \$15.1 million. At December 31, 2012, no liability was recorded for the guarantee. Subsequently, on January 14, 2013, we sold our 10% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture and paid off the debt associated with this guarantee. Therefore are no longer liable for this guarantee.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our pro-rata share of mortgage debt of unconsolidated joint ventures was \$20.7 million as of December 31, 2012. The aggregate maturities of this mortgage debt are as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	As of per 31, 2012
2013	\$ 13,715
2014	4,922
2015	137
2016	
2017	1,923
Thereafter	
	\$ 20,697

Our pro rata share of mortgage debt of unconsolidated joint ventures has declined from \$147.8 million as of December 31, 2012 to \$20.7 million as of December 31, 2012, primarily as a result of the redemption of our remaining 15% noncontrolling interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture, which was effective as of June 30, 2012. As a result of the redemption, we no longer have responsibility for \$111.3 million of the joint venture s mortgage debt, which represented our pro rata share of the debt. Of the \$13.7 million maturing in 2013, \$12.2 million represents our pro rata share of the amount outstanding on the construction note for the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint venture, which we acquired from the lender in May 2010 (see *Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Notes Receivable* in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8) and \$1.5 million represents our pro rata share of the outstanding debt on the Colonial Promenade Hoover joint venture, which we exited in January 2013 (see *Note 22 Subsequent Events* in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8). We intend to cooperate with our joint venture partners in connection with their efforts to refinance and/or replace debt, which cooperation may include additional capital contributions from time to time in connection therewith.

There can be no assurance that our joint ventures will be successful in refinancing and/or replacing existing debt at maturity or otherwise. If the joint ventures are unable to obtain additional financing, payoff the existing loans that are maturing, or renegotiate suitable terms with the existing lenders, the lenders generally would have the right to foreclose on the properties in question and, accordingly, the joint ventures will lose their interests in the assets. The failure to refinance and/or replace such debt and other factors with respect to our joint venture interests discussed in Item 1A Risk Factors included in our 2012 Form 10-K may materially adversely impact the value of our joint venture interests, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Table of Contents

218

Table of Contents

Under our various unconsolidated joint venture non-recourse mortgage loans, we could, under certain circumstances, be responsible for portions of the mortgage indebtedness in connection with certain customary non-recourse carve-out provisions, such as environmental conditions, misuse of funds, and material misrepresentations. In addition, as more fully described above, we have made certain guarantees in connection with our investment in unconsolidated joint ventures. We do not have any other off-balance sheet arrangements with any unconsolidated investments or joint ventures that we believe have or are reasonably likely to have a material effect on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity or capital resources.

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies

We believe our accounting policies are in conformity with GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to use judgment in the application of accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions. These judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. If our judgment or interpretation of the facts and circumstances relating to various transactions had been different, it is possible that different accounting policies would have been applied resulting in a different presentation of our financial statements. A comprehensive listing of our significant accounting policies is discussed in Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Trust and CRLP contained in Item 8. We consider the following accounting policies to be critical to our reported operating results:

Principles of Consolidation We consolidate entities in which we have a controlling interest or entities where we are determined to be the primary beneficiary under ASC 810-20, Control of Partnerships and Similar Entities. Variable interest entities (VIEs) are generally entities that lack sufficient equity to finance their activities without additional financial support from other parties or whose equity holders lack adequate decision-making ability. The primary beneficiary, the entity that directs the most significant business activities of the VIE, is required to consolidate the VIE for financial reporting purposes.

Revenue Recognition Residential properties are leased under operating leases with terms of generally one year or less. Rental revenues from residential leases are recognized on the straight-line method over the approximate life of the leases, which is generally one year. The recognition of rental revenues from residential leases when earned has historically not been materially different from rental revenues recognized on a straight-line basis.

Under the terms of residential leases, the residents of our residential communities are obligated to reimburse us for certain utility usage (cable, water, electricity and trash), where we are the primary obligor to the public utility entity. These utility reimbursements from residents are included as *Other property-related revenue* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

Rental income attributable to commercial leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases. Certain commercial leases contain provisions for additional rent based on a percentage of tenant sales. Percentage rents are recognized in the period in which sales thresholds are met. Recoveries from tenants for taxes, insurance, and other property operating expenses are recognized in the period the applicable costs are incurred in accordance with the terms of the related lease.

Sales and the associated gains or losses on real estate assets, condominium conversion projects and for-sale residential projects including developed condominiums are recognized in accordance with ASC 360-20, *Real Estate Sales*. For condominium conversion and for-sale residential projects, sales and the associated gains for individual condominium units are recognized upon the closing of the sale transactions, as all conditions for full profit recognition have been met. We use the relative sales value method to allocate costs and recognize profits from condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales.

H-36

Real Estate Assets, Impairment and Depreciation Land, buildings, and equipment is stated at the lower of cost, less accumulated depreciation, or fair value. Undeveloped land and construction in progress is stated at cost unless such assets are impaired in which case such assets are recorded at fair value. We review our long-lived assets and certain intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If an asset is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the asset s fair value. Assets classified as held for sale are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. We determine fair value based on inputs management believes are consistent with those other market participants would use. The fair values of these assets are determined using widely accepted valuation techniques, including (i) discounted cash flow analysis, which considers, among other things, unit sales assumptions, leasing assumptions, cost structure, growth rates, discount rates and terminal capitalization rates, (ii) income capitalization approach, which considers prevailing market capitalization rates and (iii) comparable sales activity. The valuation technique and related inputs vary with the specific facts and circumstances of each project. Estimates are significantly impacted by estimates of sales price, selling velocity, sales incentives, construction costs and other factors. Due to uncertainties in the estimation process, actual results could differ from such estimates. For those assets deemed to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is to be measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the as

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings 20 - 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 7 years
Land improvements 10 or 15 years
Tenant improvements Life of lease

Useful Lives

Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to expense as incurred. Replacements and improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated remaining useful lives of the assets.

Loss Contingencies The outcomes of claims, disputes and legal proceedings including those described in Item 3 Legal Proceedings of this Form 10-K are subject to significant uncertainty. The Company records an accrual for loss contingencies when a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company reviews these accruals quarterly and makes revisions based on changes in facts and circumstances. When a loss contingency is not both probable and reasonably estimable, the Company does not accrue the loss. However, if the loss (or an additional loss in excess of the accrual) is at least a reasonable possibility and material, then the Company discloses a reasonable estimate of the possible loss, or range of loss, if such reasonable estimate can be made. If the Company cannot make a reasonable estimate of the possible loss, or range of loss, then that is disclosed.

The assessment of whether a loss is probable or a reasonable possibility, and whether the loss or range of loss is reasonably estimable, often involve a series of complex judgments about future events. Among the factors that the Company considers in this assessment, including with respect to the matters disclosed in Item 3 Legal Proceedings in our 2012 Form 10-K, are the nature of existing legal proceedings and claims, the asserted or possible damages or loss contingency (if reasonably estimable), the progress of the matter, existing law and precedent, the opinions or views of legal counsel and other advisers, the Company s experience in similar matters, the facts available to the Company at the time of assessment, and how the Company intends to respond, or has responded, to the proceeding or claim. The Company s assessment of these factors may change over time as individual proceedings or claims progress. For matters where the Company is not currently able to reasonably estimate a range of reasonably possible loss, the factors that have contributed to this determination include the

H-37

Table of Contents

following: (i) the damages sought are indeterminate, (ii) the proceedings are in the early stages, (iii) the matters involve novel or unsettled legal theories or a large or uncertain number of actual or potential cases or parties, and/or (iv) discussions with the parties in matters that are expected ultimately to be resolved through negotiation and settlement have not reached the point where the Company believes a reasonable estimate of loss, or range of loss, can be made. In such instances, the Company believes that there is considerable uncertainty regarding the timing or ultimate resolution of such matters, including a possible eventual loss or business impact, if any.

As of December 31, 2012, our loss contingency accrual was \$26.8 million in the aggregate, and is reflected as a component of Accrued expenses in our accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2012 in Item 8.

Cost Capitalization Costs incurred during pre-development are capitalized after we have identified a development site, determined that a project is feasible and concluded that it is probable that the project will proceed. While we believe we will recover this capital through the successful development of such projects, it is possible that a write-off of unrecoverable amounts could occur. Once it is no longer probable that a development will be successful, the pre-development costs that have been previously capitalized are expensed.

The capitalization of costs during the development of assets (including interest, property taxes and other costs) begins when an active development commences and ends when the asset, or a portion of an asset, is delivered and is ready for its intended use. Cost capitalization during redevelopment of assets (including interest and other costs) begins when the asset is taken out of service for redevelopment and ends when the asset redevelopment is completed and the asset is placed in-service.

Acquisition of Real Estate Assets We account for our acquisitions of investments in real estate in accordance with ASC 805-10, Business Combinations, which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be allocated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building and tenant improvements, and identified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of above-market and below-market leases, other value of in-place leases and value of other tenant relationships, based in each case on the fair values.

We allocate purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property (which includes the land and building) determined by valuing the property as if it were vacant. The as-if-vacant value is allocated to land and buildings based on management s determination of the relative fair values of these assets. We also allocate value to tenant improvements based on the estimated costs of similar tenants with similar terms.

We record acquired intangible assets (including above-market leases, customer relationships and in-place leases) and acquired intangible liabilities (including below-market leases) at their estimated fair value separate and apart from goodwill. We amortize identified intangible assets and liabilities that are determined to have finite lives over the period the assets and liabilities are expected to contribute directly or indirectly to the future cash flows of the property or business acquired. Intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an intangible asset is not recoverable and its carrying amount exceeds its estimated fair value.

Inflation

Leases at our multifamily properties generally provide for an initial term of six months to one year and allow for rent adjustments at the time of renewal. Leases at our office properties typically provide for rent adjustments and the pass-through of certain operating expenses during the term of the lease. Substantially all of the leases at our retail properties provide for the pass-through to tenants of certain operating costs, including real estate taxes, common area maintenance expenses, and insurance. All of these provisions permit us to increase rental rates or other charges to tenants in response to rising prices and, therefore, serve to minimize our exposure to the adverse effects of inflation.

H-38

Table of Contents

An increase in general price levels may immediately precede, or accompany, an increase in interest rates. At December 31, 2012, our exposure to rising interest rates was mitigated by our high percentage of consolidated fixed rate debt (89.0%). As it relates to the short-term, an increase in interest expense resulting from increasing inflation is anticipated to be less than future increases in income before interest.

Funds From Operations

Funds from Operations (FFO), as defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (NAREIT), means income (loss) before noncontrolling interest (determined in accordance with GAAP), excluding gains/(losses) from sales of depreciated property and impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate, plus real estate depreciation and amortization and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. FFO is presented to assist investors in analyzing our performance. We believe that FFO is useful to investors because it provides an additional indicator of our financial and operating performance. This is because, by excluding the effect of real estate depreciation and amortization, gains (or losses) from sales of properties and impairment write-downs of depreciable real estate (all of which are based on historical costs which may be of limited relevance in evaluating current performance), FFO can facilitate comparison of operating performance among equity REITs. FFO is a widely recognized measure in the company s industry. We believe that the line item on our consolidated statements of operations entitled Net income (loss) available to common shareholders is the most directly comparable GAAP measure to FFO. Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values instead have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry investors and analysts have considered presentation of operating results for real estate companies that use historical cost accounting to be insufficient by themselves. Thus, NAREIT created FFO as a supplemental measure of REIT operating performance that excludes historical cost depreciation, among other items, from GAAP net income. Management believes that the use of FFO, combined with the required primary GAAP presentations, has been fundamentally beneficial, improving the understanding of operating results of REITs among the investing public and making comparisons of REIT operating results more meaningful.

In addition to Management evaluating the operating performance of our reportable segments based on FFO results, Management uses FFO and FFO per share, along with other measures, to assess performance in connection with evaluating and granting incentive compensation to key employees. Our method of calculating FFO may be different from methods used by other REITs and, accordingly, may not be comparable to such other REITs. FFO should not be considered (1) as an alternative to net income (determined in accordance with GAAP), (2) as an indicator of financial performance, (3) as cash flow from operating activities (determined in accordance with GAAP) or (4) as a measure of liquidity nor is it indicative of sufficient cash flow to fund all of the company s needs, including our ability to make distributions.

H-39

The following information is provided to reconcile net income available to common shareholders of the Trust, the most comparable GAAP measure, to FFO, and to show the items included in our FFO for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

				Years	Ende	d Decembe	r 31.			
(in thousands, except per share and unit data)	2	2012	20			2010	,	009		2008
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders	\$	8,160	\$ 3	3,428	\$ (48,054)	\$	(509)	\$	(55,429)
Adjustments (consolidated):										
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP		662		293		(5,068)		(82)		(11,225)
Noncontrolling interest in gain on sale of undepreciated property								992		
Real estate depreciation	1	26,222	126	5,696	1	20,471	11	1,220	1	101,035
Real estate amortization		6,613	8	3,306		7,248		1,582		1,272
Impairment on depreciable assets		3,251						958		
Remove: Total consolidated (gains) losses from sales of property,										
net of income tax and noncontrolling interest	(18,423)	(23	3,849)		1,786	((7,606)		(49,851)
Include: Gains (losses) from sales of undepreciated property, net of										
income tax and noncontrolling interest (1)		(4,339)		102		(1,720)		4,327		7,335
Adjustments (unconsolidated subsidiaries):										
Real estate depreciation		2,699		5,451		8,060		7,927		18,744
Real estate amortization		843	2	2,822		2,810		6,516		8,699
Gains from sales of property	(32,508)	(18	3,765)		(3,578)	((4,958)		(18,943)
Funds from operations	\$	93,180	\$ 105	5,484	\$	81,955	\$ 13	30,367	\$	1,637
Income allocated to participating securities		(719)		(772)		(645)		(559)		(717)
Funds from operations available to common shareholders and unitholders	\$	92,461	\$ 104	1,712	\$	81,310	\$ 12	29,808	\$	920
Funds from operations per share and unit basic	\$	0.98	\$	1.15	\$	1.02	\$	2.09	\$	0.02
Funds from operations per share and unit diluted	\$	0.98	\$	1.15	\$	1.02	\$	2.09	\$	0.02
Weighted average common shares outstanding basic		87,251	84	1,142		71,919	5	3,266		47,231
Weighted average partnership units outstanding basic ⁽¹⁾		7,159	7	7,247		7,617		8,519		9,673
Weighted average shares and units outstanding basic		94,410	91	1,389		79,536	6	51,785		56,904
Effect of diluted securities										
Weighted average shares and units outstanding diluted		94,410	91	1,389		79,536	6	51,785		56,904

Table of Contents 223

H-40

⁽¹⁾ For 2012, the loss is primarily the result of required infrastructure repairs on Colonial Promenade Alabaster II, a retail asset that was developed and sold by the Company in 2007. In 2012, the Company determined infrastructure repairs were necessary, relating back to the original development of the property, and agreed to make the repairs. Therefore, these costs were expensed as additional development cost and a reduction of the previously recognized gain. The loss of \$4.3 million is also included within the \$18.4 million net gain reconciling item immediately above, Total consolidated (gains) losses from sales of property, net of income tax and minority interest, but is presented as a separate reconciling item to exclude gains (losses) attributable to undepreciated property.

Table of Contents

(2) Represents the weighted average of outstanding units of noncontrolling interest in Colonial Realty Limited Partnership.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Market Risk .

H-41

Table of Contents

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules.

The following are filed as part of this report:

Financial Statements:

Colonial Properties Trust

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011	H-43
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	H-44
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	H-45
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	H-46
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership	
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011	H-47
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	H-48
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	H-49
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010	H-50
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	H-51
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	H-100

H-42

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share data)

	December 31, 2012	December 31, 2011
ASSETS	2012	2011
Land, buildings and equipment	\$ 3,489,324	\$ 3,445,455
Undeveloped land and construction in progress	296,153	306,826
Less: Accumulated depreciation	(804,964)	(731,894)
Real estate assets held for sale, net	93,450	10,543
	ŕ	·
Net real estate assets	3,073,963	3,030,930
Cash and cash equivalents	11,674	6,452
Restricted cash	38,128	43,489
Accounts receivable, net	23,977	26,762
Notes receivable	42,399	43,787
Prepaid expenses	19,460	19,912
Deferred debt and lease costs	23,938	22,408
Investment in partially-owned unconsolidated entities	7,777	12,303
Other assets	44,892	52,562
	,	,
Total assets	\$ 3,286,208	\$ 3,258,605
1 out about	Ψ 2,200,200	Ψ 3,230,003
LIABILITIES, NONCONTROLLING INTEREST AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY		
Notes and mortgages payable	\$ 1,643,361	\$ 1,575,727
Unsecured credit facility	188,631	184,000
Chiseculed credit facility	100,031	104,000
Total debt	1,831,992	1,759,727
Accounts payable	53,545	50,266
Accrued interest	10,209	11,923
Accrued expenses	41,652	15,731
Investment in partially-owned unconsolidated entities	,	31,577
Other liabilities	36,751	25,208
		-,
Total liabilities	1,974,149	1,894,432
10th Intollices	1,577,175	1,001,132
Commitments and Contingencies (see Notes 19 and 20)		
Redeemable noncontrolling interest:		
Common units	162,056	159,582
Equity:	102,030	139,362
Common shares of beneficial interest, \$0.01 par value, 125,000,000 shares authorized; 93,835,794 and		
93,096,722 shares issued at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively	938	931
Additional paid-in capital	1,973,594	1,964,881
Cumulative earnings	1,276,118	1,267,958
Cumulative distributions	(1,926,167)	(1,862,838)
Noncontrolling interest	695	728
Treasury shares, at cost; 5,623,150 shares at December 31, 2012 and 2011	(150,163)	(150,163)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(25,012)	(16,906)
	(==,0==)	(10,500)
Total shareholders equity	1,150,003	1,204,591
Total shareholders equity	1,130,003	1,207,371

Total liabilities, noncontrolling interest and shareholders equity

\$ 3,286,208

\$ 3,258,605

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

H-43

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(in thousands, except per share data)

	Years	Years Ended Decembe		
	2012	2011	2010	
Revenues:				
Minimum rent	\$ 304,364	\$ 270,935	\$ 244,869	
Rentals from affiliates		236	203	
Tenant recoveries	2,550	3,032	2,473	
Other property related revenue	56,221	47,376	42,469	
Other non-property related revenue	5,712	8,047	11,693	
Total revenues	368,847	329,626	301,707	
Operating expenses:				
Property operating expense	101,746	92,148	86,369	
Taxes, licenses and insurance	41,742	37,489	35,087	
Property management expense	12,858	9,185	8,584	
General and administrative expense	22,615	20,439	18,563	
Management fees and other expenses	6,298	8,067	9,504	
Restructuring charges	1,848	153	361	
Investment and development expenses	1,285	1,781	422	
Depreciation	113,961	107,236	100,137	
Amortization	3,043	4,540	2,856	
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses	22,762	5,736	1,308	
Total operating expenses	328,158	286,774	263,191	
Income from operations	40,689	42,852	38,516	
Other income (expense):				
Interest expense	(92,085)	(86,573)	(83,091)	
Debt cost amortization	(5,697)	(4,767)	(4,618)	
Gain on retirement of debt			1,044	
Interest income	2,468	1,337	1,289	
Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	31,862	17,497	3,365	
Loss on hedging activities			(289)	
(Loss) gain on sale of property, net of income taxes of \$ - , \$ - and \$ 93 for 2012, 2011 and 2010	(4,305)	115	(1,504)	
Taxes and other	(907)	(872)	(1,107)	
Total other income (expense)	(68,664)	(73,263)	(84,911)	
Loss from continuing operations	(27,975)	(30,411)	(46,395)	
Income from discontinued operations	14,111	12,857	8,110	
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations	22,729	23,733	(258)	
Net income from discontinued operations	36,840	36,590	7,852	
Net income (loss)	8,865	6,179	(38,543)	
Noncontrolling interest				
Continuing operations:				
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP common unitholders	2,108	2,589	5,817	
MONCOURTORING INICIEST III CKEF COMMINION UNITRIONICES	2,108	2,369	3,617	

Noncontrolling interest in CRLP preferred unitholders		(3,586)	(7,161)
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners	(43)	(53)	103
Discontinued operations:	ì í	` ′	
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP	(2,770)	(2,882)	(749)
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners	() - /	(, ,	(4)
and the second s			
Income attributable to noncontrolling interest	(705)	(3,932)	(1,994)
Net income (loss) attributable to parent company	8,160	2,247	(40,537)
Divides de to surface de la colonidada de			(5 (40)
Dividends to preferred shareholders		2.500	(5,649) 3,000
Preferred unit repurchase gains		2,500	
Preferred share/unit issuance costs write-off		(1,319)	(4,868)
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders	\$ 8,160	\$ 3,428	\$ (48,054)
Net income (loss) per common share basic:			
Continuing operations	\$ (0.30)	\$ (0.36)	\$ (0.77)
Discontinued operations	0.39	0.40	0.10
Discontinued operations	0.57	0.40	0.10
Net income (loss) per common share basic	\$ 0.09	\$ 0.04	\$ (0.67)
Notice and description of the state of the s			
Net income (loss) per common share diluted:	Φ (0.20)	e (0.26)	ф (O 77)
Continuing operations	\$ (0.30)	\$ (0.36)	\$ (0.77)
Discontinued operations	0.39	0.40	0.10
Net income (loss) per common share diluted	\$ 0.09	\$ 0.04	\$ (0.67)
Weighted average common shares outstanding:			
Basic	87,251	84,142	71,919
Diluted	87,251	84,142	71,919
Net income (loss)	\$ 8,865	\$ 6,179	\$ (38,543)
Other comprehensive income (loss):			
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges	(15,985)	(19,302)	
Adjust for amounts included in net income (loss)	7,222	3,164	726
Comprehensive income (loss)	\$ 102	\$ (9,959)	\$ (37,817)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

H-44

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010		€Common Shares	Additional Paid-In Capital	Cumulative Earnings	Cumulativ N o		in P referred Units		Accumulated Other omprehensiv Loss		Redeemable Common Units
Balance, December 31, 2009	\$ 4	\$ 720	\$ 1,760,362	\$ 1,296,188	\$ (1,753,015)	\$ 985	\$ 100,000	\$ (150,163)	\$ (2,957)	\$ 1,252,124	\$ 133,537
Net income (loss)			, ,,.	(33,376)	1 (),.	(99)	,,	1 (2 2)	(), /	(33,475)	(5,068)
Reclassification adjustment for amounts				(==,=:=)		()				(00,110)	(0,000)
included in net income (loss)									726	726	
Distributions on common shares (\$0.60 per									,20	,20	
share)					(42,875)					(42,875)	(4,541)
Distributions on preferred shares					(5,649)					(5,649)	(1,511)
Distributions on preferred units of CRLP					(7,161)					(7,161)	
Issuance of restricted common shares of					(7,101)					(7,101)	
beneficial interest		4	455							459	
Amortization of stock based compensation		4	4,585							4,585	
			4,363							4,363	
Redemption of Series D preferred shares of	(4)		(0(5(5)	(3,550)						(100 110)	
beneficial interest	(4)		(96,565)	(3,330)						(100,119)	
Repurchase of Series B preferred shares of			1 210	1.600			(50,000)			(47,000)	
beneficial interest			1,318	1,682			(50,000)			(47,000)	
Cancellation of vested restricted shares to pay											
taxes			(277)							(277)	
Issuance of common shares from options											
exercised		2	2,659							2,661	
Issuance of common shares of beneficial											
interest through the Company s dividend											
reinvestment plan and Employee Stock											
Purchase Plan		1	1,618							1,619	
Issuance of common shares of beneficial											
interest through conversion of units from											
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership		9	14,068							14,077	(14,077)
Equity Offering Programs, net of cost		104	155,763							155,867	
Change in interest of limited partners						(117)				(117)	
Change in redemption value of common units			(35,688)							(35,688)	35,688
			, i							, i ,	·
Balance, December 31, 2010	\$	\$ 840	\$ 1,808,298	\$ 1,260,944	\$ (1,808,700)	769	\$ 50,000	\$ (150,163)	\$ (2,231)	\$ 1,159,757	\$ 145,539
Net income (loss)				5,833		53				5,886	\$ 293
Reclassification adjustment for amounts										·	
included in net income (loss)									3,164	3,164	
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges									(17,839)	(17,839)	(1,463)
Distributions on common shares (\$0.60 per										(, , ,	
share)					(50,552)					(50,552)	(4,345)
Distributions on preferred units of CRLP					(3,586)					(3,586)	(1,010)
Issuance of restricted common shares of					(5,500)					(2,200)	
beneficial interest		3	492							495	
Amortization of stock based compensation			6,013							6,013	
Repurchase of Series B preferred units of			0,013							0,013	
beneficial interest			1,319	1,181			(50,000)			(47,500)	
			1,319	1,101			(30,000)			(47,300)	
Cancellation of vested restricted shares to pay		(1)	(1.741)							(1.742)	
taxes		(1)	(1,741)							(1,742)	
Issuance of common shares from options		1	740							740	
exercised		1	748							749 5 000	
Issuance of common shares of beneficial		3	5,987							5,990	
interest through the Company s dividend											
reinvestment plan and Employee Stock											

4											,
Purchase Plan											
Issuance of common shares of beneficial											,
interest through conversion of units from											1
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership		1	2,495							2,496	(2,496)
Equity Offering Programs, net of cost		84	163,324							163,408	
Change in interest of limited partners						(94)				(94)	
Change in redemption value of common units			(22,054)							(22,054)	22,054
											,
Balance, December 31, 2011	\$	\$ 931	\$ 1,964,881	\$ 1,267,958	\$ (1,862,838)	\$ 728	\$	\$ (150,163)	\$ (16,906)	\$ 1,204,591	\$ 159,582
	-	Ŧ	4 -10 - 7	4 -, ,	4 (-7 , ,	<u> </u>	4	4 (,	4 (,- ,	₩ - ,- - ,	4 /-
Net income (loss)				8,160		43				8,203	\$ 662
Reclassification adjustment for amounts											
included in net income (loss)									6,680	6,680	542
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges									(14,786)	(14,786)	(1,199)
Distributions on common shares (\$0.72 per											1
share)					(63,329)					(63,329)	(5,154)
Issuance of restricted common shares of											
beneficial interest		4	312							316	
Amortization of stock based compensation			8,833							8,833	
Cancellation of vested restricted shares to pay											
taxes		(1)	(1,561)							(1,562)	
Issuance of common shares from options											ŀ
exercised			771							771	
Issuance of common shares of beneficial											l l
interest through the Company s dividend											
reinvestment plan and Employee Stock											
Purchase Plan		4	7,981							7,985	
Issuance of common shares of beneficial											I
interest through conversion of units from											
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership			359			:=0				359	(359)
Change in interest of limited partners						(76)				(76)	
Change in redemption value of common units			(7,982)							(7,982)	7,982
Balance, December 31, 2012	\$	\$ 938	\$ 1,973,594	\$ 1,276,118	\$ (1,926,167)	\$ 695	\$	\$ (150,163)	\$ (25,012)	\$ 1,150,003	\$ 162,056

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

	2012	Years Ended December 3:	1, 2010
Cash flows from operating activities:	2012	2011	2010
Net income (loss)	\$ 8,8	865 \$ 6,179	\$ (38,543)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:	7 -,-	7 2,217	+ (==,===)
Depreciation and amortization	133,7	'31 136,752	131,539
(Income) loss from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	(31,8		(3,365)
(Gain) loss from sales of property	(18,4	, , , ,	1,669
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses	26,0		1,448
Gain on retirement of debt	-0,0	5,750	(1,044)
Distributions of income from partially-owned entities	9	958 3,737	5,566
Share-based compensation expense	8,8	- ,	4,589
Other, net		341 (3,067)	1,522
Change in:		(3,007)	1,522
Restricted cash	(1,1	26) 1,157	(1,342)
Accounts receivable	4,4		18,073
Prepaid expenses		152 (13,162)	(328)
Other assets	4,0	(- , - ,	(1,501)
Accounts payable	(7,0		4,210
Accrued interest	(1,7		(1,131)
Accrued expenses and other	9,5		(11,655)
Actived expenses and offici	9,5	11,020	(11,033)
Net cash provided by operating activities	137,1	118 ,086	109,707
Cash flows from investing activities:			
Acquisition of properties	(184,7	(225,885)	(42,635)
Development expenditures paid to non-affiliates	(84,3	386) (41,497)	(14,867)
Development expenditures paid to an affiliate	(7,9	97) (4,065)	(13,740)
Capital expenditures, tenant improvements and leasing commissions	(27,9		(42,450)
Proceeds from sale of property, net of selling costs	145,9	146 ,733	21,194
Restricted cash	6,4	187 (35,352)	
Issuance of notes receivable		(17,977)	(29,137)
Repayments of notes receivable	2,0	1 ,485	5,787
Distributions from partially-owned entities	6,9	26 ,020	19,104
Capital contributions to partially-owned entities	((54)	(5,543)
Net cash used in investing activities	(143,6	(175,639)	(102,287)
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Proceeds from additional borrowings	150,0	250,000	73,200
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment plan and exercise of stock options	7,1	5,000	4,003
Proceeds from common share issuance, net of expenses		163,408	155,867
Principal reductions of debt	(82,7	(18) (58,885)	(101,552)
Payment of debt issuance costs	(5,3	309) (2,879)	(1,351)
Proceeds from borrowings on revolving credit lines	750,0	1,450,000	945,000
Payments on revolving credit lines and overdrafts	(739,0		(874,878)
Dividends paid to common and preferred shareholders	(63,3	(54,138)	(55,685)
Distributions to noncontrolling partners in CRLP	(5,1		(4,541)
Redemption of Preferred Series D shares		` ` ` <u>` </u>	(100,119)
Repurchase of Preferred Series B units		(47,500)	(47,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	11,7	726 59,051	(7,056)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents	5,222	1,498	364
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	6,452	4,954	4,590
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 11,674	\$ 6,452	\$ 4,954
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:			
Cash paid during the period for interest, including amounts capitalized	\$ 95,009	\$ 88,184	\$ 86,836
Cash received during the period for income taxes	\$	\$ (729)	\$ (17,368)
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions:			
Consolidation of Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture (principally a multifamily property)		\$ 17,615	
Change in accrual of construction expenses and capital expenditures	\$ (1,906)	\$ 2,331	\$ (3,100)
Exchange of interest in DRA multifamily joint ventures for acquisition of CG at Riverchase Trails			\$ 1,637

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except unit data)

	D	ecember 31, 2012	December 31, 2011
ASSETS			2011
Land, buildings and equipment	\$	3,489,322	\$ 3,445,441
Undeveloped land and construction in progress		296,153	306,826
Less: Accumulated depreciation		(804,962)	(731,880)
Real estate assets held for sale, net		93,450	10,543
		ĺ	
Net real estate assets		3,073,963	3,030,930
Cash and cash equivalents		11,674	6,452
Restricted cash		38,128	43,489
Accounts receivable, net		23,977	26,762
Notes receivable		42,399	43,787
Prepaid expenses		19,460	19,912
Deferred debt and lease costs		23,938	22,408
Investment in partially-owned unconsolidated entities		7,777	12,303
Other assets		44,844	52,385
		,-	,,,,,,,
Total assets	\$	3,286,160	\$ 3,258,428
Total assets	Ψ	3,200,100	Ψ 3,230,120
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY			
Notes and mortgages payable	\$	1,643,361	\$ 1,575,727
Unsecured credit facility		188,631	184,000
Total debt		1,831,992	1,759,727
Accounts payable		53,496	50.090
Accrued interest		10,209	11,923
Accrued expenses		41,652	15,731
Investment in partially-owned unconsolidated entities		ŕ	27,432
Other liabilities		36,751	25,174
		,	,
Total liabilities		1,974,100	1,890,077
A CHILL AND AND A CHILD AND A		2,000	1,070,077
Commitments and Contingencies (see Notes 19 and 20)			
Redeemable units, at redemption value 7,152,752 and 7,169,388 units outstanding at December 31, 2012			
and 2011, respectively		162,056	159,582
		102,030	139,362
General partner Common equity 88,212,644 and 87,473,572 units outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011,			
respectively 88,212,644 and 87,475,572 units outstanding at December 51, 2012 and 2011,		1,174,321	1,224,947
Limited partners noncontrolling interest in consolidated partnership		695	728
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		(25,012)	(16,906)
Accumulated other comprehensive toss		(23,012)	(10,900)
T 4 1 - '4		1 150 004	1 200 760
Total equity		1,150,004	1,208,769
Total liabilities and equity	\$	3,286,160	\$ 3,258,428

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

H-47

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(in thousands, except per unit data)

	Years 2012	Years Ended Decemb 2012 2011		
Revenues:				
Minimum rent	\$ 304,364	\$ 270,935	\$ 244,869	
Rentals from affiliates		236	203	
Tenant recoveries	2,550	3,032	2,473	
Other property related revenue	56,221	47,376	42,469	
Other non-property related revenue	5,712	8,047	11,693	
Total revenues	368,847	329,626	301,707	
Operating expenses:				
Property operating expense	101,746	92,148	86,369	
Taxes, licenses and insurance	41,742	37,489	35,087	
Property management expense	12,858	9,185	8,584	
General and administrative expense	22,615	20,439	18,563	
Management fees and other expenses	6,298	8,067	9,504	
Restructuring charges	1,848	153	361	
Investment and development expenses	1,285	1,781	422	
Depreciation	113,961	107,236	100,137	
Amortization	3,043	4,540	2,856	
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses	22,762	5,736	1,308	
Total operating expenses	328,158	286,774	263,191	
Income from operations	40,689	42,852	38,516	
Other income (expense):				
Interest expense	(92,085)	(86,573)	(83,091)	
Debt cost amortization	(5,697)	(4,767)	(4,618)	
Gain on retirement of debt			1,044	
Interest income	2,468	1,337	1,289	
Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	27,717	17,497	3,365	
Loss on hedging activities			(289)	
(Loss) gain on sale of property, net of income taxes of \$ -, \$ - and \$93 for 2012, 2011 and 2010	(4,305)	115	(1,504)	
Taxes and other	(907)	(872)	(1,107)	
Total other income (expense)	(72,809)	(73,263)	(84,911)	
Loss from continuing operations	(32,120)	(30,411)	(46,395)	
Income from discontinued operations	14,111	12,857	8,110	
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations	22,729	23,733	(258)	
Net income from discontinued operations	36,840	36,590	7,852	
Net income (loss)	4,720	6,179	(38,543)	
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners Noncontrolling interest of limited partners discontinued operations discontinued operations	(43)	(53)	103 (4)	
-				

(Income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest		(43)		(53)	ç	99
Net income (loss) attributable to CRLP		4,677		6,126	(38,44	14)
				,		
Distributions to limited partner preferred unitholders				(3,586)	(7,16	51)
Distributions to general partner preferred unitholders				(5,500)	(5,64	
Preferred unit repurchase gains				2,500	3,00	00
Preferred unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)	(4,86	58)
Net income (loss) available to common unitholders	\$	4,677	\$	3,721	\$ (53,12	22)
	Ψ	.,0	Ψ	5,721	Ψ (00,12)
Net loss available to common unitholders allocated to limited partners continuing operations		2,108		2,589	5,81	17
Net income available to common unitholders allocated to limited partners discontinued operations		(2,770)		(2,882)	(74	
the meonic available to common unimolecus anocacca to minica partners associations		(2,770)		(2,002)	(/-	F)
N. 4 in a constant and the last	ф	4.015	¢	2.420	¢ (40.05	5 4 \
Net income (loss) available to common unitholders allocated to general partner	\$	4,015	\$	3,428	\$ (48,05)4)
Net income (loss) per common unit basic:						
Continuing operations	\$	(0.34)	\$	(0.36)	\$ (0.7	
Discontinued operations		0.39		0.40	0.1	10
Net income (loss) per common unit basic	\$	0.05	\$	0.04	\$ (0.6	57)
Net income (loss) per common unit diluted:						
Continuing operations	\$	(0.34)	\$	(0.36)	\$ (0.7	77)
Discontinued operations		0.39		0.40	0.1	10
•						
Net income (loss) per common unit diluted	\$	0.05	\$	0.04	\$ (0.6	57)
The means (1888) per common unit united	Ψ	0.00	Ψ	0.01	Ψ (0.0	,,,
Weighted average common units outstanding:						
Basic		94,410		91.389	79.53	36
Diluted		94,410		91,389	79,53	
Blace		74,410		71,507	17,50	,0
Net income (loss)	\$	4,720	\$	6,126	\$ (38,44	4.4)
Other comprehensive income (loss):	Þ	4,720	Э	0,120	\$ (38,44	14)
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges	(15,985)		(19,302)		
Adjust for amounts included in net income (loss)	(7,222		3,164	72	26
Aujust for amounts included in net income (1988)		1,444		3,104	12	20
	Φ.	(4.0.40)		(10.010)	A (25 = 1	10)
Comprehensive income (loss)	\$	(4,043)	\$ ((10,012)	\$ (37,71	(8)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(in thousands)

General l	Partner	Limited Partners							deemable
Common	Preferred	Preferred	Nonco	ontrolling	Com	prehensive		C	ommon
Equity	Equity	Equity	In	terest		Loss	Total		Units
\$ 1,066,390	\$ 96,550	\$ 97,406	\$	985	\$	(2,957)	\$ 1,258,374	\$	133,537
(46,186)	5,649	7,161		(99)			(33,475)		(5,068)
						726			
(42,875)									(4,541)
	(5,649)	(7,161)							
				(117)			(117)		
							,		
	(96,568)	(48,682)							
,									(14,077)
(35,688)	4.0								35,688
	18						18		
\$ 1,118,086	\$	\$ 48,724	\$	769	\$	(2,231)	\$ 1,165,348	\$	145,539
2.247		3.586		53			5.886		293
2,2 . ,		2,200					2,000		2,5
						3.164	3.164		
									(1,463)
(50.552)						(17,037)	. , ,		(4,345)
(00,002)		(3.586)							(1,515)
		(5,500)		(94)					
				(- /			()		
173,543							173,543		
,		(48,724)					,		
		(- /, /							(2,496)
·									22,054
() /							() /		,
¢ 1 224 047	¢	¢	¢	720	Ф	(16,006)	¢ 1 209 760	Ф	159,582
\$ 1,224,947	φ	Ψ	Ψ	120	φ	(10,900)	\$ 1,200,709	φ	139,302
4,015				43			4,058		662
						,	,		542
(62.220)						(14,786)			(1,199)
(63,329)				(5.0)					(5,154)
				(76)			(76)		
16011							16.011		
							,		(250)
									(359)
(7.000)							(7.000)		
(7,982)							(7,982)		7,982
	Common Equity \$ 1,066,390 (46,186) (42,875) 164,245 (1,868) 14,068 (35,688) \$ 1,118,086 2,247 (50,552) 173,543 1,181 2,496 (22,054) \$ 1,224,947 4,015 (63,329)	Equity \$ 96,550 (46,186) \$ 96,550 (46,186) \$ 5,649 (42,875) (5,649) (5,649) (5,649) (1,868) (96,568) 14,068 (35,688) 18 (50,552) (50,552) (50,552) (63,329) (63,329)	Common Equity Preferred Equity Preferred Equity Preferred Equity Preferred Equity Preferred Equity 97,406 7,161 (42,875) (5,649) (7,161) (42,875) (7,161) (42,875) (5,649) (7,161) (48,682) (1,868) (96,568) (48,682) 14,068 (35,688) (35,688) (48,724) 2,247 3,586 (3,586) (50,552) (3,586) (48,724) 173,543 (48,724) (48,724) 2,496 (22,054) (22,054) \$1,224,947 \$ \$ (63,329) (63,329) \$	Common Equity Preferred Equity Preferred Equity Preferred Equity Preferred Equity Preferred Equity Noncc Equity In (46,186) 5,649 7,161 \$ 97,406 \$ 7,161 (42,875) (5,649) (7,161) \$ (48,682) (1,868) (96,568) (48,682) \$ (48,682) 14,068 (35,688) \$ 48,724 \$ \$ (50,552) (50,552) (3,586) \$ (48,724) 173,543 (1,181 (48,724) 2,496 (22,054) \$ \$ \$ \$ 1,224,947 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ (63,329) \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	Common Equity Preferred Equity Septemble of the part of the profession of the part of the preferred Equity Noncontrolling Interest 985 985 7,161 999 (42,875) (5,649) (7,161) (117) (117) 164,245 (1,868) (96,568) (48,682) (48,682) (48,682) 14,068 (35,688) 18 769 (50,552) (3,586) 53 (50,552) (3,586) (94) (94) (48,724) (94) 173,543 (1,181) (48,724) (48,724) (48,724) (48,724) 1,181 (48,724) (48,724) (48,724) (48,724) (50,728) 1,1,224,947 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ (63,329) (76) (76) (76) (76) (76) (76)	Common Equity Preferred Equity Partners Equity Partners Preferred Partners Preferred Partners Preferred Preferred Partners Preferred Pa	Common Equity Equity \$1,066,390 (46,186) Preferred Equity (40,186) Preferred Equity (10,186) Preferred (10,186) Pre	Common Equity Preferred Equity Partiners Equity Partiners Equity Partiners Equity Portected Equity Moncontrolling Comprehensive Interest Total \$ 1,066,390 \$ 96,550 \$ 985 \$ (2,957) \$ 1,258,374 (42,875) \$ 7,161 (99) \$ 2,957) \$ 1,258,374 (42,875) \$ 7,161 (99) \$ 2,257) \$ 1,228,374 (42,875) \$ 7,161 (99) \$ 2,267 \$ 1,228,374 (42,875) \$ (5,649) (7,161) \$ 1,224 \$ (117) \$ (12,810) (1,868) (96,568) (48,682) \$ 164,245 \$ (147,118) \$ 14,068 (35,688) 18 \$ 18 \$ 18 \$ 14,068 \$ 3,164 \$ 1,408 (35,588) 18 \$ 769 \$ (2,231) \$ 1,165,348 \$ 1,118,066 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164 \$ 3,164	Common Equity Preferred Equity Partners Partners Preferred Equity Partners Preferred Partners Preferred Partners Preferred Partners Preferred Partners Partners Preferred Partners Partners Partners Preferred Partners Partners Partners Partners Partners Preferred Partners Preferred Partners Partners Preferred Partners Preferred Partners Partne

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

H-49

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

		Years Ended December 31,		
Cook floor from a series of the series of		2012	2011	2010
Cash flows from operating activities: Net income (loss)	ф	4.720	¢ (170	¢ (20.542)
	\$	4,720	\$ 6,179	\$ (38,543)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation and amortization		122 721	126 752	121 520
		133,731	136,752	131,539
(Income) loss from partially-owned unconsolidated entities		(27,717)	(17,497)	(3,365)
(Gain) loss from sales of property		(18,423)	(23,848)	1,669
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses		26,013	5,736	1,448
Gain on retirement of debt		0.50	2.727	(1,044)
Distributions of income from partially-owned entities		958	3,737	5,566
Share-based compensation expense		8,833	6,013	4,589
Other, net		341	(3,067)	1,522
Change in:		4400	4.455	(1.0.10)
Restricted cash		(1,126)	1,157	(1,342)
Accounts receivable		4,456	(10,288)	18,073
Prepaid expenses		452	(13,162)	(328)
Other assets		4,090	435	(1,501)
Accounts payable		(7,046)	14,398	4,210
Accrued interest		(1,714)	(79)	(1,131)
Accrued expenses and other		9,540	11,620	(11,655)
Net cash provided by operating activities		137,108	118,086	109,707
Cash flows from investing activities:				
Acquisition of properties	((184,727)	(225,885)	(42,635)
Development expenditures paid to non-affiliates	`	(84,386)	(41,497)	(14,867)
Development expenditures paid to an affiliate		(7,997)	(4,065)	(13,740)
Capital expenditures, tenant improvements and leasing commissions		(27,936)	(25,101)	(42,450)
Proceeds from sales of property, net of selling costs		145,942	146,733	21,194
Restricted Cash		6,487	(35,352)	
Issuance of notes receivable		0,107	(17,977)	(29,137)
Repayments of notes receivable		2,074	1,485	5,787
Distributions from partially-owned entities		6,985	26,020	19,104
Capital contributions to partially-owned entities		(54)	20,020	(5,543)
	,		(175 (20)	
Net cash used in investing activities	((143,612)	(175,639)	(102,287)
Cash flows from financing activities:				
Proceeds from additional borrowings		150,000	250,000	73,200
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment plan and exercise of stock options		7,196	5,000	4,003
Proceeds from issuance of common units			163,408	155,867
Principal reductions of debt		(82,718)	(58,885)	(101,552)
Payment of debt issuance costs		(5,309)	(2,879)	(1,351)
Proceeds from borrowings on revolving credit lines		750,040	1,450,000	945,000
Payments on revolving credit lines and overdrafts	(739,000)	(1,641,610)	(874,878)
Dividends paid to common and preferred shareholders		(63,329)	(54,138)	(55,685)
Distributions to noncontrolling partners in CRLP		(5,154)	(4,345)	(4,541)
Redemption of preferred units		, , ,	(47,500)	(147,119)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities		11,726	59,051	(7,056)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents		5,222	1,498	364

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period		6,452		4,954		4,590
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$	11,674	\$	6,452	\$	4,954
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:						
Cash paid during the period for interest, including amounts capitalized	\$	95,009	\$	88,184	\$	86,836
Cash received during the period for income taxes	\$		\$	(729)	\$	(17,368)
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions:						
Consolidation of Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture (principally a multifamily property)	\$			17,615		
Change in accrual of construction expenses and capital expenditures	\$	(1,906)	\$	2,331	\$	(3,100)
Exchange of interest in DRA multifamily joint ventures for acquisition of CG at Riverchase Trails			\$			1,637
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.						

H-50

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST AND COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Note 1 Organization and Business

As used herein, Colonial or the Trust means Colonial Properties Trust, an Alabama real estate investment trust (REIT), together with its subsidiaries, including Colonial Realty Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership (CRLP), Colonial Properties Services, Inc. (CPSI) and Colonial Properties Services Limited Partnership (CPSLP). The term the Company refers to the Trust and CRLP, collectively. The Trust was originally formed as a Maryland REIT on July 9, 1993 and reorganized as an Alabama REIT under a new Alabama REIT statute on August 21, 1995. The Trust is the sole general partner of, and, as of December 31, 2012 owned 92.5% of the limited partner interests in CRLP. The Trust and CRLP are structured as an umbrella partnership REIT, or UPREIT, and the Trust is only material asset is its ownership of limited partnership interests in CRLP. The Trust conducts all of its business and owns all of its properties through CRLP and CRLP is various subsidiaries and, as the sole general partner of CRLP, is vested with managerial control and authority over the business and affairs of CRLP.

The Trust is a multifamily-focused self-administered and self-managed equity REIT, which means that it is engaged in the acquisition, development, ownership, management and leasing of multifamily apartment communities and other commercial real estate properties. The Company s activities include full or partial ownership and operation of a portfolio of 125 properties, consisting of multifamily and commercial properties located in 11 states (Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Nevada, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas and Virginia).

As of December 31, 2012, the Company owned or maintained a partial ownership in:

	Consolidated Properties	Units/Sq. Feet ⁽¹⁾	Unconsolidated Properties	Units/Sq. Feet (1)	Total Properties	Total Units/Sq. Feet ⁽¹⁾
Multifamily apartment communities	112(2)	33,851	2	646	114	34,497
Commercial properties	8	2,167,000	3	350,000	11	2,517,000

- (1) Units refer to multifamily apartment units. Square feet refers to commercial space and excludes space owned by anchor tenants.
- (2) Includes one property partially-owned through a joint venture entity.

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation
The notes included in this Form 8-K apply to both the Trust and CRLP, unless specifically noted otherwise. Specifically
Note 6 Net Loss Per Share of the Trust, Note 8 Equity of the Trust, Note 10 Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests of the Trust and Note 23
Quarterly Financial Information for the Trust (Unaudited) pertain only to the Trust. Note 7 Net Loss Per Unit of CRLP, Note 9 Capital Structure of CRLP, Note 11 Redeemable Partnership Units of CRLP and Note 24 Quarterly Financial Information for CRLP (Unaudited) pertain only to CRLP.

Due to the Trust sability as general partner to control CRLP and various other subsidiaries, each such entity has been consolidated for financial reporting purposes. CRLP, an SEC registrant, files separate financial statements under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Trust allocates income to the noncontrolling interest in CRLP based on the weighted average noncontrolling ownership percentage for the periods presented in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust. At the end of each period, the Trust adjusts the Consolidated Balance Sheet for CRLP s noncontrolling interest balance based on the noncontrolling ownership percentage at the end of the period.

Table of Contents

The Company also consolidates other entities in which it has a controlling interest or entities where it is determined to be the primary beneficiary under Accounting Standards Codification ASC 810-20, Control of Partnerships and Similar Entities. Under ASC 810-20, variable interest entities (VIEs) are generally entities that lack sufficient equity to finance their activities without additional financial support from other parties or whose equity holders lack adequate decision-making ability. The primary beneficiary, as determined primarily based on a qualitative evaluation of the entity with the ability to direct the most significant business activities of the VIE, is required to consolidate the VIE for financial reporting purposes. The application of ASC 810-20 requires management to make significant estimates and judgments about the Company s and its other partners rights, obligations and economic interests in such entities. Where the Company has less than a controlling financial interest in an entity or the Company is not the primary beneficiary of the entity, the entity is accounted for on the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, the Company s share of net earnings or losses of these entities is included in consolidated net income (loss). A description of the Company s investments accounted for using the equity method of accounting is included in Note 13 Investment in Partially-Owned Entities. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Federal Income Tax Status The Trust, which is considered a corporation for federal income tax purposes, qualifies as a REIT and generally will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes its REIT taxable income to its shareholders. REITs are subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements. If the Trust fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, the Trust will be subject to federal income tax on its taxable income at regular corporate rates. Even if the Trust does qualify as a REIT, the Trust may be subject to certain federal, state and local taxes on its income and property and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed income. For example, the Trust will be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes less than 100% of its REIT taxable income (including undistributed net capital gains) and the Trust has certain gains that, if recognized, will be subject to corporate tax because it acquired the assets in tax-free acquisitions of non-REIT corporations.

CRLP is a partnership for federal income tax purposes. As a partnership, CRLP is not subject to federal income tax on its income. Instead, each of CRLP s partners, including the Trust, is responsible for paying tax on such partner s allocable share of income.

The Company s consolidated financial statements include the operations of a taxable REIT subsidiary, CPSI, which is not entitled to a dividends paid deduction and is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. CPSI uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities result from temporary differences. Temporary differences are differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in future periods. CPSI provides property development, construction services, leasing and management services for joint venture and third-party owned properties and administrative services to the Company and engages in for-sale development activity. The Company generally reimburses CPSI for payroll and other costs incurred in providing services to the Company. All inter-company transactions are eliminated in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, CPSI recognized no income tax expense (benefit). CPSI s effective income tax rates were zero for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had no net deferred tax asset after the effect of the valuation allowance.

Tax years 2005 through 2007 and tax years 2009 through 2011 are subject to examination by the federal taxing authorities. Generally, tax years 2009 through 2011 are subject to examination by state taxing authorities. There are no state tax examinations currently in process.

On November 6, 2009, the Worker, Homeownership and Business Assistance Act of 2009 was signed into law, which expanded the net operating loss (NOL) carryback rules to allow businesses to carry back NOLs incurred in either 2008 or 2009 up to five years. As a result of the new legislation, CPSI was able to carry back tax losses that occurred in the year ended December 31, 2009 against income that was recognized in 2005 and 2006. The Company received no tax refunds during 2012. The Company received \$0.7 million of tax refunds during the year ended December 31, 2011.

H-52

Table of Contents

The Company may from time to time be assessed interest or penalties by federal and state tax jurisdictions, although any such assessments historically have been minimal and immaterial to the Company s financial results. When the Company has received an assessment for interest and/or penalties, it has been classified in the financial statements as *Taxes and other*.

Real Estate Assets, Impairment and Depreciation Land, buildings, and equipment is stated at the lower of cost, less accumulated depreciation, or fair value. Undeveloped land and construction in progress is stated at cost unless such assets are impaired in which case such assets are recorded at fair value. The Company reviews its long-lived assets and all intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. Assets classified as held for sale are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. The Company s determination of fair value is based on inputs management believes are consistent with those that market participants would use (See Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value). Estimates are significantly impacted by estimates of sales price, selling velocity, sales incentives, construction costs and other factors. Due to uncertainties in the estimation process, actual results could differ from such estimates. For those assets deemed to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings Useful Lives 20 - 40 years Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 7 years Land improvements 10 or 15 years Tenant improvements Life of lease

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Replacements and improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated remaining useful lives of the assets.

Acquisition of Real Estate Assets The Company accounts for its acquisitions of investments in real estate in accordance with ASC 805-10, Business Combinations, which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be allocated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building and tenant improvements, and identified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of above-market and below-market leases, other value of in-place leases and value of other tenant relationships, based in each case on the fair values.

The Company allocates purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property (which includes the land and building) determined by valuing the property as if it were vacant. The as-if-vacant value is allocated to land and buildings based on management s determination of the relative fair values of these assets. The Company also allocates value to tenant improvements based on the estimated costs of similar tenants with similar terms.

The Company records acquired intangible assets (including above-market leases, customer relationships and in-place leases) and acquired liabilities (including below-market leases) at their estimated fair value separate and apart from goodwill. The Company amortizes identified intangible assets and liabilities that are determined to have finite lives over the period the assets and liabilities are expected to contribute directly or indirectly to the future cash flows of the property or business acquired. Intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an intangible asset is not recoverable and its carrying amount exceeds its estimated fair value.

H-53

Table of Contents

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had \$6.7 million, \$0.6 million and \$7.3 million of unamortized in-place lease intangible assets, net market lease intangibles and intangibles related to relationships with customers, respectively, which is reflected as a component of *Other assets* in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP. The aggregate amortization expense for in-place lease intangible assets recorded during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$4.8 million, \$6.0 million and \$5.2 million, respectively.

Cost Capitalization Costs incurred during predevelopment are capitalized after the Company has identified a development site, determined that a project is feasible and concluded that it is probable that the project will proceed. While the Company believes it will recover this capital through the successful development of such projects, it is possible that a write-off of unrecoverable amounts could occur. Once it is no longer probable that a development will be successful, the predevelopment costs that have been previously capitalized are expensed.

The capitalization of costs during the development of assets (including interest, property taxes and other costs) begins when an active development commences and ends when the asset, or a portion of an asset, is completed and is ready for its intended use. Cost capitalization during redevelopment of assets (including interest and other costs) begins when the asset is taken out-of-service for redevelopment and ends when the asset redevelopment is completed and the asset is transferred back into service.

Cash and Equivalents The Company includes highly liquid marketable securities and debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less in cash equivalents. The majority of the Company s cash and equivalents are held at major commercial banks.

The Company has included in accounts payable book overdrafts representing outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit of \$15.4 million and \$9.0 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Restricted Cash Restricted cash is comprised of cash balances which are legally restricted as to use and consists of resident and tenant deposits, deposits on for-sale residential lots and units and cash in escrow for self insurance retention.

During 2012 and 2011, the Company used multifamily and commercial asset disposition proceeds to fund investment activities through tax-deferred exchanges under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, \$28.9 million and \$35.4 million of the proceeds remained in temporary cash accounts, classified as restricted cash, pending the fulfillment of Section 1031 exchange requirements. (see *Note 3 Real Estate Activity*)

Valuation of Receivables Due to the short-term nature of the leases at the Company s multifamily properties, generally six months to one year, the Company s exposure to resident defaults and bankruptcies is minimized. The Company s policy is to record allowances for all outstanding receivables greater than 30 days past due at its multifamily properties.

The Company is subject to tenant defaults and bankruptcies at its commercial properties that could affect the collection of outstanding receivables. In order to mitigate these risks, the Company performs a credit review and analysis on commercial tenants and significant leases before they are executed. The Company evaluates the collectability of outstanding receivables and records allowances as appropriate. The Company s policy is to record allowances for all outstanding invoices greater than 60 days past due at its commercial properties.

The Company had an allowance for doubtful accounts of \$0.8 million and \$1.1 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Notes Receivable Notes receivable consists primarily of promissory notes representing loans by the Company to third parties. The Company records notes receivable at cost. The Company evaluates the collectability of both interest and principal for each of its notes to determine whether they are impaired. A note is

H-54

Table of Contents

considered to be impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the existing contractual terms. When a note is considered to be impaired, the amount of the allowance is calculated by comparing the recorded investment to either the value determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at the note s effective interest rate or to the value of the collateral if the note is collateral-dependent. As of December 31, 2012, the Company did not have any impaired notes receivable.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had notes receivable of \$42.4 million consisting primarily of:

\$24.4 million outstanding on the construction note, which is secured by the property, for the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint venture, which the Company acquired from the lender in May 2010. On January 31, 2012, the Company and the joint venture amended the note and related loan documents to extend the maturity date to December 2012, fix the annual interest rate at 5.25%, provided for two additional one-year extension options and reduce the joint venture partner s guarantee to \$1.3 million. In December 2012, the joint venture opted to extend the maturity date to December 2013 with a fixed interest rate of 5.38%. See Note 14 *Financing Activities Unconsolidated Joint Venture Financing Activity ; and*

\$16.9 million outstanding on a seller-financing note with a five year term at an annual interest rate of 5.60% associated with the disposition of Colonial Promenade at Fultondale in February 2009.

The Company had accrued interest related to its outstanding notes receivable of \$0.3 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had no reserve recorded against its outstanding notes receivable. The weighted average interest rate on the notes receivable outstanding at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was approximately 5.5% and 4.9%, respectively. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

The Company received principal payments of \$2.1 million and \$1.5 million on these and other outstanding subordinated loans during 2012 and 2011, respectively. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had outstanding notes receivable balances, net of reserves, of \$42.4 million and \$43.8 million, respectively.

Deferred Debt and Lease Costs Deferred debt costs consist of loan fees and related expenses which are amortized on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest method, over the terms of the related debt. Deferred lease costs include leasing charges, direct salaries and other costs incurred by the Company to originate a lease, which are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related leases.

Derivative Instruments All derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet and measured at fair value. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge treatment must be recorded at fair value with gains or losses recognized in earnings in the period of change. The Company enters into derivative financial instruments from time to time, but does not use them for trading or speculative purposes. Interest rate cap agreements and interest rate swap agreements are used to reduce the potential impact of increases in interest rates on variable-rate debt.

The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge (see *Note 15 Derivatives and Hedging*). This process includes specific identification of the hedging instrument and the hedged transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the hedging instrument s effectiveness in hedging the exposure to the hedged transaction s variability in cash flows attributable to the hedged risk will be assessed. Both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company assesses whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows or fair values of hedged items. The Company discontinues hedge accounting if a derivative is not determined to be highly effective as a hedge or has ceased to be a highly effective hedge.

H-55

Table of Contents

Share-Based Compensation The Company currently sponsors share option plans and restricted share award plans (see *Note 16 Share-Based Compensation*). The Company accounts for share based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, *Stock Compensation*, which requires compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the consolidated statements of operations when earned.

Revenue Recognition Residential properties are leased under operating leases with terms of generally one year or less. Rental revenues from residential leases are recognized on the straight-line method over the life of the leases, which is generally one year. The recognition of rental revenues from residential leases when earned has historically not been materially different from rental revenues recognized on a straight-line basis.

Under the terms of residential leases, the residents of the Company s communities are obligated to reimburse the Company for certain utility usage, cable, water, electricity and trash, where the Company is the primary obligor to the utility entities. These utility reimbursements from residents are included as *Other property-related revenue* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

Rental income attributable to commercial leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the leases. Certain commercial leases contain provisions for additional rent based on a percentage of tenant sales. Percentage rents are recognized in the period in which sales thresholds are met. Recoveries from tenants for taxes, insurance, and other property operating expenses are recognized in the period the applicable costs are incurred in accordance with the terms of the related lease.

Sales and the associated gains or losses on real estate assets, condominium conversion projects and for-sale residential projects including developed condominiums are recognized in accordance with ASC 360-20, *Real Estate Sales*. For condominium conversion and for-sale residential projects, sales and the associated gains for individual condominium units are recognized upon the closing of the sale transactions, as all conditions for full profit recognition have been met. The Company uses the relative sales value method to allocate costs and recognize profits from condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales.

Other income received from long-term contracts signed in the normal course of business, including property management and development fee income, is recognized when earned for services provided to third parties, including joint ventures in which the Company owns a noncontrolling interest.

Warranty Reserves Warranty reserves are included in Accrued expenses on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP. Estimated future warranty costs on condominium conversion and for-sale residential sales are charged to cost of sales in the period when the revenues from such sales are recognized. Such estimated warranty costs are approximately 0.5% of total revenue. As necessary, additional warranty costs are charged to costs of sales based on management s estimate of the costs to remediate existing claims. While the Company believes the warranty reserve is adequate as of December 31, 2012, historical data and trends may not accurately predict actual warranty costs, or future development could lead to a significant change in the reserve. The Company s warranty reserves are as follows:

	Years E	Years Ended December 31,					
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	2010				
Balance at beginning of period	\$ 704	\$ 960	\$871				
Accruals for warranties issued	899	63	109				
Payments made	(313)	(319)	(20)				
Balance at end of period	\$ 1,290	\$ 704	\$ 960				

Net Income (Loss) Per Share Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed under the two class method as described in ASC 260, *Earnings per Share*. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that determines earnings per share for each class of common stock and participating security according

H-56

Table of Contents

to dividends declared and participation rights in undistributed earnings or losses. According to the guidance, the Company has included share-based payment awards that have non-forfeitable rights to dividends prior to vesting as participating securities. Diluted net income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period, the dilutive effect of restricted shares issued, and the assumed conversion of all potentially dilutive outstanding share options.

Self Insurance Accruals The Company is self-insured up to certain limits for general liability claims, workers compensation claims, property claims and health insurance claims. Amounts are accrued currently for the estimated cost of claims incurred, both reported and unreported.

Loss Contingencies The Company is subject to various claims, disputes and legal proceedings, including those described under Note 20 Legal Proceedings , the outcomes of which are subject to significant uncertainty. The Company records an accrual for loss contingencies when a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company reviews these accruals quarterly and makes revisions based on changes in facts and circumstances. The Company expenses legal defense costs as incurred. As of December 31, 2012, the Company s loss contingency accrual was \$26.8 million in the aggregate, and is reflected as a component of Accrued expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2012.

Restructuring Charges Restructuring charges reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) relate primarily to one-time termination benefits. The Company recognizes these severance charges when the requirements of ASC 420 have been met regarding a plan of termination and when communication has been made to employees. During 2012, the Company recorded \$1.8 million of restructuring charges related to severance costs associated with the departure of the Company s President and Chief Financial Officer, as well as departures of other management personnel as a result of additional simplification of the Company s operations. During 2011 and 2010, the Company recorded \$0.2 million and \$0.4 million in restructuring charges, respectively.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Segment Reporting The Company reports on its segments in accordance with ASC 280, Segment Reporting, which defines an operating segment as a component of an enterprise that engages in business activities that generate revenues and incur expenses, which operating results are reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in the determination of resource allocation and performance and for which discrete financial information is available. The Company manages its business based on the performance of two separate operating segments: multifamily and commercial.

Noncontrolling Interests and Redeemable Common Units Amounts reported as limited partners interest in consolidated partnerships on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are presented as noncontrolling interests within equity. Additionally, amounts reported as preferred units in CRLP are presented as noncontrolling interests within equity. Noncontrolling interests in common units of CRLP are included in the temporary equity section (between liabilities and equity) of the Consolidated Balance Sheets because of the redemption feature of these units. Each common unit is redeemable at the option of the holder for cash equal to the fair market value of one common share at the time of redemption or, at the option of the Trust, one common share. Based on the requirements of ASC 480-10-S99, the measurement of noncontrolling interests is presented at redemption value i.e., the fair value of the units (or limited partners interests) as of the balance sheet date (based on the Trust s share price multiplied by the number of outstanding units), or the aggregate value of the individual partner s capital balances, whichever is greater. See the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 for the presentation and related activity of the noncontrolling interests and redeemable common units.

H-57

Investments in Joint Ventures To the extent that the Company contributes assets to a joint venture, the Company s investment in the joint venture is recorded at the Company s cost basis in the assets that were contributed to the joint venture. To the extent that the Company s cost basis is different from the basis reflected at the joint venture level, the basis difference is amortized over the life of the related assets and included in the Company s share of equity in net income of the joint venture. In accordance ASC 323, Investments Equity Method and Joint Ventures, the Company recognizes gains on the contribution of real estate to joint ventures, relating solely to the outside partner s interest, to the extent the economic substance of the transaction is a sale. On a periodic basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators that the value of the Company s investments in unconsolidated joint ventures may be impaired. An investment s value is impaired only if

management s estimate of the fair value of the investment is less than the carrying value of the investment and such difference is deemed to be other than temporary. To the extent an other than temporary impairment has occurred, the loss shall be measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the investment over the estimated fair value of the investment. During 2012, the Company determined that its 40% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Regents Park (Phase II) was impaired and that this impairment was other than temporary. As a result, the Company recognized a non-cash impairment charge of \$0.4 million during 2012. Other than Regents Park (Phase II) charge in 2012, the Company has determined that these investments were not other than temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Investment and Development Expenses Investment and development expenses consist primarily of costs related to potential mergers, acquisitions, and abandoned development pursuits. Abandoned development costs are costs incurred prior to land acquisition including contract deposits, as well as legal, engineering and other external professional fees related to evaluating the feasibility of such developments. If the Company determines that it is probable that it will not develop a particular project, any related pre-development costs previously incurred are immediately expensed. The Company recorded \$1.3 million, \$1.8 million and \$0.4 million in investment and development expenses in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value The Company applies ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a transaction between willing market participants. Additional disclosures focusing on the methods used to determine fair value are also required using the following hierarchy:

- Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.
- Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
- Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

	Fair value measurements as of					
(\$ in thousands)	December 31, 2012					
Assets (Liabilities)	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3		
Real estate assets, including assets held for sale	\$ 43,291	\$	\$	\$ 43,291		
Investment in partially-owned entities	\$ 2,460	\$	\$	\$ 2,460		
Derivative financial instruments	\$ (25,862)	\$	\$ (25,862)	\$		

H-58

Table of Contents

Real estate assets and investments in partially-owned entities

Real estate assets, including assets held for sale, and investments in partially-owned entities were valued using sales activity for similar assets, current contracts and using inputs management believes are consistent with those that market participants would use. The fair values of these assets are determined using widely accepted valuation techniques, including (i) discounted cash flow analysis, which considers, among other things, units sales assumptions, leasing assumptions, cost structure, growth rates, discount rates and terminal capitalization rates (ii) income capitalization approach, which considers prevailing market capitalization rates and (iii) comparable sales activity, including current offers. The valuation technique and related inputs vary with the specific facts and circumstances of each project.

Derivative financial instruments

Currently, the Company uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk. The valuation of these instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including interest rate curves, foreign exchange rates, and implied volatilities. The fair values of interest rate swaps are determined using the market standard methodology of netting the discounted future fixed cash payments and the discounted expected variable cash receipts. The variable cash receipts are based on an expectation of future interest rates (forward curves) derived from observable market interest rate curves.

To comply with the provisions of ASC 820, the Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty s nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of its derivative contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk, the Company, in conjunction with the FASB s fair value measurement guidance, made an accounting policy election to measure the credit risk of its derivative financial instruments that are subject to master netting agreements on a net basis by counterparty portfolio.

Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with its derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by itself and its counterparties. However, as of December 31, 2012, the Company has assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of its derivative positions and has determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the overall valuation of its derivatives. As a result, the Company has determined that its derivative valuations in their entirety are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Indebtedness

At December 31, 2012, the estimated fair value of fixed rate debt was approximately \$1.73 billion (carrying value of \$1.63 billion) and the estimated fair value of the Company s variable rate debt, including the Company s unsecured credit facility, is consistent with the carrying value of \$201.1 million. The Company has determined that the fair value of its fixed and variable rate debt is classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Notes receivable

The estimated fair value of the Company s notes receivable at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was consistent with the carrying values of approximately \$42.4 million and \$43.8 million, respectively, based on market rates and similar financing arrangements after giving consideration to the credit standing of the borrowers. The Company has determined that the fair value of its notes receivable is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

H-59

The disclosure of estimated fair values was determined by management using available market information, considering market participant assumptions and appropriate valuation methodologies available to management at December 31, 2012. Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develop estimated fair value. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the estimates presented above are indicative of the amounts the Company could realize on disposition of the real estate assets or financial instruments. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies could have material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, and update to ASC 220, Comprehensive Income. ASU 2013-02 was issued to improve the reporting of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income. The amendments in this update seek to attain that objective by requiring an entity to report the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income on the respective line items in net income if the amount being reclassified is required under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles GAAP to be reclassified in its entirety to net income. For other amounts that are not required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net income in the same reporting period, an entity is required to cross-reference other disclosures required under U.S. GAAP that provide additional detail about those amounts. This would be the case when a portion of the amount reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income is reclassified to a balance sheet account instead of directly to income or expense in the same reporting period. ASU 2013-02 will become effective for the fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2012. The Company does not foresee the adoption of ASU 2013-02 to have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

Note 3 Real Estate Activity

Acquisition Activity

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company acquired the following multifamily apartment communities:

			Effective	
Acquisitions	Location	Units	Acquisition Date	nase Price
Colonial Reserve at Las Colinas	Dallas, TX	306	November 20, 2012	\$ 42.8
Colonial Grand at Canyon Ranch	Austin, TX	272	November 13, 2012	24.5
Colonial Grand at Research Park (1)	Raleigh, NC	370	October 1, 2012	38.0
Colonial Grand at Fairview	Dallas, TX	256	May 30, 2012	29.8
Colonial Grand at Brier Falls	Raleigh, NC	350	January 10, 2012	45.0
Colonial Grand at Hebron	Dallas, TX	312	November 8, 2011	34.1
Colonial Grand at Commerce Park	Charleston, SC	312	September 20, 2011	30.9
Colonial Reserve at Medical District	Dallas, TX	278	September 1, 2011	33.0
Colonial Village at Beaver Creek	Raleigh, NC	316	August 2, 2011	26.4
Colonial Grand at Traditions (2)	Gulf Shores, AL	324	June 17, 2011	17.6
Colonial Grand at Palm Vista	Las Vegas, NV	341	March 14, 2011	40.9
Colonial Grand at Cornelius	Charlotte, NC	236	February 28, 2011	23.6
Colonial Grand at Wells Branch	Austin, TX	336	February 24, 2011	28.4
Colonial Grand at Brier Creek	Raleigh, NC	364	October 22, 2010	37.9
Colonial Grand at Riverchase Trails (3)	Birmingham, AL	345	June 30, 2010	24.6
Total		4,718		\$ 477.5

H-60

⁽¹⁾ Prior to the acquisition, the Company owned a 20% noncontrolling interest in the joint venture that owned the property. See Note 13 Investment in Partially-Owned Entities .

⁽²⁾ The Company acquired the property through foreclosure on August 1, 2011. For additional information regarding the status of ongoing litigation between the Company and its joint venture partner involving this property, see Note 20 Legal Proceedings.

(3) The Company acquired ownership in this asset through a joint venture transaction. See Note 13 Investment in Partially-Owned Entities for additional details regarding this transaction.

The results of operations of the above mentioned acquisitions have been included in the consolidated financial statements since each date of acquisition or, in the case of Colonial Grand at Traditions, since the date of consolidation. These transactions were funded by proceeds received from shares issued under the Trust s at-the-market continuous equity offering programs, proceeds received from asset dispositions, as discussed below, and borrowings on the Company s unsecured credit facility. The cash paid to acquire these properties is included in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the Trust and CRLP. For properties acquired, assets were recorded at fair value based on an independent third party appraisal or internal models using assumptions consistent with those made by other market participants. The property acquisitions during 2012, 2011 and 2010 are comprised of the following:

(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	2010
Assets purchased:			
Land, buildings and equipment	\$ 177,505	\$ 230,823	\$ 61,285
In-place lease intangibles	2,610	3,954	1,059
Total assets purchased	180,115	234,777	62,344
Notes and mortgages assumed			$(19,300)^{(1)}$
Total consideration	\$ 180,115	\$ 234,777	\$ 43,044

(1) See Note 13 Investment in Partially-Owned Entities regarding additional details for this transaction.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, gives effect to the above operating property acquisitions, including the consolidation of Colonial Grand at Traditions, as if they had occurred at the beginning of the periods presented. The information for the year in which a property was acquired/consolidated includes pro forma results for the portion of the period prior to the acquisition/consolidation date and actual results from the date of acquisition/consolidation through the end of the year. The pro forma results are not intended to be indicative of the results of future operations.

	** Pro Forma (Unaudited) **								
	Years Ended December 31,								
(\$ in thousands, except per share data)	2012	2011	2010						
Total revenue	\$ 403,768	\$ 382,417	\$ 353,175						
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders	\$ 6,935	\$ 1,105	\$ (49,379)						
Net income (loss) per common share dilutive	\$ 0.07	\$ 0.01	\$ (0.69)						

Disposition Activity Continuing Operations

In July 2012, the Company sold 53,000 square feet at Colonial Promenade Tannehill, a 234,000 square-foot (excluding anchor-owned square footage) commercial asset located in Birmingham, Alabama, for a sales price of \$5.6 million.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company sold various consolidated parcels of land for an aggregate sales price of \$4.3 million, \$6.0 million, and \$17.2 million, respectively, which were used to repay a portion of the borrowings under the Company s unsecured credit facility and for general corporate purposes.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010 the Company also sold its interest in various multifamily and commercial joint ventures. See *Note 13 Investment in Partially-Owned Entities* for additional details regarding these transactions.

H-61

Disposition Activity Discontinued Operations

Net income/(loss) and gain/(loss) on disposition of real estate for properties sold in which the Company does not maintain continuing involvement are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP as *Discontinued Operations* for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. Following is a listing of the properties the Company disposed of in 2012, 2011 and 2010, which are classified as discontinued operations:

Dispositions			Effective Disposal Date	 es Price
Multifamily Properties				
Autumn Hill	Charlottesville, VA	425	December 20, 2012	\$ 32.0
Colonial Village at Canyon Hills	Austin, TX	229	December 20, 2012	16.9
Colonial Village at Highland Hills	Raleigh, NC	250	December 20, 2012	17.8
Heatherwood	Charlotte, NC	476	December 20, 2012	28.8
Brookfield	Dallas/Ft. Worth, TX	232	September 27, 2011	9.5
Colonial Grand at McGinnis Ferry	Atlanta, GA	434	September 27, 2011	39.0
Colonial Grand at Sugarloaf	Atlanta, GA	250	September 27, 2011	22.5
Colonial Village at Meadow Creek	Charlotte, NC	250	September 27, 2011	13.6
Paces Cove	Dallas/Ft. Worth, TX	328	September 27, 2011	12.5
Summer Tree	Dallas/Ft. Worth, TX	232	September 27, 2011	8.7
Commercial Properties				
Colonial Promenade Alabaster	Birmingham, AL	219,000	October 24, 2012	37.4
Colonial Center Town Park 400	Orlando, FL	176,000	November 10, 2011	23.9
Brookwood Village Center	Birmingham, AL	88,000	September 23, 2011	8.0
Total				\$ 270.6

(1) Units refer to multifamily apartment units. Square feet refers to commercial space and excludes space owned by anchor tenants. The proceeds from the sales of these assets were used to fund the acquisitions of multifamily apartment communities discussed above, as well as to repay a portion of the borrowings under the Company s unsecured credit facility. In some cases, the Company uses disposition proceeds to fund investment activities through tax-deferred exchanges under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. Of the proceeds received from the sale of assets described above, \$28.9 million remains in temporary restricted cash accounts pending the fulfillment of Section 1031 exchange requirements.

H-62

Below is a summary of the operations of the properties classified as discontinued operations during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (including those properties reported as discontinued operations through June 30, 2013):

	Years Ended December 31,		/
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011	2010
Property revenues:			
Minimum rent	\$ 39,739	\$ 49,411	\$ 51,261
Tenant recoveries	8,773	7,905	7,759
Other revenue	4,836	6,620	6,282
Total revenues	53,348	63,936	65,302
Property expenses:			
Property operating and administrative expense	19,722	25,561	27,969
Depreciation	12,962	20,553	21,966
Amortization	3,414	4,018	6,075
Impairment	3,251		
Total operating expenses	39,349	50,132	56,010
Interest income (expense), net	112	(927)	(1,155)
Debt cost amortization		(20)	(27)
Income from discontinued operations before net gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operations	14,111	12,857	8,110
Net gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operations, net of income taxes	22,729	23,733	(258)
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP from discontinued operations	(2,770)	(2,882)	(749)
Noncontrolling interest to limited partners	` , , ,	, , ,	(4)
Income from discontinued operations attributable to parent company	\$ 34,070	\$ 33,708	\$ 7,099

Held for Sale

The Company classifies real estate assets as held for sale only after the Company has received approval by the Board of Trustees investment committee, has commenced an active program to sell the assets, does not intend to retain a continuing interest in the property and in the opinion of the Company s management, it is probable the assets will sell within the next 12 months.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had classified one multifamily apartment community, two commercial assets, two for-sale developments and three outparcels/pads as held for sale. These real estate assets are reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP at \$93.5 million as of December 31, 2012, which represents the lower of depreciated cost or fair value less costs to sell. There was no mortgage debt associated with these properties as of December 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had two for-sale developments classified as held for sale. These real estate assets are reflected in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP at \$10.5 million at December 31, 2011, which represents the lower of depreciated cost or fair value less costs to sell. There was no mortgage debt associated with these properties as of December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, there were no operating properties classified as held for sale.

H-63

For-Sale Activities

The total number of units sold for condominium conversion properties, for-sale residential units and lots for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

	2012	2011	2010
For-sale residential units	8	11	28
Residential lots	1		

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company received total proceeds of \$4.9 million, \$5.1 million and \$9.3 million, respectively, related to the sale of for-sale residential units and lots. These dispositions eliminate the operating expenses and costs to carry the associated units/lots. The Company s portion of the proceeds from the sales was used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings on the Company s unsecured credit facility. The Company recognized immaterial gains/losses on for sale residential sales in 2012, 2011 and 2010.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had five for-sale residential units and 39 single-family lots remaining. These units/lots, valued at \$5.9 million in the aggregate, are reflected in *Real estate assets held for sale, net* on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP at December 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had \$10.1 million of completed for-sale residential projects classified as held for sale.

For cash flow statement purposes, the Company classifies capital expenditures for newly developed for-sale residential communities in investing activities. Likewise, the proceeds from the sales of condominium units and other residential sales are also included in investing activities.

Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses

During 2012, the Company recorded impairment charges, legal contingencies and other losses totaling \$26.0 million. Included in the \$26.0 million is a \$12.7 million charge related to certain ongoing litigation regarding Colonial Grand at Traditions (see *Note 20 Legal Proceedings*) and \$8.2 million of charges (a \$4.9 million increase in loss contingency accrual and a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge on for-sale residential lots) related to a proposed settlement with respect to the UCO litigation (see *Note 20 Legal Proceedings*). In addition, the Company recorded a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge on one of its commercial assets (which is classified as discontinued operations and is therefore presented in *Income from discontinued operations* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP), a \$0.9 million charge related to warranty claims on for-sale residential units previously sold, a \$0.4 million non-cash impairment charge related to a joint venture investment consisting of undeveloped land and a \$0.5 million casualty loss due to property damage caused by a fire at one of the Company s multifamily apartment communities.

During 2011, the Company recorded impairment charges, legal contingencies and other losses totaling \$5.7 million. The \$5.7 million was comprised of \$4.8 million in loss contingencies related to certain on-going litigation (see *Note 20 Legal Proceedings*), \$0.7 million of casualty losses and \$0.2 million of other non-cash impairment charges. The \$0.7 million of casualty losses were due to fire and weather-related structural damage at eight of the Company s multifamily apartment communities. Of the other non-cash impairment charges, \$0.1 million was related to sales of various for-sale residential units and \$0.1 million was related to the sale of land outparcels. These charges are included in *Impairment*, *legal contingencies and other losses* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP for the years ended December 31, 2011.

During 2010, the Company recorded non-cash impairment charges totaling \$1.3 million. Of the \$1.3 million, \$1.0 million relates to casualty losses resulting from fire and weather-related structural damage at four of the Company s multifamily apartment communities and the remaining \$0.3 million relates to sales of various for-sale residential units. These charges are included in *Impairment*, *legal contingencies and other losses* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP for the years ended December 31, 2010.

H-64

The Company s determination of fair value is based on inputs management believes are consistent with those that market participants would use. The Company estimates the fair value of each property and development project evaluated for impairment based on current market conditions and assumptions made by management, which may differ materially from actual results if market conditions continue to deteriorate or improve. The fair value of these assets are determined using widely accepted valuation techniques, including (i) discounted cash flow analysis, which considers, among other things, unit sales assumptions, leasing assumptions, cost structure, growth rates, discount rates and terminal capitalization rates, (ii) income capitalization approach, which considers prevailing market capitalization rates and (iii) comparable sales activity. The Company will continue to monitor the specific facts and circumstances at the Company s for-sale properties and development projects. Existing economic and market uncertainties may impact the number of projects the Company can sell, the timing of the sales and/or the prices at which the Company can sell them in future periods, and may result in additional impairment charges in connection with sales. If the Company is unable to sell projects, the Company may incur additional impairment charges on projects previously impaired as well as on projects not currently impaired but for which indicators of impairment may exist, which would decrease the value of the Company s assets as reflected on the balance sheet and adversely affect net income and equity. There can be no assurances of the amount or pace of future property sales and closings, particularly given current economic and market conditions.

Note 4 Land, Buildings and Equipment

Land, buildings and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011
Land	\$ 437,094	\$ 417,463
Depreciable property:		
Buildings and improvements	2,855,123	2,849,427
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	197,107	178,565
Undeveloped land and construction in progress	296,153	306,826
	3,785,477	3,752,281
Accumulated depreciation	(804,964)	(731,894)
	2,980,513	3,020,387
Real estate assets held for sale, net	93,450	10,543
Net real estate assets	\$ 3,073,963	\$ 3,030,930

Note 5 Undeveloped Land and Construction in Progress

During 2012, the Company completed the development of Colonial Grand at Hampton Preserve and Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase I), adding 718 apartment units to the Company s multifamily portfolio. Additionally, the Company completed the infrastructure of Colonial Promenade Huntsville, a commercial development located in Huntsville, Alabama. Project development costs for these completed developments (as outlined in the table below) were funded primarily through borrowings on the Company s unsecured credit facility and sales of certain commercial properties. At December 31, 2012, the Company had six active development projects, as outlined in the table below. In addition, the Company owns approximately \$207.4 million of undeveloped land parcels that are held for future developments. Of the future developments listed below, the Company expects to initiate development of at least four multifamily apartment communities during 2013. Although the Company believes that it is probable that it will develop certain of the other projects in the future as market conditions dictate, there can be no assurance that the Company will pursue any of these particular future development projects.

H-65

(\$ in thousands)	Location	Total Units/ Square Feet (1) (unaudited)		Capitalized to Date
Completed Developments:		(
Multifamily:				
Colonial Grand at Hampton Preserve	Tampa, FL	486	\$	52,244
Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase I)	Orlando, FL	232		25,702
	- ·· ··,			
Commercial:		718		77,946
Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase I) (2)	Huntsville, AL		\$	4,116
Total Completed Developments			\$	82,062
Active Developments:				
Multifamily:	Charlett NO	0.1	ф	2.454
Colonial Grand at Ayrsley (Phase II)	Charlotte, NC	81	\$	3,454
Colonial Grand at Double Creek	Austin, TX	296		27,297
Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase II)	Orlando, FL	108		11,382
Colonial Grand at Randal Lakes	Orlando, FL	462		19,579
Colonial Reserve at South End	Charlotte, NC	353		26,133
		1,300	\$	87,845
Commercial:				
Brookwood West Retail	Birmingham, AL	41,300	\$	914
Total Active Developments			\$	88,759
Future Developments:				
Multifamily:				
Colonial Grand at Bellevue (Phase II)	Nashville, TN	220	\$	3,701
Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase III)	Orlando, FL	132		1,851
Colonial Grand at Randal Park	Orlando, FL	314		6,232
Colonial Grand at Thunderbird				
	Phoenix, AZ	244		8,042
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater	Phoenix, AZ	195		8,042 7,240
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater				8,042 7,240
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater	Phoenix, AZ	195	\$	8,042 7,240 10,575
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Colonial Grand at Azure Commercial:	Phoenix, AZ	195 438	\$	8,042 7,240 10,575
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Colonial Grand at Azure Commercial:	Phoenix, AZ	195 438	\$ \$	8,042 7,240 10,575 37,641
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Colonial Grand at Azure Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II)	Phoenix, AZ Las Vegas, NV Huntsville, AL	195 438 1,543		8,042 7,240 10,575 37,641 5,215
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Colonial Grand at Azure Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac (3)	Phoenix, AZ Las Vegas, NV	195 438		8,042 7,240 10,575 37,641 5,215 25,634
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Colonial Grand at Azure Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac (3)	Phoenix, AZ Las Vegas, NV Huntsville, AL Covington, LA	195 438 1,543		8,042 7,240 10,575 37,641 5,215 25,634 10,996
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Colonial Grand at Azure Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac (3) Randal Park	Phoenix, AZ Las Vegas, NV Huntsville, AL Covington, LA	195 438 1,543 236,000	\$	8,042 7,240 10,575 37,641 5,215 25,634 10,996
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Colonial Grand at Azure Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac (3) Randal Park Other Undeveloped Land:	Phoenix, AZ Las Vegas, NV Huntsville, AL Covington, LA	195 438 1,543 236,000	\$ \$	8,042 7,240 10,575 37,641 5,215 25,634 10,996 41,845
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Colonial Grand at Azure Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac (3) Randal Park Other Undeveloped Land: Multifamily	Phoenix, AZ Las Vegas, NV Huntsville, AL Covington, LA	195 438 1,543 236,000	\$	8,042 7,240 10,575 37,641 5,215 25,634 10,996 41,845
Colonial Grand at Sweetwater Colonial Grand at Azure Commercial: Colonial Promenade Huntsville (Phase II) Colonial Promenade Nord du Lac (3) Randal Park	Phoenix, AZ Las Vegas, NV Huntsville, AL Covington, LA	195 438 1,543 236,000	\$ \$	8,042 7,240 10,575 37,641 5,215 25,634 10,996 41,845

	\$ 127,908
Total Future Developments	\$ 207,394
Consolidated Undeveloped Land and Construction in	
Progress	\$ 296,153

H-66

- (1) Units refer to multifamily apartment units. Square feet refers to commercial space and excludes space owned by anchor tenants.
- (2) Development costs for this project are net of reimbursements received from the shadow-anchor.
- (3) The Company intends to develop this project in phases over time. Costs capitalized to date for this development are presented net of an aggregate \$18.1 million of non-cash impairment charges recorded during 2009 and 2008.
- (4) These costs are presented net of \$27.9 million of non-cash impairment charges recorded on two of the projects in 2012, 2009, 2008 and 2007. Of these charges \$3.3 million were recorded during 2012.

Interest capitalized on construction in progress during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$1.2 million, \$0.4 million and \$1.2 million, respectively.

Note 6 Net Loss Per Share of the Trust

For the years ended 2012, 2011 and 2010, a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the basic and diluted loss from continuing operations per common share of the Trust is as follows:

2010
40,537)
(5,649)
(7,099)
(373)
3,000
(4,868)
55,526)
71,919
71,919
(: (2 5:

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Trust reported a net loss from continuing operations (after preferred dividends), and as such, dilutive share equivalents have been excluded from per share computations because including such shares would be anti-dilutive. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2011, 285,064, 225,163 and 55,802 dilutive share equivalents, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 696,749, 994,118 and 1,001,237 outstanding share options, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share because the grant date prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive.

H-67

Note 7 Net Loss Per Unit of CRLP

For the years ended 2012, 2011 and 2010, a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the basic and diluted loss from continuing operations per common unit of CRLP is as follows:

	Years Ended December 31,		er 31,
(in thousands)	2012	2011	2010
Numerator:			
Loss from continuing operations	\$ (32,120)	\$ (30,411)	\$ (46,395)
Adjusted by:			
Income allocated to participating securities	(529)	(402)	(373)
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners continuing operations	(43)	(53)	103
Distributions to limited partner preferred unitholders		(3,586)	(7,161)
Distributions to general partner preferred unitholders			(5,649)
Preferred unit repurchase gains		2,500	3,000
Preferred unit issuance costs		(1,319)	(4,868)
Loss from continuing operations available to common unitholders	\$ (32,692)	\$ (33,271)	\$ (61,343)
Denominator:			
Denominator for basic net loss per unit weighted average common units	94,410	91,389	79,536
Effect of dilutive securities			
Denominator for diluted net loss per unit adjusted weighted average common units	94,410	91,389	79,536

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, CRLP reported a net loss from continuing operations (after preferred dividends), and as such, dilutive unit equivalents have been excluded from per unit computations because including such units would be anti-dilutive. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 285,064, 225,163 and 55,802 dilutive unit equivalents, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per unit. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 696,749, 994,118 and 1,001,237 outstanding unit options, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per unit because the grant date prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares/units and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive.

Note 8 Equity of the Trust

Ownership of the Trust is maintained through common shares of beneficial interest (the preferred shares), preferred shares of beneficial interest (the preferred shares) and noncontrolling interest in CRLP (the units). Common shareholders represent public equity owners and common unitholders represent noncontrolling interest owners. Each unit may be redeemed for either one common share or, at the option of the Trust, cash equal to the fair market value of a common share at the time of redemption. When a common unitholder redeems a unit for a common share or cash, noncontrolling interest is reduced. In addition, the Company has acquired properties since its formation by issuing distribution paying and non-distribution paying units. The non-distribution paying units convert to distribution paying units at various dates subsequent to their original issuance. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, 7,152,752 and 7,169,388 units of CRLP were outstanding, respectively, excluding units held by the Trust, all of which were distribution paying units.

H-68

The following table presents the changes in the issued common shares of beneficial interest of the Trust since December 31, 2011 (but excluding 7,152,752 and 7,169,388 units of CRLP at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively, each of which is redeemable for either cash equal to the fair market value of a common share at the time of redemption or, at the option of the Trust, one common share):

Issued at December 31, 2011 (1)	93,096,722
Common shares issued through dividend reinvestments	341,131
Restricted shares issued (cancelled), net	273,628
Redemption of CRLP units for common shares	16,636
Issuances under other employee and nonemployee share plans	107,677
Issued at December 31, 2012 (1)	93,835,794

(1) Includes 5,623,150 treasury shares.

Equity Offerings

In 2010 and 2011, the Trust completed the following offerings of its common shares under four separate continuous at-the-market equity offering programs, each of which was fully exhausted as of December 31, 2011:

(\$ in thousands, except per share amounts)

	Issuance Authorized		Amount Authorized	Shares Issued	Issua	hted Avg nce Price : Share	Net	Proceeds
2010	February 2010		\$ 50,000	3,602,348	\$	13.88	\$	48,999
	July 2010		100,000	6,329,026		15.80		98,990
	December 2010		100,000	462,500		18.06		8,185
		2010 Total		10,393,874	\$	15.24	\$	156,174
2011	December 2010		\$ 100,000	4,788,525	\$	19.14	\$	89,813
	May 2011		75,000	3,628,321		20.67		73,873
		2011 Total		8,416,846	\$	19.80	\$	163,686

⁽¹⁾ Amounts are shown net of underwriting discounts, but excludes \$0.3 million of one-time administrative expenses paid by the Company during each of the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

The net proceeds resulting from the equity offerings were used to redeem all of the Trust soutstanding Series D Preferred Depositary Shares and to repurchase one-half of CRLP soutstanding Series B Preferred Units during 2010; to partially fund three of the multifamily property acquisitions and the purchase of the Colonial Grand at Traditions joint venture mortgage loan during 2011 (see Note 3 Real Estate Activity Acquisition Activity); to pay down a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Company source credit facility and to fund other general corporate purposes.

Repurchases/Redemption of Series D Preferred Depositary Shares

In April 2003, the Trust issued 5,000,000 depositary shares (the Series D Preferred Depositary Shares), each representing 1/10 of a share of 8.125% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares of Beneficial Interest, par value \$0.01 per share. During 2010, the Trust redeemed all

of the remaining outstanding 4,004,735 Series D Preferred Depositary Shares, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends, in open market (or privately negotiated) transactions for an aggregate redemption price per share of \$25.2257, or \$100.1 million in the aggregate. As a result of this redemption, the Company recorded a charge of approximately \$3.6 million related to the original preferred share issuance costs.

H-69

Partially-Owned Properties

The Company reflects noncontrolling interests in partially-owned properties on the balance sheet as a component of equity for the portion of properties consolidated by the Company that are not wholly-owned by the Company. The earnings or losses from those properties attributable to the noncontrolling interests are reflected as *Noncontrolling interest of limited partners* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). Allocation of income or loss for these properties vary depending on the underlying operating agreements of the joint venture.

Note 9 Capital Structure of CRLP

Issuances of Common Units

Pursuant to the CRLP partnership agreement, each time the Trust issues common shares, CRLP issues to the Trust an equal number of units for the same price at which the common shares were sold. As described in *Note 8 Equity of the Trust*, during the year ended December 31, 2011, the Trust issued 8,416,846 common shares, generating proceeds of approximately \$163.7 million, net of underwriting discounts, at an average price of \$19.80 per share, under its continuous at-the-market equity offering programs. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Trust issued 10,393,874 common shares, generating proceeds of approximately \$156.2 million, net of underwriting discounts, at an average price of \$15.24 per share, under its continuous at-the-market equity offering programs. Accordingly, CRLP issued 8,416,846 common units, at a weighted average issue price of \$19.80 per unit, to the Trust during 2011 and 10,393,874 common units, at a weighted average issue price of \$15.24 per unit, to the Trust during 2010.

Repurchase of Series B Preferred Units

In February 1999, CRLP issued 2.0 million units of \$50 par value 8.875% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Units (the Series B Preferred Units), valued at \$100.0 million in a private placement, net of offering costs of \$2.6 million. On February 18, 2004, CRLP modified the terms of the Series B Preferred Units. Under the modified terms, the Series B Preferred Units bore a distribution rate of 7.25% and were redeemable at the option of CRLP, in whole or in part, after February 24, 2009, at the cost of the original capital contribution plus the cumulative priority return, whether or not declared. The terms of the Series B Preferred Units were further modified on March 14, 2005 to extend the redemption date from February 24, 2009 to August 24, 2009. The Series B Preferred Units were exchangeable for 7.25% Series B Preferred Shares of the Trust, in whole or in part at anytime on or after January 1, 2014, at the option of the holders.

During December 2010, CRLP repurchased 1.0 million of its outstanding 7.25% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Units (the Series B Preferred Units) from the existing holders for \$47.0 million, plus accrued but unpaid dividends, which represented a 6% discount to the original issuance price and resulted in a gain of \$3.0 million. The Series B Preferred Units were originally issued in a private placement in February 1999. As a result of the repurchase, during 2010, CRLP wrote off \$1.3 million related to the original preferred unit issuance costs. During December 2011, CRLP repurchased the remaining 1.0 million of the outstanding Series B Preferred Units from the existing holders for \$47.5 million, plus accrued but unpaid dividends, which represented a 5% discount to the original issuance price and resulted in a gain of \$2.5 million. As a result of the repurchase, during 2011, CRLP wrote off \$1.3 million related to the original preferred unit issuance costs.

Repurchases/Redemption of Series D Preferred Units

During 2010, in connection with the Trust s redemption of all of the outstanding 4,004,735 Series D Preferred Shares, CRLP repurchased from the Trust all of the corresponding Series D Preferred Units of CRLP for the same price at which the Trust redeemed the Series D Preferred Shares, \$25.2257 per Series D Preferred Depositary Unit, or \$100.1 million in the aggregate.

H-70

Note 10 Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests of the Trust

Redeemable noncontrolling interests Common units, as presented on the Trust s consolidated balance sheets, represent the limited partner interests in CRLP held by individuals and entities other than the Trust, at the greater of the closing market price of the Trust s common shares or the aggregate value of the individual partners capital balances, as of the applicable date. At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the value of these redeemable noncontrolling interests was \$162.1 million and \$159.6 million, respectively, based on the closing price of the Trust s common shares of \$21.37 and \$20.86, respectively, on those dates.

Each common unit may be redeemed by the holder thereof for either cash equal to the fair market value of one common share of the Trust at the time of such redemption or, at the option of the Trust, one common share of the Trust. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, holders redeemed 16,636 and 130,142 units, respectively, in exchange for an equal number of the Trust s common shares.

Note 11 Redeemable Partnership Units of CRLP

Redeemable units, as presented on CRLP s consolidated balance sheets, represent the limited partner interests in CRLP held by individuals and entities other than the Trust, valued at the greater of the closing market price of the Trust s common shares or the aggregate value of the individual partners capital balances, as of the applicable date. At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the value of the redeemable units was \$162.1 million and \$159.6 million, respectively, based on the closing price of the Trust s common shares of \$21.37 and \$20.86, respectively, on those dates.

Holders of common units are entitled to receive distributions in a per unit amount equal to the per share dividends made with respect to each share of the Trust s common shares, if and when the Board of Trustees of the Trust declares such a dividend. Each common unit may be redeemed by the holder thereof for either cash equal to the fair market value of one common share of the Trust at the time of such redemption or, at the option of the Trust, one common share of the Trust. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, holders redeemed 16,636 and 130,142 units, respectively, in exchange for an equal number of the Trust s common shares.

Operating Partnership

Net income is allocated to noncontrolling interests based on their respective ownership percentage of the Operating Partnership. The ownership percentage is calculated by dividing the number of operating partnership units held by the noncontrolling interests by the total operating partnership units held by the noncontrolling interests and the Trust. Issuance of additional Common Shares changes the ownership interests of both the noncontrolling interests and the Trust.

Note 12 Segment Information

The Company currently manages its business based on the performance of two operating segments: multifamily and commercial. The multifamily and commercial segments have separate management teams that are responsible for acquiring, developing, managing and leasing properties within each respective segment.

Multifamily management is responsible for all aspects of the Company s multifamily property operations, including the management and leasing services for 114 multifamily apartment communities, as well as third-party management services for multifamily apartment communities in which the Company does not have an ownership interest. Additionally, the multifamily management team is responsible for all aspects of for-sale developments, including disposition activities. The multifamily segment includes the operations and assets of the for-sale developments due to the insignificance of these operations in the periods presented. Commercial management is responsible for all aspects of the Company s commercial property operations, including the management and leasing services for 11 commercial properties, as well as third-party management services for a commercial property in which the Company does not have an ownership interest and for brokerage services in other commercial property transactions.

H-71

Table of Contents

The pro-rata portion of the revenues and net operating income (NOI) of the partially-owned unconsolidated entities in which the Company has an interest are included in the applicable segment information. Additionally, the revenues and NOI of properties sold that are classified as discontinued operations are also included in the applicable segment information. In reconciling the segment information presented below to total revenues, income/loss from continuing operations and total assets, investments in partially-owned unconsolidated entities are eliminated as equity investments and discontinued operations are reported separately. Management evaluates the performance of its multifamily and commercial segments and allocates resources to them based on segment NOI. Segment NOI is defined as total property revenues (including minimum rent and other property-related revenue) less total property operating expenses (including such items as general and administrative expenses, on-site payroll, repairs and maintenance, real estate taxes, insurance and advertising) and includes revenues/expenses from unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures.

H-72

Presented below is segment information for the multifamily and commercial segments including the reconciliation of total segment revenues to total revenues and total segment NOI to income/loss from continuing operations before noncontrolling interest for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. For purposes of the following table, Multifamily Same-Property includes all consolidated multifamily properties continuously owned since January 1, 2011. Same-property communities may be adjusted during the year to account for disposition activity.

	Years Ended I	
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011
Revenues:		
Segment revenues: Multifamily Same Property ⁽¹⁾	Ф 210.050	¢ 204.000
	\$ 310,859	\$ 294,800
Multifamily Other ²	56,771	41,247
Total multifamily	367,630	336,047
Commercial	62,084	77,850
Total segment revenues	429,714	413,897
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Multifamily	(1,731)	(2,336)
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Commercial	(11,500)	(26,046)
Other non-property related revenue	5,712	8,047
Discontinued operations property revenue	(53,348)	(63,936)
Total consolidated revenues	\$ 368,847	\$ 329,626
NOI:		
Segment NOI:		
Multifamily Same Property ⁽¹⁾	\$ 188,869	\$ 175,553
Multifamily Other ⁽²⁾	31,067	20,491
Total multifamily	219,936	196,044
Commercial	41,601	52,774
Total segment NOI	261,537	248,818
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Multifamily	(924)	(1,183)
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Commercial	(7,340)	(17,318)
Other non-property related revenue	5,712	8,047
Discontinued operations property NOI	(30,375)	(38,375)
Impairment discontinued operations ⁽³⁾	(3,251)	
Property management expense	(12,858)	(9,185)
General and administrative expense	(22,615)	(20,439)
Management fees and other expenses	(6,298)	(8,067)
Restructuring charges	(1,848)	(153)
Investment and development expenses (3)	(1,285)	(1,781)
Depreciation	(113,961)	(107,236)
Amortization	(3,043)	(4,540)
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses (4)	(22,762)	(5,736)
Income from operations	40,689	42,852
Total other income (expense), net (5)	(68,664)	(73,263)

Loss from continuing operations \$ (27,975) \$ (30,411)

(1) Consists of the 95 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 28,943 apartment units, continuously owned since January 1, 2011.

H-73

Table of Contents

- (2) Includes all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and operations from the for-sale portfolio.
- (3) Reflects costs incurred related to acquisitions and abandoned pursuits. These costs are volatile and, therefore, may vary between periods.
- (4) See Note 3 Real Estate Activity Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses for a description of the charges.
- (5) For-sale residential activities, including net gain on sales and income tax expense (benefit), are included in the line item Total other income (expense). See Note 3 Real Estate Activity For-Sale Activities.

H-74

Presented below is segment information, for the multifamily and commercial segments, including the reconciliation of total segment revenues to total revenues and total segment NOI to income/loss from continuing operations before noncontrolling interest for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. For the purposes of the following table, Multifamily Same-Property includes all consolidated multifamily properties continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1, 2010. Same-property communities may be adjusted during the year to account for disposition activity.

(\$ in thousands)	Years Ended December 31, 2011 2010	
Revenues:		
Segment revenues:		
Multifamily Same Property ⁽¹⁾	\$ 295,620	\$ 283,115
Multifamily Other ⁽²⁾	40,427	26,279
Total multifamily	336,047	309,394
Commercial	77,850	80,015
Total segment revenues	413,897	389,409
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Multifamily	(2,336)	(3,106)
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Commercial	(26,046)	(30,987)
Other non-property related revenue	8,047	11,693
Discontinued operations property revenue	(63,936)	(65,302)
Total consolidated revenues	\$ 329,626	\$ 301,707
NOI:		
Segment NOI:		
Multifamily Same Property ⁽¹⁾	\$ 174,890	\$ 163,058
Multifamily Other ⁽²⁾	21,154	11,134
Total multifamily	196,044	174,192
Commercial	52,774	54,006
Total segment NOI	248,818	228,198
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Multifamily	(1,183)	(1,468)
Partially-owned unconsolidated entities Commercial	(17,318)	(20,839)
Other non-property related revenue	8,047	11,693
Discontinued operations property NOI	(38,375)	(37,333)
Property management expense	(9,185)	(8,584)
General and administrative expense	(20,439)	(18,563)
Management fees and other expenses	(8,067)	(9,504)
Restructuring charges	(153)	(361)
Investment and development expenses (3)	(1,781)	(422)
Depreciation	(107,236)	(100,137)
Amortization	(4,540)	(2,856)
Impairment, legal contingencies and other losses (4)	(5,736)	(1,308)
Income from operations	42,852	38,516
Total other income (expense), net (5)	(73,263)	(84,911)

Loss from continuing operations

\$ (30,411)

\$ (46,395)

- (1) Consists of the 96 consolidated multifamily communities, containing 29,233 apartment units, continuously owned during the periods presented since January 1, 2010.
- (2) Includes all multifamily communities other than same-property communities and operations from the for-sale portfolio.

H-75

- (3) Reflects costs incurred related to acquisitions and abandoned pursuits. These costs are volatile and, therefore, may vary between periods.
- (4) See Note 3 Real Estate Activity Impairment, Legal Contingencies and Other Losses for a description of the charges.
- (5) For-sale residential activities, including net gain on sales and income tax expense (benefit), are included in the line item Total other income (expense). See Note 3 Real Estate Activity For-Sale Activities.

Additionally, the Company s total segment capitalized expenditures to total capitalized expenditures and total segment assets to total assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are presented below.

		As of December 31,	
(\$ in thousands)	2012		2011
Development and Capitalized Expenditures:			
Multifamily	\$ 103,4	44 \$	59,007
Commercial	18,8	57	10,756
Corporate	3	346	373
Total consolidated development and capitalized expenditures	\$ 122,6	547 \$	70,136
Assets:			
Segment assets:			
Multifamily	\$ 2,669,8	43 \$ 2	2,584,769
Commercial	450,5	82	514,810
Total segment assets	3,120,4	25	3,099,579
Unallocated corporate assets (1)	165,7	83	159,026
Colonial Properties Trust	\$ 3,286,2	108 \$	3,258,605
Corporate assets specific to Colonial Properties Trust	((48)	(177)
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership	\$ 3,286,1	.60 \$:	3,258,428

Note 13 Investment in Partially-Owned Entities

The Company evaluates all transactions and relationships with variable interest entities (VIEs) to determine whether the Company is the primary beneficiary.

Consolidated Investments in Variable Interest Entities

Based on the Company s evaluation, as of December 31, 2012, the Company has one consolidated VIE CMS/Colonial Canyon Creek which the Company began consolidating in September 2009 as a result of a preferred equity contribution of \$11.5 million made by the Company to the joint venture in connection with a construction loan refinancing. This joint venture is a variable interest entity and the Company s \$11.5 million preferred equity contribution constituted a reconsideration event.

In assessing whether the Company was the primary beneficiary under FASB ASU 2009-17, the Company considered the significant economic activities of this variable interest entity to consist of:

⁽¹⁾ Includes the Company s investment in partially-owned entities of \$7.8 million and \$12.3 million as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

- (1) the sale of the single apartment community owned by the partnership,
- (2) the financing arrangements with banks or other creditors,
- (3) the capital improvements or significant repairs, and
- (4) the pricing of apartment units for rent.

H-76

The Company concluded that it has the power to direct the activities of this joint venture and that the Company has the obligation to absorb losses and the right to receive benefits from this joint venture that could be significant to the joint venture. Therefore, the Company consolidates the CMS/Canyon Creek joint venture.

Investments in Unconsolidated Partially-Owned Entities

Investments in unconsolidated partially-owned entities at December 31, 2012 and 2011 consisted of the following:

	Percent	As of December 31,	
(\$ in thousands)	Owned	2012	2011
Multifamily:			
Belterra, Ft. Worth, TX	10%	\$ 300	\$ 365
Colonial Grand at Huntcliff, Atlanta, GA	20%	1,195	1,382
Colonial Grand at McKinney, Dallas, TX (1)	25%	1,715	1,721
Colonial Grand at Research Park, Raleigh, NC (2)	%		660
Regents Park (Phase II), Atlanta, GA (1)	40%	2,460	3,341
Total Multifamily		\$ 5,670	\$ 7,469
Commercial:			
600 Building Partnership, Birmingham, AL	33%	357	331
Bluerock, Huntsville, AL (3)	%		(6,426)
Colonial Promenade Madison, Huntsville, AL (4)	%		2,062
Colonial Promenade Smyrna, Smyrna, TN	50%	1,683	2,259
DRA/CLP JV (5)	%		(25,152)
Highway 150, LLC, Birmingham, AL (6)	10%	50	43
Parkside Drive LLC II, Knoxville, TN (7)	%		112
Total Commercial		\$ 2,090	\$ (26,771)
Other:			
Colonial/Polar-BEK Management Company, Birmingham, AL	50%	17	28
Total Other		\$ 17	\$ 28
Net investment in partially-owned entities (8)		\$ 7,777	\$ (19,274)

- (1) These joint ventures consist of undeveloped land.
- (2) In October 2012, the Company acquired the property held by the joint venture (see below).
- (3) Effective December 31, 2012, the Company sold its 10% noncontrolling interest (see below). This equity interest is presented under Liabilities on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2011.
- (4) In February 2012, the Company sold its 25% noncontrolling joint venture interest (see below).
- (5) Effective June 30, 2012, the Company redeemed its 15% noncontrolling joint venture interest (see below).
- (6) In January 2013, the Company sold its 10% noncontrolling joint venture interest (see Note 22 Subsequent Events).
- (7) In December 2011, the Company sold its 50% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture (see below).
- (8) Net investment in partially-owned entities as of December 31, 2011 includes the Trust s \$4.1 million contingent obligation related to the DRA/CLP JV. CRLP s net investment in partially owned entities was \$(15.1) million as of December 31, 2011.

Effective December 31, 2012, the Company disposed of its 10% noncontrolling interest in the Bluerock office portfolio, which consisted of nine office assets comprising 1.7 million square feet located in Huntsville, Alabama. As a result of the transaction, the Company recognized a gain of approximately \$7.4 million (presented in *Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities* on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)), the majority of which had been deferred since the formation of

H-77

Table of Contents

the Bluerock entity in 2007. Pursuant to the transaction, the Company received \$2.0 million in cash, of which \$1.3 million was related to the management agreement buyout and \$0.7 million was related to the purchase of the Company s equity interest in the portfolio. Also, as a result of the transaction, the Company no longer has responsibility for \$10.7 million of associated mortgage debt and \$7.9 million of other liabilities, which represents the Company s pro-rata share. The Company transitioned management and leasing responsibilities as of January 31, 2013. As a result of this transaction, the Company no longer has an equity interest in this portfolio.

In October 2012, the Company purchased Colonial Grand at Research Park, a 370-unit multifamily apartment community located in Raleigh, North Carolina, for \$38.0 million, of which \$21.3 million was used to repay existing property specific debt at closing. Prior to the acquisition, the Company owned a 20% noncontrolling interest in the joint venture that owned the property. In accordance with ASC 805, the Company remeasured its former noncontrolling interest to fair value and recognized a gain of \$2.8 million on the transaction (presented in *Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities* on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)). As a result of the transaction, the Company began presenting Colonial Grand at Research Park in the Company s consolidated financial statements beginning October 1, 2012. This acquisition was funded with proceeds from asset dispositions and borrowings on the Company s unsecured credit facility.

In September 2012, the Company recorded a \$0.5 million non-cash impairment charge, which represents the Company s pro-rata share of the charge, related to a for-sale residential parcel of land held in a joint venture. This charge is presented in *Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities* in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

Effective June 30, 2012, the Company s remaining 15% noncontrolling interest in the 18-asset DRA/CLP joint venture was redeemed by the joint venture in exchange for \$2.0 million, and the Company is no longer responsible for approximately \$111.3 million of mortgage debt, which represented the Company s pro rata share of the joint venture s mortgage debt. The \$2.0 million contingent consideration is payable to the Company following the occurrence of one or more capital events and after certain returns have been achieved with respect to additional capital expected to be invested in the joint venture by other members of the joint venture. However, the Company has assigned no value to this consideration. In addition, the Trust was released from a \$4.1 million contingent liability, which represented the Trust s pro rata share of a guaranty obligation resulting from a debt guaranty provided by the joint venture. As a result of the transaction, during the second quarter of 2012, the Company recognized a gain of approximately \$21.9 million (presented in Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)), the majority of which had been deferred since the formation of the DRA/CLP joint venture in 2007. The gain is net of a \$3.2 million non-cash impairment charge, which represents the Company s pro-rata share of an impairment recorded by the joint venture for 2011, but omitted in the Company s annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011. Along with the redemption of its interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture the Company has reduced its workforce in the commercial segment by a total of 27 employees through the elimination of certain positions. As a result, approximately \$1.4 million in termination benefits and severance-related charges, are included in Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the year ended December 31, 2012. Of the \$1.4 million in charges, \$0.7 million is unpaid and reflected in Accrued expenses on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP as of December 31, 2012. The Company transitioned the management of the properties and certain leasing responsibilities to a third party as of September 30, 2012. As a result of this transaction, the Company no longer has an interest in this joint venture.

In February 2012, the Company sold its 25% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Promenade Madison, a 111,000 square-foot retail center located in Huntsville, Alabama, to a minority partner for total consideration of \$3.0 million. The Company recognized a gain of approximately \$1.0 million on this transaction. Proceeds from the sale were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s unsecured credit facility. As a result of this transaction, the Company no longer has an interest in this joint venture.

H-78

Table of Contents

In December 2011, the Company, Parkside Drive LLC I and Parkside Drive LLC II sold Colonial Pinnacle at Turkey Creek, a 659,000-square-foot retail center located in Knoxville, Tennessee, for total consideration of \$131.7 million. The Company held a 50% noncontrolling interest in this asset and received cash proceeds of \$25.6 million in connection with the sale, which is presented in *Distributions from partially-owned entities* on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the Trust and CRLP. These proceeds were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s unsecured credit facility and fund the acquisition of multifamily apartment communities (see *Note 3 Real Estate Activity Acquisition Activity*). The Company recognized an \$18.8 million gain on this transaction.

In November 2011, the Company sold its remaining 5% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Promenade Alabaster II/Tutwiler II, LLC, a 420,000-square-foot retail center located in Birmingham, Alabama, to the majority partner. The company s interest was sold for total consideration of \$2.4 million, comprised of \$0.4 million in cash and the joint venture partner s assumption of the Company s \$2.0 million share of the existing loan secured by the property. Proceeds from the sale were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s unsecured credit facility. As a result of this transaction, the Company no longer has an interest in this joint venture.

In July 2011, the Company purchased the remaining 50% interest in Laneboro at Heathrow, LLC for \$1.3 million. This site is currently under active construction and is scheduled to be completed in the first quarter of 2013 (see *Note 5 Undeveloped Land and Construction in Progress)*. The property under construction, Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase II), is adjacent to the Colonial Grand at Lake Mary (Phase I) multifamily property that was placed into service in the fourth quarter 2012.

In October 2010, the Company sold its remaining 50% noncontrolling interest in the Parkway Place Mall in Huntsville, Alabama, to joint venture partner CBL & Associates Properties, Inc. The Company s interest was sold for total consideration of \$38.8 million, comprised of \$17.9 million in cash (presented as a component of *Distributions from partially-owned unconsolidated entities* in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows of the Trust and CRLP) and CBL s assumption of the Company s \$20.9 million share of the existing loan secured by the property. Proceeds from the sale were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance of the Company s unsecured credit facility. The Company recognized a \$3.5 million gain on this transaction.

In June 2010, the Company exited two single-asset multifamily joint ventures with DRA Advisors LLC (DRA) totaling 664 units, in each of which the Company had a 20% ownership interest. Pursuant to the transaction, the Company transferred its 20% ownership interest in Colonial Village at Cary to DRA and made a net cash payment of \$2.7 million in exchange for DRA s 80% ownership in the 345-unit Colonial Grand at Riverchase Trails located in Birmingham, Alabama. Additionally, the Company assumed and subsequently repaid the \$19.3 million loan securing Colonial Grand at Riverchase Trails, which was set to mature on October 1, 2010. The Company now owns 100% of Colonial Grand at Riverchase Trails and DRA now owns 100% of Colonial Village at Cary, with respect to which DRA assumed the existing secured mortgage. The Company continued to manage Colonial Village at Cary through September 30, 2010, pursuant to an existing management agreement. The transaction was funded by borrowings from the Company s unsecured credit facility and proceeds from issuances of common shares through the Company s at-the-market equity program.

H-79

Combined financial information for the Company s investments in unconsolidated partially-owned entities since the respective dates of the Company s acquisitions is as follows:

	As of December 31,	
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011(1)
Balance Sheet		
Assets		
Land, building and equipment, net	\$ 92,366	\$ 1,044,266
Construction in progress	12,701	13,841
Other assets	10,347	78,564
Total assets	\$ 115,414	\$ 1,136,671
Liabilities and partners equity		
Notes payable (2)	\$ 83,738	\$ 957,068
Other liabilities	2,238	106,068
Partners equity	29,438	73,535
Total liabilities and partners equity	\$ 115,414	\$ 1,136,671

- (1) Land, building and equipment, net has been revised from the amount previously reported to appropriately reflect an asset impairment of \$34.5 million recorded by the DRA/CLP joint venture during 2011.
- (2) The Company s pro-rata share of indebtedness, as calculated based on ownership percentage, at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was \$20.7 million and \$147.8 million, respectively.

	Years Ended December 31,		
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011(1)	2010
Statement of Operations			
Revenues	\$ 88,790	\$ 162,474	\$ 179,506
Operating expenses	(34,754)	(93,707)	(64,478)
Interest expense	(39,899)	(67,930)	(71,524)
Depreciation, amortization and other	(18,409)	(23,963)	(74,006)
Net loss (2)	\$ (4,272)	\$ (23,126)	\$ (30,502)

- (1) Operating expenses has been revised from amount previously reported to appropriately reflect an impairment charge of \$34.5 million recorded by the DRA/CLP joint venture during 2011.
- (2) In addition to including the Company's pro-rata share of income (loss) from partially-owned unconsolidated entities of \$0.2 million, \$12.3 million and \$(3.7) million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) includes gains (losses) on the Company's dispositions of joint-venture interests and amortization of basis differences which are not reflected in the table above.

H-80

Note 14 Financing Activities

Notes and mortgages payable at December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

	Years Ended D	Years Ended December 31,		
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011		
Unsecured credit facility	\$ 188,631	\$ 184,000		
Unsecured term loans	400,000	250,000		
Mortgages and other notes:				
3.13% to 6.00%	526,634	529,243		
6.01% to 6.88%	716,727	796,484		
	\$ 1.831.992	\$ 1.759.727		

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility and Cash Management Line

On March 30, 2012, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a \$500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the Credit Facility) with Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated as joint lead arrangers and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (Wells Fargo), as administrative agent for the lenders, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as agents and lenders. The Credit Facility replaced CRLP s prior \$675.0 million credit facility, which matured on June 21, 2012. The Credit Facility has a maturity date of March 29, 2016, with a one-year extension option, which may be exercised as long as there is no existing default and upon payment of a 0.20% extension fee. The Credit Facility includes an accordion feature that allows the total commitments to be increased to \$700.0 million, subject to certain conditions, including obtaining commitments from any one or more lenders, whether or not currently a lender under the Credit Facility.

The spread over LIBOR for syndicated borrowings under the Credit Facility ranges from 1.00% to 1.80% and the facility fee ranges from 0.15% and 0.40%, each based on the credit ratings of CRLP s senior unsecured debt from time to time. As of December 31, 2012, the Credit Facility had a stated interest rate of LIBOR plus 1.40% and required the payment of an annual facility fee equal to 0.30% of the aggregate loan commitments. The Credit Facility also includes an uncommitted competitive bid option for up to \$250.0 million of the \$500.0 million Credit Facility, which can be utilized if CRLP maintains an investment grade credit rating from either Moody s Investors Services, Inc., or Standard & Poor s Ratings Services. This option would allow participating banks to bid to provide CRLP loans at a rate that may be lower than the stated rate for syndicated borrowings.

The Credit Facility includes certain events of default including, but not limited to, nonpayment of principal, interest, fees or other amounts, failure to perform certain covenants, an event of default under any other indebtedness in the aggregate greater than or equal to \$25.0 million, an event of default under CRLP s unsecured term loan, and bankruptcy of other insolvency events. The occurrence of an event of default, following any applicable cure period, would permit the lenders to, among other things, declare the principal, accrued interest and other obligations of CRLP under the Credit Facility to be immediately due and payable.

Both the Credit Facility and term loan agreements (described below) under Senior Unsecured Term Loans require that CRLP satisfy similar financial and operational covenants, including the following:

	As o	_		
	December 3	31, 2012	Requi	irements:
Fixed Charge Ratio		2.2x		>1.5x
Debt to Total Asset Value Ratio		45%		<60.0%
Secured Debt to Total Asset Value Ratio		17%		<40.0%
Unencumbered Leverage Ratio		45%		<62.5%
Permitted Investments Ratio		11%		<30.0%
Tangible Net Worth (\$ in billions)	\$	2.1	\$	1.0

H-81

Table of Contents

At December 31, 2012, the Company was in compliance with these covenants.

In addition to the Credit Facility, the Company has a \$35.0 million cash management line provided by Wells Fargo, which was amended and restated in April 2012. The amended and restated cash management line has a maturity date of March 29, 2016.

The Credit Facility and the cash management line, which primarily are used by the Company to finance property acquisitions and developments, had an outstanding balance at December 31, 2012 of \$188.6 million, including \$170.0 million outstanding on the Credit Facility and \$18.6 million outstanding on the cash management line. The weighted average interest rate of the Credit Facility and the cash management line was 1.61% and 1.35% as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

CRLP intends to use future borrowings under the Credit Facility and the cash management line for general corporate purposes, including, without limitation, the repayment of outstanding indebtedness, the future development of properties, the acquisition of additional properties and other acquisition transactions as suitable opportunities arise, capital expenditures, and redevelopment and/or improvements to certain existing properties.

Senior Unsecured Term Loans

On May 11, 2012, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a term loan agreement with U.S. Bank National Association, as administrative agent and a lender, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as lenders, which provides for a \$150.0 million senior unsecured term loan. As of December 31, 2012, the term loan had an outstanding balance of \$150.0 million. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 1.10% to 2.05% based on the credit ratings on CRLP s unsecured debt from time to time. The Company entered into two interest rate swaps (see *Note 15 Derivatives and Hedging*) to fix the interest rate through maturity at an all-in initial rate of 2.71%, based on an initial margin of 1.60%. The term loan matures on May 11, 2017 and may be prepaid, in whole or in part, at any time, without premium or penalty. The proceeds from the term loan were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility. In connection with this new term loan agreement, the Company amended the 2011 term loan agreement described below, as well as the Company s March 2012 credit agreement, to conform certain defined terms and the language in certain covenants among the three loans and to reflect the new May 2012 term loan.

On July 22, 2011, CRLP, with the Trust as guarantor, entered into a term loan agreement (the Term Loan Agreement) with Wells Fargo, as administrative agent and a lender, and certain other financial institutions party thereto as lenders, for a \$250.0 million senior unsecured term loan. As of December 31, 2012, the term loan had an outstanding balance of \$250.0 million. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 1.65% to 2.90% based on the credit ratings on CRLP s unsecured debt from time to time. The Company entered into two interest rate swaps (see *Note 15 Derivatives and Hedging*) to fix the interest rate through maturity at an all-in initial interest rate of 5.00%, based on the initial margin of 2.45%. During 2012, CRLP s senior unsecured debt rating was upgraded to Baa3, therefore reducing the interest rate to 4.55%. The term loan matures on August 1, 2018 and may be prepaid, in whole or in part, at any time, subject to a prepayment premium of 2% for amounts prepaid on or prior to July 22, 2013 and 1% for amounts prepaid after July 22, 2013 but prior to July 23, 2014. There is no prepayment premium for amounts prepaid after July 22, 2014. The proceeds from the term loan were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility.

Both term loan agreements discussed above contain various restrictive covenants, including with respect to liens, indebtedness, distributions, mergers and asset sales, and also limits the percentage of CRLP s total asset value that may be invested in unimproved land, mortgage receivables, unconsolidated joint ventures, residential units for sale and construction. As described above, the term loan agreements require that CRLP satisfy certain financial and operational covenants. The term loan agreements include certain events of default including, but not limited to, nonpayment of principal, interest, fees or other amounts, failure to perform certain covenants, an event of default under any other indebtedness in the aggregate greater than or equal to \$20.0 million for the term

H-82

loan entered into in June 2011 and greater than or equal to \$25.0 million for the term loan entered into in May 2012, an event of default under the Credit Facility, and bankruptcy or other insolvency events. The occurrence of an event of default, following any applicable cure period, would permit the lenders to, among other things, declare the principal, accrued interest and other obligations of CRLP under the term loan agreements to be immediately due and payable.

Secured and Unsecured Indebtedness

At December 31, 2012, the Company had \$1.1 billion in unsecured indebtedness including balances outstanding under its Credit Facility and certain other notes payable. The remainder of the Company s notes and mortgages payable are collateralized by the assignment of rents and leases of certain properties and assets with an aggregate net book value of approximately \$691.9 million at December 31, 2012.

The aggregate maturities of notes and mortgages payable, including the Company s Credit Facility as of December 31, 2012, were as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	Decer	As of nber 31, 2012
2013	\$	99,504
2014		192,051
2015		223,664
2016 (1)		277,977
2017		150,000
Thereafter		888,796
	\$	1,831,992

(1) Includes \$188.6 million outstanding on the Company s Credit Facility as of December 31, 2012, which matures in March 2016. Collateralized Credit Facilities

In the second quarter of 2010, the Company closed on \$73.2 million of secured financing originated by Berkadia Commercial Mortgage LLC for repurchase by Fannie Mae. The financing has a 10 year term, carries a fixed interest rate of 5.02% and is secured by three multifamily properties. The proceeds from this financing were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s Credit Facility.

Unsecured Senior Notes Repurchases

During 2010, under a note repurchase program approved by the Trust s Board of Trustees in January 2010, CRLP repurchased \$37.7 million of its outstanding unsecured senior notes, at an average discount of 3.5%, representing an average yield-to-maturity of 6.7%. The Company recognized a gain of approximately \$1.0 million in 2010 related to these note repurchases, which is included in *Gains on retirement of debt* on the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP. The gains are presented gross of the loss on hedging activities of \$0.3 million, which loss is the result of a reclassification of amounts in *Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss* in connection with the Company s conclusion that it is probable that the Company will not make interest payments associated with previously hedged debt as a result of these note repurchases. This repurchase program expired on December 31, 2010.

Unsecured Senior Note Maturities

During August 2012, the Company s outstanding 6.875% senior note matured, which the Company satisfied with an aggregate payment of \$82.8 million (\$80.0 million of principal and \$2.8 million of accrued interest) using borrowings under the Company s Credit Facility.

H-83

Table of Contents

During April 2011, the Company s 4.80% senior note matured, which the Company satisfied with a gross payment of \$58.3 million (\$56.9 million of principal and \$1.4 million of accrued interest) using proceeds from the the Company s at-the-market equity offering programs and borrowings under the Credit Facility.

In December 2010, the Company had a \$10.0 million 8.08% medium-term note and a \$10.0 million 8.05% medium-term note mature. Both notes were satisfied by a gross payment of \$20.5 million (\$20.0 million of principal and \$0.5 million of accrued interest), using proceeds from the December 2010 at-the-market equity offering program and borrowings under the Credit Facility.

Unconsolidated Joint Venture Financing Activity

In May 2010, the Company acquired from the lender at par the outstanding construction loan originally obtained by the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint venture, a joint venture in which the Company has a 50% ownership interest. This note, which had an original principal amount of \$34.6 million and matured by its terms in December 2009, had not been repaid and had an outstanding balance of \$28.3 million and an interest rate of one-month LIBOR plus 1.20% as of the date of purchase. The Company and its joint venture partner agreed to several extensions of the maturity date through December 2011. In January 2012, the note and the related loan documents were amended to extend the maturity date to December 2012, fix the interest rate at 5.25%, provide for two additional one-year extension options and reduce the joint venture partner s guarantee to \$1.3 million. In December 2012, the joint venture opted to exercise its second one year option, extending the maturity date to December 2013 with a fixed interest rate of 5.38%. As of December 31, 2012, the note had an outstanding balance of \$24.4 million.

There can be no assurance that the Company s joint ventures will be successful in refinancing and/or replacing existing debt at maturity or otherwise. If the joint ventures are unable to obtain additional financing, payoff the existing loans that are maturing, or renegotiate suitable terms with the existing lenders, the lenders generally would have the right to foreclose on the properties in question and, accordingly, the joint ventures will lose their interests in the assets. The failure to refinance and/or replace such debt and other factors with respect to the Company s joint venture interests may materially adversely impact the value of the Company s joint venture interests, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on the Company s financial condition and results of operations.

Note 15 Derivatives and Hedging

Risk Management Objective and Using Derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations and economic conditions. The Company principally manages its exposures to a wide variety of business and operational risks through management of its core business activities. The Company manages economic risks, including interest rate, liquidity and credit risk primarily by managing the amount, sources and duration of its debt funding and the use of derivative financial instruments. Specifically, the Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage exposures that arise from business activities that result in the receipt or payment of future known and uncertain cash amounts, the value of which is determined by interest rates. The Company s derivative financial instruments are used to manage differences in the amount, timing and duration of the Company s known or expected cash receipts and its known or expected cash payments principally related to the Company s investments and borrowings.

Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

The Company s objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate movements. To accomplish this objective, the Company primarily uses interest rate swaps and caps as part of its interest rate risk management strategy. Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in exchange for the Company

H-84

Table of Contents

making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount. Interest rate caps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty if interest rates rise above the strike rate on the contract in exchange for an upfront premium.

On April 11, 2012, the Company entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$100.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 1.13%, and a maturity date of May 11, 2017. On April 27, 2012, the Company entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$50.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 1.06%, and a maturity date of May 11, 2017. In accordance with these agreements, the Company will pay the fixed rate and receive a variable rate based on one-month LIBOR. These interest rate swap agreements became effective on May 11, 2012 upon the execution of a term loan agreement (see Note 14 Financing Activities Senior Unsecured Term Loans).

On June 3, 2011, the Company entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$200.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 2.58%, and a maturity date of August 1, 2018. On July 12, 2011, the Company entered into a forward starting interest rate swap agreement. This interest rate swap agreement has a notional amount of \$50.0 million, a fixed interest rate of 2.47%, and a maturity date of August 1, 2018. In accordance with these agreements, the Company will pay the fixed rate and receive a variable rate based on one-month LIBOR. These interest rate swap agreements became effective on July 22, 2011 upon the execution of the Term Loan Agreement (see *Note 14 Financing Activities Senior Unsecured Term Loans*).

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges is recorded in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* and is subsequently reclassified into earnings as *Interest expense* as interest payments are made on the Company s variable-rate debt. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the derivatives is recognized directly in earnings as a *Loss on hedging activities*. The Company reclassified no amounts to *Loss on hedging activities* for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company accelerated the reclassification of amounts in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* to *Loss on hedging activities* related to interest payments on the hedged debt were deemed probable not to occur as a result of the repurchases of senior notes of CRLP. The accelerated amount was a loss of \$0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Amounts reported in *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* related to derivatives will be reclassified to *Interest expense* as interest payments are made on the Company s variable-rate debt. Over the next 12 months, the Company expects to reclassify \$7.7 million from *Accumulated other comprehensive loss* as an increase to Interest expense.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had the following outstanding interest rate derivatives that were designated as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk (\$ in thousands):

Interest Rate Derivative	Number of Instruments	Notional Amount
Interest Rate Swaps	4	\$ 400,000

The table below presents the fair value of the Company s derivative financial instruments as well as their classification on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Trust and CRLP as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

	F	Fair Value of Derivative Instruments				
	Asset Derivatives	Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives				
	Balance Fair Va	due at Balance	Fair Va	alue at		
(\$ in thousands)	Sheet Location 12/31/2012 12	2/31/2011 Sheet Location	12/31/2012	12/31/2011		
Interest Rate Swan	Other Assets \$ \$	Other Liabilities	\$ (25.862)	\$ (16,619)		

H-85

The tables below present the effect of the Company s derivative financial instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

		ount of Gain (Lo	,		Amount o	of Gain (Loss) R Reclassified	eclassified
(\$ in thousands)	(E	Derivative ffective Portion	n)			m OCI into Inco Effective Portio	
Derivatives in				Location of Gain (Loss) Reclassified from Accumulated			
ASC 815 Cash		Years Ended		OCI into Income		Years Ended	
Flow Hedging							
Relationships	12/31/2012	12/31/2011	12/31/2010	(Effective Portion)	12/31/2012	12/31/2011	12/31/2010
Interest Rate Swaps	\$ (15,985)	\$ (19,302)	\$	Interest Expense	\$ (7,222)	\$ (3,164)	\$ (437)
				Loss on Hedging Activities			(289)
					\$ (7.222)	\$ (3.164)	\$ (726)

Credit-Risk-Related Contingent Features

The Company has an agreement with its derivatives counterparty that contains a provision whereby if the Company defaults on any of its indebtedness, including default where repayment of the indebtedness has not been accelerated by the lender, then the Company could also be declared in default on its derivative obligations.

As of December 31, 2012 the fair value of the derivatives in a net liability position, which includes accrued interest, but excludes any adjustment for nonperformance risk related to this agreement was \$27.3 million. As of December 31, 2012, the Company has not posted any collateral related to this agreement. If the Company had breached any of its provisions at December 31, 2012, it could have been required to settle its obligations under the agreement at its termination value of \$27.3 million.

Note 16 Share-Based Compensation

Incentive Share Plans

The Board of Trustees of the Trust approved the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan on March 7, 2008 and certain amendments thereto (the Amendments) on March 1, 2011 (as amended, the Omnibus Plan). The 2008 Plan and those Amendments requiring shareholder approval were approved by the Trust s shareholders on April 23, 2008 and April 27, 2011, respectively. The Third Amended and Restated Employee Share Option and Restricted Share Plan (the Prior Plan) expired by its terms in 2008. The Omnibus Plan provides the Trust with the opportunity to grant long-term incentive awards to employees and non-employee trustees, as well independent contractors, as appropriate. The Omnibus Plan authorizes the grant of seven types of share-based awards—share options, restricted shares, unrestricted shares, share units, share appreciation rights, performance shares and performance units. At December 31, 2012, 4,415,964 shares were available for issuance under the Omnibus Plan.

In connection with the grant of options under the Omnibus Plan, the Executive Compensation Committee of the Board of Trustees determines the option exercise period and any vesting requirements. All outstanding options granted under the Omnibus Plan prior to April 27, 2011 and under the Prior Plan have a term of ten years. All outstanding options granted under the Omnibus Plan since April 27, 2011 have a term of seven years. All options and restricted shares vest over periods ranging from one to five years.

H-86

Compensation costs for share options have been valued on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing method. The weighted average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model were as follows:

	Years E	Years Ended December 31,		
	2012	2011	2010	
Dividend yield	3.11%	3.94%	8.41%	
Expected volatility	65.37%	64.14%	83.83%	
Risk-free interest rate	1.08%	2.23%	1.71%	
Expected option term (years)	5.8	5.8	3.1	

For this calculation, the expected dividend yield reflects the Trust s historical yield. Expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of the Trust s common shares. The risk-free interest rate for the expected life of the options was based on the implied yields on the U.S Treasury yield curve. The weighted average expected option term was based on the Trust s historical data for prior period share option exercises and forfeiture activity.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Trust granted share options to purchase 251,495 common shares to the Company s employees and trustees. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized compensation expense related to share options of \$2.8 million (\$0.2 million of compensation expense related to share options was accelerated due to the Company s restructuring), \$1.8 million and \$1.0 million, respectively. Upon the exercise of share options, the Trust issues common shares from authorized but unissued common shares. Total cash proceeds from exercise of stock options were \$0.8 million, \$0.7 million and \$2.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The following table presents a summary of share option activity under all plans for the year ended December 31, 2012:

	Options Outstanding		
		Weight	ed Average
	Shares	Exer	cise Price
Options outstanding, beginning of period	2,008,632	\$	19.76
Granted	251,495		20.98
Exercised	(52,317)		14.74
Forfeited	(297,369)		23.20
Options outstanding, end of period	1,910,441	\$	19.52

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted in 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$9.52 per share, \$8.13 per share and \$4.19 per share, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$0.3 million, \$0.3 million and \$0.4 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, the Trust had approximately 1.9 million share options outstanding with a weighted average exercise price of \$19.52 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.5 years. The intrinsic value for the share options outstanding as of December 31, 2012 was \$7.5 million. The total number of exercisable options at December 31, 2012 was approximately 0.7 million. As of December 31, 2012, the weighted average exercise price of exercisable options was \$25.75 and the weighted average remaining contractual life was 2.8 years for these exercisable options. The intrinsic value for the share options exercisable as of December 31, 2012 was \$0.6 million. As of December 31, 2012, the total number of options expected to vest is approximately 1.1 million. The weighted average exercise price of options expected to vest is \$15.50 and the weighted average remaining contractual life is 7.1 years. The options expected to vest have an aggregate intrinsic value at December 31, 2012 of \$6.8 million. At December 31, 2012, there was \$2.4 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested share options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years.

H-87

The following table presents the change in nonvested restricted share awards:

	Year Ended December 31, 2012	Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value	
Nonvested Restricted Shares, December 31, 2011	634,170	\$	15.95
Granted	389,550		20.73
Vested	(299,260)		16.68
Cancelled/Forfeited	(25,778)		17.06
Nonvested Restricted Shares, December 31, 2012	698,682	\$	18.26

The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted share awards issued during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$20.73, \$19.18 and \$11.29, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized compensation expense related to restricted share awards was accelerated and \$0.1 million was reversed due to the Company s restructuring), \$4.2 million and \$3.6 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company separately capitalized \$0.3 million, \$0.5 million and \$0.1 million, respectively, for restricted share awards granted in connection with certain real estate developments. The total fair value for restricted share awards that vested during 2012, 2011 and 2010 was \$5.0 million, \$8.1 million and \$1.2 million, respectively. At December 31, 2012, the unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted share awards is \$7.1 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.6 years.

Employee Share Purchase Plan

The Company maintains an Employee Share Purchase Plan (the Purchase Plan). The Purchase Plan permits eligible employees of the Company, through payroll deductions, to purchase common shares at market price. The Purchase Plan has no limit on the number of common shares that may be issued under the plan. The Trust issued 3,568, 3,943 and 6,293 common shares pursuant to the Purchase Plan during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Note 17 Income Taxes

The Trust, which is considered a corporation for federal income tax purposes, has elected to be taxed and qualifies to be taxed as a REIT and generally will not be subject to federal income tax to the extent it distributes its REIT taxable income to its shareholders. REITs are subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements. If the Trust fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, it will be subject to federal income tax on its taxable income at regular corporate rates and may not be able to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent taxable years. The Trust may also be subject to certain federal, state and local taxes on its income and property and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed taxable income even if it does qualify as a REIT. For example, the Trust will be subject to income tax to the extent it distributes less than 100% of its REIT taxable income (including capital gains) and the Trust has certain gains that, if recognized, will be subject to corporate tax because it acquired the assets in tax-free acquisitions of non-REIT corporations.

In the preparation of income tax returns in federal and state jurisdictions, the Company and its taxable REIT subsidiary assert certain tax positions based on their understanding and interpretation of the income tax law. The taxing authorities may challenge such positions, and the resolution of such matters could result in additional income tax expense, interest or penalties. Although any such assessments historically have been minimal and immaterial to the Company s financial results, when the Company has received an assessment for interest and/or penalties, it has been classified in the financial statements as income tax expense. Management believes it has used reasonable judgments and conclusions in the preparation of its income tax returns.

H-88

Taxable REIT Subsidiary

The Company s consolidated financial statements include the operations of a taxable REIT subsidiary, CPSI, which is not entitled to a dividends paid deduction and is subject to federal, state and local income taxes. CPSI uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities result from temporary differences. Temporary differences are differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in future periods. CPSI provides property development, construction services, leasing and management services for joint venture and third-party owned properties and administrative services to the Company and engages in for-sale development activity. The Company generally reimburses CPSI for payroll and other costs incurred in providing services to the Company. All inter-company transactions are eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, CPSI recognized no income tax expense/(benefit). Significant deferred tax assets and liabilities and a reconciliation of CPSI s income tax expense to the statutory federal rate are reflected in the tables below.

The components of CPSI s deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

	Years Ended December 31,	
(\$ in thousands)	2012	2011
Deferred tax assets:		
Real estate asset basis differences	\$ 6,099	\$ 270
Impairments	11,875	11,944
Deferred revenue	1,008	1,116
Deferred expenses	16,846	14,863
Net operating loss carryforward	15,979	14,298
Accrued liabilities	6,012	2,297
	57,819	44,788
Deferred tax liabilities:		
Real estate asset basis differences		
Net deferred tax assets, before valuation allowance	57,819	44,788
Valuation allowance	(57,819)	(44,788)
Net deferred tax assets, included in other assets	\$	\$

Reconciliations of the effective tax rates of CPSI to the federal statutory rate are detailed below.

	Years Ended December 31,		
	2012	2011	2010
Federal tax rate	35.00%	35.00%	35.00%
Valuation reserve	(34.99)%	(34.99)%	(34.99)%
State income tax, net of federal income tax benefit			
Other	(0.01)%	(0.01)%	(0.01)%
CPSI provision for income taxes	%	%	%

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, other expenses include estimated state franchise and other taxes, including franchise taxes in North Carolina and Tennessee and the margin-based tax in Texas.

Tax years 2005 through 2007 and tax years 2009 through 2011 are subject to examination by the federal taxing authorities. Generally, tax years 2009 through 2011 are subject to examination by state taxing authorities. There are no state tax examinations currently in process.

H-89

On November 6, 2009, the Worker, Homeownership and Business Assistance Act of 2009 was signed into law, which expanded the net operating loss (NOL) carryback rules to allow businesses to carryback NOLs incurred in either 2008 or 2009 up to five years. As a result of the new legislation, CPSI was able to carry back tax losses that occurred in the year ended December 31, 2009 against income that was recognized in 2005 and 2006. The Company received no tax refunds during 2012. The Company received \$0.7 million of tax refunds during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Note 18 Leasing Operations

The Company s business includes leasing and management of multifamily and commercial properties. For commercial properties owned by the Company, minimum rentals due in future periods under noncancelable operating leases extending beyond one year are as follows:

(\$ in thousands)	Dec	As of cember 31,
2013	\$	26,950
2014		26,211
2015		23,924
2016		21,983
2017		19,263
Thereafter		91,874
	\$	210,205(1)

(1) Due to the sale of Metropolitan Midtown on February 1, 2013 (see Note 22 Subsequent Events), all associated retail and office operating leases have been excluded.

The noncancelable leases are with tenants engaged in commercial operations in Alabama, Georgia, Louisiana and North Carolina. Performance in accordance with the lease terms is in part dependent upon the economic conditions of the respective areas. No additional credit risk exposure relating to the leasing arrangements exists beyond the accounts receivable amounts shown in the December 31, 2012 balance sheet. However, financial difficulties of tenants could impact their ability to make lease payments on a timely basis which could result in actual lease payments being less than amounts shown above. Leases with residents in multifamily properties are generally for one year or less and are thus excluded from the above table. Substantially all of the Company s land, buildings, and equipment represent property leased under the above and other short-term leasing arrangements.

Rental income from continuing operations for 2012, 2011 and 2010 includes percentage rent of \$0.3 million, \$0.3 million and \$0.5 million, respectively. This rental income was earned when certain retail tenants attained sales volumes specified in their respective lease agreements.

Note 19 Contingencies, Guarantees and Other Arrangements

Contingencies

As a result of transactions executed in 2007, the Company implemented a strategic initiative to become a multifamily focused REIT, which included two significant joint venture transactions whereby the majority of the Company s wholly-owned commercial properties were transferred into separate joint ventures. In December 2009, the Company disposed of its interest in one of these joint ventures. In connection with the other 2007 joint venture transaction, the DRA/CLP joint venture, the Trust assumed certain contingent liabilities, of which \$4.1 million remained outstanding until the Company s remaining 15% noncontrolling interest was redeemed by the joint venture effective June 30, 2012, and in connection therewith the Company was released from this contingent liability. The liabilities were the direct obligation of the Trust and thus, prior to the redemption of its interest, were not reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of CRLP as of December 31, 2011. See *Note 13 Investment in Partially-Owned Entities* for more detail regarding this transaction.

Table of Contents

During 2012, the Company recorded \$4.2 million related to required infrastructure repairs on Colonial Promenade Alabaster II. During 2010, the Company recorded \$1.3 million for certain contingent liabilities related to the mitigation of structural settlement at Colonial Promenade Alabaster II and additional infrastructure cost at Colonial Promenade Fultondale. Both of these retail assets were developed and sold by CPSI in previous years, and therefore are expensed as additional development costs in (Loss) gain on sale of property in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) of the Trust and CRLP.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company is self-insured up to \$0.8 million, \$0.9 million and \$1.8 million for general liability, workers compensation and property insurance, respectively. The Company is also self-insured for health insurance and responsible for amounts up to \$135,000 per claim and up to \$2.0 million per person.

Guarantees and Other Arrangements

In connection with the formation of Highway 150 LLC in 2002, the Company executed a guarantee, pursuant to which the Company served as a guarantor of \$1.0 million of the debt related to the joint venture, which was collateralized by the Colonial Promenade Hoover retail property. At December 31, 2012, the total amount of debt of the joint venture, which matured on January 11, 2013, was approximately \$15.1 million. As of December 31, 2012, no liability was recorded for the guarantee. Subsequently, on January 14, 2013, the Company sold its 10% noncontrolling interest in this joint venture and paid off the debt associated with this guarantee. Therefore, the Company is no longer liable for this guarantee. See *Note 22* Subsequent Events for additional details regarding this transaction.

In connection with certain retail developments, the Company has received funding from municipalities for infrastructure costs. In most cases, the municipalities issue bonds that are repaid primarily from sales tax revenues generated from the tenants at each respective development. The Company previously guaranteed the shortfall, if any, of tax revenues to the debt service requirements on the bonds issued for the Colonial Promenade Tannehill development. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had satisfied the minimum debt service coverage ratio necessary to cancel the guarantee and, in February 2012, received confirmation of the cancellation from the bondholders.

Note 20 Legal Proceedings

Colonial Grand at Traditions Litigation

As previously disclosed, in early 2007, CRLP and SM Traditions Associates, LLC (SM) entered into a joint venture to develop the Colonial Grand at Traditions located in Gulf Shores, Alabama. CRLP and SM formed TA-Colonial Traditions LLC (the Joint Venture), in which CRLP owns a 35% interest and SM owns a 65% interest. In April 2007, the Joint Venture entered into a construction loan agreement for \$34.1 million with Regions Bank (Regions). The Trust and SM each guaranteed up to \$3.5 million of the principal amount of the loan, for an aggregate of up to \$7.0 million. The construction loan, which had a balance of \$35.5 million as of June 17, 2011 (including accrued interest), matured by its terms on April 15, 2010. In October 2010, Regions, as the lender, filed a complaint in the Circuit Court of Baldwin County, Alabama seeking appointment of a receiver for the Colonial Grand at Traditions, demanding payment of the outstanding balance under the loan from the Joint Venture and demanding payment on the guarantees from each of the guarantors, including the Trust, together with outstanding interest and other charges on the loan.

On or about December 13, 2010, MTGLQ Investors, L.P. (MTGLQ) purchased the construction loan from Regions. MTGLQ subsequently transferred all of its interest in the construction loan to MLQ-ELD, L.L.C. (MLQ). MLQ initiated foreclosure proceedings with respect to the property in January 2011. Pursuant to an order of the Court entered on May 17, 2011, MLQ was also substituted for Regions with respect to the claims of Regions against the Joint Venture and the guarantors. On June 17, 2011, the Company purchased the outstanding note and related loan documents from MLQ for \$21.1 million. The Company was substituted as the plaintiff in the action and the claims originally asserted by Regions against the Trust on the guarantee were dismissed. On August 1, 2011, CRLP acquired the Joint Venture s property through foreclosure.

H-91

Separately, in December 2010, SM and the Joint Venture (together, the JV Parties) filed cross-claims in the Circuit Court of Baldwin County, Alabama against CRLP, the Trust, CPSI and Colonial Construction Services, LLC (collectively, the Colonial Parties), in connection with the development and management of the Colonial Grand at Traditions by the Colonial Parties. The JV Parties asserted several claims relating to the Colonial Parties oversight and involvement in the development and construction of the property, including breach of management and development agreements, material misrepresentation, fraudulent concealment and breach of fiduciary duty. The JV Parties also asserted that the Colonial Parties conspired with Regions in connection with the activities alleged; however, in July 2012, the Court dismissed the conspiracy claims. The JV Parties have made a demand for an accounting of the costs of development and construction and claim damages of at least \$13.0 million, plus an unspecified amount of attorney s fees.

On February 1, 2013, a Baldwin County, Alabama jury awarded SM \$6.7 million in compensatory damages (\$5.0 million for its original investment plus \$1.7 million interest) and \$6.0 million in punitive damages for a total of \$12.7 million. The jury returned a verdict in favor of SM with respect to the Colonial Parties claims relating to the guaranty agreement it gave to Regions and in favor of the Joint Venture with respect to the Colonial Parties claims relating to the construction loan purchased by the Company. The Company believes the verdicts should be vacated or a new trial ordered, and intends to pursue all available post-trial remedies. However, the Company cannot give any assurance as to the outcome of these efforts. As a result of the jury verdict, the Company recorded an increase to its loss contingency reserve of \$12.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2012. The Company has included in its loss contingency an estimate of probable loss in connection with this matter, but currently cannot reasonably estimate any further possible loss, or any range of reasonably possible loss, in connection with this matter.

Mira Vista at James Island Litigation

As previously disclosed, the Trust and CRLP, along with multiple other parties, are named defendants in lawsuits arising out of alleged construction deficiencies with respect to condominium units at Mira Vista at James Island in Charleston, South Carolina. Mira Vista was acquired by certain of the Company s subsidiaries after the units were constructed and operated as a multifamily rental project. The condominium conversion occurred in 2006 and all 230 units were sold. The lawsuits, one filed on behalf of the condominium homeowners association and one filed by one of the purchasers (purportedly on behalf of all purchasers), were filed in the South Carolina state court, Charleston County, in March 2010, against various parties involved in the development, construction and conversion of the Mira Vista at James Island property, including the contractors, subcontractors, architects, engineers, lenders, the developer, inspectors, product manufacturers and distributors. The plaintiffs are seeking \$41.0 million in damages resulting from, among other things, alleged construction deficiencies and misleading sales practices. The lawsuits are currently in discovery. The Company is continuing to investigate the matter and evaluate its options and intends to vigorously defend itself against these claims. No assurance can be given that the matter will be resolved favorably to the Company. The Company has included in its loss contingency an estimate of probable loss in connection with this matter, but currently cannot reasonably estimate any further possible loss, or any range of reasonably possible loss, in connection with this matter.

UCO Litigation

The Company is involved in a contract dispute with a general contractor and three of its officers/managers in connection with construction cost overruns with respect to five for-sale projects which were being developed in a joint venture, CPSI-UCO, LLC. The President of the contractor is affiliated with the Company s joint venture partner.

In connection with the dispute, in January 2008, the contractor and three managers filed a lawsuit in the Circuit Court of Baldwin County against the Trust, CPSI, CPSI-UCO, LLC, CPSI-UCO Grander, LLC, CPSI-UCO Spanish Oaks, LLC; CPSI-UCO Cypress Village II, LLC; CPSI-UCO Cypress Village II, and CPSI Cypress Village III, LLC alleging, among other things, breach of contract, enforcement of a lien against real property,

H-92

misrepresentation, conversion, declaratory judgment and an accounting of costs, seeking \$10.3 million in damages, plus consequential and punitive damages. In December 2011, following a jury trial, the plaintiffs were awarded compensatory damages of approximately \$4.8 million for their claims against all defendants and the defendants were awarded compensatory damages of approximately \$0.5 million for their claims against the President of the contractor. The jury also found that the contractor breached its contract. In January 2012, the plaintiffs filed post-trial motions, including a request for an amendment to the judgment to add approximately \$4.8 million for attorneys fees, interest and costs. The defendants filed a motion for a new trial and opposed the award of attorney s fees to the plaintiffs. In the fourth quarter 2012, the Company recorded charges of \$8.2 million related to a proposed settlement with respect to the UCO litigation. The charges are comprised of an increase in the loss contingency accrual of \$4.9 million (in addition to the \$3.3 million loss contingency accrual previously recorded with respect to this litigation matter in the fourth quarter 2011) and a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge on certain for-sale residential lots in the Cypress Village development proposed to be included as part of the settlement. The loss contingency accrual and impairment are reflected in *Impairment*, *Legal Contingencies and Other Losses* on the Company s Consolidated Statement of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income (Loss). Settlement negotiations between the parties involving the settlement, including transfer of these tracts of land, are continuing. However, no assurance can be given that the such settlement discussions will be successful, that this matter will be resolved in the Company s favor or that additional charges will not be taken in future periods.

Grander Litigation

The Trust, CPSI, Marion Uter, UCO Partners, LLC, UCO Development, LLC, UCO Construction, LLC, UCO, LLC, CPSI-UCO Grander, LLC, and CPSI-UCO, LLC (collectively, the Colonial Entities) were sued by five individual purchasers of condominium units in The Grander alleging breach of contract, fraud, construction deficiencies and misleading sales practices. In April 2011, an arbitrator awarded rescission rights in favor of the purchasers against CPSI-UCO Grander, LLC. The Company is pursuing post-arbitration appeals, but no prediction of the likelihood or the amount of any resulting loss or recovery can be made at this time, and no assurance can be given that the matter will be resolved favorably. The Company has included in its loss contingency an estimate of probable loss in connection with this matter, but currently cannot reasonably estimate any further possible loss, or any range of reasonably possible loss, in connection with this matter.

Loss Contingencies

The outcomes of the claims, disputes and legal proceedings described or referenced above are subject to significant uncertainty. The Company records an accrual for loss contingencies when a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company reviews these accruals quarterly and makes revisions based on changes in facts and circumstances. When a loss contingency is not both probable and reasonably estimable, the Company does not accrue the loss. However, if the loss (or an additional loss in excess of the accrual) is at least a reasonable possibility and material, then the Company discloses a reasonable estimate of the possible loss, or range of loss, if such reasonable estimate can be made. If the Company cannot make a reasonable estimate of the possible loss, or range of loss, then that is disclosed.

The assessment of whether a loss is probable or a reasonable possibility, and whether the loss or range of loss is reasonably estimable, often involve a series of complex judgments about future events. Among the factors that the Company considers in this assessment, including with respect to the matters disclosed in this Note 20, are the nature of existing legal proceedings and claims, the asserted or possible damages or loss contingency (if reasonably estimable), the progress of the matter, existing law and precedent, the opinions or views of legal counsel and other advisers, the Company s experience in similar matters, the facts available to the Company at the time of assessment, and how the Company intends to respond, or has responded, to the proceeding or claim. The Company s assessment of these factors may change over time as individual proceedings or claims progress. For matters where the Company is not currently able to reasonably estimate a range of reasonably possible loss, the factors that have contributed to this determination include the following: (i) the damages sought are

H-93

indeterminate, (ii) the proceedings are in the early stages, (iii) the matters involve novel or unsettled legal theories or a large or uncertain number of actual or potential cases or parties, and/or (iv) discussions with the parties in matters that are expected ultimately to be resolved through negotiation and settlement have not reached the point where the Company believes a reasonable estimate of loss, or range of loss, can be made. In such instances, the Company believes that there is considerable uncertainty regarding the timing or ultimate resolution of such matters, including a possible eventual loss or business impact, if any.

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Company s accrual for loss contingencies was \$26.8 million and \$8.8 million in the aggregate, respectively.

Note 21 Related Party Transactions

The Company has implemented a specific procedure for reviewing and approving related party construction activities. The Company historically has used Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC, a commercial construction company controlled by Mr. M. Miller Gorrie (a trustee of the Company), to manage and oversee certain of its development, redevelopment and expansion projects. This construction company is headquartered in Alabama and has completed numerous projects within the Sunbelt region of the United States. Through the use of market survey data and in-house development expertise, the Company negotiates the fees and contract prices of each development, redevelopment or expansion project with this company in compliance with the Company s Policy on Hiring Architects, Contractors, Engineers, and Consultants , which policy was developed to allow the selection of certain preferred vendors that have demonstrated an ability to consistently deliver a quality product at a competitive price and in a timely manner. Additionally, this company outsources all significant subcontractor work through a competitive bid process. Upon approval by the Management Committee, the Management Committee (a non-board level committee composed of various members of management of the Company) presents each project to the independent members of the Investment Committee (or, prior to April 2011, the Executive Committee) for final approval.

The Company paid \$8.0 million, \$4.1 million and \$13.7 million for property construction and tenant improvement costs to Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. In addition, the Company had \$1.6 million, \$2.4 million and \$1.9 million in outstanding construction invoices or retainage payable to this construction company at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Of these amounts, \$6.9 million, \$4.5 million and \$13.1 million were then paid to unaffiliated subcontractors for the construction of these development projects during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Mr. Gorrie has a 2.35% economic interest in Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC. These transactions were unanimously approved by the independent members of the Investment Committee or the Executive Committee, as applicable, consistent with the procedure described above.

The Company also leases space to Brasfield & Gorrie, LLC, pursuant to a lease originally entered into in 2003. The original lease, which ran through October 31, 2008, was amended in 2007 to extend the term of the lease through October 31, 2013. The underlying property was contributed to a joint venture during 2007 in which the Company retained a 15% noncontrolling interest. Effective June 30, 2012, the Company sold its 15% noncontrolling interest in the underlying property. The aggregate amount of rent paid in 2012 through the date of disposition was approximately \$0.4 million. During 2011 and 2010, the aggregate amount of rent paid was \$0.7 million and \$0.6 million, respectively.

Since 1993, Colonial Insurance Agency, a corporation wholly-owned by The Colonial Company (in which Thomas Lowder and James Lowder each has a 50% ownership interest), has provided insurance risk management, administration and brokerage services for the Company. As part of this service, the Company placed insurance coverage with unaffiliated insurance brokers and agents, including Willis of Alabama and Colonial Insurance Agency, through a competitive bidding process. The premiums paid to these unaffiliated insurance brokers and agents (as they deducted their commissions prior to paying the carriers) totaled \$7.2 million, \$5.9 million and \$5.8 million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The aggregate amounts paid by the

H-94

Table of Contents

Company to Colonial Insurance Agency, Inc., either directly or indirectly, for these services during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were \$0.6 million. The aggregate amounts paid by the Company to Colonial Insurance Agency, Inc., either directly or indirectly during 2010 were \$0.7 million. In addition, in 2010, the Company entered into an arrangement with an insurance carrier to advertise for its renter s insurance program at the Company s multifamily apartment communities. Pursuant to this arrangement, Colonial Insurance Agency, which serves as the insurance carrier s broker, paid the Company \$0.3 million in 2012 and 2011, in advertising fees. In 2010 the Company was paid \$0.2 million in advertising fees. Neither Mr. T. Lowder nor Mr. J. Lowder has an interest in these premiums.

Other than a specific procedure for reviewing and approving related party construction activities, the Company has not adopted a formal policy for the review and approval of related persons transactions generally. Pursuant to its charter, our audit committee reviews and discusses with management any such transaction if deemed material and relevant to an understanding of the Company s financial statements. Our policies and practices may not be successful in eliminating the influence of conflicts.

Note 22 Subsequent Events

Dispositions

On February 1, 2013, the Company sold Metropolitan Midtown, a commercial asset located in Charlotte, North Carolina, comprised of 170,000 square-feet of office space and 172,000 square-feet of retail space, for an aggregate sales price of \$94.4 million. The Company intends to use the proceeds from the sale to fund the multifamily development pipeline and to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s unsecured credit facility.

On January 14, 2013, the Company sold its 10% noncontrolling interest in Colonial Promenade Hoover (Highway 150, LLC), a 172,000 square-foot (excluding anchor-owned square feet) retail asset located in Birmingham, Alabama. The Company received \$0.5 million in cash and was released from its pro-rata share of the mortgage debt, which was \$1.5 million. The remaining proceeds from the sale were used to repay a portion of the outstanding balance on the Company s unsecured credit facility.

Distributions

On January 23, 2013, a cash distribution was declared to shareholders of the Trust in the amount of \$0.21 per common share and to partners of CRLP in the amount of \$0.21 per common unit, totaling approximately \$20.1 million. The \$0.21 per common share and per common unit distribution represents a 16.7% increase (\$0.03 per share/unit) when compared to the previous distribution. The distributions were declared to shareholders and partners of record as of February 4, 2013 and was paid on February 11, 2013.

H-95

Note 23 Quarterly Financial Information for the Trust (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. The information provided herein has been reclassified in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, and adjusted to reflect ASC 260, Earnings per Share, for all periods presented.

2012
(in thousands, except per share data)

	First Quarter	Second Quarter	Third Quarter	Fourth Quarter
Revenues	\$ 88,072	\$ 90,524	\$ 93,145	\$ 97,106
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(9,155)	12,201	(7,926)	(21,031)
Income from discontinued operations	3,181	4,176	1,476	25,238
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders	\$ (5,974)	\$ 16,377	\$ (6,450)	\$ 4,207
Net (loss) income per share:	Φ (0.07)	Φ 0.10	Φ. (0.00)	Φ 0.07
Basic	\$ (0.07)	\$ 0.19	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.05
Diluted	\$ (0.07)	\$ 0.19	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.05
Weighted average common shares outstanding:				
Basic	87,012	87,201	87,325	87,454
Diluted	87,012	87,490	87,325	87,454

The increase in Revenues from quarter to quarter is attributable to the acquisition of five multifamily apartment communities during 2012 (one property in the first quarter, one property in the second quarter and three properties in the fourth quarter). In addition, the Company completed the development of two multifamily apartment communities during 2012.

In the second quarter 2012, the increase in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to the \$21.9 million gain that the Company recognized when it redeemed its 15% noncontrolling interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture.

In the third quarter of 2012, Income from discontinued operations includes a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge recorded on a commercial asset.

H-96

In the fourth quarter 2012, the decrease in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to \$17.6 million in charges for loss contingencies related to certain ongoing litigation, \$4.2 million related to required infrastructure repairs on Colonial Promenade Alabaster and \$3.3 million of non-cash impairment charges recorded on certain for-sale residential lots. These charges were partially offset by the \$7.4 million gain recognized on the disposition of the Company s 10% noncontrolling interest in the Bluerock office portfolio and the \$2.8 million gain recognized on the Company s purchase of Colonial Grand at Research Park. The increase in Income from discontinued operations for the fourth quarter 2012 is attributable to gains recognized on the disposition of four multifamily apartment communities and one commercial asset.

2011
(in thousands, except per share data)

(in thousands, except pe				
	First	Second	Third	Fourth
	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter
Revenues	\$ 77,517	\$ 81,462	\$ 83,939	\$ 86,708
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(14,128)	(9,580)	(12,537)	4,784
Income from discontinued operations	2,517	3,143	24,924	3,124
Net (loss) income attributable to parent company	(11,611)	(6,437)	12,387	7,908
Preferred unit repurchase gains				2,500
Preferred unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders	\$ (11,611)	\$ (6,437)	\$ 12,387	\$ 9,089
Net (loss) income per share:				
Basic	\$ (0.15)	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.10
Diluted	\$ (0.15)	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.10
Weighted average common shares outstanding:				
Basic	79,512	83,588	86,573	86,769
Diluted	79,512	83,588	86,573	87,010

The increase in Revenues from quarter to quarter is attributable to the acquisition of eight multifamily apartment communities during 2011 (three properties in the first quarter, one property in the second quarter, three properties in the third quarter and one property in the fourth quarter).

The increase in Income from discontinued operations for the third quarter 2011 is attributable to gains recognized on the disposition of six multifamily apartment communities.

In the fourth quarter 2011, the increase in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to the \$18.8 million gain that the Company recognized on the sale of its 50% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Pinnacle at Turkey Creek.

H-97

Note 24 Quarterly Financial Information for CRLP (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. The information provided herein has been reclassified in accordance with ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, and adjusted to reflect ASC 260, Earnings per Unit, for all periods presented.

2012
(in thousands, except per unit data)

(in thousands, except)	per unit aata)			
	First	Second	Third	Fourth
	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter
Revenues	\$ 88,072	\$ 90,524	\$ 93,145	\$ 97,106
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(9,902)	9,050	(8,575)	(22,736)
Income from discontinued operations	3,440	4,516	1,602	27,283
Net (loss) income available to common unitholders	\$ (6,462)	\$ 13,566	\$ (6,973)	\$ 4,547
Net (loss) income per unit:				
Basic	\$ (0.07)	\$ 0.15	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.05
Diluted	\$ (0.07)	\$ 0.15	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.05
Weighted average common units outstanding:				
Basic	94,181	94,363	94,478	94,607
Diluted	94,181	94,652	94,478	94,607

The increase in Revenues from quarter to quarter is attributable to the acquisition of five multifamily apartment communities during 2012 (one property in the first quarter, one property in the second quarter and three properties in the fourth quarter). In addition, the Company completed the development of two multifamily apartment communities during 2012.

In the second quarter 2012, the increase in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to the \$21.9 million gain that the Company recognized when it redeemed its 15% noncontrolling interest in the DRA/CLP joint venture.

In the third quarter of 2012, Income from discontinued operations includes a \$3.3 million non-cash impairment charge recorded on a commercial asset.

H-98

In the fourth quarter 2012, the decrease in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to \$17.6 million in charges for loss contingencies related to certain ongoing litigation, \$4.2 million related to required infrastructure repairs on Colonial Promenade Alabaster and \$3.3 million of non-cash impairment charges recorded on certain for-sale residential lots. These charges were partially offset by the \$7.4 million gain recognized on the disposition of the Company s 10% noncontrolling interest in the Bluerock office portfolio and the \$2.8 million gain recognized on the Company s purchase of Colonial Grand at Research Park. The increase in Income from discontinued operations for the fourth quarter 2012 is attributable to gains recognized on the disposition of four multifamily apartment communities and one commercial asset.

2011

(in thousands, except po	er unit data)			
	First	Second	Third	Fourth
	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter
Revenues	\$ 77,517	\$ 81,462	\$ 83,939	\$ 86,708
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(14,504)	(9,498)	(12,605)	6,142
Income from discontinued operations	2,745	3,413	27,051	3,381
Net (loss) income attributable to CRLP	(11,759)	(6,085)	14,446	9,523
Net (1085) income attributable to CREI	(11,739)	(0,003)	14,440	9,323
Distributions to preferred unitholders	(906)	(906)	(906)	(867)
Preferred unit repurchase gains				2,500
Preferred unit issuance costs write-off				(1,319)
Net (loss) income available to common unitholders	\$ (12,665)	\$ (6,991)	\$ 13,540	\$ 9,837
Net (loss) income per unit:				
Basic	\$ (0.15)	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.10
Diluted	\$ (0.15)	\$ (0.08)	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.10
Weighted average common units outstanding:				
Basic	86,796	90,847	93,826	93,960
Diluted	86,796	90,847	93,826	94,201

The increase in Revenues from quarter to quarter is attributable to the acquisition of eight multifamily apartment communities during 2011 (three properties in the first quarter, one property in the second quarter, three properties in the third quarter and one property in the fourth quarter).

The increase in Income from discontinued operations for the third quarter 2011 is attributable to gains recognized on the disposition of six multifamily apartment communities.

In the fourth quarter 2011, the increase in (Loss) income from continuing operations is primarily attributable to the \$18.8 million gain that the Company recognized on the sale of its 50% noncontrolling joint venture interest in Colonial Pinnacle at Turkey Creek.

H-99

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Trustees and Shareholders of Colonial Properties Trust

Birmingham, Alabama

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Colonial Properties Trust and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), shareholders equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012. Our audits also included the financial statement schedules as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Colonial Properties Trust and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on the criteria established in *Internal Control-Integrated Framework* issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 28, 2013 (not presented herein) expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Birmingham, Alabama

February 28, 2013, except for changes in items reflected in discontinued operations discussed in Note 3, as to which the date is August 21, 2013

H-100

Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Trustees of Colonial Properties Trust and Partners of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership Birmingham, Alabama

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012. Our audits also included the financial statement schedules as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Colonial Realty Limited Partnership and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Birmingham, Alabama

February 28, 2013, except for changes in items reflected in discontinued operations discussed in Note 3, as to which the date is August 21, 2013

H-101

Annex I

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

X QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 For the quarterly period ended: June 30, 2013

or

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from_______ to ______

Commission File Number:

1-12358 (Colonial Properties Trust)

0-20707 (Colonial Realty Limited Partnership)

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Alabama (Colonial Properties Trust)

Delaware (Colonial Realty Limited Partnership)

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

59-7007599 63-1098468 (IRS Employer Identification Number)

2101 Sixth Avenue North, Suite 750, Birmingham, Alabama 35203

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

(205) 250-8700

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Not applicable

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Colonial Properties Trust YES x NO Colonial Realty Limited Partnership YES x NO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Colonial Properties Trust YES x NO Colonial Realty Limited Partnership YES x NO COLONIAL REALTY STREET, NO COLONIAL REALTY STREET

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Colonial Properties Trust

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer "

Non-accelerated filer " (Do not check if smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company "

Colonial Realty Limited Partnership

Large accelerated filer " Accelerated filer "

Non-accelerated filer x (Do not check if smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Colonial Properties Trust YES " NO x Colonial Realty Limited Partnership YES " NO x

As of August 6, 2013, Colonial Properties Trust had 88,828,272 Common Shares of Beneficial Interest outstanding.

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

INDEX TO FORM 10-Q

	Page
PART I: FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1. Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements:	
Colonial Properties Trust	
Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and December 31, 2012 (audited)	I-3
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Three and Six Months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 (unaudited)	I-4
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the Six Months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 (unaudited)	I-5
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the Six Months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 (unaudited)	I-6
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership	
Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and December 31, 2012 (audited)	I-7
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Three and Six Months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 (unaudited)	I-8
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the Six Months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 (unaudited)	I-9
Consolidated Statements of Partners Equity for the Six Months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 (unaudited)	I-10
Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements (unaudited)	I-11
Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	I-34
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	I-54
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	I-54
PART II: OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	I-55
Item 1A. Risk Factors	I-55
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	I-57
Item 6. Exhibits	I-58
SIGNATURES	I-59
EXHIBIT INDEX	I-60

Explanatory Note

This report combines the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 of Colonial Properties Trust and Colonial Realty Limited Partnership. References to the Trust or Colonial mean to Colonial Properties Trust, an Alabama real estate investment trust (REIT), and its consolidated subsidiaries, and references to CRLP mean Colonial Realty Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, and its consolidated subsidiaries. The term the Company refers to the Trust and CRLP, collectively.

The Trust is the sole general partner of, and, as of June 30, 2013, owned a 92.5% limited partner interest in, CRLP. The remaining limited partner interests are held by persons (including certain officers and trustees of the Trust) who, at the time of the Trust s initial public offering, elected to hold all or a portion of their interest in the form of units rather than receiving common shares of the Trust, or individuals from whom CRLP acquired certain properties and who received units in exchange for such properties. The Trust conducts all of its business and owns all of its properties through CRLP and CRLP s various subsidiaries and, as the sole general partner of CRLP, is vested with managerial control and authority over the business and affairs of CRLP.

The Company believes combining the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q of the Trust and CRLP, including the notes to the consolidated condensed financial statements, into this single report results in the following benefits:

enhances investors understanding of the Trust and CRLP by enabling investors to view the business as a whole in the same manner that management views and operates the business;

eliminates duplicative disclosure and provides a more streamlined and readable presentation since a substantial portion of the disclosure in this report applies to both the Trust and CRLP; and

creates time and cost efficiencies through the preparation of one combined report instead of two separate reports.

The Company believes it is important to understand the few differences between the Trust and CRLP in the context of how the Trust and CRLP operate as a consolidated company. The Trust and CRLP are structured as an umbrella partnership REIT, or UPREIT. The Trust s interest in CRLP entitles the Trust to share in cash distributions from, and in the profits and losses of, CRLP in proportion to the Trust s percentage interest therein and entitles the Trust to vote on all matters requiring a vote of the limited partners. The Trust s only material asset is its ownership of limited partner interests in CRLP; therefore, the Trust does not conduct business itself, other than acting as the sole general partner of CRLP, issuing public equity from time to time and guaranteeing certain debt of CRLP. The Trust itself is not directly obligated under any indebtedness, but guarantees some of the debt of CRLP. CRLP holds all the real estate assets of the Company. Except for net proceeds from public equity issuances by the Trust, which are contributed to CRLP in exchange for limited partner interests, CRLP generates the capital required by the Company s business through CRLP s operations, direct or indirect incurrence of indebtedness and issuance of partnership units.

The presentation of the Trust s shareholders equity and CRLP s equity are the principal areas of difference between the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and those of CRLP. The Trust s shareholders equity includes common shares, additional paid-in capital, cumulative earnings, cumulative distributions, noncontrolling interest, treasury shares, accumulated other comprehensive loss and redeemable common units. CRLP s equity includes common equity of the general partner (the Trust), limited partners noncontrolling interest, accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and redeemable common units. Redeemable common units represent the number of outstanding limited partnership units as of the date of the applicable balance sheet, valued at the greater of the closing market price of the Trust s common shares or the aggregate value of the individual partners capital balances. Each redeemable unit may be redeemed by the holder thereof for either cash equal to the fair market value of one common share of the Trust at the time of such redemption or, at the option of the Trust, one common share of the Trust.

Table of Contents

In order to highlight the material differences between the Trust and CRLP, this report includes sections that separately present and discuss areas that are materially different between the Trust and CRLP, including:

the consolidated condensed financial statements in Item 1 of this report;

certain accompanying notes to the financial statements, including Note 5 Net (Loss) Income Per Share of the Trust and Note 6 Net (Loss) Income Per Unit of CRLP; Note 7 Equity of the Trust; and Note 8 Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests of the Trust and Note 9 Redeemable Partnership Units of CRLP;

the controls and procedures in Item 4 of this report; and

the certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial Officer included as Exhibits 31 and 32 to this report. In the sections that combine disclosure for the Trust and CRLP, this report refers to actions or holdings as being actions or holdings of the Company. Although CRLP (directly or indirectly through one of its subsidiaries) is generally the entity that enters into contracts, holds assets and issues debt, management believes this presentation is appropriate for the reasons set forth above and because the business is one enterprise and the Company operates the business through CRLP.

I-2

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share data)

ASSETS	(unaudited) June 30, 2013	Dece	(audited) ember 31, 2012
	\$ 3,443,165	¢	2 490 224
Land, buildings & equipment		\$	3,489,324
Undeveloped land and construction in progress	289,645		296,153
Less: Accumulated depreciation	(843,435)		(804,964)
Real estate assets held for sale, net	41,279		93,450
Net real estate assets	2,930,654		3,073,963
Cash and cash equivalents	20,944		11,674
Restricted cash	10,212		38,128
Accounts receivable, net	24,760		23,977
Notes receivable	41,962		42,399
Prepaid expenses	19,576		19,460
Deferred debt and lease costs	16,253		23,938
Investment in partially-owned entities	4,379		7,777
Other assets	14,254		44,892
Total assets	\$ 3,082,994	\$	3,286,208
LIABILITIES, NONCONTROLLING INTEREST AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY Notes and mortgages payable Unsecured credit facility	\$ 1,542,326 105,000	\$	1,643,361 188,631
Total debt	1,647,326		1,831,992
Accounts payable	32,388		53,545
Accrued interest	8,837		10,209
Accrued expenses	56,331		41,652
Other liabilities	22,001		36,751
Total liabilities	1,766,883		1,974,149
Redeemable noncontrolling interest:			
Common units	179,576		162,056
Equity:			
Common shares of beneficial interest, \$0.01 par value, 125,000,000 shares authorized; 94,367,507 and 93,835,794 shares issued at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively	943		938
Additional paid-in capital	1,965,196		1,973,594
Cumulative earnings	1,297,803		1,276,118
Cumulative distributions	(1,963,333)		(1,926,167)
Noncontrolling interest	182		695
Treasury shares, at cost; 5,623,150 shares at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012	(150,163)		(150,163)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(14,093)		(25,012)
Total shareholders equity	1,136,535		1,150,003
Total liabilities, noncontrolling interest and shareholders equity	\$ 3,082,994	\$	3,286,208

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

I-3

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share data)

	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Mont	
	2013	2012	2013	2012
Revenues:				
Minimum rent	\$ 82,331	\$ 75,054	\$ 163,407	\$ 148,621
Tenant recoveries	658	649	1,321	1,278
Other property related revenue	19,028	13,350	35,130	25,885
Other non-property related revenue	126	1,471	304	2,815
Total revenues	102,143	90,524	200,162	178,599
Operating expenses:				
Property operating expense	27,156	24,641	53,208	48,626
Taxes, licenses and insurance	12,563	10,138	24,938	20,305
Property management expense	4,895	3,001	9,311	5,847
General and administrative expense	4,518	5,446	9,306	11,213
Management fees and other expenses	21	1,769	272	3,814
Investment and development expenses	1,315	205	1,713	592
Depreciation	30,466	27,952	60,603	55,790
Amortization	930	710	2,050	1,906
Impairment and other losses	912	395	1,002	895
Total operating expenses	82,776	74,257	162,403	148,988
Income from operations	19,367	16,267	37,759	29,611
Other income (expense):				
Interest expense	(20,999)	(23,277)	(43,194)	(46,330)
Debt cost amortization	(1,382)	(1,402)	(2,759)	(2,835)
Interest income	201	556	930	1,550
Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	2,327	21,349	2,998	22,022
Gain (loss) on sale of property	14	(9)	25	(235)
Taxes and other	(267)	(277)	(455)	(465)
Total other income (expense)	(20,106)	(3,060)	(42,455)	(26,293)
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(739)	13,207	(4,696)	3,318
(Loss) income from discontinued operations	(159)	4,524	2,767	7,962
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations	18,726	(12)	25,910	(14)
Net income from discontinued operations	18,567	4,512	28,677	7,948
Net income	17,828	17,719	23,981	11,266
Noncontrolling interest				
Continuing operations:				
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP common unitholders	87	(995)	391	(249)

Edgar Filing: BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC - Form DEFA14A

NI CHEST CONTRACTOR		(422)		(0)		(5.45)		(17)
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners		(422)		(8)		(545)		(17)
Discontinued operations:		(1,385)		(220)		(2.142)		(500)
Noncontrolling interest in CRLP		(1,385)		(339)		(2,142)		(599)
Income attributable to noncontrolling interest		(1,720)	((1,342)		(2,296)		(865)
Net income available to common shareholders	\$	16,108	\$ 1	6,377	\$	21,685	\$	10,401
Net income (loss) per common share basic:								
Continuing operations	\$	(0.01)	\$	0.14	\$	(0.06)	\$	0.03
Discontinued operations	Ψ	0.19	Ψ	0.05	Ψ	0.30	Ψ	0.09
Net income (loss) per common share basic	\$	0.18	\$	0.19	\$	0.24	\$	0.12
Net income (loss) per common share basic	Þ	0.10	ф	0.19	Ф	0.24	Ф	0.12
Net income (loss) per common share diluted:								
Continuing operations	\$	(0.01)	\$	0.14	\$	(0.06)	\$	0.03
Discontinued operations		0.19		0.05		0.30		0.09
Net income (loss) per common share diluted	\$	0.18	\$	0.19	\$	0.24	\$	0.12
Weighted average common shares outstanding:								
Basic		88,122	8	37,201		87,958		87,106
Diluted		88,122	8	37,490		87,958		87,382
		· ·				*		
Net income	¢	17,828	¢ 1	17,719	¢	23,981	Ф	11,266
Other comprehensive income:	Ψ	17,020	Ψ.1	17,717	Ψ	23,701	Ψ	11,200
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges		7,848	(1	10,750)		7,920		(10,585)
Reclassification adjustment for amounts included in net income		1,954	(1	1,800		3,881		3,332
Account adjustment to amount metaded in net income		-,, 0 .		1,000		2,001		2,232
	φ.	27 (20	ф	0.760	dr	25 502	ф	4.012
Comprehensive income	\$	27,630	\$	8,769	\$	35,782	\$.4,013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

I-4

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

	Six Months June 3	
	2013	2012
Cash flows from operating activities:		
Net income	\$ 23,981	\$ 11,266
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:		
Depreciation and amortization	65,905	67,272
Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	(2,998)	(22,022)
(Gain) loss on sale of property	(25,935)	249
Impairment and other losses	2,859	1,166
Distributions of income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	180	471
Share-based compensation expense	4,231	4,120
Other, net	(52)	511
Change in:		
Restricted cash	(311)	221
Accounts receivable	(908)	876
Prepaid expenses	(116)	2,500
Other assets	1,232	2,550
Accounts payable	(9,700)	(12,001)
Accrued interest	(1,372)	107
Accrued expenses and other	10,979	13,175
Net cash provided by operating activities	67,975	70,461
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Acquisition of properties	(81,253)	(78,215)
Development expenditures	(46,106)	(45,444)
Capital expenditures, tenant improvements and leasing commissions	(14,418)	(13,106)
Proceeds from sale of property, net of selling costs	279,672	1,862
Restricted cash	28,227	19,852
Repayments of notes receivable	483	1,666
Distributions from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	5,917	3,029
Capital contributions to partially-owned unconsolidated entities		(54)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	172,522	(110,410)
Cash flows from financing activities:		
Proceeds from additional borrowings		150,000
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment plan and exercise of stock options	5,068	3,575
Principal reductions of debt	(101,160)	(1,139)
Payment of debt issuance costs		(5,264)
Proceeds from borrowings on revolving credit lines	295,000	305,000
Payments on revolving credit lines and overdrafts	(389,965)	(377,463)
Dividends paid to common shareholders	(37,166)	(31,623)
Distributions to noncontrolling partners in CRLP	(3,004)	(2,580)

Edgar Filing: BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC - Form DEFA14A

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities	((231,227)	40,506
Increase in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period		9,270 11,674	557 6,452
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$	20,944	\$ 7,009
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:			
Cash paid during the period for interest, including amounts capitalized	\$	45,127	\$ 46,758
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions:			
Change in accrual of construction expenses and capital expenditures The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statem	\$ ents.	(715)	\$ (633)

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

(Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share data)

Six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 Balance, December 31, 2011	Common Shares \$ 931	Additional Paid-In Capital \$ 1,964,881	Cumulative Earnings \$ 1,267,958	CumulativeN Distributions \$ (1,862,838)	ontrollin terest 728	ng Treasury C Shares	Accumulated Other Comprehensiv Loss \$ (16,906)	Total Shareholders Equity	Con Ui	emable amon hits 9,582
Net income (loss)			10,401		17			10,418	\$	848
Reclassification adjustment for amounts			10,401		17			10,410	Ψ	070
included in net income (loss)							3,332	3,332		
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges							(9,789)	(9,789)		(796)
Distributions on common shares (\$0.36 per										
share)				(31,623)				(31,623)	(.	2,580)
Issuance of restricted common shares of										
beneficial interest	4	57						61		
Amortization of stock based compensation		4,120						4,120		
Cancellation of vested restricted shares to pay		(1.170)						(1.100)		
taxes	(1)	(1,179)						(1,180)		
Issuance of common shares from options exercised		771						771		
Issuance of common shares of beneficial		//1						//1		
interest through the Company s dividend										
reinvestment plan and Employee Stock										
Purchase Plan	2	3,979						3,981		
Issuance of common shares of beneficial										
interest through conversion of units from										
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership		336						336		(336)
Change in interest of limited partners		(10.500)			(38)			(38)	1.	. 500
Change in redemption value of common units		(10,592)						(10,592)	10	0,592
Balance, June 30, 2012	\$ 936	\$ 1,962,373	\$ 1,278,359	\$ (1,894,461)	\$ 707	\$ (150,163)	\$ (23,363)	\$ 1,174,388	\$ 16	7,310
Balance, December 31, 2012	\$ 938	\$ 1,973,594	\$ 1,276,118	\$ (1,926,167)	\$ 695	\$ (150,163)	\$ (25,012)	\$ 1,150,003	\$ 162	2,056
, ,										
Net income (loss)			21.685		545			22,230	\$	1.751
Reclassification adjustment for amounts			,					,		,
included in net income (loss)							3,591	3,591		290
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges							7,328	7,328		592
Distributions on common shares (\$0.42 per										
share)				(37,166)				(37,166)	(.	3,004)
Issuance of restricted common shares of	2	201						222		
beneficial interest	2	321						323		
Amortization of stock based compensation Cancellation of vested restricted shares to pay		4,231						4,231		
taxes	(1)	(3,043)						(3,044)		
Issuance of common shares from options	(1)	(3,043)						(3,044)		
exercised	2	3,159						3,161		
Issuance of common shares of beneficial interest through the Company s dividend reinvestment plan and Employee Stock		·								
Purchase Plan	2	4,825						4,827		
		22						22		(22)

Issuance of common shares of beneficial				
interest through conversion of units from				
Colonial Realty Limited Partnership				
Change in interest of limited partners		(1,058)	(1,058)	
Change in redemption value of common units	(17,913)		(17,913)	17,913

Balance, June 30, 2013

\$ 943 \$ 1,965,196 \$ 1,297,803 \$ (1,963,333) \$ 182 \$ (150,163) \$ (14,093) \$ 1,136,535 \$ 179,576

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

I-6

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except unit data)

	(unaudited) June 30, 2013	Dece	(audited) ember 31, 2012
ASSETS			
Land, buildings & equipment	\$ 3,443,163	\$	3,489,322
Undeveloped land and construction in progress	289,645		296,153
Less: Accumulated depreciation	(843,433)		(804,962)
Real estate assets held for sale, net	41,279		93,450
Net real estate assets	2,930,654		3,073,963
Cash and cash equivalents	20,944		11,674
Restricted cash	10,212		38,128
Accounts receivable, net	24,760		23,977
Notes receivable	41,962		42,399
Prepaid expenses	19,576		19,460
Deferred debt and lease costs	16,253		23,938
Investment in partially-owned entities	4,379		7,777
Other assets	14,319		44,844
	,		,
Total assets	\$ 3,083,059	\$	3,286,160
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY			
Notes and mortgages payable	\$ 1,542,326	\$	1,643,361
Unsecured credit facility	105,000		188,631
Total debt	1,647,326		1,831,992
Accounts payable	32,454		53,496
Accrued interest	8.837		10,209
Accrued expenses	56,331		41,652
Other liabilities	22,001		36,751
	,,,,,		/
Total liabilities	1,766,949		1,974,100
Total habilities	1,700,747		1,974,100
D. I. 11 17 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1			
Redeemable units, at redemption value 7,151,752 and 7,152,752 units outstanding at June 30,	150.557		162.056
2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively	179,576		162,056
General partner			
Common equity 88,744,357 and 88,212,644 units outstanding at June 30, 2013 and	1 150 445		1 174 221
December 31, 2012, respectively	1,150,445		1,174,321
Limited partners noncontrolling interest in consolidated partnership	182		695
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(14,093)		(25,012)
Total equity	1,136,534		1,150,004
Total liabilities and equity	\$ 3,083,059	\$	3,286,160

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

I-7

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per unit data)

	Three Months Ended June 30,		June	chs Ended e 30,	
	2013	2012	2013	2012	
Revenues:					
Minimum rent	\$ 82,331	\$ 75,054	\$ 163,407	\$ 148,621	
Tenant recoveries	658	649	1,321	1,278	
Other property related revenue	19,028	13,350	35,130	25,885	
Other non-property related revenue	126	1,471	304	2,815	
Total revenues	102,143	90,524	200,162	178,599	
Operating expenses:					
Property operating expense	27,156	24,641	53,208	48,626	
Taxes, licenses and insurance	12,563	10,138	24,938	20,305	
Property management expense	4,895	3,001	9,311	5,847	
General and administrative expense	4,518	5,446	9,306	11,213	
Management fees and other expenses	21	1,769	272	3,814	
Investment and development expenses	1,315	205	1,713	592	
Depreciation	30,466	27,952	60,603	55,790	
Amortization	930	710	2,050	1,906	
Impairment and other losses	912	395	1,002	895	
Impairment and outer rooses		5,5	1,002	0,2	
Total operating expenses	82,776	74,257	162,403	148,988	
Income from operations	19,367	16,267	37,759	29,611	
Other income (expense):					
Interest expense	(20,999)	(23,277)	(43,194)	(46,330)	
Debt cost amortization	(1,382)	(1,402)	(2,759)	(2,835)	
Interest income	201	556	930	1,550	
Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	2,327	17,204	2,998	17,877	
Gain (loss) on sale of property	14	(9)	25	(235)	
Taxes and other	(267)	(277)	(455)	(465)	
Total other income (expense)	(20,106)	(7,205)	(42,455)	(30,438)	
(Loss) income from continuing operations	(739)	9,062	(4,696)	(827)	
(2500) meome nom communing operations	(10)	>,002	(1,000)	(027)	
(Loss) income from discontinued operations	(159)	4,524	2,767	7,962	
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations	18,726	(12)	25,910	(14)	
Outh (1999) on disposal of discontinued operations	10,720	(12)	23,910	(14)	
Net income from discontinued operations	18,567	4,512	28,677	7,948	
Net income	17,828	13,574	23,981	7,121	
Noncontrolling interest of limited partners continuing operations	(422)	(8)	(545)	(17)	

Edgar Filing: BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC - Form DEFA14A

Net income available to common unitholders	17,406	13,566	23,436	7,104
Net loss (income) available to common unitholders allocated to limited partners continuing operations	87	(995)	391	(249)
Net income available to common unitholders allocated to limited partners discontinued operations	(1,385)	(339)	(2,142)	(599)
	()= == /	(5.5.5)	() /	()
Net income available to common unitholders allocated to general partner	\$ 16,108	\$ 12,232	\$ 21,685	\$ 6,256
Net income available to common unimolers anocated to general partner	\$ 10,100	\$ 12,232	\$ 21,005	\$ 0,230
Net income (loss) per common unit basic:	_		_	
Continuing operations	\$ (0.01)		. ,	\$ (0.02)
Discontinued operations	0.19	0.05	0.30	0.09
Net income (loss) per common unit basic	\$ 0.18	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.24	\$ 0.07
· · · · · ·				
Net income (loss) per common unit diluted:				
Continuing operations	\$ (0.01)	\$ 0.09	\$ (0.06)	\$ (0.02)
Discontinued operations	0.19	0.05	0.30	0.09
Discontinued operations	0.17	0.03	0.20	0.07
and the second s				
Net income (loss) per common unit diluted	\$ 0.18	\$ 0.14	\$ 0.24	\$ 0.07
Weighted average common units outstanding:				
Basic	95,274	94,363	95,110	94,272
Diluted	95,274	94,652	95,110	94,548
Net income attributable to common unitholders	\$ 17,406	\$ 13,566	\$ 23,436	\$ 7,104
Other comprehensive income:	Ψ 17,100	\$ 15,500	¥ 2 0,100	Ψ 7,101
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges	7,848	(10,750)	7,920	(10,585)
Reclassification adjustment for amounts included in net income	1,954	1,800	3,881	3,332
recommend adjustment for amounts metaded in not movine	1,554	1,000	2,001	3,332
	A 25 260	Φ 4.616	ф. 25.225	ф. (1.46°
Comprehensive income	\$ 27,208	\$ 4,616	\$ 35,237	\$ (149)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

I-8

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

	Six Months Ended June 30,		
	2013	2012	
Cash flows from operating activities:			
Net income	\$ 23,981	\$ 7,121	
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:			
Depreciation and amortization	65,905	67,272	
Income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	(2,998)	(17,877)	
(Gain) loss on sale of property	(25,935)	249	
Impairment and other losses	2,859	1,166	
Distributions of income from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	180	471	
Share-based compensation expense	4,231	4,120	
Other, net	(52)	511	
Change in:			
Restricted cash	(311)	221	
Accounts receivable	(908)	876	
Prepaid expenses	(116)	2,500	
Other assets	1,232	2,550	
Accounts payable	(9,700)	(12,001)	
Accrued interest	(1,372)	107	
Accrued expenses and other	10,979	13,175	
Net cash provided by operating activities Cash flows from investing activities:	67,975	70,461	
Acquisition of properties	(81,253)	(78,215)	
Development expenditures	(46,106)	(45,444)	
Capital expenditures, tenant improvements and leasing commissions	(14,418)	(13,106)	
Proceeds from sales of property, net of selling costs	279,672	1,862	
Restricted cash	28,227	19,852	
Repayments of notes receivable	483	1,666	
Distributions from partially-owned unconsolidated entities	5,917	3,029	
Capital contributions to partially-owned unconsolidated entities	·	(54)	
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	172,522	(110,410)	
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Proceeds from additional borrowings		150,000	
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment plan and exercise of stock options	5,068	3,575	
Principal reductions of debt	(101,160)	(1,139)	
Payment of debt issuance costs	. , , , ,	(5,264)	
Proceeds from borrowings on revolving credit lines	295,000	305,000	
Payments on revolving credit lines and overdrafts	(389,965)	(377,463)	
Dividends paid to common shareholders	(37,166)	(31,623)	
Distributions to noncontrolling partners in CRLP	(3,004)	(2,580)	

Edgar Filing: BNP RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES INC - Form DEFA14A

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities	((231,227)	40,506
Increase in cash and cash equivalents		9,270	557
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period		11,674	6,452
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$	20,944	\$ 7,009
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:			
Cash paid during the period for interest, including amounts capitalized	\$	45,127	\$ 46,758
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions:			
Change in accrual of construction expenses and capital expenditures	\$	(715)	\$ (633)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial states	ment	c	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012	General Partner Common Equity	Limited Partners Noncontrolling Interest		Partners Noncontrolling		Partners Noncontrollin		Partners Noncontrolling		Partners Noncontrolling		Partners Noncontrolling		Partners Noncontrolling		Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss		Partners Other controlling Comprehens		Total	Redeemable Common Units
Balance, December 31, 2011	\$ 1,224,947	\$	728	\$	(16,906)	\$ 1,208,769	\$ 159,582														
Net income (loss)	6,256		17			6,273	848														
Reclassification adjustment for amounts included in net																					
income (loss)					3,332	3,332															
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges					(9,789)	(9,789)	(796)														
Distributions to common unitholders	(31,623)					(31,623)	(2,580)														
Change in interest of limited partners			(38)			(38)															
Contributions from partners and the Company related to																					
employee stock purchase, dividend reinvestment plans and																					
equity offerings	7,720					7,720															
Redemption of partnership units for shares	336					336	(336)														
Change in redeemable noncontrolling interest	(10,592)					(10,592)	10,592														
Balance, June 30, 2012	\$ 1,197,044	\$	707	\$	(23,363)	\$ 1,174,388	\$ 167,310														
Balance, December 31, 2012	\$ 1,174,321	\$	695	\$	(25,012)	\$ 1,150,004	\$ 162,056														
Net income (loss)	21,685		545			22,230	1,751														
Reclassification adjustment for amounts included in net																					
income (loss)					3,591	3,591	290														
Changes in fair value of qualifying hedges					7,328	7,328	592														
Distributions to common unitholders	(37,166)					(37,166)	(3,004)														
Change in interest of limited partners			(1,058)			(1,058)															
Contributions from partners and the Company related to																					
employee stock purchase and dividend reinvestment plans	9,496					9,496															
Redemption of partnership units for shares	22					22	(22)														
Change in redeemable noncontrolling interest	(17,913)					(17,913)	17,913														
Balance, June 30, 2013	\$ 1,150,445	\$	182	\$	(14,093)	\$ 1,136,534	\$ 179,576														

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

COLONIAL PROPERTIES TRUST AND COLONIAL REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO

CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013

(Unaudited)

The consolidated condensed financial statements of Colonial Properties Trust (the Trust) and Colonial Realty Limited Partnership (CRLP) have been prepared pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) rules and regulations. The following notes, which represent interim disclosures as required by the SEC, highlight significant changes to the notes included in the December 31, 2012 audited consolidated financial statements of Colonial Properties Trust and Colonial Realty Limited Partnership and should be read together with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Colonial Properties Trust and Colonial Realty Limited Partnership 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Note 1 Organization and Business

As used herein, Colonial or the Trust means Colonial Properties Trust, an Alabama real estate investment trust (REIT), together with its subsidiaries, including Colonial Realty Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership (CRLP), Colonial Properties Services, Inc. (CPSI) and Colonial Properties Services Limited Partnership (CPSLP). The term the Company refers to the Trust and CRLP, collectively. The Trust was originally formed as a Maryland REIT on July 9, 1993 and reorganized as an Alabama REIT under a new Alabama REIT statute on August 21, 1995. The Trust is the sole general partner of, and, as of June 30, 2013, owned a 92.5% limited partner interest in CRLP. The Trust and CRLP are structured as an umbrella partnership REIT, or UPREIT, and the Trust's only material asset is its ownership of limited partnership interests in CRLP. The Trust conducts all of its business and owns all of its properties through CRLP and CRLP is various subsidiaries and, as the sole general partner of CRLP, is vested with managerial control and authority over the business and affairs of CRLP.

The Trust is a multifamily-focused self-administered and self-managed equity REIT, which means that it is engaged in the acquisition, development, ownership, management and leasing of multifamily apartment communities and other commercial real estate properties. The Company s activities include full or partial ownership and operation of a portfolio of 122 properties, consisting of multifamily and commercial properties located in 11 states (Alabama, Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Nevada, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas and Virginia).

As of June 30, 2013, the Company owned or maintained a partial ownership in:

	Consolidated Properties	Units/Sq. Feet ⁽¹⁾	Unconsolidated Properties	Units/Sq. Feet (1)	Total Properties	Total Units/Sq. Feet ⁽¹⁾
Multifamily apartment communities	114 ⁽²⁾	34,289	1	288	115	34,577
Commercial properties	5	1,016,000	2	178,000	7	1,194,000

- (1) Units refer to multifamily apartment units. Square feet refers to commercial space and excludes spaced owned by anchor tenants.
- (2) Includes one property partially-owned through a joint venture entity.

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The notes included in this Form 10-Q apply to both the Trust and CRLP, unless specifically noted otherwise. Specifically *Note 5*Net Income

(Loss) Per Share of the Trust, Note 7

Equity of the Trust and Note 8

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests of the Trust pertain only to the Trust.

Note 6

Net Income (Loss) Per Unit of CRLP and Note 9

Redeemable Partnership Units of CRLP pertain only to CRLP.

Table of Contents

Unaudited Interim Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated condensed financial statements of the Trust and CRLP have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP) for interim financial information, including rules and regulations of the SEC. Accordingly, the interim financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for the six months ended June 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2013. The Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets at December 31, 2012 of the Trust and CRLP have been derived from the respective audited financial statements at that date, but do not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable consists primarily of promissory notes representing loans by the Company to third parties. The Company records notes receivable at cost. The Company evaluates the collectability of both interest and principal for each of its notes to determine whether they are impaired. A note is considered to be impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the existing contractual terms. When a note is considered to be impaired, the amount of the allowance is calculated by comparing the recorded investment to either the value determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at the note s effective interest rate or to the value of the collateral if the note is collateral-dependent. As of June 30, 2013, the Company did not have any impaired notes receivable.

As of June 30, 2013, the Company had notes receivable of \$42.0 million consisting primarily of:

\$24.0 million outstanding on the construction note, which is secured by the property, for the Colonial Promenade Smyrna joint venture, which the Company acquired from the lender in May 2010. On January 31, 2012, the Company and the joint venture amended the note and related loan documents to extend the maturity date to December 2012, fix the annual interest rate at 5.25%, provide for two additional one-year extension options and reduce the joint venture partner s guarantee to \$1.3 million. In December 2012, the joint venture opted to extend the maturity date to December 2013 with a fixed interest rate of 5.38%, and

\$16.9 million outstanding on a seller-financing note with a five-year term at an annual interest rate of 5.60% associated with the disposition of Colonial Promenade at Fultondale in February 2009.

The Company had accrued interest related to its outstanding notes receivable of \$0.5 million and \$0.3 million as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. As of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company had no reserve recorded against its outstanding notes receivable. The weighted average interest rate on the notes receivable outstanding at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was approximately 5.5%. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

Fair Value Measures

The Company applies the Financial Accounting Standards Board s (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a transaction between willing market participants. Additional disclosures focusing on the methods used to determine fair value are also required using the following hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

I-12

Table of Contents

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the assets or liability.

The Company applies ASC 820 in relation to the valuation of real estate assets recorded at fair value, to its impairment valuation analysis of real estate assets (see *Note 3 Real Estate Activity)*, to its disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments, which principally consists of indebtedness (see *Note 12 Financing Activities)*, to its disclosure of fair value of derivative financial instruments (see *Note 13 Derivatives and Hedging)* and to notes receivable (see below). The following table presents the Company s real estate assets (non-recurring measures) and derivative financial instruments (recurring measures) reported at fair market value and the related level in the fair value hierarchy as defined by ASC 820 used to measure those assets, liabilities and disclosures:

	Fair value measurements as of June 30, 2013				
(\$ in thousands)					
Assets (Liabilities)	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	
Derivative financial instruments	\$ (14,301)	\$	\$ (14,301)	\$	

Derivative financial instruments

Currently, the Company uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk. The valuation of these instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including interest rate curves. The fair values of interest rate swaps are determined using the market standard methodology of netting the discounted future fixed cash payments and the discounted expected variable cash receipts. The variable cash receipts are based on an expectation of future interest rates (forward curves) derived from observable market interest rate curves.

To comply with the provisions of ASC 820, the Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty s nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of its derivative contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk, the Company, in conjunction with the FASB s fair value measurement guidance, made an accounting policy election to measure the credit risk of its derivative financial instruments that are subject to master netting agreements on a net basis by counterparty portfolio.

Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with its derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by itself and its counterparties. However, as of June 30, 2013, the Company has assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of its derivative positions and has determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the overall valuation of its derivatives. As a result, the Company has determined that its derivative valuations in their entirety are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Indebtedness

At June 30, 2013, the estimated fair value of fixed rate debt was approximately \$1.57 billion (carrying value of \$1.53 billion) and the estimated fair value of the Company s variable rate debt, including the Company s unsecured credit facility, is consistent with the carrying value of \$117.3 million (the Credit Facility, see *Note 12 Financing Activities Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility*). The Company has determined that the fair value of its fixed and variable rate debt is classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Table of Contents

Notes Receivable

The estimated fair value of the Company s notes receivable at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was consistent with the carrying values of approximately \$42.0 million and \$42.4 million, respectively, based on market rates and similar financing arrangements after giving consideration to the credit standing of the borrowers. The Company has determined that the fair value of its notes receivable is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The disclosure of estimated fair values was determined by management using available market information, considering market participant assumptions and appropriate valuation methodologies available to management at June 30, 2013. Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develop estimated fair value. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the estimates presented above are indicative of the amounts the Company could realize on disposition of the real estate assets or financial instruments. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies could have material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, an update to ASC 220, *Comprehensive Income*. ASU 2013-02 was issued to improve the reporting of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income. The amendments in this update seek to attain that objective by requiring an entity to report the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income on the respective line items in net income if the amount being reclassified is required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified in its entirety to net income. For other amounts that are not required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net income in the same reporting period, an entity is required to cross-reference other disclosures required under U.S. GAAP that provide additional detail about those amounts. This would be the case when a portion of the amount reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income is reclassified to a balance sheet account instead of directly to income or expense in the same reporting period. ASU 2013-02 was adopted by the Company for the fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2012. The adoption of ASU 2013-02 did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

Note 3 Real Estate Activity

Acquisition Activity

During the six months ended June 30, 2013, the Company acquired the following multifamily apartment communities:

Acquisition	Location	Units	Effective Acquisition Date		chase rice
				(In m	illions)
Colonial Grand at Windermere	Orlando, FL	280	March 1, 2013	\$	43.0
Colonial Reserve at Frisco Bridges	Dallas, TX	252	May 31, 2013	\$	36.2

The results of operations of the above mentioned acquisitions have been included in the consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition. These acquisitions were funded with proceeds from 2012 asset dispositions and borrowings on the Company s Credit Facility.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, gives effect to the above operating property acquisitions as if they had occurred at the beginning of the period presented. The information for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, includes pro forma results for the portion of the period prior to the acquisition date and actual results from the date of acquisition through the end of the period. The information for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, also includes pro forma results for five acquisitions completed in 2012 as if they had occurred at the beginning of this period. The pro forma results are not intended to be indicative of the results of future operations.

	** Pro Forma (Unaudited) **					
	Three Mont	Three Months Ended		hs Ended		
	June	30,	June	e 30 ,		
(\$ in thousands, except per share data)	2013	2012	2013	2012		
Total revenue	\$ 102,348	\$ 93,791	\$ 201,320	\$ 186,990		
Net income available to common shareholders	\$ 15,906	\$ 15,733	\$ 21,051	\$ 8,753		
Net income per common share dilutive	\$ 0.18	\$ 0.18	\$ 0.24	\$ 0.10		

Disposition Activity

On June 27, 2013, the Company sold Colonial Village at Pinnacle Ridge, a 166-unit multifamily apartment community located in Asheville, North Carolina, for \$13.4 million. The proceeds from the sale were used to fund investment activities through a tax-deferred exchange under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, (the Code) as part of